
 
 

BOULDER CITY COUNCIL MEETING 
CANYON THEATER, BOULDER PUBLIC LIBRARY, 1001 ARAPAHOE AVE 

Tuesday, December 17, 2013 
6 p.m. 

 
AGENDA 

 
1. CALL TO ORDER AND ROLL CALL 
 
2. OPEN COMMENT and COUNCIL/STAFF RESPONSE (limited to 45 min.) Public may 

address any city business for which a public hearing is not scheduled later in the meeting (this 
includes the consent agenda and first readings).  After all public hearings have taken place, any 
remaining speakers will be allowed to address council.  All speakers are limited to three minutes. 

 
3. CONSENT AGENDA (to include first reading of ordinances) Vote to be taken on the 

motion at this time.  
 
A. Consideration of the following items related to the annexation of 6234 Arapahoe 

Road and 1492 Cherryvale Road commonly known as the Boulder Jewish Commons 
site: 

 
1. A resolution finding the annexation petition in compliance with state statutes and 
establishing January 21, 2014, as the date for a public hearing 
 

2. Introduction, first reading and consideration of a motion to order published by title only, 
an ordinance:  
 

a. Annexing a 1.8 acre area of land generally located at 1492 Cherryvale Road with an 
initial zoning classification of Residential Rural -1 (RR-1); and 
 

b. Annexing a 16.36 acre area of land generally located at 6234 Arapahoe Road with 
an initial zoning classification of a Residential-Medium 1 (RM-1); and 
 

c. Annexing a 0.74 acre portion of Arapahoe Road from a point at the northwest 
property line of 6234 Arapahoe Road extending eastward to a point at the 
northeast property line of 6234 Arapahoe Road with an initial zoning 
classification of Residential-Medium 1 (RM-1); and 
 

d. Authorizing variations and modifications to the Boulder Revised Code that are in 
the annexation agreement associated with these annexations 

 
Applicant/Property Owner: Vincent Porreca/Cherryvale Commons LTD 

 
B. Introduction, first reading and consideration of a motion to order published by title only 

an ordinance granting authority to the approving authorities under Title 9, “Land Use 

Packet Page     1



 
 

Code,” B.R.C. 1981, to approve the moving of two single-family dwelling unit 
structures from 1220 and 1243 Grandview Avenue to 905 Marine Street, and as an 
amendment to Title 9, “Land Use Code,” B.R.C. 1981 to waive or modify certain land use 
regulations as they apply to these structures 
 
Applicant/Owner: Christian Griffith 
 

C. Consideration of a motion to adopt a resolution approving and authorizing an 
application for a Great Outdoors Colorado School Play Yard Initiative Grant 
 

D. Consideration of a motion to authorize the City Manager to enter into a Letter of 
Intent between the University Hill General Improvement District (UHGID) and Del 
Mar Interests, LLC, regarding feasibility of a public/private partnership redevelopment 
of UHGID’s 14th Street parking lot 

 
4. POTENTIAL CALL- UP CHECK IN  

Opportunity for Council to indicate possible interest in the call- up of an item listed under agenda 
Item 8-A1.   

 
ORDER OF BUSINESS   

 
5. PUBLIC HEARINGS   
 

A. Second reading and consideration of a motion to adopt Ordinance No. 7952, granting a 
one year extension to Comcast of Colorado IV, LLC, to use public rights of way to 
provide cable television services and to authorize the city manager to execute the cable 
television franchise agreement between the city of Boulder and Comcast of Colorado 
IV, LLC 

 
6. MATTERS FROM THE CITY MANAGER   

 
A. Update on Boulder’s Energy Future Municipalization Exploration Project 

 
B. Request for direction on the 2014 Community Survey 

 
7. MATTERS FROM THE CITY ATTORNEY   
  

None 
 
8. MATTERS FROM MAYOR AND MEMBERS OF COUNCIL 

 
A. Potential Call-Ups 

 
1. Vacation of a 4,122 square foot water main easement located along the south 

property line at 4474 Broadway (ADR2013-00209) Information Packet Date: 

Packet Page     2



 
 

December 17 Last Opportunity to Call-Up: December 17 
 

2. Vacation of a 1,230 square foot portion of a utility easement that bisects the 
property at 1560 Cress Court (ADR2013-00216) Information Packet Date: 
December 17 Last Opportunity to Call-Up: December 17 

 
B. Council Retreat Agenda Discussion 

 
9. PUBLIC COMMENT ON MATTERS (15 min.) Public comment on any motions made 

under Matters. 
 

10. FINAL DECISIONS ON MATTERS Action on motions made under Matters. 
 

11. DEBRIEF (5 Min.) Opportunity for Council to discuss how the meeting was conducted 
 

12. ADJOURNMENT 
 

This agenda and the meetings can be viewed at www.bouldercolorado.gov / City Council.  
Meetings are aired live on Municipal Channel 8 and the city’s Web site and are re-cablecast at 6 
p.m. Wednesdays and 11 a.m. Fridays in the two weeks following a regular council meeting.  
DVDs may be checked out from the Main Boulder Public Library.  Anyone requiring special 
packet preparation such as Braille, large print, or tape recorded versions may contact the City 
Clerk’s Office at (303) 441-3002, 8 a.m. – 5 p.m. Monday through Friday.  48 hours notification 
prior to the meeting or preparation of special materials IS REQUIRED.  If you need Spanish 
interpretation or other language-related assistance for this meeting, please call (303) 441-1905 at 
least three days prior to the meeting.  Si usted necesita interpretación o cualquier otra ayuda con 
relación al idioma para esta junta, por favor comuníquese al (303) 441-1905 por lo menos 3 
días antes de la junta. Electronic presentations to the city council must be pre-loaded by staff at 
the time of sign up and will NOT be accepted after 3:30 p.m. at regularly scheduled meetings.  
Electronic media must come on a prepared USB jump (flash/thumb) drive and no technical 
support is provided by staff. 

 

Packet Page     3

http://www.bouldercolorado.gov/


 

 

 

 

This Page Intentionally Left Blank 

Packet Page     4



 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

C I T Y  O F  B O U L D E R 
CITY COUNCIL AGENDA ITEM 

 
MEETING DATE: December 17, 2013 

 
 
AGENDA TITLE: 
 
Consideration of the following items related to the annexation of 6234 Arapahoe Road and  
1492 Cherryvale Road commonly known as the Boulder Jewish Commons site: 
 
1. A resolution finding the annexation petition in compliance with state statutes and establishing 

January 21, 2014, as the date for a public hearing; 
 
2. Introduction, first reading and consideration of a motion to order published by title only, an 

ordinance: 
 

a. Annexing a 1.8 acre area of land generally located 1492 Cherryvale Road with an initial 
zoning classification of Residential Rural - 1 (RR-1); and
 

b. Annexing a 16.36 acre area of land generally located at 6234 Arapahoe Road with an initial 
zoning classification of Residential – Medium 1 (RM-1) and Public (P);   
 

c. Annexing a 0.74 acre portion of Arapahoe Road from a point at the northwest property line 
of 6234 Arapahoe Road extending eastward to a point at the northeast property line of 6234 
Arapahoe Road with an initial zoning classification of Residential - Medium  1 (RM-1); and 
 

d. Authorizing variations and modifications to the Boulder Revised Code that are in the 
annexation agreement associated with these annexations.  

 
Applicant/Property Owner:   Vincent Porreca/Cherryvale Commons LTD 
 
 
 
PRESENTERS:  
Jane S. Brautigam, City Manager  
Paul J. Fetherston, Deputy City Manager  
David Driskell, Executive Director of Community Planning and Sustainability 
Susan Richstone, Deputy Director of Community Planning and Sustainability 
Charles Ferro, Development Review Manager, Community Planning and Sustainability Planning 
Elaine McLaughlin, Senior Planner, Community Planning and Sustainability Planning) 
 

Agenda Item 3A     Page 1Packet Page     5



 

EXECUTIVE SUMMARY 
The area proposed to be annexed is generally located near the southeast corner of Arapahoe and 
Cherryvale roads, specifically, 6234 Arapahoe Rd. and 1492 Cherryvale Rd. and is part of a 
planned educational and cultural facility referred to as the Boulder Jewish Commons.  A brief 
description of the annexation requests and the proposed project are provided on page 3, and a 
vicinity map is found within Attachment A. 
 
Per the state’s annexation statutes, council is asked to consider the annexation resolution as 
provided in Attachment B setting the public hearing date for Jan. 21, 2014. The proposed 
annexation resolution establishes that the petition to annex a total of approximately 19 acres is 
in compliance with Section 31-12-107(1), C.R.S. and sets the hearing to determine compliance 
with other annexation requirements.  The ordinance to annex the properties is provided for first 
reading in Attachment C.   
 
The annexation proposal includes a high percentage of affordable housing for any dwelling units 
that may be developed on the property; the dedication of 8.59 acres of land to the City of 
Boulder’s Open Space and Mountain Parks for the environmental protection of Sombrero Marsh 
and land surrounding the marsh; construction of new roadways for connectivity; and a 
construction of a roadway roundabout for traffic calming on Cherryvale Road.  Staff finds the 
proposal consistent with the Boulder Valley Comprehensive Plan (BVCP) and recommends 
approval of the annexation 
 
On Jan. 21, 2014, the second reading of the annexation ordinance is scheduled for consideration 
of with the following actions: 
 

1. annexing the subject properties, including an adjacent portion of Arapahoe Avenue, with 
initial zoning classifications of Rural - Residential 1 (RR-1), Residential - Medium 1 
(RM-1) and Public (P). 
 

2. authorizing an indoor recreational or athletic facility use at 5980 Arapahoe pursuant to a 
use review approved concurrent with this annexation and to complete the development of 
the Boulder Jewish Commons in three phases of five, ten, and fifteen years from the time 
of the development.  
 

In addition to the second reading of the annexation ordinance on Jan. 21, 2014, council will be 
asked to consider approval of the following requests related to development of the Boulder 
Jewish Community Center (JCC): 
 

 Site Review to permit the new building and associated landscaping, parking 
and access roadways; and 
 

 Use Review to permit a Day Care Facility, an Adult Education Facility, and a 
Indoor Recreational or Athletic Facility within the Jewish Community Center.   

 
On Oct. 24, 2013, Planning Board unanimously recommended approval of the Annexations and 
Initial Zoning, the Site Review and the Use Review applications. Ordinarily when Planning 
Board acts on a Site Review application, the decision is subject to City Council call-up, per 
section 9-4-2, “Development Review Procedures,” B.R.C. 1981. In this case, the proposed 
annexation package includes the development of the JCC and related modifications and waivers 

Agenda Item 3A     Page 2Packet Page     6



 

to the Boulder Revised Code and City Council has final decision authority for the initial site and 
use review applications.  Therefore, City Council will be considering the Site and Use Review 
applications at the same time as the second reading of the annexation ordinance on Jan. 21, 2014.  
The conditions of annexation are set forth in Attachment D.   
 
BACKGROUND 
 
The proposed project includes the combined requests of annexation, initial zoning, site and use 
reviews that together will help to establish the property referred to as Boulder Jewish Commons.   
The project site includes an approximately 14-acre area annexed into the city as part of a larger 
52-acre annexation of multiple properties in the 1980s.  Two surrounding parcels and an area of 
Arapahoe Avenue right of way are currently proposed for annexation with initial zoning 
designations of Residential – Rural 1, Residential -Medium 1 and Public.  Figure 1 illustrates the 
areas proposed for annexation with the respective initial zoning designations.   
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
As shown in Figure 2 on the following page, the Boulder Jewish Commons property is proposed 
to house the Jewish Community Center building along with two access roadways and associated 
parking and landscaping are planned to be constructed.  In addition, an area encompassing a 
portion of the Sombrero Marsh is proposed to be dedicated to the City of Boulder as open space 
through the annexation process.  The JCC building will house educational and cultural uses and 
activities including a day care center, an adult education center, associated meeting space, and a 
fitness facility.  While there are no plans to develop any residential units at this time on the 

Agenda Item 3A     Page 3Packet Page     7



 

portion of the site planned for RM-1 zoning, any future residential will be required to provide 40 
percent of the units as permanently affordable consistent with the conditions of annexation, 
provided in Attachment D.  A small, 1.2 acre parcel of land on the south west corner of the 
property is planned for RR-1 zoning, however, there are no plans to develop that portion of the 
property at this time.  The remainder of the property, totaling approximately 8.59 acres, will be 
dedicated to the City of Boulder’s Open Space and Mountain Parks for the preservation of the 
Sombrero Marsh along with an area as a buffer to the marsh.   
 

 
Previous Concept Plan Review.  The plan to establish the property as the Boulder Jewish 
Commons was first introduced in a Concept Plan review in 2000.  At that time, a much more 
intensive development was planned that included four synagogues, a separate recreation 
building, a separate education building, and a congregate care facility.  The Planning Board at 
that time expressed support for the vision of the project and offered several recommended 
changes.  The applicant has since implemented the Concept Plan recommendations, including a 
reduction in the level of overall development on the site and placement of the buildings near 
Arapahoe Avenue to protect the Sombrero Marsh.  Since the 2000 Concept Plan review, the 

Agenda Item 3A     Page 4Packet Page     8



 

property owners undertook and subsequently completed a capital campaign to construct the 
Jewish Community Center building and supporting roadways and infrastructure.   
 
Annexation, Site and Use Review.  On Oct. 24, 2013, the Planning Board reviewed the 
proposed annexation along with the Site and Use Review applications, and recommended that 
council approve the annexations and site review with conditions. 
 
STAFF RECOMMENDATION  
Staff requests council consideration of this matter and action in the form of the following 
motion: 
 
Suggested Motion Language:  
 

1. Motion to approve a resolution finding the annexation petition in compliance with 
state statutes and establishing Jan. 21, 2014, as the date for a public hearing and 
council action on the annexation ordinance. 
 

2. Motion to introduce on first reading and to order published by title only an 
ordinance: 
  
a. Annexing a 1.8 acre area of land generally located 1492 Cherryvale Rd. with an 

initial zoning classification of Residential Rural - 1 (RR-1); 
 

b. Annexing a 16.36 acre area of land generally located at 6234 Arapahoe with an 
initial zoning classification of Residential – Medium 1 (RM-1) and Public (P);   
 

c. Annexing a 0.74 acre portion of Arapahoe Road from a point at the northwest 
property line of 6234 Arapahoe extending eastward to a point at the northeast 
property line of 6234 Arapahoe Road with an initial zoning classification of 
Residential - Medium  1 (RM-1); and 
 

d. Authorizing variations and modifications to the Boulder Revised Code that are in 
the annexation agreement associated with these annexations.  

 
 
COMMUNITY SUSTAINABILITY ASSESSMENTS AND IMPACTS 
 Economic:  None identified.  

 
 Environmental:  There are environmental benefits of having properties connected to city 

water and sewer, specifically, the avoidance of the potential impacts of independent septic 
system failure. In addition, the applicant has agreed to convey to the city, an area within the 
southern part of the project site which contains a portion of Sombrero Marsh, regarded as an 
“exceptional ecological resource.”  The 8.59 acre area to be dedicated in-fee to the City of 
Boulder’s Open Space and Mountain Parks will leave the property’s sensitive environmental 
feature of Sombrero Marsh protected and maintained it in its natural state.  
 

 Social: Because the property at the northeast corner of the site is planned to be annexed with 
an initial zoning of Residential – Medium 1 (RM-1) but not developed at this time, the 
property will hold additional development potential.  The applicant has agreed to provide  

Agenda Item 3A     Page 5Packet Page     9



 

40 percent, or two times the Inclusionary Housing standard, of any future housing as 
permanently affordable. The provision of permanently affordable housing within Boulder 
creates and maintains social diversity within the community.  

 
OTHER IMPACTS 
 Fiscal: City services are existing and available within both Arapahoe and Cherryvale roads 

adjacent to this site.  All development will be subject to city development fees including 
payment of Storm Water, Flood Management, and utility Plant Investment Fees (PIFs). 

 
 Staff time: The annexation application has been processed through the provisions of a 

standard annexation, site and use review processes and is within normal staff work plans. 
 
BOARD AND COMMISSION FEEDBACK 
Annexations are subject to county referral and city Planning Board recommendation prior to 
City Council action.  
 
Boulder County Commission: The county has reviewed the request and is in support of the 
proposal. 
 
Planning Board:  The board reviewed a Concept Plan to annex and develop the Boulder Jewish 
Commons in 2000 and most recently at a public hearing on Oct. 24, 2013.  At the recent public 
hearing the board recommended that council approve the annexations along with the site and 
use reviews with conditions. 
 

Concept Plan: At the time the Boulder Jewish Commons Concept Plan was reviewed, four 
synagogues were proposed along with separate buildings for education and recreation and 
with 49 congregate care units.  At the time of the 2000 Concept Plan review, the Planning 
Board expressed support for the vision of the project and provided several suggestions that 
included: reducing the level or intensity of development on the site; shifting roads and 
parking from the south property line to internal to the site; and placement of the buildings 
near Arapahoe Avenue to protect the Sombrero Marsh.  
 
Annexation, Site and Use Review: On Oct. 24, 2013, the Planning Board unanimously 
supported the proposed annexations with initial zoning designations of Residential Rural -1 
(RR-1), Residential Medium-1 (RM-1), and Public (P), noting the consistency with the 
BVCP.  Planning Board also unanimously recommended approval of the Site and Use 
Review applications finding the proposal consistent with the Site and Use Review criteria. 
For the Site Review approval, the Planning Board recommended two additional conditions: 
work with the Regional Transportation District (RTD) to locate an additional bus stop along 
Arapahoe Avenue adjacent to the proposed JCC building; and work with staff to reconfigure 
the service area to not impact pedestrians. 

 
PUBLIC FEEDBACK 
All notice requirements of section 9-4-3, “Public Notice Requirements,” B.R.C. 1981 have been 
met. Compliance with these requirements have included public notice in the form of written 
notification mailed to all property owners within 1,200 feet of the subject property and a sign 
posted on the property for at least 10 days prior to the public hearing as required.  As part of the 
review process, the applicant also held two neighborhood meetings. Public comment was also 
given at the time of the Planning Board Concept Plan review hearing and the hearing for the 

Agenda Item 3A     Page 6Packet Page     10



 

Annexation, Initial Zoning and Site/Use Reviews.  Of the comments received, many expressed 
support for the proposed Jewish Community Center, the traffic calming roundabout, and the 
planned improvements to Cherryvale Road including the double turn lanes for westbound 
Arapahoe Avenue on Cherryvale Road.  Two commentators expressed concern about flooding 
from Sombrero Marsh on to the property and neighboring properties during the recent flooding 
events in September.  Staff provided responses to these neighbors for their specific concerns.   
 
At the Oct. 24, 2013 Planning Board hearing there were approximately 100 members of the 
public in attendance who, through a show of hands, indicated support for the proposed project.  
Of the five persons who spoke during public participation, all indicated support for the 
application including two neighboring property owners who were impacted by the September 
2013 flooding from Sombrero Marsh. The neighbors asked that continuing discussions be held 
with the city and county on flood prevention and mitigation. Staff agreed to the request for on-
going discussions with Boulder County representatives given the impacts originating in the 
county, specific to Sombrero Marsh as well as neighboring residential areas. 
 
PROPOSED ANNEXATION AND PROJECT PLANS  
The proposed Boulder Jewish Commons area encompasses approximately 32 acres.  As shown in 
Figure 3, on the following page, an approximately 14 acre area was annexed as part of a larger 
52 acre annexation of multiple properties in the 1980s and is zoned Residential Estate (RE). The 
approximately eight-acre property to the east of the RE zoned area is intended to be annexed 
with an initial zoning of RM-1, although no development is planned at this time on the property. 
To the south of the RE parcel, along Cherryvale Road, a 1.8 acre parcel will be annexed as 
Residential - Rural 1 (RR-1).  The far south end of the property that encompasses a portion of 
Sombrero Marsh is intended to be zoned as Public (P) and dedicated in fee in its entirety to the 
city for management by Open Space and Mountain Parks as permanent open space.   
 
The JCC building is planned to be located near Arapahoe Avenue in the already annexed parcel.  
The building is intended to primarily be a place for education with roughly half of the building 
being planned for a child day care facility, and the other half being planned for adult education.  
As can be seen in Figure 4, on the following page, the adult education portion of the building 
includes meeting spaces, classrooms, a “community hall” for larger gatherings, and a fitness 
facility.  There are also offices for the JCC and a small library. Figure 5 is a perspective sketch of 
the proposed JCC building as seen from Cherryvale Road and Figure 6 is a perspective sketch of 
the entrance plaza into the building.  
  
Two access points are proposed into the property, one from Arapahoe Avenue just east of the 
planned JCC building, and the other on Cherryvale Road.  As shown in Figure 7, the access from 
Cherryvale Road is proposed as a roundabout to calm traffic on the roadway.  The roundabout 
will provide for motor vehicle traffic as well as bicycle and pedestrian traffic in an area of 
Cherryvale Road where little exists today for bikes or pedestrians. 
 
The applicant does not have plans to develop residential units at this time, but instead intends to 
focus on the development of the JCC.  However, per the annexation agreement, at the time of 
any residential development 40 percent (or two times the inclusionary housing requirement) of 
such units must be permanently affordable and the plans will be subject to Site Review 
Amendment approval.  

Agenda Item 3A     Page 7Packet Page     11



 

Figure 3:  Existing and Proposed Zoning  

Figure 4:  Proposed Building’s Educational Use 

Agenda Item 3A     Page 8Packet Page     12



 

 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 

Figure 5:   
Perspective Rendering of Proposed JCC Building looking Northeast from Cherryvale Road  

Figure 6:   
Perspective Rendering of Entrance Plaza into the Building  

Agenda Item 3A     Page 9Packet Page     13



 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
ANALYSIS 
 
1. Land Use Designation and Initial Zoning 

 
The applicant is requesting annexation into the city of Boulder with three different zoning 
designations, including:  RR-1 for 1492 Cherryvale Rd.; RM-1 for the north half of  
6234 Arapahoe Ave.; and Public for the south half of 6234 Arapahoe Ave.   Each of the areas 
with proposed initial zoning designations are consistent with their respective BVCP land use 
designations of Very Low Density Residential; Medium Density Residential; and Open Space, 
Other (for that portion adjacent and within the Sombrero Marsh).  The applicant is requesting 
annexation by petition as provided by state law.  
 
Within the existing RE zoning, use of the property as a day care and adult education facility is 
permitted through Use review.  An indoor recreation or athletic facility use is not a permitted in 
the RE zoning district however it is not atypical to be associated with an educational use.  
Therefore, the applicant is requesting that this use be authorized as part of the Jewish 
Community Center through ordinance  

 
 
 

Figure 7:   
Proposed Traffic Roundabout 

                    Bike/ped 
           Auto 

Agenda Item 3A     Page 10Packet Page     14



 

2. Compliance with State Annexation Statute 
 

Annexations must comply with the Municipal Annexation Act of 1965, section 31-12-101, et 
seq., C.R.S.  Staff has reviewed the annexation petition for compliance with section 31-12-104, 
C.R.S. and section 31-12-105, C.R.S. and finds that the application is consistent with the 
statutory requirements, as affirmed by the criteria below: 
 

 Landowners of more than 50 percent of the area who comprise more than 50 percent of 
the landowners in the area have petitioned to annex; 

 The petition was filed with the City Clerk; 
 There is a community interest between the property proposed for annexation and the city 

of Boulder; 
 The subject property does not include any area included in another annexation proceeding 

involving a municipality other than the city of Boulder; 
 The annexation would not remove the property from one school district and add it to 

another; and 
 The property has, at least, one-sixth contiguity with the perimeter to the city of Boulder. 
 

Staff has found that the proposed annexations are compliant with the state provisions for 
annexation located in Section 31-12-101 et seq., C.R.S. 
 

3. Compliance with City Policies 
 
Staff has found the proposed annexation in compliance with a number of applicable BVCP 
policies: 
 

General BVCP Policies 
 

1.04 Principles of Social Sustainability  
2.05 Design of Community Edges  
2.07 Design of Major Entryways  
2.17 Variety of Activity Centers  
2.19 Compatibility of Adjacent Land Uses  
2.31 Design of Newly-Developing Areas  
2.32 Physical Design for People  
2.33 Environmentally Sensitive Urban Design  
2.37 Enhanced Design for Private Sector Projects  
3.01 Ecological Systems into Planning  
3.04 Ecosystem Connections and Buffers  
4.05 Energy-Efficient Building Design  
5.09 Role of Arts and Cultural Programs  
6.10 Managing Parking Supply  
6.12 Neighborhood Streets Connectivity  
8.05 Diversity  
8.07 Physical Health  
8.10 Support for Community Facilities  
8.16 Education Resource  
8.18 The Arts   

Agenda Item 3A     Page 11Packet Page     15



 

BVCP Policy 1.24 Annexation 
 
Staff found that the proposed annexation is consistent with all applicable BVCP policies 
regarding annexation. Staff’s analyses of relevant policies found in Section 1.27 of the BVCP 
are below: 

 
a) Annexation will be required before adequate facilities and services are    
      furnished. 
 
 The applicants have submitted an application to annex into the city prior to connection to 

any city utilities.  Connection will only occur if the annexation is approved by City 
Council in accordance with the annexation agreement (refer to Attachment D). 

 
d)  In order to reduce the negative impacts of new development in the Boulder Valley, 

the city will annex Area II land with significant development or redevelopment 
potential only if the annexation provides a special opportunity or benefit to the city. 
For annexation considerations, emphasis will be given to the benefits achieved from 
the creation of permanently affordable housing. Provision of the following may also 
be considered a special opportunity or benefit: receiving sites for transferable 
development rights (TDRs), reduction of future employment projections, land 
and/or facilities for public purposes over and above that required by the city’s land 
use regulations, environmental preservation, or other amenities determined by the 
city to be a special opportunity or benefit. Sites that are proposed for annexation 
that are already developed and which are seeking no greater density or building size 
would not be required to assume and provide that same level of community benefit 
as vacant sites unless and until such time as an application for greater development 
is submitted. 
 
There are several recognized special opportunities and benefits of the proposed 
annexation:   
 

 preservation of a significant environmental resource – the Sombrero Marsh 
through dedication in fee of 8.59 acres of land encompassing a portion of the 
marsh and a 100 foot buffer surrounding the marsh (see additional information 
below); 

 provision of 40 percent of any future residential development as permanently 
affordable housing within the planned RM-1 zoned area; 

 provision of a new Jewish Community Center - through annexation will allow for 
a cultural and educational facility that can serve the entire community; 

 construction of a traffic calming roundabout on Cherryvale Road; 
 extension of new roadways that to ensure connectivity in an area where large 

super blocks exist today; 
 

Recognizing the important ecological value of the marsh, the applicant proposed to 
dedicate the area encompassed by the marsh to the City of Boulder and include in that 
dedication a broader buffer beyond the marsh.  The value of the marsh has been well 
documented.  In an excerpt from the Management Plan established for Sombrero Marsh 

Agenda Item 3A     Page 12Packet Page     16



 

in 2001, prepared by the City of Boulder Open Space and Mountain Parks Division, the 
following describes why the Marsh has considerable ecological value:    

 
“Sombrero Marsh is the only naturally occurring perennial open water body of its 
size in the Boulder Valley, totaling over 20 acres (the majority of wetlands in the 
Boulder Valley are less than 10 acres). The Marsh’s brackish waters and seasonal 
salt flats support wetland plant communities that are uncommon. Sombrero 
Marsh’s physical environment and wildlife habitat are highly unique because its 
waters and soils are highly alkaline, which provide a highly specialized niche for 
plants and animals, and the Marsh provides a locally rare combination of open 
water and emergent vegetation. Besides important wildlife habitat, Sombrero 
Marsh also provides important wetland functions of: flood storage, nutrient 
retention and removal, food chain support, and passive recreation / heritage 
value.” 

 
f) There will be no annexation of areas outside the boundaries of the Boulder Valley 

Planning Area, with the possible exception of annexation of acquired open space. 
 
The property is within Area II of the Boulder Valley Planning Area, which makes the 
area eligible for immediate annexation.  

 
g)  Publicly owned property located in Area III and intended to remain in  

Area III may be annexed to the city if the property requires less than a full range of 
urban services or requires inclusion under city jurisdiction for health, welfare and 
safety reasons. 
 
Not applicable, not within Area III.  

 
4. Terms of Annexation 

The annexation conditions provided on Attachment D include the following terms; 
 

o Dedication of 8.59 acres of land in fee to the City, at no cost to the City.  
 
o Reservation for future dedication of right of way oriented west to east through the 

6234 Arapahoe property. 
 

o Allowance of “Indoor Recreational or Athletic Facility” use in the RE zoning district 
concurrent with this annexation.  

 
o Allowance of development of the JCC in three phases, five, ten, and fifteen years, 

each beginning at the time of approval. 
 

o Affordable Housing.  The parties agree that this Agreement is a voluntary agreement 
between the City and the Applicant that may limit rents or sales prices on dwelling 
units on the Property to insure that they are constructed and maintained as affordable 
housing. The Applicant agrees that forty percent (40%) of any dwelling units on the 
Property shall be permanently affordable and shall meet the requirements provided 
below as units that are owned by individual home owners or rented to tenants.  
Permanently affordable deed restricting covenants acceptable to the city to secure the 

Agenda Item 3A     Page 13Packet Page     17



 

affordability of dwelling units shall be signed and recorded with the Boulder County 
Clerk and Recorder prior to application for any residential building permit.  

 
 Permanently Affordable – Low to Moderate Income.  The Applicant 

agrees to provide fifty percent (50%) of any permanently affordable units 
to be affordable for low or moderate income households consistent with 
Chapter 9-13, “Inclusionary Housing,” B.R.C. 1981.  The total number of 
required low to moderate income permanently affordable units shall be 
rounded down to the nearest whole number if a fractional number results 
from the calculations. 
 

 Permanently Affordable – Middle Income. The Applicant agrees to 
provide fifty percent (50%) of any permanently affordable units to be 
affordable for middle income households. 

 
o As required, the applicant has applied for inclusion in the Northern Colorado Water 

Conservancy District and the Boulder Municipal Subdistrict, and will pay all applicable 
fees on land and improvements for inclusion in such districts; 
 

o As required the applicant has paid the Storm Water and Flood Management Utility Plant 
Investment Fees; the Housing Excise Tax; and Utility Main Reimbursements.    

 
ATTACHMENTS 
 
A. Location Map 
B. Draft Resolution 1131 
C. Draft Ordinance 7955 
D. Annexation Agreement 

Agenda Item 3A     Page 14Packet Page     18



 

 
 

Attachment A 
Location Map

Agenda Item 3A     Page 15Packet Page     19



 

 

 

 

This Page Intentionally Left Blank 

Agenda Item 3A     Page 16Packet Page     20



 
1 

2 

3 

4 

5 

6 

7 

8 

9 

10 

11 

12 

13 

14 

15 

16 

17 

18 

19 

20 

21 

22 

23 

24 

25 

RESOLUTION NO. 1131 
 
 

A RESOLUTION TO DETERMINE THAT THE PETITION TO ANNEX 
APPROXIMATELY 19 ACRES OF LAND GENERALLY LOCATED AT  
1492 CHERRYVALE ROAD AND 6234 ARAPAHOE AVENUE AND AN 
ADJACENT RIGHT-OF-WAY IS IN COMPLIANCE WITH SECTION 
31-12-107(1), C.R.S. AND TO SET A HEARING TO DETERMINE 
COMPLIANCE WITH OTHER STATUTORY ANNEXATION REQUIREMENTS. 

 
A. The City Council of the City of Boulder, Colorado, hereby finds that the Petition to 

annex the properties more particularly described in Exhibit A, Exhibit B, and Exhibit C attached 
hereto and incorporated herein by reference, is in compliance with Section 31-12-107(1), C.R.S., as 
amended; 
 

B. The City Council of the City of Boulder, Colorado, finds that the following 
requirements have been met: 
 

i. More than fifty percent of the landowners in the area owning more than fifty percent 
of the area, excluding public streets and alleys, meeting the requirements of Sections 
31-12-104 and 31-12-105, C.R.S., as amended, have petitioned the City of Boulder 
for annexation of such territory; 

 
ii. The Petition has been filed with the City Clerk; 
 
iii. The Petition alleges it is desirable and necessary that such area be annexed to the 

City of Boulder; 
 
iv. The Petition alleges that the requirements of Sections 31-12-104 and 31-12-105, 

C.R.S., as amended, exist or have been met; 
 
v. The Petition contains a request that the City of Boulder approve the annexation of the 

area proposed to be annexed; 
 
vi. The Petition alleges that signers of the Petition comprise more than fifty percent of 

the landowners in the area proposed to be annexed and own more than fifty percent 
of the area proposed to be annexed, exclusive of streets and alleys; 

 
vii. The Petition contains signatures of such landowners; 
 
viii. The Petition contains the mailing address of each signer; 
 
ix. The Petition contains the legal description of the land owned by each signer; 
 
x. The Petition contains the date of signing of each signature; and 
 

Attachment B 
Resolution No. 1131

Agenda Item 3A     Page 17Packet Page     21

meltm1
Text Box



 
1 

2 

3 

4 

5 

6 

7 

8 

9 

10 

11 

12 

13 

14 

15 

16 

17 

18 

19 

20 

21 

22 

23 

24 

25 

xi. The Petition contains the affidavit of each circulator of such Petition, that each 
signature therein is the signature of the person whose name it purports to be. 

 
C. Four copies of an annexation map accompanied the Petition and contained the 

following information: 
 

i. A written legal description of the boundaries of the area proposed to be annexed; 
 
ii. A map showing the boundary of the area proposed to be annexed; 
 
iii. Within the annexation boundary map, a showing of the location of each ownership 

tract in unplatted land and, if part or all of the area is platted, the boundaries and the 
plat numbers of plots or of lots and blocks; and 

 
iv. A drawing of the contiguous boundary of the City of Boulder next to the boundary of 

the area proposed to be annexed and the contiguous boundary of any other 
municipality abutting the area proposed to be annexed. 

 
D. All signatures on the Petition have been dated no more than one hundred eighty days 

prior to the date of filing the Petition with the City Clerk; 
 

BE IT RESOLVED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF BOULDER, 
COLORADO, THAT: 
 

A hearing will be held to determine whether the requirements delineated in Section 30 of 
Article II of the Colorado Constitution and Sections 31-12-104 and 31-12-105, C.R.S., as amended, 
have been met and whether an election is required under Section 31-12-107(2), C.R.S. The hearing 
will be held at 6 p.m. on January 21, 2014, at 1777 Broadway, Boulder, Colorado. 
 
 

INTRODUCED, READ, PASSED, AND ADOPTED this 17th day of December, 2013. 
 
 
                                              _____________________________ 

Mayor 
 
Attest: 
 
______________________________________ 
City Clerk 
 

 

Attachment B 
Resolution No. 1131

Agenda Item 3A     Page 18Packet Page     22

meltm1
Text Box



Attachment B 
Resolution No. 1131

Agenda Item 3A     Page 19Packet Page     23

meltm1
Typewritten Text
EXHIBIT A TO RESOLUTION (Page 1 of 2)



Attachment B 
Resolution No. 1131

Agenda Item 3A     Page 20Packet Page     24

meltm1
Typewritten Text
EXHIBIT A TO RESOLUTION (Page 2 of 2)



Attachment B 
Resolution No. 1131

Agenda Item 3A     Page 21Packet Page     25

meltm1
Typewritten Text
EXHIBIT B TO RESOLUTION (Page 1 of 2)



Attachment B 
Resolution No. 1131

Agenda Item 3A     Page 22Packet Page     26

meltm1
Typewritten Text
EXHIBIT B TO RESOLUTION (Page 2 of 2)



Attachment B 
Resolution No. 1131

Agenda Item 3A     Page 23Packet Page     27

meltm1
Typewritten Text
EXHIBIT C TO RESOLUTION (Page 1 of 2)



Attachment B 
Resolution No. 1131

Agenda Item 3A     Page 24Packet Page     28

meltm1
Typewritten Text

meltm1
Typewritten Text
EXHIBIT C TO RESOLUTION (Page 2 of 2)



 

   

1 

2 

3 

4 

5 

6 

7 

8 

9 

10 

11 

12 

13 

14 

15 

16 

17 

18 

19 

20 

21 

22 

23 

24 

25 

ORDINANCE NO. 7955 

AN ORDINANCE ANNEXING TO THE CITY OF BOULDER PROPERTIES 
TOTALING APPROXIMATELY 19 ACRES IN SIZE WITH THE 
FOLLOWING INITIAL ZONING CLASSIFICATIONS AS DESCRIBED IN 
CHAPTER 9-5, "MODULAR ZONE SYSTEM," B.R.C. 1981: 1492 
CHERRYVALE ROAD: RESIDENTIAL - RURAL 1 (RR-1), THE 
NORTHERLY PORTION OF 6234 ARAPAHOE AVENUE AND AN 
ADJACENT PORTION OF ARAPAHOE AVENUE RIGHT OF WAY: 
RESIDENTIAL - MEDIUM 1 (RM-1), AND THE SOUTHERLY PORTION OF 
6234 ARAPAHOE AVENUE: PUBLIC (P); AMENDING THE ZONING 
DISTRICT MAP FORMING A PART OF SAID CHAPTER TO INCLUDE THE 
PROPERTIES IN THE ABOVE-MENTIONED ZONING DISTRICTS, AND 
SETTING FORTH RELATED DETAILS. 

 

THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF BOULDER, COLORADO FINDS: 

A. Cherryvale Commons, LTD., a Colorado nonprofit corporation, is the owner 

(“Owner”) of the following real property:  1) the property generally known as 1492 Cherryvale 

Road and more particularly described on Exhibit A attached hereto and incorporated herein 

(“Parcel A”) and 2) the property generally known as 6234 Arapahoe Avenue and more 

particularly described on Exhibit B attached hereto and incorporated herein (“Parcel B1”).  

Colorado Department of Transportation is the owner of a portion of Arapahoe Avenue right-of-

way adjacent to Parcel B1 and more particularly described on Exhibit C attached hereto and 

incorporated herein (“Parcel B2”).  The properties described on Exhibit A, Exhibit B and 

Exhibit C shall collectively be referred to hereinafter as the "Properties." The Properties 

comprise the area to be annexed. 

B. Parcel B1 is approximately 16.36 acres in size.  The Owner is conveying to the 

City as part of this annexation the southern portion of Parcel B1, approximately 8.59 acres in size 

and more particularly described on Exhibit D attached hereto and incorporated herein 

(“Southern Portion of Parcel B1”).    The northern portion of Parcel B1 is approximately 7.76 

acres in size as generally shown on the map on Exhibit E attached hereto and incorporated 

herein (“Northern Portion of Parcel B1”).   

C. The owners of 100% of the area proposed for annexation, excluding public streets 

and alleys, have petitioned for annexation of the Properties with the following initial zoning 

Attachment C 
Ordinance No. 7955

Agenda Item 3A     Page 25Packet Page     29

meltm1
Text Box

meltm1
Text Box

meltm1
Typewritten Text



 

   

1 

2 

3 

4 

5 

6 

7 

8 

9 

10 

11 

12 

13 

14 

15 

16 

17 

18 

19 

20 

21 

22 

23 

24 

25 

classifications:  Parcel A with Residential – Rural 1, the Northern Portion of Parcel B1 and 

Parcel B2 with Residential - Medium 1, and the Southern Portion of Parcel B1 with Public.  

Parcels A, B1, and B2 are not embraced within any city, city and county, or incorporated town 

and each abuts and is contiguous with the City of Boulder by at least one-sixth of its perimeter.  

D. A community of interest exists between the Properties proposed for annexation 

and the City of Boulder, the Properties are urban or will be urbanized in the near future, and the 

Properties are capable of being integrated into the City of Boulder.  

E. The Properties do not include any area included in another annexation proceeding 

involving a city other than the City of Boulder.  

F. This annexation will not result in the detachment of the area from one school 

district and the attachment of same to another school district.  

G. This annexation will not have the effect of extending the City of Boulder's 

boundaries any further than three miles from any point of the existing city boundaries.  

H. The Properties do not include any area which is the same or substantially the same 

area in which an election for the annexation to the City of Boulder was held within twelve 

months preceding the filing of the above petition.  

I. The Planning Board duly proposed that the Properties be annexed to the City of 

Boulder and that the zoning district map adopted by the City Council be amended to zone and 

include Parcel A in the Residential – Rural 1, the Northern Portion of Parcel B1 and Parcel B2 in 

the Residential – Medium 1, and the Southern Portion of Parcel B1 in the Public zoning districts, 

as provided in Chapter 9-5, "Modular Zone System," B.R.C. 1981.  

J. A public hearing on the proposed annexation and initial zoning of the Properties 

annexed and zoned hereby was duly held before the City Council on January 21, 2014.  

K. The initial zoning designations of Parcel A in the Residential – Rural 1, Northern 

Portion of Parcel B1 and Parcel B2  in the Residential – Medium 1, and the Southern Portion of 

Parcel B1 in the Public zoning districts are consistent with the Boulder Valley Comprehensive 

Plan and bear a substantial relation to and will enhance the general welfare of the Properties and 

of the residents of the City of Boulder. 

L. The City Council has jurisdiction and the legal authority to annex and zone the 

Properties. 

Attachment C 
Ordinance No. 7955

Agenda Item 3A     Page 26Packet Page     30



 

   

1 

2 

3 

4 

5 

6 

7 

8 

9 

10 

11 

12 

13 

14 

15 

16 

17 

18 

19 

20 

21 

22 

23 

24 

25 

M. The Owner also owns the following real property:  the property generally known 

as 5980 Arapahoe Avenue and more particularly described on Exhibit F attached hereto and 

incorporated herein (“Parcel E1”), the property generally known as 6160 Arapahoe Avenue and 

more particularly described on Exhibit G attached hereto and incorporated herein (“Parcel E2”); 

and the property generally known as 6180 Arapahoe Avenue and more particularly described on 

Exhibit H attached hereto and incorporated herein (“Parcel E3”).  Parcels E1, E2 and E3 are 

already annexed to the City of Boulder.  Concurrently with this annexation application, the 

Applicant has submitted a site review application pertaining to the construction of a Boulder 

Jewish Community Center on these already annexed parcels as well as the Properties, and a use 

review application pertaining to Parcel E1. 

 

BE IT ORDAINED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF BOULDER, 

COLORADO: 

 

Section 1.  The territory more particularly described in Exhibit A, Exhibit B, and 

Exhibit C are hereby annexed to and included within the corporate boundaries of the City of 

Boulder. 

Section 2.  Chapter 9-5, "Modular Zone System," B.R.C. 1981, and the zoning district 

map forming a part thereof, be, and the same hereby are, amended to include the Properties 

within the following zoning districts:  Parcel A within Residential – Rural 1, Parcel B2 and the 

Northern Portion of Parcel B1 within Residential - Medium 1, and the Southern Portion of Parcel 

B1 within Public.   

Section 3.  The City Council adopts the recitals in this ordinance and incorporates them 

herein by this reference. 

Section 4.  The City Council approves any variations or modifications to the Boulder 

Revised Code or other City ordinances that are in the agreement associated with this annexation. 

Section 5.  The City Council authorizes the city manager to implement the terms of the 

agreements associated with this annexation. 

Section 6.  The annexation and zoning of the Properties is necessary for the protection of 

the public health, safety, and welfare. 

Attachment C 
Ordinance No. 7955

Agenda Item 3A     Page 27Packet Page     31



 

   

1 

2 

3 

4 

5 

6 

7 

8 

9 

10 

11 

12 

13 

14 

15 

16 

17 

18 

19 

20 

21 

22 

23 

24 

25 

Section 7.  The City Council deems it appropriate that this ordinance be published by title 

only and orders that copies of this ordinance be made available in the office of the city clerk for 

public inspection and acquisition. 

INTRODUCED, READ ON FIRST READING, AND ORDERED PUBLISHED BY 

TITLE ONLY this 17th day of December, 2013. 

 
_____________________________ 
Mayor 

Attest: 

 

________________________________ 
City Clerk 

 

 

READ ON SECOND READING, ADOPTED AND ORDERED PUBLISHED BY 

TITLE ONLY this 21st day of January, 2014. 

 

______________________________ 
       Mayor  

Attest: 

 

________________________________ 
City Clerk 

Attachment C 
Ordinance No. 7955

Agenda Item 3A     Page 28Packet Page     32



Attachment C 
Ordinance No. 7955

Agenda Item 3A     Page 29Packet Page     33

meltm1
Typewritten Text

meltm1
Typewritten Text
EXHIBIT A TO ORDINANCE (Page 1 of 2)



Attachment C 
Ordinance No. 7955

Agenda Item 3A     Page 30Packet Page     34

meltm1
Typewritten Text

meltm1
Typewritten Text
EXHIBIT A TO ORDINANCE (Page 2 of 2)



Attachment C 
Ordinance No. 7955

Agenda Item 3A     Page 31Packet Page     35

meltm1
Typewritten Text
EXHIBIT B TO ORDINANCE (Page 1 of 2)



Attachment C 
Ordinance No. 7955

Agenda Item 3A     Page 32Packet Page     36

meltm1
Typewritten Text

meltm1
Typewritten Text
EXHIBIT B TO ORDINANCE (Page 2 of 2)



Attachment C 
Ordinance No. 7955

Agenda Item 3A     Page 33Packet Page     37

meltm1
Typewritten Text
EXHIBIT C TO ORDINANCE (Page 1 of 2)



Attachment C 
Ordinance No. 7955

Agenda Item 3A     Page 34Packet Page     38

meltm1
Typewritten Text
EXHIBIT C TO ORDINANCE (Page 2 of 2)



Attachment C 
Ordinance No. 7955

Agenda Item 3A     Page 35Packet Page     39

meltm1
Typewritten Text
EXHIBIT D TO ORDINANCE (Page 1 of 2)



Attachment C 
Ordinance No. 7955

Agenda Item 3A     Page 36Packet Page     40

meltm1
Typewritten Text
EXHIBIT D TO ORDINANCE (Page 2 of 2)



Attachment C 
Ordinance No. 7955

Agenda Item 3A     Page 37Packet Page     41

meltm1
Typewritten Text
EXHIBIT E TO ORDINANCE (Page 1 of 1)



Attachment C 
Ordinance No. 7955

Agenda Item 3A     Page 38Packet Page     42

meltm1
Typewritten Text
EXHIBIT F TO ORDINANCE (Page 1 of 2)



Attachment C 
Ordinance No. 7955

Agenda Item 3A     Page 39Packet Page     43

meltm1
Typewritten Text
EXHIBIT F TO ORDINANCE (Page 2 of 2)



Attachment C 
Ordinance No. 7955

Agenda Item 3A     Page 40Packet Page     44

meltm1
Typewritten Text
EXHIBIT G TO ORDINANCE (Page 1 of 2)



Attachment C 
Ordinance No. 7955

Agenda Item 3A     Page 41Packet Page     45

meltm1
Typewritten Text
EXHIBIT G TO ORDINANCE (Page 2 of 2)



Attachment C 
Ordinance No. 7955

Agenda Item 3A     Page 42Packet Page     46

meltm1
Typewritten Text
EXHIBIT H TO ORDINANCE (Page 1 of 2)

meltm1
Typewritten Text



Attachment C 
Ordinance No. 7955

Agenda Item 3A     Page 43Packet Page     47

meltm1
Typewritten Text

meltm1
Typewritten Text

meltm1
Typewritten Text

meltm1
Typewritten Text

meltm1
Typewritten Text
EXHIBIT H TO ORDINANCE (Page 2 of 2)



 

 

 

 

This Page Intentionally Left Blank 

Agenda Item 3A     Page 44Packet Page     48



Attachment D 
Annexation Agreement

Agenda Item 3A     Page 45Packet Page     49

meltm1
Text Box



Attachment D 
Annexation Agreement

Agenda Item 3A     Page 46Packet Page     50

meltm1
Text Box



Attachment D 
Annexation Agreement

Agenda Item 3A     Page 47Packet Page     51

meltm1
Text Box



Attachment D 
Annexation Agreement

Agenda Item 3A     Page 48Packet Page     52

meltm1
Text Box



Attachment D 
Annexation Agreement

Agenda Item 3A     Page 49Packet Page     53

meltm1
Text Box



Attachment D 
Annexation Agreement

Agenda Item 3A     Page 50Packet Page     54

meltm1
Text Box



Attachment D 
Annexation Agreement

Agenda Item 3A     Page 51Packet Page     55

meltm1
Text Box



Attachment D 
Annexation Agreement

Agenda Item 3A     Page 52Packet Page     56

meltm1
Text Box



Attachment D 
Annexation Agreement

Agenda Item 3A     Page 53Packet Page     57

meltm1
Text Box



Attachment D 
Annexation Agreement

Agenda Item 3A     Page 54Packet Page     58

meltm1
Typewritten Text
EXHIBIT A TO AGREEMENT (Page 1 of 2)

meltm1
Text Box

meltm1
Text Box



Attachment D 
Annexation Agreement

Agenda Item 3A     Page 55Packet Page     59

meltm1
Typewritten Text
EXHIBIT A TO AGREEMENT (Page 2 of 2)

meltm1
Text Box

meltm1
Text Box



Attachment D 
Annexation Agreement

Agenda Item 3A     Page 56Packet Page     60

meltm1
Typewritten Text

meltm1
Typewritten Text
EXHIBIT B TO AGREEMENT (Page 1 of 2)

meltm1
Text Box

meltm1
Typewritten Text
EXHIBIT A TO AGREEMENT (Page 2 of 2)



Attachment D 
Annexation Agreement

Agenda Item 3A     Page 57Packet Page     61

meltm1
Typewritten Text
EXHIBIT B TO AGREEMENT (Page 2 of 2)

meltm1
Text Box



Attachment D 
Annexation Agreement

Agenda Item 3A     Page 58Packet Page     62

meltm1
Typewritten Text
EXHIBIT C TO AGREEMENT (Page 1 of 2)

meltm1
Text Box



Attachment D 
Annexation Agreement

Agenda Item 3A     Page 59Packet Page     63

meltm1
Typewritten Text
EXHIBIT C TO AGREEMENT (Page 2 of 2)

meltm1
Text Box

meltm1
Text Box



Attachment D 
Annexation Agreement

Agenda Item 3A     Page 60Packet Page     64

meltm1
Typewritten Text
EXHIBIT D TO AGREEMENT (Page 1 of 2)

meltm1
Text Box

meltm1
Typewritten Text
EXHIBIT C TO AGREEMENT (Page 2 of 2)



Attachment D 
Annexation Agreement

Agenda Item 3A     Page 61Packet Page     65

meltm1
Typewritten Text
EXHIBIT D TO AGREEMENT (Page 2 of 2)

meltm1
Text Box



Attachment D 
Annexation Agreement

Agenda Item 3A     Page 62Packet Page     66

meltm1
Typewritten Text

meltm1
Typewritten Text



Attachment D 
Annexation Agreement

Agenda Item 3A     Page 63Packet Page     67

meltm1
Typewritten Text
EXHIBIT E TO AGREEMENT (Page 2 of 2)

meltm1
Typewritten Text

meltm1
Text Box



Attachment D 
Annexation Agreement

Agenda Item 3A     Page 64Packet Page     68

meltm1
Typewritten Text
EXHIBIT F TO AGREEMENT (Page 1 of 2)

meltm1
Text Box

meltm1
Typewritten Text
EXHIBIT E TO AGREEMENT (Page 2 of 2)



Attachment D 
Annexation Agreement

Agenda Item 3A     Page 65Packet Page     69

meltm1
Typewritten Text
EXHIBIT F TO AGREEMENT (Page 2 of 2)

meltm1
Text Box



Attachment D 
Annexation Agreement

Agenda Item 3A     Page 66Packet Page     70

meltm1
Typewritten Text
EXHIBIT G TO AGREEMENT (Page 1 of 2)

meltm1
Text Box

meltm1
Typewritten Text
EXHIBIT F TO AGREEMENT (Page 2 of 2)



Attachment D 
Annexation Agreement

Agenda Item 3A     Page 67Packet Page     71

meltm1
Typewritten Text

meltm1
Typewritten Text
EXHIBIT G TO AGREEMENT (Page 2 of 2)

meltm1
Text Box



Attachment D 
Annexation Agreement

Agenda Item 3A     Page 68Packet Page     72

meltm1
Text Box

meltm1
Typewritten Text
EXHIBIT G TO AGREEMENT (Page 2 of 2)



Attachment D 
Annexation Agreement

Agenda Item 3A     Page 69Packet Page     73

meltm1
Typewritten Text

meltm1
Text Box

meltm1
Typewritten Text
EXHIBIT H TO AGREEMENT (Page 1 of 2)



Attachment D 
Annexation Agreement

Agenda Item 3A     Page 70Packet Page     74

meltm1
Text Box

meltm1
Typewritten Text
EXHIBIT H TO AGREEMENT (Page 2 of 2)



Attachment D 
Annexation Agreement

Attachment D 
Annexation Agreement

Agenda Item 3A     Page 71Packet Page     75



Attachment D 
Annexation Agreement

Agenda Item 3A     Page 72Packet Page     76



 
 

CITY OF BOULDER 
CITY COUNCIL AGENDA ITEM 

 
MEETING DATE: December 17, 2013 

 
AGENDA TITLE:  Introduction, first reading and consideration of a motion to order 
published by title only an ordinance granting authority to the approving authorities under Title 
9, “Land Use Code,” B.R.C. 1981, to approve the moving of two single-family dwelling unit 
structures from 1220 and 1243 Grandview Avenue to 905 Marine Street, and as an amendment 
to Title 9, “Land Use Code,”, B.R.C. 1981 to waive or modify certain land use regulations as 
they apply to these structures. 
 
Applicant/Owner:  Christian Griffith 
 
 
PRESENTERS  
Jane S. Brautigam, City Manager  
Paul J. Fetherston, Deputy City Manager  
David Driskell, Executive Director of Community Planning and Sustainability 
Susan Richstone, Deputy Director of Community Planning and Sustainability 
Charles Ferro, Development Review Manager for Community Planning and Sustainability 
James Hewat, Senior Historic Preservation Planner  
 
 

EXECUTIVE SUMMARY:  On Nov. 19, 2013, City Council approved Ordinance No. 7947 to 
allow for the relocation of two historic residential structures from 1220 and 1243 Grandview 
Ave. to 905 Marine St. (refer to Figure 1 below for an area context map). For detailed 
background information and project history, refer to staff’s memorandum of recommendation 
from the Nov. 19, 2013 City Council hearing (www.bouldercolorado.gov Government City 
Council MeetingsSearch Past Meeting Packets). 
 
Since that time, staff received more detailed survey information as well as detailed information 
on the roof geometries of the bungalows slated for relocation. The information presented 
suggests that a modification of additional land use standards will be required to relocate the 
proposed bungalows, particularly to Section 9-9-17, “Solar Access,” B.R.C. 1981.  The proposed 
ordinance and Ordinance 7947, adopted on Nov. 19, 2013 can be found in Attachment A.  
 

Agenda Item 3B     Page 1Packet Page     77



The proposed ordinance would amend Title 9, “Land Use Code,” B.R.C. 1981, and would 
authorize a modification to the solar access standards to allow for the relocation of the historic 
structures. 
 
Overall, staff finds that the application as presented would result in a defined community benefit 
for the City of Boulder that justifies the variance requested by the Applicant. Staff finds: 

 
 The relocation and preservation of the bungalows is consistent with and furthers the 

Boulder Valley Comprehensive Plan (BVCP) goals and policies relating to historic 
preservation and housing; 

 
 The applicant has agreed to submit an application for an individual landmark for each 

of the buildings proposed for relocation pursuant to the city’s landmarking process; 
 

 The relocation of the bungalows to 905 Marine St. is generally consistent with the 
identifiably residential character of the area; 

 
 The proposed modifications were found to promote a safer and better subdivision 

design as it allows for the residential structures to be located outside of the regulatory 
floodplain. 

 
Based on these findings, staff finds that the benefits of the relocation and preservation of the 
bungalows supports the modifications to the Land Use Code requirements included in the 
ordinance.  
 

STAFF RECOMMENDATION: 
Staff requests council consideration of this matter and action in the form of the following 
motions: 
 

 
Suggested Motion Language: 
Motion to introduce and order published by title only, an ordinance 
granting authority to the approving authorities under Title 9, “Land Use 
Code,” B.R.C. 1981, to approve the moving of two single-family dwelling 
unit structures from 1220 and 1243 Grandview Avenue to 905 Marine 
Street, and as an amendment to Title 9, “Land Use Code,” B.R.C. 1981 to 
waive or modify certain land use regulations as they apply to these 
structures, and setting forth related details. 
 
 

COMMUNITY SUSTAINABILITY ASSESSMENTS AND IMPACTS: 
 Economic:  None identified. 
 
 Environmental:  None identified.  
 
 Social:  The Historic Preservation Ordinance was adopted to “…enhance property values, 

stabilize neighborhoods, promote tourist trade and interest, and foster knowledge of the city’s 

Agenda Item 3B     Page 2Packet Page     78



living heritage” (pursuant to section 10-13-1 (a), B.R.C., 1981). The preservation of the two 
bungalows is consistent with the intent of the Historic Preservation Ordinance.  

 
FISCAL IMPACT: 
City services are existing and available to this site. All development will be subject to city 
development fees, including payment of Storm Water and Flood Management and Utility Plant 
Investment Fees (PIFs). The requested deferment of city development fees, including building 
permit fees, only defers the payment of these fees; it does not eliminate the requirement of their 
payment. 
 
The city is contributing $100,000 to aid in the relocation and preservation efforts of the two 
bungalows. The funds were identified as being available as part of the general fund balance. 
 
Staff time:  The ordinance has been processed through the provisions of a standard application 
process and is within normal staff work plans.  
 
PUBLIC COMMENT: 
Written notification was sent to the impacted property owner to the north located at 1636 9th St. 
At the time of publication, staff has not received any feedback from the property owner.   
 
BACKGROUND: 
For detailed background information and project history, refer to staff’s memorandum of 
recommendation from the Nov. 19, 2013 City Council (www.bouldercolorado.gov 
Government City Council MeetingsSearch Past Meeting Packets). 
 
PROPOSAL: 
The proposal calls for the relocation of two historic buildings currently located at 1220 
and 1243 Grandview Ave., to 905 Marine St. Once relocated, the applicant is proposing 
to utilize the buildings as single-family residences and to subdivide the project site into 
three lots as shown in Figure 2 below. In addition to the land use code modifications 
granted in the previous ordinance approved by council on Nov. 19, 2013, a modification 
to the city’s solar access regulations will be required in order to relocate the structures 
and subdivide the property. 
 
ANALYSIS 
Land Use Code Section 9-9-17, B.R.C.1981, establishes solar access regulations designed 
to regulate structures and vegetation on property, to the extent necessary to ensure access 
to solar energy, by reasonably regulating the interests of neighboring property holders 
within the city.  The intent is to ensure that rooftop solar heating and cooling of buildings, 
solar heated hot water, and solar generated electricity can provide a significant 
contribution to the city's energy supply.  

 
The area is located within Solar Access Area II defined under the land use code subsection 9-9-
17(c)(2), B.R.C.,1981) as follows, 

 

Agenda Item 3B     Page 3Packet Page     79



“Solar Access Area II is designed to protect solar access principally for building rooftops in 
areas where, because of planned density, topography, or lot configuration or orientation, the 
preponderance of lots therein currently enjoy such access and where solar access of this 
nature would not unduly restrict permissible development”.  
 
Under the land use code, per Section 9-9-17(d)(B), B.R.C.,1981, 
 
“No person shall erect an object or structure on any other lot that would shade a protected lot 
in Solar Access Area II to a greater degree than the lot would be shaded by the shadows cast 
by a hypothetical vertical solar fence twenty-five feet in height, between two hours before and 
two hours after local solar noon on a clear winter solstice day (Dec. 21, the shortest day of the 
year). The hypothetical solar fence establishes a reasonable envelope or area of protection 
within which actual building shadows should be contained. Per Section 9-9-17, B.R.C. 1981, 
solar analyses are required to illustrate the shadows cast on Dec. 21 at 10 a.m., 12 p.m., and 2 
p.m. to indicate the worst case scenario for solar gain.“ 

 
A context map and a proposed subdivision / site plan for the property are included below.  
 

FIGURE 1 - AREA CONTEXT MAP

 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 

Agenda Item 3B     Page 4Packet Page     80



 
 
 
 
 
 
 

FIGURE 2 - PROPOSED SUBDIVISION/SITE PLAN – 905 MARINE ST. 

 
 

 
The constraints associated with the flood zones and topography that impact the site has dictated 
the location of the proposed buildings on the property. The solar shadow cast by each of the 

Agenda Item 3B     Page 5Packet Page     81



relocated structures will result in encroachments on an areas of the respective properties that are 
protected by the hypothetical fence. 
 
More specifically, an insubstantial breach of the hypothetical solar fence will occur offsite onto 
the rooftop of the  property located at 1636 9th St. and on the relocated bungalow on lot Lot 3. As 
indicated in Attachment B, 5.8 feet of the rooftop at 1636 9th and 4.8 feet of the rooftop on Lot 3 
will be in shadow on Dec. 21 (the shortest day of the year). The rooftops will maintain adequate 
useable south facing area for rooftop solar collectors since the shadow cast is minor, even on the 
shortest day of the year when shadows would be most impactful.  
 
Based on the flood and topographical constraints on the site, there are no other design or 
subdivision options for siting the historic structures and since the offsite impacts on 1636 9th St. 
are minimal, staff  supports the proposed modification to the city’s solar access standards. 
 
ATTACHMENTS: 
A. Proposed Ordinance No. 7956 and Ordinance No. 7947 
B: Solar Access Drawings 
 

Agenda Item 3B     Page 6Packet Page     82



 

   

1 

2 

3 

4 

5 

6 

7 

8 

9 

10 

11 

12 

13 

14 

15 

16 

17 

18 

19 

20 

21 

22 

23 

24 

25 

26 

27 

28 

ORDINANCE NO. 7956 

AN ORDINANCE GRANTING AUTHORITY TO THE 
APPROVING AUTHORITIES UNDER TITLE 9, “LAND USE 
CODE,” B.R.C. 1981, TO APPROVE THE MOVING OF TWO 
SINGLE-FAMILY DWELLING UNIT STRUCTURES FROM 
1220 AND 1243 GRANDVIEW AVENUE TO 905 MARINE 
STREET, AND AS AN AMENDMENT TO TITLE 9, “LAND 
USE CODE,” B.R.C. 1981, TO WAIVE OR MODIFY CERTAIN 
LAND USE REGULATIONS AS THEY APPLY TO THESE 
STRUCTURES, AND SETTING FORTH RELATED DETAILS. 

WHEREAS the City Council finds that: 

A. The City of Boulder and the University of Colorado entered into a Memorandum 
of Agreement (the “MOU”) dated January 22, 2001. 

 
B. The purpose of the MOU was to protect some historic structures in the Grandview 

area from demolition through a covenant and to protect other historic structures from demolition 
through the requirement of notice of the intent to demolish and an opportunity to relocate such 
structures. 

 
C. While the MOU expired on July 1, 2011, consistent with the spirit of the MOU, 

the University of Colorado has provided the City of Boulder with written notice of its plans to 
remove two cottage structures, one located at 1220 Grandview Avenue and another located at 
1243 Grandview Avenue, (the “Cottages”) and its intent to make the Cottages available to the 
City and/or the public for off-site relocation. 

 
D. Christian Griffith (the “Applicant”) has proposed moving the Cottages to the 

location shown on the site plan attached to this ordinance as Exhibit A. 

E. The City Council is interested in preserving each of the Cottages that would 
otherwise be demolished in the location proposed by the Applicant. 

F. On November 19, 2013, City Council passed Ordinance No. 7947 authorizing the 
City Manager to modify or waive several land use and other regulations to permit the Cottages to 
be relocated to the parcel of land generally known as 905 Marine Street (the “Property”) and 
more particularly described in Exhibit B attached to this ordinance. 

G. Review of more detailed survey information as well as detailed information on 
roof geometry for relocation of the Cottages has revealed that to permit the relocation of the 
Cottages will require modification or waiver of additional land use standards, including, in 
particular, Section 9-9-17, “Solar Access,” B.R.C. 1981. 

 

Attachment A 
Proposed Ordinance No. 7956 and Ordinance No. 7947

Agenda Item 3B     Page 7Packet Page     83



 

   

1 

2 

3 

4 

5 

6 

7 

8 

9 

10 

11 

12 

13 

14 

15 

16 

17 

18 

19 

20 

21 

22 

23 

24 

25 

26 

27 

28 

H. The purpose of this ordinance is to permit the Cottages that would otherwise be 
demolished to be relocated to the parcel of land generally known as 905 Marine Street (the 
“Property”) and more particularly described in Exhibit B attached to this ordinance. 

 

BE IT ORDAINED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF BOULDER, 

COLORADO: 

Section 1.  The City Council authorizes the city manager to grant the necessary approvals 

under Title 9, “Land Use Code,” B.R.C. 1981, to permit the moving of the Cottages from 1220 

and 1243 Grandview Avenue to 905 Marine Street in the location shown on the site plan attached 

to this ordinance as Exhibit A. 

Section 2.  In order to accomplish the objectives of this ordinance, the City Council 

authorizes the city manager to modify or waive standards established in Title 9 “Land Use 

Code,” B.R.C. 1981, including, in particular, the requirements under Section 9-9-17, “Solar 

Access,” B.R.C. 1981. 

Section 3.   All other City of Boulder regulations and ordinances that have not been 

mentioned herein continue to apply to the Property. 

Section  4.  This ordinance shall be considered an amendment to Title 9, “Land Use 

Code,” B.R.C. 1981.  To the extent that this ordinance conflicts with any other ordinance of the 

City, such ordinance shall be suspended for the limited purpose of implementing this ordinance.  

Nothing in this ordinance shall be construed as a waiver of the City’s police power. 

Section 5.  The City Council finds that this ordinance furthers important historic 

preservation goals for the City of Boulder.  Further the City Council finds that the benefits of the 

Attachment A 
Proposed Ordinance No. 7956 and Ordinance No. 7947

Agenda Item 3B     Page 8Packet Page     84



 

   

1 

2 

3 

4 

5 

6 

7 

8 

9 

10 

11 

12 

13 

14 

15 

16 

17 

18 

19 

20 

21 

22 

23 

24 

25 

26 

27 

28 

City’s historic preservation goals made possible through this ordinance outweigh benefits that 

accrue to the city ordinances that are waived by this ordinance. 

Section  6.  This ordinance is necessary to protect the public health, safety, and welfare of 

the residents of the City, is consistent with the goals and policies of the Boulder Valley 

Comprehensive Plan, and covers matters of local concern.  

Section 7.  The City deems it appropriate that this ordinance be published by title only 

and orders that copies of this ordinance be made available in the office of the city clerk for public 

inspection and acquisition. 

INTRODUCED, READ ON FIRST READING, AND ORDERED PUBLISHED BY 

TITLE ONLY this 17th day of December, 2013. 

 
 

____________________________________ 
Mayor 

Attest: 
 
 
 
City Clerk 
 

Attachment A 
Proposed Ordinance No. 7956 and Ordinance No. 7947

Agenda Item 3B     Page 9Packet Page     85



 

   

1 

2 

3 

4 

5 

6 

7 

8 

9 

10 

11 

12 

13 

14 

15 

16 

17 

18 

19 

20 

21 

22 

23 

24 

25 

26 

27 

28 

READ ON SECOND READING, PASSED, ADOPTED, AND ORDERED 

PUBLISHED BY TITLE ONLY this 21st day of January, 2014. 

 

____________________________________ 
Mayor 

Attest: 
 
 
 
City Clerk 
 

Attachment A 
Proposed Ordinance No. 7956 and Ordinance No. 7947

Agenda Item 3B     Page 10Packet Page     86



t0

ll

l2

t3

t4

l5

t6

t7

r8

t9

21

24

25

ORDINANCE NO. 7947

AN ORDINANCE GRANTING AUTHORITY TO THE
APPROVING AUTHORITIES UNDER TITLE 9, "LAND USE
CODE.'' AND TITLE IO. "STRUCTURES," B.R.C. I981, TO
APPROVE THE MOVING OF TWO SINGLE-FAMILY
DWELLING UNIT STRUCTURES FROM 1220 AND 1243
GRANDVIEW AVENUE TO 905 MARINE STREET. AND AS
AN AMENDMENT TO CHAPTER 6.6, "PROTECTION OF
TREES AND PLANTS." TITLE 9. "LAND USE CODE,", AND
TITLE IO, "STRUCTURES,'' B.R.C. 1981. TO WAIVE OR
MODIFY CERTAIN TREE MITIGATION, LAND USE, AND
BUILDING CODE REGULATIONS AS THEY APPLY TO
THESE STRUCTURES, AND SETTING FORTH RELATED
DETAILS.

WHEREAS the Cit¡, Council finds that:

A. The City of Boulder and the University of Colorado entered into a Memorandum

of Agreement (the "MOU") dated .lanuary 22,2001.

B. The purpose of the MOU was to protect some historic structures in the Grandview
area from demolition through a covenant ancl to protect other historic structures from demolition
tlrrough the requirement of notice of the intent to demolish and an opportunitl, to relocate such

structures.

C. While the MOU expired orr July 1,2011, consistent u,ith the spirit of the MOU,
the Univelsity of Colorado has provided the Cit¡, of Boulder with written notice of its plarrs to

remove trvo Cottage structures, one located at 1220 Grandview Avenue and another located at

1243 Grandview Avenue, (the "Cottages") and its intent to make the Cottages available to the

City and/or the public for off-site relocation.

D. Christian Griffith (the "Applicant") has proposed moving the Cottages to the

location shor,vn on the site plan attached to this ordinance as Exhibit A.

E. The City Cou¡rcil is interested in preserving each of the Cottages in the location
proposed by the Applicant.

F. The purpose of this ordinance is to permit the Cottages that would otherwise be

demolished b), the University of Colorado to be relocated to the parcel of land generally known
as 905 Marine Street (the "Property") and more particularly described on Exhibit B attached to

this ordinance.

Attachment A 
Proposed Ordinance No. 7956 and Ordinance No. 7947

Agenda Item 3B     Page 11Packet Page     87



I

2

J

4

5

6

7

8

9

l0

ll
t2

13

T4

l5

t6

l7

l8

l9

20

2l

22

¿J

24

25

BE IT ORDAINED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF BOULDER,

COLORADO:

Section l. The City Council authorizes the city manager to grant the necessary permits

under Title 10, "Structures," B.R.C. 1981, to permit the moving of the Cottages from 1220 ancl

1243 Grandview Avenue to 905 Marine Street in the location shown on the site plan attached to

this ordinance as Exhibit A.

Section 2. Moving permits required by this ordinance shall be reviewed under the

provisions of Title l0, "Structures," B.R.C. 1981, in effecton October 22,2013.In orderto

accomplish the objectives of this ordinance, the City Council authorizes the city mânager to vary

or waive tl,e following City regulations:

a. Notwithstanding that the site is neither in an historic district nor an individual

landmark, the residential Cottages to be moved to the site will be considered as

individual landmarks for the purposes of reviewing and approving building permits

under Chapter l0-5, "Building Code," B.R.C. 1981, Chapter l0-5.5, "Residential

Building Code," B.R.C. 1981, Chapter l0-7, "Energy Couservation Code," B.R.C.

I 981 , and Chapter l0-7 .5, " Green Building and Green Points Program," B.R.C.

I 98 1 , for the initial occupancy of the structures at the proposed new location. In

particular, the city manager is authorized to waive building and energy code

requirements related to insulating the structures and replacing windows on the

structures.

Section 3. The City Council authorizes the city manager to approve a subdivision,

generally as shown on the site plan attached to this ordinance as Exhibit A, creating three lots.

Attachment A 
Proposed Ordinance No. 7956 and Ordinance No. 7947

Agenda Item 3B     Page 12Packet Page     88



I

2

Ĵ

4

5

6

7

8

9

l0

ll
t2

l3

t4

l5

l6

t7

18

19

20

2l

22

23

24

25

The City Council

requirements for

process:

authorizes the city manger to approve the following modifìcations to zoning

lots and structures in the RMX-I zoning district in the subdivision review

a. A reduction in the rear yard set back for principal structures from twenty-five feet to

thirteen feet for proposed Lot l, to foufteen feet for proposed LotZ, and to twenty

feet for proposed Lot 3.

b. A rcduction in the combinecl side yard setback from fifteen feet to eleven feet for

proposed Lot 2 and to I I feet for proposed Lot 3.

c. A reduction in minimum lot area per dwelling unit from 6000 square feet to allow

three dwelling units on proposed Lot I with a total lot area of roughly 10,482 square

feet.

Section 4. In order to accomplish the objectives of this ordinance, the City Council

authorizes the city manager to vary the requirements of Section 6-6-T, "Mitigation of Trees or

Plants Removed or Destroyed," B.R.C. I 98 I , related to the removal of the existing tree in the 9th

Street right of way adjacent to 905 Marine Street and to find that the planting of new street trees

in accordance with Section 9-9-13,"Streetscape Design Standards," B.R.C. 1981, satisfres the

requirements of Section 6-6-T, "Mitigation of Trees or Plants Removed or Destroyed," B.R.C.

l98l .

Section 5. All other City of Boulder regulations that have not been specifically

mentioned herein continue to apply to the Property.

Attachment A 
Proposed Ordinance No. 7956 and Ordinance No. 7947

Agenda Item 3B     Page 13Packet Page     89



I

2

J

4

5

6

7

8

9

10

ll
t2

l3

14

t5

t6

t7

l8

t9

20

2t

22

23

24

25

Section 6. The City Council authorizes the city manager to waive the due dates of any

applicable fees and taxes associated with the moving, constructing, or otherwise making the

Cottages habitable structures under the Boulder Revised Code; hou,ever, the Applicant shall pay

any such waived fees or taxes by the later date of the date required under the Boulder Revised

Code and May I ,2014, but in no event later than receipt of a certifrcate of occupancy related to

any moving permit for the Cottages onto the Property.

Section 7. This ordinance shall be considered an amendment to Chapter 6-6, "Protection

of Trees and Plants," B.R.C. 1981, Title 9,"Land Use Code," B.R.C. 1981, and Title 10,

"Structures," B.R.C. 1981. To the extent that this ordinance conflicts with any other ordinance

of the City, such ordinance shall be suspended for the limited puryose of implementing this

ordinance. Nothing in this ordinance shall be construed as a waiver of the City's police power.

Sgct¡on S-The City Council finds that this ordinance fufthers important historic

preservation goals for the City of Boulder. Further the City Council finds that the benefits of the

City's historic preservation goals made possible through this ordinance outweigh benefits that

accrue to the city ordinances that are waived by this ordinance.

Section 9. This ordinance is necessary to protect the public health, safety, and welfare of

the residents of the City, is consistent with the goals and policies of the Boulder Valley

Comprehensive Plan, and covers matters of local concern.

Section 10. The City deems it appropriate that this ordinance be published by title only

and orders that copies of this ordinance be made available in the office of the city clerk for public

inspection and acquisition.

Attachment A 
Proposed Ordinance No. 7956 and Ordinance No. 7947

Agenda Item 3B     Page 14Packet Page     90



I

2

J

4

5

6

7

8

9

t0

1l

t2

l3

t4

l5

l6

t7

18

t9

20

2t

22

23

24

25

INTRODUCED, READ ON FIRST READING, AND ORDERED PUBLISHED BY

TITLE ONLY this 22nd day of Ocrober,20l3.

Attest:

READ ON SECOND READING, PASSED, ADOPTED, AND ORDERED

PUBLISHED BY TITLE ONLY this 19th day ofNovember, 2013.

City Clerk

City Clerk

Attachment A 
Proposed Ordinance No. 7956 and Ordinance No. 7947

Agenda Item 3B     Page 15Packet Page     91



 

 

 

 

This Page Intentionally Left Blank 

Agenda Item 3B     Page 16Packet Page     92



Attachment B 
Solar Access Drawings

Agenda Item 3B     Page 17Packet Page     93



Attachment B 
Solar Access Drawings

Agenda Item 3B     Page 18Packet Page     94



 
 

CITY OF BOULDER 
CITY COUNCIL AGENDA ITEM 

 
MEETING DATE: December 17, 2013 

 
 
AGENDA TITLE: Consideration of a motion to adopt a resolution approving and 
authorizing an application for a Great Outdoors Colorado School Play Yard Initiative 
Grant. 
 
 
 
PRESENTER/S  
Jane S. Brautigam, City Manager  
Paul J. Fetherston, Deputy City Manager  
Bob Eichem, Finance Director /Acting Executive Director of Administrative Services,        
Kirk W. Kincannon, CPRP, Director of Parks and Recreation 
Jeff  Dillon, Parks and Planning Superintendent 
 
EXECUTIVE SUMMARY 
The purpose of this agenda item is to request consideration and approval of a resolution 
authorizing an application for a Great Outdoors Colorado (GOCO) School Play Yard Initiative 
Grant due on January 17, 2014 (Attachment A). This grant, if awarded, will provide an 
additional $100,000 of funding for the renovation of the school playground at University Hill 
Elementary School, 956 16th Street. 
 
The GOCO grant program is a competitive process open to cities, counties, parks and recreation 
districts, non-profit land conservation organizations, political subdivisions of the state and 
Colorado Parks and Wildlife. This special initiative encourages partnerships between local 
government and school and/or school district, to construct or improve school play yards for the 
benefit of children in rural and urban communities across the state. Eligible entities can sponsor 
projects on behalf of entities that are ineligible for GOCO funding. For example, a city can apply 
for a GOCO grant on behalf of a school district for the construction of a playground on school 
property.  
 
University Hill Elementary School (Uni Hill) would like to partner with the Parks and Recreation 
Department as a sponsor for the GOCO grant application. The entire project will be constructed 
on Boulder Valley School District (BVSD) property therefore the school and school district will 
lead the planning process, application submission and construction project management. The 
school and school district will also be responsible for matching funds, supporting funds prior to 
reimbursement and submission of final project report for reimbursement. 

Agenda Item 3C     Page 1Packet Page     95



 
Uni Hill lies directly southwest of the University of Colorado main campus and in the University 
Hill neighborhood with many residential homes and the main housing area for CU students with 
little city park space within the vicinity. Though the school building received an addition in 
2010, much of the outdoor campus has not seen upgrades in over 15 years. To improve the 
outdoor play environment, the school raised money and purchased new play equipment for the 
upper grade levels, which was installed this year in 2013. The renovation will integrate and 
increase the recreation, play and learning opportunities for the school and the neighborhood. 
(Attachment B)  
 
GOCO School Play Yard Initiative Grant funding will help fulfill the immediate needs of the 
school and neighborhood for age appropriate play equipment, nature-base play opportunities, 
community social gathering spaces, walking paths and an informal recreation field. Specific 
improvements are to be determined during the master plan process to be carried out in November 
and December of 2013. The school campus is used solely by students, grades PreK-5, while 
school is in session. Outside of school hours, community members including children, families, 
adult neighbors, and University of Colorado students will have access to the amenities. Although 
the school was able to recently upgrade a small portion of the play yard with new upper grade 
play equipment, this grant would allow the school to rejuvenate the overall campus to provide a 
more comprehensive and developmentally appropriate play, recreation, learning and social 
outdoor environment for enriched children’s activities and community social opportunities. 
Particular needs include upgrading the dated kindergarten and preschool play areas; addressing 
accessibility issues between the upper and lower play areas; and improving seating and gathering 
space for students, staff and neighbors which are virtually nonexistent. 
 
STAFF RECOMMENDATION 
Staff recommends that the City Council adopt a resolution approving the GOCO Grant 
application allowing for the development of the University Hill Elementary School Playground 
Renovation. 
 
Suggested Motion Language:  
Staff requests council consideration of this matter and action in the form of the following 
motion: 
 
Motion to adopt a Resolution approving and authorizing an application for a Great 
Outdoors Colorado School Play Yard Initiative grant and acceptance of funds for 
University Hill Elementary School Playground Renovation. 
 
COMMUNITY SUSTAINABILITY ASSESSMENTS AND IMPACTS 

 Economic: A successful GOCO grant application would supplement existing school 
funds to make the University Hill Elementary School Playground Renovation a 
possibility as well as allow the school to better serve its students and their needs as a 
Federal Title 1 status school. 

 Environmental: The nature based play areas will offer opportunities for environmental 
learning and nature discovery for Uni Hill students and neighborhood children helping to 
foster a sense of place within the native Colorado flora and fauna and to foster future 
stewards of the environment. 

Agenda Item 3C     Page 2Packet Page     96



 Social: The University Hill Elementary School Playground Renovation master plan will 
be created in partnership with University Hill students, staff and parents, members of the 
University Neighborhood Association, park and school neighbors, the University of 
Colorado’s Environmental Design School, Boulder Valley School District, and interested 
adjacent church organizations. 

 
OTHER IMPACTS  

 Fiscal: A 25 percent match by the grant recipient(s) is required for the GOCO School 
Play Yard Initiative Grants. Uni Hill is providing the grant match for this project. The 
minimum match needed for the grant is $33,500 of which $13,300 shall be in cash and 
$20,200 shall be in-kind donations. The Uni Hill Parent Teacher Association and Site 
Improvement Committee have endorsed the line item for the University Hill Playground 
Renovation project as part of their 2013-2014 budget. The required in-kind donations and 
services will be provided through the efforts of the Uni Hill community throughout the 
duration of the allowed grant timeframe. BVSD has agreed to fund the project for up to 
$100,000 prior to the grant reimbursement at project completion. 
 

 Staff time: University Hill Elementary School will lead the planning and grant 
application process with support from BVSD and minimal oversight by the Parks and 
Recreation Department. Construction Project Management and final reporting for grant 
reimbursement will also be the responsibility of the school and school district with 
minimal oversight from the Parks and Recreation Department. An intergovernmental 
agreement between Parks and Recreation and BVSD must be signed as part of the grant 
agreement. A similar intergovernmental agreement was recently drafted which should 
reduce the review process of future documents. 

 
BOARD AND COMMISSION FEEDBACK 
The Parks and Recreation Advisory Board (PRAB) is in support of University Hill Elementary 
School Playground Renovation. The board will receive updates throughout the collaborative 
process through 2014. 
 
PUBLIC FEEDBACK 
There will be multiple avenues for community input and collaboration including two playground 
master plan meetings. In collaboration with Uni Hill Elementary staff, students, and parents, the 
Uni Hill neighborhood association, the CU Environmental Design School, city staff, and 
adjacent neighbors will be invited to a playground planning meeting with various methods to 
convey comments and input including both a written questionnaire and photo survey. Also, 
through a hands-on design workshop with model making, Uni Hill students will be able to 
creatively design potential play elements for their playground. Students will then present their 
ideas to the neighbors, the CU community, staff, parents, and families of University Hill at the 
final playground master plan presentation. 
 
The school will continue to engage the community throughout the duration of the project in an 
appropriate manner to ensure that the community is informed and included throughout the entire 
project.  
 
BACKGROUND 

Agenda Item 3C     Page 3Packet Page     97



Uni Hill approached the Parks and Recreation Department in September of 2013 with a request 
for sponsorship on a Great Outdoors Colorado Grant in the amount of $100,000. The immediate 
need for the school is to create a better-integrated, better connected, and more age-appropriate 
school playground offering much needed elements of a neighborhood park for students and 
neighbors. Parks and Recreation will function only as a pass-through sponsor for this project. 
 
BVSD will work with the Uni Hill Principal and Site Improvement Committee (that includes a 
parent who is a licensed landscape architect) to create a playground master plan for this 
innovative playground project. The first phase of work to be constructed will fulfill as many of 
the immediate needs as possible with current available funding as a match for the GOCO grant. 
Future phases will be developed as funding becomes available. The role of the Parks and 
Recreation Department will be limited to minimal oversight of the process and to enter in to a 
contractual agreement with GOCO and BVSD ensure the longevity of the renovation. 
 
ANALYSIS 
The deadline for this GOCO special initiative grant is January 17, 2014. GOCO is scheduled to 
review the School Play Yard Initiative Grant applications in February/March with an award date 
in April of 2014. The University Hill Elementary School Playground Renovation construction 
portion of the project is anticipated to begin fall of 2014 or no later than spring of 2015. 
 
ATTACHMENTS  
A:  Resolution 
B.   Site Map 

Agenda Item 3C     Page 4Packet Page     98



 
 

RESOLUTION  NO. 1132 

RESOLUTION SUPPORTING THE GRANT APPLICATION FOR A SCHOOL PLAY 
YARD GRANT FROM THE STATE BOARD OF THE GREAT OUTDOORS 
COLORADO (GOCO) TRUST FUND AND THE COMPLETION OF UNIVERSITY 
HILL ELEMENTARY SCHOOL PLAYGROUND RENOVATION 
 

WHEREAS, the City of Boulder supports the Great Outdoors Colorado grant application for 
University Hill Elementary School Playground Renovation; and. 

WHEREAS, the City of Boulder supports the completion of University Hill Elementary School 
Playground Renovation if the grant is awarded; and. 

WHEREAS, the City of Boulder has partnered with University Hill Elementary to request 
$100,000 from Great Outdoors Colorado for University Hill Elementary School Playground 
Renovation; 

BE IT RESOLVED, That the Mayor and the City Council of the City of Boulder strongly 
support the application for a grant to Great Outdoors Colorado; and 

BE IT RESOLVED, That if the grant is awarded, the Mayor and the City Council of the City of 
Boulder strongly support the completion of the project; and 

BE IT RESOLVED, That if the grant is awarded, the Mayor and the City Council of the City of 
Boulder will enter into an intergovernmental agreement with Boulder Valley School District to 
confirm the funding necessary to meet the terms and obligations of any Grant awarded.  

BE IT RESOLVED, That if the grant is awarded, the Mayor and the City Council of the City of 
Boulder will enter into an intergovernmental agreement with Boulder Valley School District to 
ensure the maintenance of the University Hill Elementary School Playground Renovation project 
in a high quality condition for its useful life. It will be stated in the Intergovernmental Agreement 
that the Boulder Valley School District will appropriate funds for maintenance in its annual 
budget. 

BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, That this resolution is to be in full force and effect from and 
after its passage and approval. 

 

APPROVED this 17th day of December, 2013 

 

      
Mayor, Matt Appelbaum 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Attachment A 

Agenda Item 3C     Page 5Packet Page     99



 

 

 

 

This Page Intentionally Left Blank 

Agenda Item 3C     Page 6Packet Page     100



 

 
 
 

Agenda Item 3C     Page 7Packet Page     101



 

 

 

 

This Page Intentionally Left Blank 

Agenda Item 3C     Page 8Packet Page     102



 
 

CITY OF BOULDER 
CITY COUNCIL AGENDA ITEM 

 
MEETING DATE: December 17, 2013 

 
 
AGENDA TITLE: Consideration of a motion to authorize the City Manager to enter 
into a Letter of Intent between the University Hill General Improvement District 
(UHGID) and Del Mar Interests, LLC, regarding the feasibility of a public/private 
partnership redevelopment of UHGID’s 14th Street parking lot.  
 
 
 
 
PRESENTER/S  
Jane S. Brautigam, City Manager  
Paul J. Fetherston, Deputy City Manager  
Bob Eichem, Chief Financial Officer         
David Driskell, Executive Director, Community Planning and Sustainability 
David Gehr, Deputy City Attorney, City Attorney’s Office 
Molly Winter, Director, Downtown and University Hill Management Division and 
Parking Services  
 
EXECUTIVE SUMMARY 
The purpose of this agenda item is to seek Council’s authorization as the board of 
directors of the University Hill General Improvement District (UHGID) for the City 
Manager to enter into a non-binding Letter of Intent with Del Mar Interests (Attachment 
A) to explore the feasibility of a public/private partnership to redevelop the 14th Street 
parking lot into residential apartments and structured parking. An initial project 
schematic is shown in Attachment B. The Letter of Intent expresses that both parties will 
enter into good faith negotiations and conduct additional legal and financial feasibility 
analysis with the intent of entering into a Global Agreement should both parties wish to 
proceed to the next step.  
 
Del Mar Interests (DMI) proposes to finance, design and build the project – apartment 
units and parking spaces - under a long-term ground lease from UHGID. UHGID would 
convey its property to DMI for $1 for a period of up to 40 years. DMI would lease back 
to UHGID approximately 200 parking spaces. DMI is proposing UHGID pay the 
developer 90% of the annual net operating income generated by the public parking 

Agenda Item 3D     Page 1Packet Page     103



spaces. At the end of the long-term ground lease, the project would be subdivided in a 
manner consistent with the Colorado Common Interest Community Act and the UHGID 
Parking Unit would be conveyed to UHGID.   
 
Based on the analysis to date, staff recommends taking the next step of entering into the 
Letter of Intent with DMI and then pursuing further negotiations and detailed analysis 
regarding the benefits and risks to UHGID and impacts to the commercial area.  Staff will 
return to City Council with a final recommendation about whether to proceed with the 
Global Agreement and under what terms.  
 
STAFF RECOMMENDATION 
Suggested Motion Language:  
Staff requests council consideration of this matter and action in the form of the following 
motion: 
 
The City Council, acting as the board of directors of UHGID, authorizes the City 
Manager to enter into a Letter of Intent, as substantially represented in Attachment A, 
between UHGID and Del Mar Interests regarding the public/private partnership 
redevelopment of UHGID’s 14th Street parking lot.   
 
 
COMMUNITY SUSTAINABILITY ASSESSMENTS AND IMPACTS 

 Economic – Providing additional parking on University Hill will promote the long 
term economic sustainability of the Hill commercial district and encourage a 
greater diversity of destination uses in addition to those currently focused 
primarily on the daily needs of students.   

 Environmental – Redevelopment within the established urban centers maximizes 
the use of all access modes.  Providing additional housing in close proximity to 
the university lessens dependence on automobile trips. The site has excellent 
transit access with the Skip and HOP, as well as other services.  

 Social – Creating a greater diversity of uses on the Hill will invite a broader 
spectrum of the community to visit and enjoy this unique area.  

 
OTHER IMPACTS  

 Fiscal – In order to continue UHGID’s due diligence analysis regarding the 
proposed public/private redevelopment, additional expenditures of approximately 
$20,000 will be needed to hire the appropriate economic and parking consultants.   

 Staff time – Staff time on the project is covered under the existing work program.  
 
BOARD AND COMMISSION FEEDBACK 
The redevelopment of the 14th Street lot has been a priority of the University Hill 
Commercial Area Management Commission (UHCAMC) for several years. The proposal 
from DMI has been presented to the UHCMC on numerous occasions,  most recently at 
their meetings on August 21 and again on November 20.  UHCAMC has consistently 
supported the project as a cost efficient way for the district to gain additional parking as 
well as support the redevelopment of the Hill. Parking availability is an important 

Agenda Item 3D     Page 2Packet Page     104



consideration in attracting potential destination tenants.  At the November meeting only 
one member was in attendance due to a combination of having one vacancy, foreign 
travel and illness.  Dahl offered her support to enter into the Letter of Intent.  
 
BACKGROUND 
UHGID is a general improvement taxing district created in 1970 for parking and parking-
related improvements within the University Hill commercial district.  In the mid-1980s, 
UHGID expanded its powers to include public space maintenance.  UHGID owns two 
parcels which are both used for surface parking:  Pleasant Street lot, 49 spaces, and the 
14th Street lot, 54 spaces.  Other parking resources within the district are the Pennsylvania 
lot owned and managed by the Universityof Colorado (CU), 37 spaces, and 160 on-street 
parking spaces.  There are a total of 300 public parking spaces in the commercial district. 
 
As a parking district, UHGID is responsible for supplying the present and future public 
parking needs, excluding residential uses, for the commercial area.  The district has two 
opportunities for future expansion:  the 14th and Pleasant Street lots.  The 2004 Business 
Plan for the Hill commercial area identified that, due to the configuration of parcels on 
the Hill, redevelopment would be best served through the congregation of adjacent 
parcels and exploring mixed use development.   In 2005, the city sponsored a charrette to 
explore the possible redevelopment options for the three parking lots on the Hill. The 
proposal for the 14th Street lot included a parking garage, live/work space and a hotel.    
 
For several years, DMI and UHGID have been exploring a mixed use, public/private 
partnership development of residential and parking on UHGID’s 14th Street parking lot.  
(See Attachment B.) The proposal is for approximately 25 apartments to be built above 
underground and surface parking serving both the residents, as required by zoning, and 
the district users. An estimated 200 spaces could be leased by UHGID from the 
developer. The project area is larger than the 14th Street parking lot alone. DMI has 
options on two adjacent properties - 1080 13th Street and the underground portion of the 
rear, undeveloped properties at 1005, 1019 and 1027 14th Street.  Both areas would 
include additional units, residential and parking.  
 
The developer has had very preliminary discussions with CU about the project and has 
requested CU’s support and assistance in helping determine if this project would be 
desirable for occupancy by CU staff or graduate students, and if so, would CU help DMI 
market the project to these target markets and publically support it.  CU needs more 
information about the project before it can make the decision.   
 
An attractive component of the proposal to UHGID would be the garage entry off of 13th 
Street accessing the garage through an underground ramp beneath the alley.  Changes to 
the College and 14th Street intersection in the 1990s limited access to the 14th Street lot 
from Broadway.  Currently, southbound cars need to access the site by travelling up 13th, 
east on Euclid and then travelling north on 14th.  Garage access off of 13th Street would 
greatly reduce traffic through the residential neighborhood.   
 
 

Agenda Item 3D     Page 3Packet Page     105



ANALYSIS 
 In order to explore the potential benefit and risk to UHGID, staff undertook the 
following preliminary analysis in order to access whether there was value to UHGID to 
enter into a Letter of Intent with DMI.   
 
Letter of Intent 
The city manager requests that the city council authorize the city manager to sign a form 
of the Letter of Intent that is attached to this memorandum.    
 
The Letter of Intent lays out the preliminary plans and process for developing additional 
structured parking on a parcel of land owned by UHGID at 14th and College Ave.  
Parking will be constructed and financed by Del Mar.    
 
DMI is in a unique situation as a partner in this project.  DMI has secured an option to 
purchase the properties that are located at 1080 and 1068 13th Street (collectively, the 
“13th Street Property”).   DMI also has in interest in the Jones Drug Property at 1350 
College.  That building was constructed such that the basement could be further 
excavated for additional parking.  Combining all of the properties could allow an 
underground parking system that could greatly improve the Hill commercial area parking 
circulation.  It could have entrance and exit points on both 13th that 14th Streets, 
removing the need to circulate into the neighborhood for parking as now often happens.    
 
DMI proposes to construct 240 parking spaces within the parking garage:  approximately 
200 for UHGID and 35 for the residential use.   In exchange, UHGID will enter into a 40-
year lease purchase arrangement and will own the parking at the end of the term.  DMI 
will construct approximately 25 residential units to be located above the parking garage. 
 
In the next step of feasibility, UHGID and DMI will analyze the potential to add up to 25 
parking spaces in the Jones Drug basement if it is found to be financially and practically 
feasible. As mentioned above, DMI has also secured options to purchase the properties at 
1080 and 1068 13th Street.  UHGID and DMI will analyze to the potential for adding 
additional parking below and at grade.   If the parties determine that there is the potential 
for a feasible mixed use public/private partnership, then this property will be brought into 
the development plan and a global agreement related to the ownership and operational 
requirements of the project.  
 
If UHGID goes forward with this effort, two work plan items will need to be completed.   
DMI will prepare an initial set of plans (called the initial schematic in the letter) that will 
be used in the next step of feasibility study.  The plans will be of sufficient detail for the 
parties to determine initial feasibility of the project for the purpose of determining initial 
construction costs, regulatory compliance, and land use programs and plans. UHGID will 
be required to develop a parking market feasibility study that is intended to demonstrate, 
based on reasonable growth and market assumptions within the general improvement 
district boundaries, that the parking usage and revenue projections are sufficient to 
support the financial feasibility of the public/private partnership. 

Agenda Item 3D     Page 4Packet Page     106



This agreement is intended to set the parameters of good faith negotiations with DMI for 
a public/private partnership.  If the council authorizes the city manager to sign this Letter 
of Intent, UHGID will take the next steps toward potential construction of the mixed use 
project.  
 
If the council authorizes UHGID’s further exploration of this effort, it is just that, a 
further exploration.   The Feasibility Study will be presented to the City Council for 
approval upon completion.  If the City Council approves the feasibility study, the staff 
and DMI will negotiate the terms of a global development agreement, which will also be 
presented to council.   The council will also have to approve any disposal of land in the 
future that is necessary to make this project possible.  Staff anticipates that it will have 
complete further outreach efforts, including land use approvals for the development 
before any land disposals are requested.   
 
If the project goes as anticipated in the Letter of Intent, UHGID will convey the property 
to DMI.  DMI will construct the project.  UHGID and DMI and enter into a lease 
purchase arrangement where it will own the parking, as a condominium-type unit, at the 
end of a 40-year lease term.  UHGID will be responsible for owning and managing the 
parking portion of the project.  The lease purchase arrangement will provide payments to 
DMI over time, to compensate it for its initial investment in the parking structure. 
 
The major policy decision with regard to the letter of intent is the issue of working with 
one developer/property owner.  It is staff’s view that it is appropriate in this case, given 
the DMI’s proposal, together with its ability to amalgamate properties in the area in order 
to create a unified development plan and gain garage access off of 13th Street. 
 
A copy of the letter of intent can be found in Attachment A. 
 
Bonding Capacity of UHGID 
Initially, UHGID considered a self-financing approach to the public/private mixed use 
development. The traditional financing model for parking district development is to use 
the general improvement district’s bonding capacity to finance debt service for the 
garage.  This approach has been used most recently in CAGID financing for both the 15th 
and Pearl and 1000 Walnut parking facilities.  However, CAGID’s first parking garage, 
the Randolph Center, did not involve CAGID bond financing.  For the Randolph Center, 
CAGID entered into a long-term lease, with its private partner making annual lease 
payments until CAGID’s portion of the cost was paid off.  The ultimate ownership 
arrangement was through the creation of a condominium association, approved by City 
Council on November 19, 2013.  
 
Based on UHGID’s property evaluation from Boulder County, the city’s financial 
advisor, Piper Jaffray & Company, determined that district’s property tax would need to 
be increased from 2.038 mills (generating $28, 690) to 19.5 mills, a 856% increase, to 
support the debt to finance UHGID’s projected portion of the costs. Because of the small 
scale of the district and its low property value, as well as the significant property tax 
increase, Piper Jaffray determined that the bond market would not consider this approach 

Agenda Item 3D     Page 5Packet Page     107



an economically feasible enterprise.  As a comparison, CAGID’s current mill levy 
collection rate is 5.190, generating $1.1 million.  Because of UHGID’s fiscal limitations, 
the city and DMI explored an alternative option as presented in the letter of intent.   
 
Build-out Projections and Parking Demand 
Because UHGID is responsible for providing for the parking needs of the district both in 
the present and the future, it is necessary to estimate future development which creates 
the parking and access needs within the commercial area.  Staff contracted with RRC 
Associates to develop high and low development projections considering a range of 
commercial and residential uses. (See Attachment C.) The analysis was based on a 
number of assumptions, including that the district would not be built out to the maximum 
1.85 FAR and the two UHGID parking lots would redevelop as mixed use with additional 
district parking.  A total of 498,974 square feet of development (an addition of 194,736 
square feet) is expected for total build out sometime in the future.  The ultimate parking 
demand will be dependent upon the types of uses within the commercial spaces as well as 
the pace of development.   
 
Using the development projections developed by RRC, Fox Tuttle, transportation 
consultants, estimated the commercial parking demand at build-out, based on two spaces 
per 1,000 square feet, to be 690 spaces.  (See Attachment D.) (The number of potential 
spaces has changed since the initial analysis in February 2013.)  If both UHGID parking 
lots redevelop with additional parking, the district has either deficit or surplus of 
approximately 40 spaces.  Should the Pleasant Street not be part of a joint venture 
redevelopment, the district will have a parking space deficit.  Currently there is no 
interest from the property owners adjacent to the 14th Street lot to consider any multi-
parcel redevelopment options. 
 
Property Appraisal 
The city’s Open Space and Mountain Parks department conducted a real property 
appraisal 1095 14th Street.  The value is estimated at $2,625,000.   
 
Development Proposal Evaluation 
Economic and Planning Systems, Inc. (EPS) was engaged to conduct an analysis of the 
financial feasibility and impacts of the DMI proposal to UHGID.  The full report is found 
in Attachment E.  Based on the summary of findings outlined below, EPS recommends 
that UHGID and the developer enter into the letter of intent to negotiate the business 
terms and conditions in preparation of the Global Agreement.  
 
Summary findings by EPS: 

 Based on the current assumptions, UHGID could receive modest net revenues 
after an initial period of final loss during construction based on the proposed 
percentage of 90% payment to the developer of net operating income.  The 
revenue would build over time.  

 The developer would achieve a modest rate of return for incorporating the parking 
into the larger project.  Most of the profits would be from the residential 
development above the parking.   

Agenda Item 3D     Page 6Packet Page     108



 The project represents a win-win for the district and the developer in that the 
district gains desired parking and the developer provides the parking at a modest 
cost in return for the ability to make a greater profit on the residential 
development.  

 It is more economically beneficial to UHGID to have the developer provide the 
parking than for UHGID to build on its own.  Another attractive component of the 
proposal is that UHGID can lease the parking spaces on an as-needed basis.  

 
Next Steps: 
Should City Council authorize the City Manager to proceed with the Letter of Intent, staff 
will work with consultants to conduct the necessary due diligence and legal, design and 
financial feasibility analyses and pursue further negotiations with the developer in order 
to make a final recommendation to City Council.  Staff with seek input from the 
UHCAMC advisory committee and the Hill stakeholders.   
 
The additional analysis will include the following: 

 Update the existing analysis with the current development proposal   
 Confirm the land transaction between UHGID and  DMI as a long-term ground 

lease 
 Determine legal issues associated with the Global Agreement 
 Evaluate the proposal in terms of the entire project to determine a fair and 

equitable return to the developer as well as to UHGID 
 Review and approval of the proposed design to ensure operational compatibility 
 Conduct further detailed analysis of estimated parking costs and revenues 
 Determine of the equitable distribution of parking revenues 
 Conduct analysis of parking demand rates including multi-modal use 

 
ATTACHMENTS  
Attachment A:  Letter of Intent between UHGID and DMI 
Attachment B:  Concept Project Design   
Attachment C:  Memorandum from RRC Associations 
Attachment D:  Memorandum from Fox Tuttle Re Parking Analysis 
Attachment E:  UHGID 14th Street Parking Lot Development Proposal Evaluation  
   by EPS 
 

Agenda Item 3D     Page 7Packet Page     109



 

 

 

 

This Page Intentionally Left Blank 

Agenda Item 3D     Page 8Packet Page     110



 

   

 
 [September **, 2013] 

City of Boulder  
P.O. Box 791  
Boulder, Colorado 80306  
 
University Hill General Improvement District  
1500 Pearl Street, Suite 302  
Boulder, Colorado 80302  
 
Del Mar Interests, L.L.C.  
c/o Michael Boyers  
1526 Spruce Street, Suite 260  
Boulder, CO 80302  
 
 
 
Ladies and Gentlemen:  

This letter  serves as a declaration of the intent of University Hill General Improvement 
District, a general improvement district (“UHGID”), Del Mar Interests, L.L.C., a Colorado 
limited liability company (“DMI”), (collectively, the “Parties”), to pursue good faith 
negotiations to determine the feasibility of a public-private partnership related to development of 
the 14th and College parking lot owned by UHGID (the “UHGID Lot”), a parcel of land, 
consisting of approximately  **   acres, commonly known as 1080 and 1068 13th Street, Boulder, 
Colorado (collectively the “13th Street Property”) to which DMI holds an option to purchase, 
and the basement area of the real property legally described as Lot 45C, University Place 
Addition, Replat C and commonly known as 1350 and 1352 College Avenue, Boulder, Colorado 
(the “Jones Drug Basement”), owned by College Associates.  Some of the salient terms and 
conditions related to the exploration of such a public-private partnership are as follows:  
 

1. The Parties anticipate that the public-private partnership will result in the creation 
of a unified development plan that would include the UHGID Lot and the 13th 
Street Property, and potentially the 1350 College Avenue Basement, for the 
creation of public at and below grade parking (the “Parking Garage”), access to 
the Parking Garage from 13th Street and 14th Street and residential units  above 
the Parking Garage (collectively the “Project”).  

2. The Parties anticipate that, upon completion, the Project will consist of 
approximately two hundred and forty (240) parking spaces within the Parking 
Garage  and approximately twenty-five (28) residential units to be located above  
the Parking Garage. Of the two hundred and forty (240) parking spaces within the 
Parking Garage, two hundred and five (205) of the parking spaces (the “UHGID 
Parking Area”) will be leased by UHGID pursuant to Sections 8 and 9 below and 
then later conveyed to UHGID pursuant to Section 9 below, and thirty-five (35) of 

Attachment A:  Letter of Intent between UHGID and DMI

Agenda Item 3D     Page 9Packet Page     111



 

 

the parking spaces with the Parking Garage (the “Residential Parking Area”) 
will be used by the residential tenants. 

3. If the Parties find it to be financially and practically feasible, they intend to 
consider adding up to twenty-five (25) additional parking spaces in the  1350 
College Avenue Basement (the “Additional Basement Parking Spaces”).  
Access to the Additional  Basement Parking Spaces, if any, will come from the 
UHGID Lot and if so built may comprise a portion of the Parking Garage.  

4. DMI proposes to finance, design and build the Project, including payment of all 
associated third-party costs approved by DMI, and to apply for and obtain all 
required City approvals and permits necessary for proceeding with development 
of the Project.  DMI will prepare, in consultation with UHGID, the initial 
(schematic) design for the Project (the “Initial Schematic”).  The design of the 
Initial Schematic will be of sufficient detail for the Parties to determine initial 
feasibility of the Project.  

5. After the initial feasibility of the Project has been approved by the Parties, the 
Parties  will negotiate a Purchase, Sale, Development and Lease-Back Agreement 
(the “Global Agreement”), which such Global Agreement will document in 
detail each Parties’ rights, duties, obligations and responsibilities with respect to 
the Project.  The Global Agreement will be consistent with the terms and 
conditions of this letter of intent, except as modified, amended and adjusted 
pursuant to the mutual agreement of the Parties.  

6. DMI has an option to purchase the 13th Street Property.  DMI will purchase the 
13th Street Property only after the feasibility of the Project has been approved by 
the Parties and after mutual execution of the Global Agreement. DMI’s purchase 
of the 13th Street Property will be in accordance with the terms and conditions of 
the Global Agreement.  

7. UHGID will convey the UHGID Lot to DMI for a purchase price of $1.00 only 
after the feasibility of the Project has been approved by the Parties and after the 
mutual execution of the Global Agreement.  UHGID’s conveyance of the UHGID 
Lot will be in accordance with the terms and conditions of the Global Agreement.  

8. The Project will be subdivided, or otherwise separated in a manner that is 
consistent with the Colorado Common Interest Community Act at the discretion 
of DMI and College Associates, and in accordance with applicable laws, with the 
approval and consent of UHGID such that DMI can convey title to the UHGID 
Parking Area to UHGID at the end of the Lease Term (as defined in Section 9 
below).   

9. The Parties intend and acknowledge that all City and UHGID contracting 
procedures and real estate disposal procedures, will be complied with prior to 
entering into any contracts, leases, or conveyance of land.   

Attachment A:  Letter of Intent between UHGID and DMI

Agenda Item 3D     Page 10Packet Page     112



 

 

10. UHGID will lease the UHGID Parking Area for a period of forty (40) years (the 
“Lease Term”) or such term that is mutually agreeable to the Parties, commencing 
on completion of the Parking Garage.  The rental rate for the Lease Term payable 
by UHGID is intended to be structured such that DMI is compensated for the 
finance, design and construction costs of the Parking Garage, including all 
associated costs.  The rental rate for the lease term and consideration for the any 
lease purchase arrangement is also intended to provide UHGID with at least fair 
market value for the value of the land that it will place into the Project.  After the 
expiration of the Lease Term, DMI will convey the UHGID Parking Area to 
UHGID in accordance with the terms and conditions of the Global Agreement.  
DMI will at all times retain ownership and use of the Residential Parking Area 
and College Associates will at all time retain ownership and use of the Jones Drug 
Basement, including the Additional Basement Parking Spaces, if any.   

11. UHGID will be responsible for the operation and management of the UHGID 
Parking Areas. DMI will be responsible for the operation and management of the 
Residential Parking Area. College Associates will be responsible for the operation 
and management of the Additional Basement Parking Spaces, if any.  All parking 
will be managed with an integrated approach, to the extent practical with one 
system including equipment and software that provides access to the parking 
spaces of each party in a manner that does not impede availability or access to the 
spaces of the other party.  Notwithstanding the foregoing, the Parties intend that 
the Global Agreement will include a Lease Back Agreement, which such Lease 
Back Agreement will include an equitable method of allocating the cost of 
maintenance, operation, and replacement of the Parking Garage between the 
UHGID Parking Area and the Residential Parking Area and the Additional 
Basement Parking Spaces, if any.  

12. The Global Agreement will include a reasonable due diligence period for DMI to, 
among other things, (a) inspect title and physical conditions of the UHGID Lot 
and the 13th Street Property, (b) obtain a loan commitment from a lending 
institution or acquire private investor funds for the Project; and (c) obtain the 
necessary governmental approvals or entitlements, or both, for completion of the 
Project.  

13. Within thirty business days after mutual execution and delivery of this letter of 
intent and approval of the Initial Schematics, UHGID will commission and pay 
for a parking market study (the “Feasibility Study”) that is intended to 
demonstrate, based on reasonable growth and market assumptions within the 
general improvement district boundaries, that the parking usage and revenue 
projections are sufficient to support the financial feasibility of the public-private 
partnership and the Global Agreement. A copy of the Feasibility Study will be 
provided to DMI and College Associates promptly upon completion of the same, 
but in no event later than 30 days after approval of the Initial Schematics by the 

Attachment A:  Letter of Intent between UHGID and DMI

Agenda Item 3D     Page 11Packet Page     113



 

 

Parties. [Is the timing right on this work.  Also GID approval process for this LOI 
should be discussed and stated.] 

14. Upon approval of the Feasibility Study by the Parties, the same will be presented 
to the City Council for approval. Upon approval of the Feasibility Study by the 
City Council, the Parties will move forward to draft the Global Agreement.  

15. Notwithstanding anything to the contrary contained in this letter of intent, the 
Parties agree that DMI,  Michael Boyers, or any combination of the foregoing, 
may create one or more entities (the “Related Entities”) for the purpose of 
acquiring the 13th Street Property or completing the Project, or both, so long  
Michael Boyers, or any entity(ies) that either of them manage or control, is a 
member of the Related Entities.  To the extent the Related Entities are created, all 
or a portion of this letter of intent or the Global Agreement, or both, may be 
assigned to the Related Entities.  Except as expressly set forth herein, the Parties 
agree that this letter of intent is not otherwise assignable.   
 

16. This letter of intent will not be construed as creating any obligations, contractual 
or otherwise, on the part of the Parties until the Parties have executed the Global 
Agreement.  Actions taken by any of the Parties, including but not limited to 
expenditure of funds, incurring or canceling other commitments or acts taken to 
implement any of the provisions of this letter of intent, will not be construed as 
part performance of the terms and conditions contained herein, nor will the party 
taking such action be regarded as having changed its position in reasonable 
reliance on the terms and conditions contained herein, so as to give rise to a claim 
of promissory estoppel or other equitable claims.   
 

 
 

 

Sincerely,  

Del Mar Interests, L.L.C., 
a Colorado limited liability company 
  
By:       

       Name:  Michael Boyers 
       Title:       
 

Attest:       

Attachment A:  Letter of Intent between UHGID and DMI

Agenda Item 3D     Page 12Packet Page     114



 

 

 
 

Attest:       

 
City of Boulder  

By:       

Attest:       
City Clerk on behalf of the Director 
of Finance and Record  

 
       By:       

 
       Attest:       
        Secretary 
 
 
 
 

University Hill General Improvement   
District, a general improvement district 

 
       By:       
 
       Attest:       
        Secretary  

Attachment A:  Letter of Intent between UHGID and DMI

Agenda Item 3D     Page 13Packet Page     115



 

 

 

 

This Page Intentionally Left Blank 

Agenda Item 3D     Page 14Packet Page     116



Attachment B: Concept Project Design

Agenda Item 3D     Page 15Packet Page     117



Attachment B: Concept Project Design

Agenda Item 3D     Page 16Packet Page     118



Attachment B: Concept Project Design

Agenda Item 3D     Page 17Packet Page     119



Attachment B: Concept Project Design

Agenda Item 3D     Page 18Packet Page     120



Attachment B: Concept Project Design

Agenda Item 3D     Page 19Packet Page     121



Attachment B: Concept Project Design

Agenda Item 3D     Page 20Packet Page     122



Attachment B: Concept Project Design

Agenda Item 3D     Page 21Packet Page     123



Attachment B: Concept Project Design

Agenda Item 3D     Page 22Packet Page     124



4940 Pearl East Circle, Suite 103    Boulder, Colorado  80301    TEL 303/449-6558    FAX 303/449-6587 
 

 
 
 
 

M E M O R A N D U M  
 
TO: Molly Winter, DUHMD/PS Director 
 
FROM: David Becher and Nolan Rosall, RRC Associates 
 
RE: Existing Land Use Conditions and Future Buildout Projections in the UHGID Area - UPDATE 
 
DATE: February 21, 2013 
 

 
 
SUMMARY 
 
This memo contains revised development projections for the UHGID area, pursuant to a meeting/conference call with 
DUHMD/PS staff, the UHGID parking analysis consultant team, and Mike Boyers, a developer active on the Hill, on 
February 19, 2013.   
 
RRC has previously prepared development projections for the UHGID area, as summarized in memos dated January 
31, 2013 and January 23, 2013.  The purpose of this memo is to provide revised development projections for the 
UHGID area, based on the February 19, 2013 meeting.  Additionally, this memo provides interim projections of 
development which might occur by the year 2025.   
 
In response to the February 19 meeting, the sole change RRC has made to the buildout development projections via 
this memo (relative to the Jan. 31 projections) is to reduce the assumed average size of incremental, new residential 
units constructed in the UHGID area to an average of 1000 sqft/unit from 1100 sqft/unit assumed previously.  This is 
based on an expectation that the market for large residential units may become saturated (particularly for 4 bedroom 
units), and developers may opt to build more smaller units (e.g. 2-3 bedroom units which are easier to rent or sell) 
going forward, relative to our January 31 assumptions.  All other assumptions contained in our revised development 
projections have remained unchanged from the January 31 projections, including use, density, and average square 
footage per bedroom assumptions for incremental new development.  The density assumptions, which imply that the 
study area ultimately builds out to 85 percent of its maximum zoned potential, are recognized as possibly high, but 
we feel they are reasonable for planning purposes in light of the extended, indefinite timeframe of the study horizon.   
 
Table 1 to follow summarizes the updated development projections produced in this memo, as well as the earlier 
projections contained in our January 31 and January 23 analyses.  As shown, the sole difference between the 
February 21 and January 31 projections pertains to the number of residential units at buildout, which increase by 
approximately 4-5 percent in both the high commercial scenario (175 units in 2/21 projections vs. 168 units in 1/31 
projections), and the high residential scenario (214 units in 2/21 projections vs. 203 units in 1/31 projections).  This is 
due to the reduction in assumed average unit size.  The projected number of bedrooms at buildout has not changed, 
since our assumption that new residential units will average of 350 sqft per bedroom has remained unchanged.  

Attachment C:  Memorandum from RRC Associations

Agenda Item 3D     Page 23Packet Page     125



UHGID Development Projections – February 21, 2013 

 

RRC Associates 2 

(However, the projected average number of bedrooms per unit at buildout has decreased slightly, to 2.4 – 2.5 in the 
2/21 projections, from 2.5 – 2.6 in the 1/31 projections.) 
 

Table 1 
Built Square Footage, Commercial/Residential Mix, and Residential Unit Characteristics:  Current and at Buildout  

Comparison of February 21, January 31, and January 23, 2013 Projections 
 

            Avg     Above- FAR as a 

 
Total Comm'l Resid'l # Res. # Res. BRs/ % Comm'l % Res grade % of 1.85 

  Sq Ft Sq Ft Sq Ft Units BRs Unit Sq Ft Sq Ft FAR FAR limit 

Existing conditions 304,238 228,597 75,641 97 192 2.0 75% 25% 0.91 49% 

           Updated projections in 2/21/13 memo:                     
At buildout:  High commercial scenario 498,974 345,438 153,535 175 415 2.4 69% 31% 1.58 85% 
At buildout:  High residential scenario 498,974 306,491 192,482 214 526 2.5 61% 39% 1.58 85% 

           Updated projections in 1/31/13 memo:                     
At buildout:  High commercial scenario 498,974 345,438 153,535 168 415 2.5 69% 31% 1.58 85% 
At buildout:  High residential scenario 498,974 306,491 192,482 203 526 2.6 61% 39% 1.58 85% 

           Original projections in 1/23/13 memo:                     
At buildout: High density / high commercial scenario 570,478 388,341 182,137 194 496 2.6 68% 32% 1.82 98% 
At buildout: High density / high residential scenario 570,478 335,093 235,385 242 648 2.7 59% 41% 1.82 98% 
At buildout: Low density / high commercial scenario 521,423 358,908 162,515 176 440 2.5 69% 31% 1.65 89% 
At buildout: Low density / high residential scenario 521,423 315,471 205,952 215 564 2.6 61% 39% 1.65 89% 

Source:  RRC Associates; Boulder County Assessor; City of Boulder GIS, building permit, zoning review & rental license databases.   

 
 
DERIVATION OF DEVELOPMENT PROJECTIONS 
 
Table 2 to follow summarizes how the development projections were derived.  The methodological approach and key 
assumptions underlying the analysis are also described below.  (Additional methodological and study background is 
contained in RRC’s January 31 and January 23 memos.) 

 

 General methodological approach:  In the projections contained in this memo, existing development is 
assumed to remain steady in terms of general use mix and density in the future, while future incremental 
development has been projected under specified density and use assumptions.1  Conditions at buildout are 
assumed to represent the sum of existing development and projected incremental future development.  Two 
buildout  scenarios have been prepared (a “high commercial” scenario and “high residential” scenario), 
based on a single set of density assumptions and two alternate sets of use assumptions. 

 
For purposes of the projections, the study area has been separated into two groups of parcels – “larger” 
sites and “smaller” sites – and different development assumptions have been applied to each.  Figure 1 to 
follow maps the location of each respective set of parcels.  The “larger” sites as a group tend to be clustered 
at the northern and southern ends of the study area, and include each of the public parking lots as well as 
the parcels/parcel clusters that generally have the greatest remaining zoned development capacity.  The 
“smaller” sites are more concentrated in the center of the study area, and tend to have less remaining zoned 
development capacity. 
 

                                                 
1 In practice, a division between “existing” and “incremental future” development is an oversimplification, since significant 
redevelopment of existing properties would be necessary to achieve the projections included in this memo.  While this 
hypothetical division helps facilitate the modeling effort, in practice, the buildout projections should more properly be understood 
as reflecting a future state which incorporates both new development and redevelopment of numerous existing properties.   

Attachment C:  Memorandum from RRC Associations

Agenda Item 3D     Page 24Packet Page     126



UHGID Development Projections – February 21, 2013 

 

RRC Associates 3 

 Group 1 – “larger” sites:  Parcels assigned to Group 1 were assumed to redevelop such that 80 percent of 
their remaining zoned development capacity is eventually built.   
 

 Group 2 – “smaller” sites:  Parcels assigned to Group 2 were assumed to redevelop such that 50 percent of 
their remaining zoned development capacity is eventually built. 
 

 Use scenarios for incremental new development:  Both “Group 1” and “Group 2” sites were evaluated under 
two use scenarios, as described below.   
 

o High commercial scenario:  Incremental additional square footage built is assumed to develop at a 
ratio of 60 percent commercial / 40 percent residential.  (Existing development is assumed to retain 
its existing use mix.) 

 
o High residential scenario:  Incremental additional square footage built in the study area is assumed 

to develop at a ratio of 40 percent commercial / 60 percent residential.  (Existing development is 
assumed to retain its existing use mix.) 

 

 Average gross residential square feet per bedroom and per residential unit:  Assumptions regarding average 
gross residential square footage (including common space) per bedroom were based roughly on patterns 
observed in the recently-constructed Lofts on College and Lofts on the Hill.  In aggregate, these projects are 
estimated to average roughly 340 gross residential sqft/bedroom across all units, and roughly 350 gross 
residential sqft/bedroom across 2–3 bedroom units.  RRC further assumed an average of approximately 
1000 sqft/unit, which is similar to the average size for combined 2-3 bedroom units in these projects.  The 
1000 sqft/unit assumption and 350 sqft/bedroom assumptions imply an assumed average of 2.9 bedrooms 
per unit in incremental new residential development, down from the average of 3.7 bedrooms/unit in Lofts on 
College and Lofts on the Hill.   

 
As shown in Table 2, the Group 1 – “larger” sites currently account for a small share of existing development in the 
study area (53,499 built sqft, or 18 percent of the total), but a large share of the additional zoned development 
capacity (184,946 sqft, or 66 percent of the total).  In aggregate, the “Group 1” sites currently have an above-grade 
FAR of 0.38.  Pursuant to the development assumptions, at buildout, the Group 1 sites are projected to have an 
above-grade FAR of 1.56, which is equivalent to 84 percent of 1.85 FAR maximization.   
 
The Group 2 sites are currently more heavily developed, with an existing above-grade FAR of 1.31.  At buildout, 
pursuant to the development assumptions outlined above, the Group 2 sites are projected to have an aggregate 
above-grade FAR of 1.59, equivalent to 86 percent of 1.85 FAR maximization, and similar to the Group 1 sites.   
 
At buildout, then, both the Group 1 and Group 2 sites are projected to have similar above-grade FARs (1.56 and 1.59 
respectively).   However, Group 1 is projected to account for a larger amount of incremental new development 
(147,957 sqft) than Group 2 (46,779  sqft), due in large part to its greater amount of additional zoned capacity 
(184,946 sqft vs. 93,558 sqft), and the perceived greater ease/likelihood of redevelopment on many of its constituent 
parcels / parcel groups.    

Attachment C:  Memorandum from RRC Associations

Agenda Item 3D     Page 25Packet Page     127



UHGID Development Projections – February 21, 2013 

 

RRC Associates 4 

Table 2 
Derivation of Updated Development Projections (2/21/2013) 
Projected Development at Buildout is Highlighted in Yellow 

 
 Group 1: "larger" sites Group 2: "smaller" sites Total 

Existing conditions:       
Existing commercial sqft 50,331 178,266 228,597 
Existing residential sqft 3,168 72,473 75,641 
Existing total built sqft 53,499 250,739 304,238 

Lot sqft 125,559 165,824 291,383 
Existing gross FAR 0.43 1.51 1.04 

Existing below-grade sqft 6,161 33,609 39,770 
Existing above-grade sqft 47,338 217,130 264,468 

Existing above-grade FAR 0.38 1.31 0.91 
Existing residential units 2 95 97 

Existing residential bedrooms 8 184 192 

    
Total projected additional built sqft:       

Maximum additional buildable sqft (1.85 above-grade FAR limit) 184,946 93,558 278,504 
Assumed share of remaining developable sqft that will ultimately get built 80% 50% 70% 

Assumed amount of remaining developable sqft that will get built 147,957 46,779 194,736 

    
Projected additional built sqft - high commercial scenario:       

Total remaining sqft to be built 147,957 46,779 194,736 
Share of remaining sqft assumed to be commercial 60% 60% 60% 
Share of remaining sqft assumed to be residential 40% 40% 40% 

Amount of remaining sqft assumed to be commercial 88,774 28,067 116,841 
Amount of remaining sqft assumed to be residential 59,183 18,712 77,894 

# Residential units (@ 1000 sqft/unit) 59 19 78 
# Residential bedrooms (@ 350sqft/br) 169 53 223 

    
Projected additional built sqft - high residential scenario:       

Total remaining sqft to be built 147,957 46,779 194,736 
Share of remaining sqft assumed to be commercial 40% 40% 40% 
Share of remaining sqft assumed to be residential 60% 60% 60% 

Amount of remaining sqft assumed to be commercial 59,183 18,712 77,894 
Amount of remaining sqft assumed to be residential 88,774 28,067 116,841 

# Residential units (@ 1000 sqft/unit) 89 28 117 
# Residential bedrooms (@ 350sqft/br) 254 80 334 

    
Total sqft at buildout - both scenarios (high commercial & high residential)     

Total sqft 201,456 297,518 498,974 
Gross FAR 1.60 1.79 1.71 

Above-grade FAR 1.56 1.59 1.58 
Above-grade FAR as a % of 1.85 FAR 84% 86% 85% 

    
Total sqft at buildout - high commercial scenario       

Total commercial sqft 139,105 206,333 345,438 
Total residential sqft 62,351 91,185 153,535 

Total sqft 201,456 297,518 498,974 
Total residential units 61 114 175 

Total residential bedrooms 177 237 415 
    

Total sqft at buildout - high residential scenario       
Total commercial sqft 109,514 196,978 306,491 

Total residential sqft 91,942 100,540 192,482 
Total sqft 201,456 297,518 498,974 

Total residential units 91 123 214 
Total residential bedrooms 262 264 526 

 

Source:  RRC Associates; Boulder County Assessor; City of Boulder GIS, building permit, zoning review & rental license databases. 

Attachment C:  Memorandum from RRC Associations

Agenda Item 3D     Page 26Packet Page     128



UHGID Development Projections – February 21, 2013 

 

RRC Associates 5 

Figure 1:  Map of “Larger” and “Smaller” Sites, and 
Total Incremental Additional Buildable Square Footage 

Assuming Maximum Buildout to 1.85 FAR (For Illustrative Purposes Only) 
 

 
Source:  RRC Associates; Boulder County Assessor; City of Boulder GIS, building permit and zoning review records.   

0 

Attachment C:  Memorandum from RRC Associations

Agenda Item 3D     Page 27Packet Page     129



UHGID Development Projections – February 21, 2013 

 

RRC Associates 6 

INTERIM DEVELOPMENT PROJECTIONS THROUGH YEAR 2025 
 
Table 3 to follow summarizes RRC’s interim development projections for the study area through the year 2025.  RRC 
has developed two development volume scenarios:  a “high 2025” scenario and a “low 2025” scenario.  In the “high 
2025” scenario, it is assumed that 40 percent of total anticipated future incremental development in the study area 
will be developed by 2025 – or specifically, an additional 77,894 sqft (out of a projected total of 194,736 sqft) will be 
built between 2013 and 2025.  In the “low 2025” scenario, it is assumed that 25 percent of total anticipated future 
incremental development will be developed by 2025 (or 48,684 incremental sqft).  We would note that approximately 
18,000 sqft of additional floor area has been added in the study area over the past six years (2007 – 2012 period), 
which equates to a pace of about 36,000 sqft over 12 years.  The future projections, of approximately 49,000 to 
78,000 sqft over the next 13 years, represent an acceleration from these past trends, but are believed to be within the 
realm of possibility given favorable market conditions and the present time, and the success of recently developed 
projects in the study area.    
 
The “high 2025” and “low 2025” volume scenarios have each been evaluated under “high residential” and “high 
commercial” use scenarios, for a matrix of four total outcomes by 2025, highlighted in yellow shading in Table 3.  
Depending on the density and use scenario, total commercial development in the study area by year 2025 is 
projected to be approximately 248,000 to 275,000 sqft; total residential development is projected to be 95,000 to 
122,000 sqft; total residential units are projected to be 116 to 144 units; and total residential bedrooms are projected 
to be 248 to 326 bedrooms.   
 

Attachment C:  Memorandum from RRC Associations

Agenda Item 3D     Page 28Packet Page     130



UHGID Development Projections – February 21, 2013 

 

RRC Associates 7 

Table 3 
Derivation of Interim Projected Development by 2025 

Projected Development at 2025 is Highlighted in Yellow 

 

 
High 2025 scenario Low 2025 scenario 

Existing conditions:     
Existing commercial sqft 228,597 228,597 
Existing residential sqft 75,641 75,641 
Existing total built sqft 304,238 304,238 

Existing residential units 97 97 
Existing residential bedrooms 192 192 

   Projected incremental development occurring 2013-2025    
Assumed amount of remaining developable sqft that will get built at practical buildout 194,736 194,736 

Share of total future projected incremental development which will occur by 2025 40% 25% 
Incremental new development which will get built in 2013 - 2025 77,894 48,684 

   Projected additional sqft built 2013-2025: high commercial scenario:     
Total sqft to be built 77,894 48,684 

Share of remaining sqft assumed to be commercial 60% 60% 
Share of remaining sqft assumed to be residential 40% 40% 

Amount of remaining sqft assumed to be commercial 46,737 29,210 
Amount of remaining sqft assumed to be residential 31,158 19,474 

# Residential units (@ 1000 sqft/unit) 31 19 
# Residential bedrooms (@ 350sqft/br) 89 56 

   Projected additional sqft built 2013-2025: high residential scenario:     
Total sqft to be built 77,894 48,684 

Share of remaining sqft assumed to be commercial 40% 40% 
Share of remaining sqft assumed to be residential 60% 60% 

Amount of remaining sqft assumed to be commercial 31,158 19,474 
Amount of remaining sqft assumed to be residential 46,737 29,210 

# Residential units (@ 1000 sqft/unit) 47 29 
# Residential bedrooms (@ 350sqft/br) 134 83 

   Total development at 2025: high commercial scenario    
Total commercial sqft 275,334 257,807 

Total residential sqft 106,799 95,115 
Total sqft 382,132 352,922 

Total residential units 128 116 
Total residential bedrooms 281 248 

   Total development at 2025: high residential scenario    
Total commercial sqft 259,755 248,071 

Total residential sqft 122,378 104,851 
Total sqft 382,132 352,922 

Total residential units 144 126 
Total residential bedrooms 326 275 

 
Source:  RRC Associates; Boulder County Assessor; City of Boulder GIS, building permit and zoning review records.   

 

Attachment C:  Memorandum from RRC Associations

Agenda Item 3D     Page 29Packet Page     131



 

 

 

 

This Page Intentionally Left Blank 

Agenda Item 3D     Page 30Packet Page     132



 
 

 

 P.O. BOX 19768, BOULDER, COLORADO 80308-2768 
PHONE:  303.652.3571  |  WWW.FOXTUTTLE.COM 

 

 
 
 
 

MEMORANDUM 
 
 
To:    Molly Winter   
 
From:  Bill Fox 
 
Date:  February 7, 2013   
 
Project:  University Hill Parking Analysis     
 
Subject:    Buildout Parking Projections Using Current RRC Land Use Scenarios 
 
I have recalculated the projected parking supply needed using the two revised land use scenarios 
provided by David Becher in his memorandum dated 1/31/13.  The results are summarized in the 
following table, and key assumptions are detailed below. 
 
  UHGID Buildout Parking Supply and Demand Projections: 

 
Parameter / Scenario: 

Updated density – 
high commercial   

Updated density – 
high residential 

Land Use Projections:     

Total Floor Area (sq. ft.)  499,000  499,000 

Commercial Floor Area (sq. ft.):  345,000  306,000 

Residential Dwelling Units:  168  203 

Residential Bedrooms:  415  526 

Commercial Parking Demand / 
Supply: 

   

Commercial Parking Demand:  690  612 

Potential UHGID Parking Supply:     

     On‐street:  160  160 

     Pleasant Lot Joint Venture:           247  247 

     14th Street Lot Joint Venture:  243  243 

     Total UHGID Supply:  650  650 

UHGID Surplus or Deficit:  ‐40  +38 

Additional Residential Parking 
Supply Needed: 

 
252 

 
305 

Total Parking Supply Needed:  942  917 

 
Key Assumptions: 

 100% of area reaches buildout density as defined in the RRC projections. 

 UHGID develops parking supply with two large joint ventures using both existing lots.  
These projections are consistent with current planning on the 14th Street lot and historic 
projections related to the Bova parcel and the Pleasant Street lot. 

Attachment D:  Memorandum from Fox Tuttle RE: Parking Analysis

Agenda Item 3D     Page 31Packet Page     133



Molly Winter     
February 7, 2013                                                                                                                                             Page 2

 

 

 Residential parking demand has been calculated at 1.5 spaces per DU.  This is based on 
the current RRC projection of approximately 2.5 bedrooms per DU, and the assumption 
that on average, one occupant per DU does not need to park a car on the Hill. 

 Commercial parking demand at 2.5 spaces per 1,000 sq. ft. (which is higher than existing 
demand rate), plus a “20% Boulder reduction factor”.  Net demand of 2.0 spaces per 
1,000 sq. ft.  

 
With these projections it appears that UHGID will have a small deficit (less than 50 spaces) in the 
commercial parking space supply in the High Commercial scenario, and a small surplus (less than 50 
spaces) in the High Residential scenario.  It is important to note that residential developers will need to 
provide an additional 250 to 300 parking spaces for the residential units, depending on the land use 
scenario.   
 
Key questions that remain include: 

 
 Are the two large joint venture parking supply projects reasonable?  They are critical to UHGID’s 

ability to provide the necessary commercial parking. 
 Can the necessary residential parking spaces be physically supplied within the UHGID or 

surrounding area?  If not, what will be the impact on surrounding residential areas and NPP 
zones? 

 Is it a valid assumption that the character of the Hill area will change (intensify) as it builds out 
such that the parking demand rates (per commercial floor area) will increase over time relative 
to today? 

 
I hope this helps the conversation.  Let me know if you have any questions. 
 
 
 

Attachment D:  Memorandum from Fox Tuttle RE: Parking Analysis

Agenda Item 3D     Page 32Packet Page     134



 

Draft Report 

UHGID 14th Street Parking Lot 
Development Proposal Evaluation 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Prepared for: 
 
University Hill General Improvement District 
 
 
 
Prepared by: 
 
Economic & Planning Systems, Inc. 
 
 
 
October 10, 2013 
 
 
EPS #123080

Attachment E:  UHGID 14th Street Parking Lot Development Proposal Evaluation by EPS

Agenda Item 3D     Page 33Packet Page     135



 

 

Table of Contents 

1.  EXECUTIVE SUMMARY ............................................................................................ 1 

Introduction ............................................................................................................. 1 

Development Proposal ............................................................................................... 1 

Summary of Findings ................................................................................................ 4 

Additional Considerations ........................................................................................... 7 

Recommendation ...................................................................................................... 8 

2.  PARKING NEEDS .................................................................................................. 9 

Development Projections ........................................................................................... 9 

Parking Demand ..................................................................................................... 10 

Development and Parking Phasing ............................................................................ 12 

3.  FINANCIAL EVALUATION ........................................................................................ 15 

Parking Costs and Revenues ..................................................................................... 15 

Development Financial Evaluation ............................................................................. 18 

Net Value Comparison ............................................................................................. 21 

Developer Evaluation ............................................................................................... 26 

4.  CONCLUSIONS AND NEXT STEPS .............................................................................. 29 

Conclusions ............................................................................................................ 29 

Additional Considerations ......................................................................................... 32 

Recommendation .................................................................................................... 33 

 

Attachment E:  UHGID 14th Street Parking Lot Development Proposal Evaluation by EPS

Agenda Item 3D     Page 34Packet Page     136



 

 

List of Tables 

Table 1   Net Benefit of Developer Proposal ...................................................................... 5 

Table 2   Net Benefit of Developer Proposal vs. UHGID Constructing Garage Itself ................. 6 

Table 3   University Hill Development Projections .............................................................. 9 

Table 4   University Hill Parking Demand Projections ........................................................ 10 

Table 5   University Hill Parking Demand Projections at Buildout ........................................ 11 

Table 6   University Hill Parking Supply and Demand Projections ....................................... 13 

Table 7   University Hill New Parking Demand and Supply Projections ................................ 14 

Table 8   UHGID Financial Evaluation ............................................................................. 17 

Table 9   Developer Financial Evaluation ......................................................................... 20 

Table 10   UHGID Developer Proposal Evaluation Summary ................................................ 22 

Table 11   UHGID Alternative- District Builds Spaces ......................................................... 24 

Table 12   UHGID Net Comparison................................................................................... 25 

Table 13   Developer Proposal Net Benefit ........................................................................ 27 

Table 14   Net Benefit of Developer Proposal .................................................................... 30 

Table 15   Net Benefit of Developer Proposal vs. UHGID Constructing Garage Itself ............... 31 

Attachment E:  UHGID 14th Street Parking Lot Development Proposal Evaluation by EPS

Agenda Item 3D     Page 35Packet Page     137



 

 

List of Figures 

Figure 1   University Hill District ....................................................................................... 3 

 

Attachment E:  UHGID 14th Street Parking Lot Development Proposal Evaluation by EPS

Agenda Item 3D     Page 36Packet Page     138



 

Economic & Planning Systems, Inc. 1 123080rpt_101013 

1. EXECUTIVE SUMMARY 

In t rod uc t ion  

This report summarizes Economic & Planning Systems (EPS) analysis of the financial feasibility 
and impacts of an unsolicited proposal to develop the University Hill General Improvement 
District parking lot at 1095 14th Street on University Hill in Boulder to build a new shared 
parking garage and up to 35 student-oriented residential apartments.  

University Hill (The Hill) is a 7.5-acre+ commercial district located along Broadway adjacent to 
the University of Colorado (CU) largely occupied by campus-oriented restaurant and retail 
businesses. The University Hill General Improvement District (UHGID) provides parking and 
general maintenance services for the property owners located in the District.  The Hill is mostly 
built-out; only three vacant lots exist today, two of which are owned and operated as surface 
parking lots by UHGID.  However, a number of recent redevelopment projects have added new 
residential and commercial space and, based on increasing land values, this trend is expected to 
continue into the future which will trigger the need for additional parking.  

UHGID expects that it will need additional parking in the future. The District first retained RRC 
Associates to conduct an analysis of the future development (buildout) potential of The Hill 
District. The expected future parking needs for the District based on the buildout analysis was 
then estimated by Fox Tuttle. EPS was subsequently retained to conduct this financial feasibility 
and impact analysis to evaluate whether the proposed project meets its needs and the financial 
terms and conditions are reasonable and beneficial to the District.  

Deve lopment  P ropos a l  

Del Mar Interests (a development entity controlled by Boyers Properties, a Boulder-based real 
estate development company), has proposed a public-private partnership to build 35 new 
residential units and up to 216 structured parking spaces on the UHGID 14th Street parking lot 
and on an adjacent 13th Street property as shown on Figure 1.  

The 14th Street site is currently a 54-space surface parking lot (1095 14th Street) owned and 
operated by UHGID. The 13th Street site, which Del Mar Interests (Developer) has an option to 
purchase, is comprised of two detached housing units on two lots totaling 12,292 square feet of 
land that have been subdivided into student oriented apartments. It is located just outside of the 
UHGID boundaries.  

The Developer proposes to gain control of the UHGID parking lot (for purchase price of $1.00) 
and purchase the 13th Street property on the open market to build the housing units and 
parking. He would lease back to UHGID up to 191 parking spaces in a two level garage under the 
housing for up to 40 years to provide additional District parking anticipated to be needed to 
serve future commercial development. The proposed Development business terms are 
summarized below:  

Attachment E:  UHGID 14th Street Parking Lot Development Proposal Evaluation by EPS

Agenda Item 3D     Page 37Packet Page     139



UHGID 14th Street Parking Lot Development Proposal Evaluation  
October 10, 2013 

 
 

Economic & Planning Systems, Inc. 2 Draft Report 

 The Developer will construct up to 28 residential units and 146 parking spaces (at grade and 
underground) at the 1095 14th Street UHGID lot, and seven residential units and 70 parking 
spaces (at grade and underground) at the 13th Street. This results in a total of 35 new 
residential units and 216 new structured parking spaces. 

 The Developer would lease back to UHGID up to a maximum of 191 parking spaces for up to 
40 years to provide public parking to the district. The remaining 25 spaces are required by 
zoning for the new residential units. 

 UHGID would have the option to lease as many spaces as needed on an annual basis up to 
the maximum 191 spaces (with six-month notice). The uncommitted remaining spaces would 
be rented out by the Developer on a monthly basis for residential parking. 

 The Developer would “purchase” the 1095 14th Street for $1.00.  The land would be deeded 
back to UHGID at no cost along with the number of agreed upon leased spaces assumed to 
be the maximum 191 spaces.  The parking structure and residential improvements would 
remain under the ownership of the Developer (or future party in case of a sale). 

 To finance the cost of parking construction, UHGID would pay the Developer 90 percent of 
annual net operating income (NOI) generated by the public spaces.  

Attachment E:  UHGID 14th Street Parking Lot Development Proposal Evaluation by EPS

Agenda Item 3D     Page 38Packet Page     140



UHGID 14th Street Parking Lot Development Proposal Evaluation  
October 10, 2013 

 
 

Economic & Planning Systems, Inc. 3 Draft Report 

Figure 1  
University Hill District 

 

 

13th St. (2 lots) 
12,292 sq. ft. 

UHGID 1095 14th St. 
18,750 sq. ft. 

UHGID Boundary 

Attachment E:  UHGID 14th Street Parking Lot Development Proposal Evaluation by EPS

Agenda Item 3D     Page 39Packet Page     141



UHGID 14th Street Parking Lot Development Proposal Evaluation  
October 10, 2013 

 
 

Economic & Planning Systems, Inc. 4 Draft Report 

Summa ry  o f  F ind ings  

The Del Mar Interests unsolicited development proposal is a public private partnership whereby 
UHGID is investing its existing parking lot land and 90 percent of its future parking revenues in a 
privately developed mixed use project that includes additional commercial district parking as well 
as a student oriented apartment project. The proposed Development would provide UHGID with 
a substantial portion of its estimated future parking needs up to a total of 191 spaces.  It allows 
the District to lease only the amount of parking determined to be needed on an annual basis. 
UHGID would gain the use of up to 191 spaces (137 net new spaces) without coming out of 
pocket for any capital or annual operating expenses.  

The proposed mixed use project would require UHGID to invest in this parking earlier than it 
might otherwise need if it were building the parking separately. It will also lose most of the 
modest $63,000 in annual revenues it is collecting from the existing parking lot. The positive 
tradeoffs are the City and The Hill gain additional housing units, and potential retail and 
commercial customers. The UHGID parking would be transferred from a surface parking plot to a 
first level parking structure beneath the residential development.  

Assuming that UHGID and the City agree that the proposed Development meets its parking and 
development objectives, the proposed business and financial terms and conditions are, in EPS’ 
opinion, reasonable and provide benefits to both UHGID and the Developer as summarized 
below. 

1. UHGID would pay the Developer 90 percent of the future net operating income from 
its parking to finance the Developer’s costs for building the structured parking. 

Annual net revenues from the 14th Street parking lot are estimated to be a modest $62,796 
in 2014. This revenue stream will be lost going forward as the parking lot would be replaced 
by the proposed mixed use project.  Under the phasing scenario tested, UHGID would lease 
122 spaces starting in 2015 increasing to 172 spaces in 2018 and 191 spaces in 2030.  The 
Developer would receive 90 percent of the parking revenues estimated at $105,041 in 2015, 
$157,082 in 2018, and$133,354 in 2030. UHGID would receive 10 percent of the net 
operating income from these parking spaces estimated at $11,671 in 2015, $17,454 in 2018, 
and $20,518 in 2030. 

2. The Developer would offset his costs for providing the additional UHGID public 
parking spaces but the project profits are largely associated with the residential 
development built above the parking structure. 

Separating the UHGID parking from the larger mixed use project, the Developer would 
achieve a very modest 3.0 percent internal rate of return (2.8 percent return on costs) for 
incorporating the public parking into his project. This is close to a break-even proposition 
within the margin of error of the planning level costs and revenue assumptions used for this 
financial analysis. Also, given a target hurdle rate of 10 to 12 percent IRR, a developer would 
not undertake this project alone. The Developer will therefore realize most of his profits from 
the residential development built above the parking structure. 

Attachment E:  UHGID 14th Street Parking Lot Development Proposal Evaluation by EPS

Agenda Item 3D     Page 40Packet Page     142



UHGID 14th Street Parking Lot Development Proposal Evaluation  
October 10, 2013 

 
 

Economic & Planning Systems, Inc. 5 Draft Report 

3. The proposed business terms provides a positive economic benefit to UHGID. 

The net present value (NPV), tested at a 5 percent discount rate over 40 years, of the cost 
and revenues of the proposed partnership were estimated to measure the net benefit to both 
UHGID and the developer. The proposed partnership results in a positive net benefit of 
$177,076 for UHGID. This is compared to a negative net benefit of $1,945,448 for the 
Developer (for the parking portion only) as shown in Table 1. If the net present value of the 
land 14th Street lot (given to the developer) and the value of the transferred parking spaces 
(given to UHGID after 40 years) are also considered, the Developer’s net benefit improves to 
a negative $566,216 as shown. This reflects the estimated 3.0 percent IRR previously shown. 
The project therefore represents a win – win for the District and the Developer in that the 
District gains the desired parking and the Developer provides the parking at a modest cost in 
return for the ability to make a greater profit on the residential development. 

Table 1  
Net Benefit of Developer Proposal 

Description UHGID Developer Developer

(w/out land value) (with land value)

Current

14th Street Lot 54 spaces 0 spaces 0 spaces

Net Revenue $1,532,594 $0 $0

Proposed

New Garage 191 spaces 25 spaces 25 spaces

Costs

Land Costs $0 ($1,720,880) ($1,720,880)

Construction Costs $0 ($4,491,823) ($4,491,823)

Parking Space Transfer ‐‐‐ ‐‐‐ ($1,245,768)

Total $0 ($6,212,703) ($7,458,471)

Revenue

Land Value ‐‐‐ ‐‐‐ $2,625,000

Property Tax $80,897 $0 $0

Net Revenue from Parking $383,005 $4,104,196 $4,104,196

Parking Space Residual Value $1,245,768 $163,059 $163,059

Total  $1,709,670 $4,267,255 $6,892,255

Total $1,709,670 ($1,945,448) ($566,216)

Net Benefit (NPV @ 5%) $177,076 ($1,945,448) ($566,216)

Source:  Economic & Planning Systems

H:\123080-Boulder UHGID Feasibility Study\M odels\ [123080-Boulder UHGID Financial Analysis 093013.xlsx]Comparison A

Developer Proposal ‐ NPV over 40 years

 

Attachment E:  UHGID 14th Street Parking Lot Development Proposal Evaluation by EPS

Agenda Item 3D     Page 41Packet Page     143



UHGID 14th Street Parking Lot Development Proposal Evaluation  
October 10, 2013 

 
 

Economic & Planning Systems, Inc. 6 Draft Report 

4. The proposed development partnership has a higher economic return than would be 
achieved if UHGID built its own parking structure. 

If UHGID built an above ground parking structure on the 14th Street lot and 13th Street 
properties, it would generate a negative net benefit of $1.3 million compared to a positive 
$177,076 under the proposed Development partnership as shown in Table 2.  In addition, 
the propose project allows UHGID to lease the parking on an as needed basis with six-
month’s notice. The developer would presumably lease out any unused parking spaces to 
area residents for monthly parking. 

Table 2  
Net Benefit of Developer Proposal vs. UHGID Constructing Garage Itself 

Description UHGID UHGID Alternative

Current

14th Street Lot 54 spaces 54 spaces

Net Revenue $1,532,594 $1,532,594

Proposed

New Garage 191 spaces 191 spaces

Costs

Land Costs $0 ($1,843,800)

Construction Costs $0 ($3,056,000)

Total $0 ($4,899,800)

Revenue

Property Tax $80,897 $0

Net Revenue from Parking $383,005 $4,173,760

Parking Space Residual Value $1,245,768 $958,491

Total  $1,709,670 $5,132,251

Total $1,709,670 $232,451

Net Benefit (NPV @ 5%) $177,076 ($1,300,143)

Source:  Economic & Planning Systems

H:\123080-Boulder UHGID Feasibility Study\M odels\[123080-Boulder UHGID Financial Analysis 093013.xlsx]Comparison C

Developer Proposal vs. UHGID Alternative ‐ NPV over 40 years

 

Attachment E:  UHGID 14th Street Parking Lot Development Proposal Evaluation by EPS

Agenda Item 3D     Page 42Packet Page     144



UHGID 14th Street Parking Lot Development Proposal Evaluation  
October 10, 2013 

 
 

Economic & Planning Systems, Inc. 7 Draft Report 

Add i t i ona l  C ons ide ra t ions  

It is EPS’ opinion that the proposed P-3 project is worthy of consideration and further negotiation 
if UHGID ultimately determines 1) its impending parking needs are worthy of moving ahead with 
planning for additional parking at this time recognizing that there will be a modest loss in current 
income as a tradeoff for the investment in additional parking, and 2) the City determines that 
the proposed mixed use residential project is consistent with the Comprehensive Plan, area 
zoning and any applicable design guidelines.   

There are a number of outstanding business and legal terms and conditions that would need to 
be resolved before a development agreement could be signed by both parties including the 
following: 

 Land Ownership and Reversion – the Developer has requested the City transfer fee 
simple ownership of the parking lot to Del Mar Interests and that the property and parking 
would be transferred back at the end of the parking lease term in 40 years. It is not clear 
how this would be done or even if it is the best structure. In other P-3 projects we have 
worked on, the development is usually done on a long term unsubordinated land lease where 
the public entity continues to control the land and its assets over the long term. 

 Equitable Distribution of Parking Revenues – The Developer’s proposal to use 90 
percent of the net parking revenues and rebate 10 percent to UHGID appears reasonable and 
fair - within the bounds of the planning level cost estimates used in this financial model and 
analysis. The City and UHGID would need to evaluate a more detailed project pro forma to 
fully determine whether the proposed revenue split is equitable or whether the City should 
receive a higher percentage. Further, it would be our recommendation that the City/UHGID 
require the Developer to submit a project pro forma on the entire mixed use project so that 
the Developer’s costs, revenues, and expected returns on the entire project be vetted to 
determine a fair and equitable return. 

 Estimated Parking Costs and Revenues – The assumptions used by EPS for structured 
parking cost and revenues are very rough and based on CAGID parking garage figures. 
UHGID should do additional planning to determine if the estimated annual parking revenues 
and operating costs are achievable.  Additionally, a cost allowance for capital maintenance in 
the garage and who pays for these costs has not been addressed.  The reversion value of 
parking at the end of the lease will also be affected by whether the structure has been 
updated and maintained or rather its useful life has been depleted. 

 Project Design – The analysis to date has been done on rough sketches of how the public 
parking would be configured and accessed. The proposed plan to acquire property on 13th to 
provide full service access to the lot has a lot of merit and could potentially improve UHGID’s 
parking utilization. But small parking garages under residential or hotel properties can be 
tight and hard to access, and therefore underutilized.  Should this be the case, the project 
would not achieve its objectives and the expected parking revenues would also not be 
reached.  While parking operations are beyond our expertise, UHGID, needs some additional 
level of conceptual planning to ensure that the project will be successful. 

Attachment E:  UHGID 14th Street Parking Lot Development Proposal Evaluation by EPS

Agenda Item 3D     Page 43Packet Page     145



UHGID 14th Street Parking Lot Development Proposal Evaluation  
October 10, 2013 

 
 

Economic & Planning Systems, Inc. 8 Draft Report 

Rec ommenda t ion   

If UHGID and the City agree the proposal has merit, EPS recommends that the City and the 
Developer enter into an Exclusive Negotiating Agreement to negotiate the proposed business 
terms as input to signing a Development Agreement.

Attachment E:  UHGID 14th Street Parking Lot Development Proposal Evaluation by EPS

Agenda Item 3D     Page 44Packet Page     146



 

Economic & Planning Systems, Inc. 9 123080rpt_101013 

2. PARKING NEEDS 

This section of the report presents the RRC estimates of future commercial and residential space 
on The Hill and Fox Tuttle’s estimates of parking demand to serve the projected development. 
Based on the projected demand, EPS prepared a parking phasing program to be used for testing 
the financial terms and performance of the proposed Development program. 

Deve lopment  P ro jec t ions  

In order to determine the potential need for additional parking on the Hill, RRC Associates 
estimated the buildout potential of the District under alternative assumptions of the mix of 
commercial and residential space. Fox Tuttle was then engaged to estimate the associated 
parking needs related to this future development potential. 

RRC compared current development levels to the zoned capacity of the district.  The Hill 
currently has approximately 304,000 square feet of total development, representing a FAR of 
0.91.  The Hill has a zoned maximum FAR of 1.85, or approximately 539,000 square feet.  It is 
likely that future development will only achieve some portion of this theoretical maximum 
density, so for the purposes of this analysis, RRC assumed that the Hill could reach an estimated 
85 percent of the zoned maximum, resulting in a total of 498,973 square feet of development or 
an additional 195,000 square feet of development at buildout, as shown in Table 3.   

Residential and commercial developments have different parking impacts for UHGID. Residential 
projects are intended to be self-parked and not create a public parking need while UHGID was 
created to provide public parking to serve District commercial uses. RRC developed two land use 
scenarios to account for the potential mix of land uses with the first High Commercial Scenario 
emphasizing commercial development and the second High Residential Scenario emphasizing 
residential development.   

Table 3  
University Hill Development Projections  

Description Existing

High Comm. High Res. High Comm. High Res.

Commercial 228,597 345,438 306,491 116,841 77,894

Residential

Units 97 168 203 71 106

Sq. Ft. 75,641 153,535 192,482 77,894 116,841

Total 304,238 498,973 498,973 194,735 194,735

FAR 0.91 1.58 1.58 0.67 0.67

% Max Buildout 49.2% 85.4% 85.4% 36.2% 36.2%

Source:  RRC Associates; Economic & Planning Systems

H:\123080-Boulder UHGID Feasibility Study\M odels\ [123080-Boulder UHGID Financial Analysis 061913.xlsx]RRC

New Net New

 

Attachment E:  UHGID 14th Street Parking Lot Development Proposal Evaluation by EPS

Agenda Item 3D     Page 45Packet Page     147



UHGID 14th Street Parking Lot Development Proposal Evaluation  
October 10, 2013 

 
 

Economic & Planning Systems, Inc. 10 Draft Report 

Park ing  Demand  

Fox Tuttle estimated the parking demand associated with the two RRC development buildout 
scenarios.  Assuming 2.0 spaces per 1,000 square feet for commercial development and 1.5 
spaces per unit for residential development, the estimated 498,973 square feet of development 
at buildout will generate demand for 917 to 942 total parking spaces, as shown in Table 4.   

UHGID is primarily responsible for the provision of shared parking available to support 
commercial businesses. It is assumed that the majority of new spaces required for residential 
development will be the responsibility of the individual developers as required by zoning. 
Therefore, UHGID would need to provide an estimated 612 spaces for the High Residential 
Scenario and 690 parking spaces for the High Commercial Scenario to serve the potential 
additional demand from commercial space as shown.  

Table 4  
University Hill Parking Demand Projections 

Description Factor High Comm. High Res.

Development

Commercial 345,000 306,000

Residential

Units 168 203

Sq. Ft. 154,000 193,000

Total 499,000 499,000

Parking Demand

Commercial Demand 2.0 spaces/1,000 sq. ft. 690 612

Residential Demand 1.5 spaces/unit. 252 305

Total 942 917

District Responsibility
1

690 612

1
UHGID only respons ible  for commercia l  parking

Source:  Fox Tuttle Transportation Group, RRC Associates; Economic & Planning Systems

C:\Users\cleutzinger\AppData\Roaming\M icrosoft \Excel\ [123080-Boulder UHGID Financial Analysis (version 1).xlsb]FoxTutt le 

UHGID currently controls and manages 389 public spaces composed of 160 surface lot spaces 
and 229 on-street meters.  Therefore at buildout, there could be an estimated shortfall of 301 
spaces under the High Commercial Scenario and 223 spaces under the High Residential Scenario 
as shown in Table 5.  If the additional 191 UHGID parking spaces were built, the shortfall would 
be reduced to 164 space under the High Commercial Scenario and 86 spaces under the High 
Residential Scenario as shown. 

Attachment E:  UHGID 14th Street Parking Lot Development Proposal Evaluation by EPS

Agenda Item 3D     Page 46Packet Page     148



UHGID 14th Street Parking Lot Development Proposal Evaluation  
October 10, 2013 

 
 

Economic & Planning Systems, Inc. 11 Draft Report 

Table 5  
University Hill Parking Demand Projections at Buildout 

Description

High Comm. High Res. High Comm. High Res.

Parking Demand

District Reponsibility
1

690 612 690 612

Parking Supply

Lots

1095 14th St. 54 54 0 0

13th and Penn 38 38 38 38

105 Pleasant St. 68 68 68 68

Subtotal 160 160 106 106

Meters 229 229 229 229

Garages

Pleasant Lot Joint Venture
2

0 0 0 0

14th Street Joint Venture
2

0 0 191 191

Subtotal 0 0 191 191

Total 389 389 526 526

Net (Over Supply/Under Supply) (301) (223) (164) (86)

1
UHGID only respons ible  for commercia l  parking

Source:  Fox Tuttle Transportation Group, RRC Associates; Economic & Planning Systems

C:\Users\cleutzinger\AppData\Roaming\M icrosoft \Excel\ [123080-Boulder UHGID Financial Analysis (version 1).xlsb]FoxTutt le

2
Assumes  publ ic‐private  partnership to bui ld s tructured parking on surface  lots .  Based on estimate  

provided by Fox Tuttle  and Boyer Properties

Exisiting Potential

 

The above parking projections are for the ultimate buildout of the District. It is not clear whether 
or how soon this parking might be needed.  The Developer’s proposal does allow the District to 
lease the number of spaces needed on an annual basis with six months’ notice. The other 
location where UHGID could provide additional parking is at its surface lot at 105 Pleasant Street. 
UHGID studied a similar joint venture to provide parking on the Pleasant Street lot in the Hill 
Redevelopment Workshop conducted in April 2005).  This study showed that a public private 
project could potentially add another 247 spaces, or net of 179 new spaces (247 new structured 
spaces less 68 existing surface spaces). Thus, a second public private venture could address any 
future shortfalls.  However, this second joint venture is purely speculative at this time and 
therefore not included in this analysis. 

Attachment E:  UHGID 14th Street Parking Lot Development Proposal Evaluation by EPS

Agenda Item 3D     Page 47Packet Page     149



UHGID 14th Street Parking Lot Development Proposal Evaluation  
October 10, 2013 

 
 

Economic & Planning Systems, Inc. 12 Draft Report 

Deve lopment  and  Park ing  Phas ing  

As stated above, the proposed Development would allow UHGID to lease the number of spaces 
estimated to be needed on an annual basis. To estimate the number of spaces anticipated to be 
leased, EPS assumed that the new development would occur in roughly three increments as 
summarized below and shown in Table 6 on the following page.   

 The Developer proposes the completion of the new housing units in 2015. 
 A total of 25,000 square feet of commercial development is proposed to be completed by 

2020. 
 An additional 35 housing units and 25,000 square feet of commercial development is 

estimated to be completed by 2030. 
 The remaining 36 housing units and 27,894 square feet of commercial development are 

estimated to be completed by 2040 which is buildout as identified by RRC. 

Using the parking demand assumptions used by Fox Tuttle, total parking demand as of 2013 is 
estimated to be 603 spaces, 457 of which are commercial spaces and the potential responsibility 
of UHGID. As a residential project, the proposed Development would not generate demand for 
any new UHGID spaces.  As a result of future commercial development, total demand for UHGID 
spaces is estimated to reach 507 spaces by 2020, 557 spaces by 2030, and 613 spaces by 2040 
as shown. 

As previously mentioned, UHGID currently has a total supply of 389 spaces, including 160 spaces 
across three surface lots and 229 metered spaces.  Thus, assuming no onsite commercial spaces 
exist, there is currently an estimated shortfall of approximately 68 parking spaces, as shown in 
Table 5.  As additional development is completed, the parking shortfall is anticipated to grow to 
approximately 224 spaces by 2040, as shown in Table 6. 

Under the Developer Proposal of 216 new structured spaces on the 13th Street site and the 1095 
14th Street lot, UHGID would gain a net of 137 new spaces.  This includes the 191 new spaces 
available to UHGID and the loss of the 54 surface spaces currently at the lot.  Thus, the 
additional proposed spaces create an oversupply of approximately 69 spaces in 2015, as shown 
in Table 7.  This oversupply is sufficient to support an additional 35,000 square feet of 
commercial development, after which another parking shortfall begins.  Including the Developer 
Proposal, the parking shortfall to the district is estimated to reach 87 spaces at buildout. 

Attachment E:  UHGID 14th Street Parking Lot Development Proposal Evaluation by EPS

Agenda Item 3D     Page 48Packet Page     150



UHGID 14th Street Parking Lot Development Proposal Evaluation  
October 10, 2013 

 
 

Economic & Planning Systems, Inc. 13 Draft Report 

Table 6  
University Hill Parking Supply and Demand Projections 

  0 1 2 3 4 5 6 7 16 26 36 40

Description Factor 2013 2014 2015 2016 2017 2018 2019 2020 2030 2040 2050 2054 Total

Development

New Development

Residential (units) 35.33333333 0 0 35 0 0 0 0 0 35 36 0 0 106

Residential (sq. ft.) 0 0 38,580 0 0 0 0 0 38,580 39,682 116,841

Commercial (sq. ft.) 25964.66667 0 0 0 0 0 25,000 0 0 25,000 27894 0 0 77,894

Total 0 0 38,580 0 0 25,000 0 0 63,580 67,576 0 0 194,735

Total Development

Residential (units) 97 97 132 132 132 132 132 132 167 203 203 203 203

Residential (sq. ft.) 75,641 75,641 114,221 114,221 114,221 114,221 114,221 114,221 152,800 192,482 192,482 192,482 192,482

Commercial (sq. ft.) 228,597 228,597 228,597 228,597 228,597 253,597 253,597 253,597 278,597 306,491 306,491 306,491 306,491

Total 304,238 304,238 342,818 342,818 342,818 367,818 367,818 367,818 431,397 498,973 498,973 498,973 498,973

Demand

New Spaces Demanded

Residential 1.5 spaces/unit 0 0 53 0 0 0 0 0 53 54 0 0 159

Commercial 2.0 spaces/1,000 sq. ft. 0 0 0 0 0 50 0 0 50 56 0 0 156

Subtotal 0 0 53 0 0 50 0 0 103 110 0 0 315

Total Spaces Demanded

Residential 1.5 spaces/unit 146                146           198                 198           198           198       198           198           251           305           305           305           305             

Commercial 2.0 spaces/1,000 sq. ft. 457                457           457                 457           457           507       507           507           557           613           613           613           613             

Subtotal 603                603           655                 655           655           705       705           705           808           917           917           917           917             

District Responsibility
1

457                457         457               457         457         507     507         507         557           613         613         613         613           

District Spaces Supplied

Lots

1095 14th St. 54 54 54 54 54 54 54 54 54 54 54 54 54

13th and Penn 38 38 38 38 38 38 38 38 38 38 38 38 38

105 Pleasant St. 68 68 68 68 68 68 68 68 68 68 68 68 68

Subtotal 160 160 160 160 160 160 160 160 160 160 160 160 160

Meters 229 229 229 229 229 229 229 229 229 229 229 229 229

Garages 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0

Total 389 389 389 389 389 389 389 389 389 389 389 389 389

District Under Supply/Over Supply (68) (68) (68) (68) (68) (118) (118) (118) (168) (224) (224) (224) (224)

1
UHGID only respons ible  for commercial  parking

Source:  Economic & Planning Systems

H:\123080-Boulder UHGID Feasibility Study\M odels\[123080-Boulder UHGID Financial Analysis 061913.xlsx]Space Demand  

Attachment E:  UHGID 14th Street Parking Lot Development Proposal Evaluation by EPS

Agenda Item 3D     Page 49Packet Page     151



UHGID 14th Street Parking Lot Development Proposal Evaluation  
October 10, 2013 

 
 

Economic & Planning Systems, Inc. 14 Draft Report 

Table 7  
University Hill New Parking Demand and Supply Projections  

  0 1 2 3 4 5 6 7 16 26 36 40

Description Factor 2013 2014 2015 2016 2017 2018 2019 2020 2030 2040 2050 2054 Total

District Responsibility
1

457              457         457               457         457         507     507           507         557         613         613         613         613           

New District Spaces Supplied

Lots

1095 14th St. (54) (54)

13th and Penn 0

105 Pleasant St. 0

Subtotal 0 (54) 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 (54)

Meters 0 0 0 0 0

Garages

1095 14th Street 141 141

13th Street 50 50

Others 0

Subtotal 0 0 191 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 191

Total 0 (54) 191 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 191

Total District Spaces Supplied

Lots 160 106 106 106 106 106 106 106 106 106 106 106 106

Meters 229 229 229 229 229 229 229 229 229 229 229 229 229

Garages 0 0 191 191 191 191 191 191 191 191 191 191 191

Total 389 335 526 526 526 526 526 526 526 526 526 526 526

District Under Supply/Over Supply (68) (122) 69 69 69 19 19 19 (31) (87) (87) (87) (87)

1
UHGID only respons ible  for commercia l  parking

Source:  Economic & Planning Systems

C:\Users\cleutzinger\AppData\Roaming\M icrosoft \Excel\ [123080-Boulder UHGID Financial Analysis (version 1).xlsb]Space Demand  

 

Attachment E:  UHGID 14th Street Parking Lot Development Proposal Evaluation by EPS

Agenda Item 3D     Page 50Packet Page     152



 

Economic & Planning Systems, Inc. 15 123080rpt_101013 

3. FINANCIAL EVALUATION 

This section of the report evaluates the financial feasibility of the proposed Development 
including the proposed business terms and estimated costs and returns to UHGID and the 
Developer. EPS also defined and tested an alternative development scenario with UHGID 
developing its own parking structure on the 14th Street site as a comparison of risks and returns. 

Park ing  Cos ts  and  Revenues  

The Developer proposes to replace the 1095 14th Street lot with the proposed project, therefore 
UHGID would lose the annual income currently generated by the existing 54 surfaces spaces at 
the 14th Street lot.  As of 2012, the 1095 14th Street lot generates approximately $66,000 in 
gross revenues annually or $1,222 per space, as shown in Table 8.   

Because UHGID is responsible for maintenance of the entire Hill, the marginal cost to operate 
and maintain these spaces is minimal.  Based on discussions with UHGID staff, the only direct 
cost attributable to the surface lot is the onsite payment center, which averages approximately 
$3,000 or $56 per space.  Thus, the annual net revenues associated with the 14th Street lot are 
estimated to be $62,976 in 2014 as shown.   

While UHGID would lose the net operating revenue generated by the 14th Street lot, UHGID 
would gain property tax from the proposed residential units and parking spaces, as well as a 
portion of the annual operating revenue of the 191 new structured spaces.  Also, because the 
ownership of the 191 spaces would revert back UHGID upon the expiration of the lease, UHGID 
would also gain the residual value of the 191 spaces at the end of 40 years.   

To estimate the additional property taxes generated by the Developer Proposal, EPS used the 
average assessed value of existing residential units in the Hill ($289,000), as well as the 
approximate assessed value of a downtown parking structure ($15,000 per space).  The current 
mill levy assessed by UHGID is 2.276.  Assuming 35 residential units and 216 privately-owned 
parking spaces, the Developer Proposal would generate approximately $3,800 annually.  Receipt 
of property tax revenue is projected on a one-year delay to account for billing cycles. 

To estimate the potential operating revenue from the 191 new structured spaces, EPS analyzed 
historical parking revenues and costs from the parking structures owned and operated by the 
downtown Central Area General Improvement District (CAGID).  Since 2005, the annual average 
revenue generated by the five CAGID garages is approximately $1,445 per space.  While 191 
spaces would be available to UHGID, the parking demand analysis shows that UHGID would not 
need all of these 191 spaces until additional commercial development is completed.   

Thus, EPS assumed UHGD would only use the number of spaces needed in a given year until 
demand exceeds 191.  To estimate annual operating expenses, EPS also applied average data on 
the five CAGID parking garages in downtown.  Since 2008, the average annual operating 
expense per space for a CAGID lot without a parking attendant was approximately $509.  
Applying the per space revenues and expenses to the anticipated number of utilized UHGID 
spaces, net operating income (NOI) is estimated to total approximately $117,000 in 2015.   

Attachment E:  UHGID 14th Street Parking Lot Development Proposal Evaluation by EPS

Agenda Item 3D     Page 51Packet Page     153



UHGID 14th Street Parking Lot Development Proposal Evaluation  
October 10, 2013 

 
 

Economic & Planning Systems, Inc. 16 

Per the terms of the Developer Proposal, UHGID would pay the Developer 90 percent of this 
annual NOI, or approximately $105,000 in 2015, in exchange for the use of the spaces.  This 
results in net revenue to UHGID of approximately $11,671.  Summing estimated property tax 
and operating revenue, UHGID is estimated to earn $15,668 in 2016, $22,232 in 2020, $29,518 
in 2030, $35,983 in 2040, and $43,863 in 2050. 

To estimate the value of the parking spaces that would be retained by UHGID upon the 
expiration of the lease, EPS assumed the construction value of $20,795 per space for 191 
spaces, escalated at 2.0 percent annually. This results in an estimated 2054 value of 
approximately $8.8 million in 2054 at the end of the 40 year lease. 

Finally, to estimate the total net benefit (or loss) as a result of the Developer Proposal, the 
existing annual revenue from the 54 spaces must be netted against the future annual net 
revenue of the 191 spaces.  Because current annual revenue ($63,000) actually exceeds future 
annual revenue ($12,000), accepting the proposal would result in a loss of annual revenue to 
UHGID of approximately $53,000 in 2015.  Future loss of revenue is estimated to be $49,000 in 
2020, $57,000 in 2030, $69,000 in 2040, and $85,000 in 2050.  In 2054, UHGID retains the 
ownership of the 191 spaces, resulting in net revenue of approximately $8.7 million. Assuming a 
5.0 percent discount rate, the present value of net annual revenue over the life of the lease (40 
years) is estimated to be approximately $177,000. 

Attachment E:  UHGID 14th Street Parking Lot Development Proposal Evaluation by EPS

Agenda Item 3D     Page 52Packet Page     154



UHGID 14th Street Parking Lot Development Proposal Evaluation  
October 10, 2013 

 
 

Economic & Planning Systems, Inc. 17 Draft Report 

Table 8  
UHGID Financial Evaluation 

0 1 2 3 4 5 6 16 26 36 40

Description Factor 2014 2015 2016 2017 2018 2019 2020 2030 2040 2050 2054 Total

2.0% 2.0% 2.0% 2.0% 2.0% 2.0%

Current

Lot 54 54 54 54 54 54 54 54 54 54 54 54

Revenue $1,222 per space
1

$66,000 $67,320 $68,666 $70,040 $71,441 $72,869 $74,327 $90,604 $110,446 $134,633 $145,731 $4,132,262

Expenses $56 per space
2

($3,024) ($3,084) ($3,146) ($3,209) ($3,273) ($3,339) ($3,406) ($4,151) ($5,060) ($6,169) ($6,677) ($189,333)

Net $1,532,593.70 $62,976 $64,236 $65,520 $66,831 $68,167 $69,531 $70,921 $86,453 $105,385 $128,464 $139,054 $3,942,929

Proposed

New Garage 0 122 122 122 172 172 172 191 191 191 191 191

Property Tax $80,896.73 $0 $0 $3,763 $3,839 $3,915 $3,994 $4,074 $4,966 $6,053 $7,379 $7,987 $219,164

Operations

Revenue $1,445 per space
3

$0 $180,102 $183,704 $187,378 $269,331 $274,718 $280,212 $378,882 $461,855 $562,999 $609,408 $16,299,180

Expenses

Operations $509 per space
4

$0 ($63,390) ($64,658) ($65,951) ($94,796) ($96,692) ($98,625) ($133,354) ($162,558) ($198,157) ($214,492) ($5,736,778)

Subtotal $0 $116,712 $119,046 $121,427 $174,535 $178,026 $181,587 $245,528 $299,297 $364,842 $394,916 $10,562,402

Lease 90% $0 ($105,041) ($107,141) ($109,284) ($157,082) ($160,223) ($163,428) ($220,975) ($269,367) ($328,357) ($355,425) ($9,506,162)

Net $383,004.79 $0 $11,671 $11,905 $12,143 $17,454 $17,803 $18,159 $24,553 $29,930 $36,484 $39,492 $1,056,240

Estimated Parking Space Value
5
$20,795 per space $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $8,770,193 $8,770,193

$1,245,767.99

Total  $1,709,669.52 $0 $11,671 $15,668 $15,981 $21,369 $21,796 $22,232 $29,518 $35,983 $43,863 $8,817,671 $10,045,596

Net ($62,976) ($52,564) ($49,852) ($50,849) ($46,798) ($47,734) ($48,689) ($56,934) ($69,402) ($84,601) $8,678,618 $6,102,668

Present Value 5.0% $240,052

Net Present Value $177,076

1 
2012 budgeted revenue  per space

2 
Based on discuss ions  with UHGID management, the  dis trict incurs  approximately $3,000 annual ly for the  ons i te  meter.  No other direct costs  are  incurred

3 
8‐year average  of CAGID parking garages

4 
4‐year CAGID average  without attendant

5
 Assumes  2014 construction va lue  escalated at 2.0 percent annual ly

Source:  Economic & Planning Systems

H:\123080-Boulder UHGID Feasibility Study\M odels\[123080-Boulder UHGID Financial Analysis 061913.xlsx]B-District-Only Needed

Attachment E:  UHGID 14th Street Parking Lot Development Proposal Evaluation by EPS

Agenda Item 3D     Page 53Packet Page     155



UHGID 14th Street Parking Lot Development Proposal Evaluation  
October 10, 2013 

 
 

Economic & Planning Systems, Inc. 18 

Deve lopment  F ina nc ia l  Eva lua t ion  

The Developer’s cost estimate is $20,795 per space and he believes this to be a reasonable 
estimate of construction costs considering both underground and above-ground parking.  In 
total, parking costs are estimated at approximately $4.5 million. 

Financial Model 

The Developer is gaining the use of the 1095 14th Street lot at no land cost; however, in order 
to accommodate the full development program, the two lots on 13th Street, totaling 12,292 
square feet, must be acquired.  UHGID commissioned an appraisal of the 14th Street Lot from 
Rothweiler Group, Inc. who estimated the market value of the lot at $2,625,000, which equates 
to $140 per square foot.   For the purposes of this analysis, EPS estimates the land value per 
square foot of the 13th Street site to be the same as the 14th Street lot.   

The remaining assumptions in the financial model shown in Table 9 are summarized below: 

 Total site acquisition costs are for the 14th Street parking lot and 13th Street properties are 
estimated to total approximately $1.72 million. It should be noted that some portion of this 
land cost is attributable to the seven residential units on the 13th Street lot.  However, for 
the purposes of this analysis, all land is assigned to the parking development costs, resulting 
in a total upfront capital cost of approximately $6.2 million. 

 The Developer plans to lease parking spaces that are unused by UHGID to residential renters 
in the area.  EPS estimated a monthly lease rate of $100 per space, or $1,200 annually.  
Applying this estimate to the 94 spaces anticipated to be used by the Developer in 2015 
generates $114,819. 

 The Developer would receive 90 percent of the UHGID lease payments for the parking spaces 
anticipated to be used by UHGID, which is 122 spaces in 2015, or $105,041.   

 Annual operating expenses related to the Developer spaces are estimated to be the same as 
the UHGID spaces, or $509 per space annually.   

 Net annual revenue to the Developer is estimated to total $171,196 in 2015, $197,537 in 
2020, $244,704 in 2030, $298,293 in 2040, and $363,617 in 2050.   

In addition to the net annual revenue, the Developer will retain the value of the 25 spaces upon 
the expiration of the lease at the end of 2054.  Escalating the construction value of $20,795 per 
space at 2.0 percent annually, EPS estimates the value of the 25 spaces in 2054 to be 
approximately $1.1 million.  Thus, the net annual revenue to the Developer in 2054 is estimated 
to total approximately $1.5 million. 

Developer Returns 

The annual IRR to the Developer based on total net revenue over the 40-year lease term is 
estimated to be 3.0 percent with a cash-on-cash return of approximately 2.8 percent.  These 
returns are significantly lower than typical private sector development project which generally be 
10 to 12 percent (unlevered) or greater on an IRR basis and 9 to 10 percent or greater on a 
cash-on-cash basis depending on the level of project risk.  

Attachment E:  UHGID 14th Street Parking Lot Development Proposal Evaluation by EPS

Agenda Item 3D     Page 54Packet Page     156



UHGID 14th Street Parking Lot Development Proposal Evaluation  
October 10, 2013 

 
 

Economic & Planning Systems, Inc. 19 

However, is not expecting to make a full financial return on the parking.  His motivation for the 
project is that in addition to the parking revenue stream, the Developer is gaining the 
development rights to construct up to 35 residential units.  Thus, the majority of the Developer’s 
financial return will be generated through the residential development.  

 

Attachment E:  UHGID 14th Street Parking Lot Development Proposal Evaluation by EPS

Agenda Item 3D     Page 55Packet Page     157



UHGID 14th Street Parking Lot Development Proposal Evaluation  
October 10, 2013 

 
 

Economic & Planning Systems, Inc. 20 Draft Report 

Table 9  
Developer Financial Evaluation 

0 1 2 3 4 5 6 16 26 36 40

Description Factor 2014 2015 2016 2017 2018 2019 2020 2030 2040 2050 2054 Total

2.0% 2.0% 2.0% 2.0% 2.0% 2.0%

Spaces Constructed

Developer Spaces 25

District Spaces 191

Subtotal 216 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 216

Spaces Managed

Developer Spaces 0 94 94 94 44 44 44 25 25 25 25 25

District Spaces 0 122 122 122 172 172 172 191 191 191 191 191

Subtotal 0 216 216 216 216 216 216 216 216 216 216 216

Capital Costs

Land Costs

1095 14th Street 18,750 $0.00 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0

13th Street 12,292 $140.00 ($1,720,880) $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 ($1,720,880)

Subtotal 31,042 ($1,720,880) $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 ($1,720,880)

Construction Costs $20,795 per space
1
($4,491,823) $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 ($4,491,823)

Total ($6,212,703) $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 ($6,212,703)

Operations

Revenue

Space Revenue $1,200 per space
2

$0 $114,819 $117,115 $119,457 $56,900 $58,038 $59,199 $41,184 $50,203 $61,197 $66,241 $2,433,666

District Lease Revenue $0 $105,041 $107,141 $109,284 $157,082 $160,223 $163,428 $220,975 $269,367 $328,357 $355,425 $9,506,162

Subtotal $0 $219,859 $224,256 $228,741 $213,982 $218,262 $222,627 $262,159 $319,570 $389,554 $421,666 $11,939,828

Expenses $509 per space
3

$0 ($48,663) ($49,636) ($50,629) ($24,116) ($24,598) ($25,090) ($17,455) ($21,277) ($25,937) ($28,075) ($1,031,454)

Net $4,104,196.38 $0 $171,196 $174,620 $178,112 $189,866 $193,664 $197,537 $244,704 $298,293 $363,617 $393,591 $10,908,374

Estimated Parking Space Value
4

$20,795 per space $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $1,147,931 $1,147,931

$163,058.64

Net $3,916,206 ($6,212,703) $171,196 $174,620 $178,112 $189,866 $193,664 $197,537 $244,704 $298,293 $363,617 $1,541,522 $5,843,602

Present Value $4,267,255

Net Present Value 5.0% ($1,945,448)

IRR 3.0%

ROR 2.8%

1
 Average  cost of parking space  from Boyer Properties

2 
Assumes  monthly per space  rate  of: $100

3
 4‐year CAGID average  without attendant

4
 Assumes  2014 construction va lue  esca lated at 2.0 percent annual ly

Source:  Economic & Planning Systems

Attachment E:  UHGID 14th Street Parking Lot Development Proposal Evaluation by EPS

Agenda Item 3D     Page 56Packet Page     158



UHGID 14th Street Parking Lot Development Proposal Evaluation  
October 10, 2013 

 
 

Economic & Planning Systems, Inc. 21 Draft Report 

Net  Va lue  C ompar i s on  

EPS performed a comparison of the net present value (NPV) of 1) the Developer’s P-3 proposal 
to build public parking as a component of a mixed use project, and 2) UHGID building its own 
parking structure on the 14th Street lot. 

Developer Proposal 

EPS applied the appraisal land value of 1095 14th Street site of $140 per square foot as a 
development cost which results in a potential UHGID contribution of land value of $2.6 million, as 
shown in Table 10. 

By accepting the Developer Proposal, UHGID is sacrificing the value of the current lease revenue 
generated by the existing 54 surface spaces.  The present value of this revenue stream is 
estimated to total approximately $1.5 million.  Thus, total costs to UHGID under the Developer 
Proposal are estimated to be approximately $4.2 million. 

In exchange for the use of the 1095 14th Street lot, UHGID is gaining the estimated property tax 
revenue generated by new development, as well as the use rights of 191 new structured spaces.  
Based on the assumptions in the analysis, the present value of the increase in property tax 
revenue over the 40-year lease is estimated to total $81,000.  Per the terms of the Developer 
Proposal, the present value of the lease revenue associated with the 191 spaces is estimated to 
total $383,000.  Upon the expiration of the lease at the end of 2054, UHGID becomes fee owner 
of the 191 spaces.  The present value of these spaces is estimated to total approximately 
$1.2 million. 

Under the terms of the proposal, UHGID would forego the land value of its current surface lot, as 
well as the current revenue generated by the existing 54 surface spaces, in exchange for 
increased annual property tax revenue, annual parking revenue generated by the 191 spaces, 
and the value of the ownership of the 191 spaces at the end of the lease.  The net value of the 
proposal to UHGID is a loss of $2.48 million as shown. In order for UHGID to break even 
financially, UHGID would need to receive approximately 73 percent (vs. 10 percent proposed) of 
the NOI generated by the leased spaces. 

Attachment E:  UHGID 14th Street Parking Lot Development Proposal Evaluation by EPS

Agenda Item 3D     Page 57Packet Page     159



UHGID 14th Street Parking Lot Development Proposal Evaluation  
October 10, 2013 

 
 

Economic & Planning Systems, Inc. 22 Draft Report 

Table 10  
UHGID Developer Proposal Evaluation Summary 

Description Total

Appraisal

UHGID Costs

1095 14th Street 18,750 sq. ft. $140.00 per sq. ft.

Land Subtotal $2,625,000

Current Parking Revenue
1

$1,532,594

Total $4,157,594

UHGID Revenue

Property Tax Revenue
1

$80,897

New Parking Revenue
1

$383,005

Parking Spaces 191 spaces $20,795 per space

Parking Subtotal
2

$1,245,768

Total $1,709,670

Net Value to UHGID ($2,447,924)

Breakeven NOI Share 73%

1
Present value  of revenue  stream over 40 years , discounted at 5.0 percent
2
Present value  of construction va lue  after 40 years , discounted at 5.0 percent

Source:  Economic & Planning Systems

Developer Proposal

H:\123080-Boulder UHGID Feasibility Study\M odels\ [123080-Boulder UHGID Financial Analysis 093013.xlsx]Net Value Summary  

Attachment E:  UHGID 14th Street Parking Lot Development Proposal Evaluation by EPS

Agenda Item 3D     Page 58Packet Page     160



UHGID 14th Street Parking Lot Development Proposal Evaluation  
October 10, 2013 

 
 

Economic & Planning Systems, Inc. 23 Draft Report 

UHGID Alternative (District Builds Spaces) 

As an alternative to providing future parking, UHGID could potentially construct a parking 
structure on the 1095 14th Street lot. UHGID would likely need to purchase the 13th Street site 
to accommodate a more efficient design and adequate ingress and egress.  Assuming no land 
cost of the 14th Street lot and the 13th Street lot with an assumed value of $140 per square foot 
based on the appraisal of the 14th Street lot, EPS estimates land costs related to this alternative 
to be $1.7 million, as shown in Table 11.   

Assuming a parking structure only with no mixed use development, UHGID could construct the 
all of the spaces above ground.  According to the Carl Walker Parking Structure Cost Outlook 
2013, the average construction cost for a structured parking space in the Denver region is 
approximately $16,000.  Applying this cost to the 191 structured spaces results in a parking 
structure cost of approximately $3.1 million.   

Just as is the case under the Developer Proposal, UHGID would be sacrificing the annual parking 
revenue generated by the existing 54 surfaces spaces at the 1095 14th Street lot.  The present 
value of this revenue over 40 years is estimated to total $1.5 million.  Thus, the total cost to 
UHGID, should it elect to build its own structured spaces, is estimated to be $6.3 million. 

UHGID would receive 100 percent of the annual revenue associated with these spaces.  
Assuming the same per space revenue and cost assumptions as outlined in the previous analysis, 
EPS estimates the present value of this revenue stream over 40 years to be approximately $4.2 
million.  As fee simple owner of the 191 spaces, UHGID would have the ability to sell the spaces 
at some point in the future.   

For the purposes of this analysis, EPS assumes UHGID would realize the fee simple ownership of 
these spaces, either through the expiration of a lease or through the sale of the spaces, at the 
end of 40 years.  Based on the assumed construction value of $16,000 per space escalated at 
2.0 percent annually over 40 years, the present value of the 191 spaces is estimated to be 
approximately $960,000.  Thus, the value of revenue to UHGID under the outlined alternative is 
estimated to total approximately $5.1 million.  Netting the estimated costs against the estimated 
revenues and the assumed land value related to the 13th Street lot, EPS estimates the net value 
to UHGID, should it elect to construct the spaces itself, to be -$1.17 million. 

Attachment E:  UHGID 14th Street Parking Lot Development Proposal Evaluation by EPS

Agenda Item 3D     Page 59Packet Page     161



UHGID 14th Street Parking Lot Development Proposal Evaluation  
October 10, 2013 

 
 

Economic & Planning Systems, Inc. 24 Draft Report 

Table 11  
UHGID Alternative- District Builds Spaces 

Description Total

Appraisal

UHGID Costs

1095 14th Street 18,750 sq. ft. $0.00 per sq. ft.

13th Street 12,292 sq. ft. $140.00 per sq. ft.

Land Subtotal $1,720,880

Parking Spaces 191 spaces $16,000 per space

Parking Subtotal $3,056,000

Current Parking Revenue
1

$1,532,594

Total $6,309,474

UHGID Revenue

New Parking Revenue
1

$4,173,760

Parking Spaces 191 spaces $16,000 per space

Parking Subtotal
2

$958,491

Total $5,132,251

Net Value to UHGID ($1,177,223)

1
Present value  of revenue  stream over 40 years , discounted at 5.0 percent
2
Present value  of construction va lue  after 40 years , discounted at 5.0 percent

Source:  Economic & Planning Systems

H:\123080-Boulder UHGID Feasibility Study\M odels\ [123080-Boulder UHGID Financial Analysis 093013.xlsx]Net 
Value Summary

District Builds Spaces

 

Attachment E:  UHGID 14th Street Parking Lot Development Proposal Evaluation by EPS

Agenda Item 3D     Page 60Packet Page     162



UHGID 14th Street Parking Lot Development Proposal Evaluation  
October 10, 2013 

 
 

Economic & Planning Systems, Inc. 25 Draft Report 

Net Comparison 

To understand the implications of each alternative, EPS compared the net value of the Developer 
Proposal to the net value of the alternative for UHGID to build the spaces itself.  While both 
alternatives result in a loss of value to UHGID, the Developer Proposal results in a greater loss to 
UHGID than constructing the spaces itself, as shown in Table 12.  Thus on a financial basis, 
should UHGID have the available capital, it would be better off constructing the spaces itself 
rather than accepting the Developer Proposal. There is however, unspecified value or benefits to 
having the Developer undertake the project as summarized in the Conclusions below. 

Table 12  
UHGID Net Comparison 

Description Total

Appraisal

Developer Proposal

UHGID Costs $4,157,594

UHGID Revenue $1,709,670

Net Value ($2,447,924)

District Builds Spaces

UHGID Costs $6,309,474

UHGID Revenue $5,132,251

Net Value ($1,177,223)

Difference ($1,270,702)

Source:  Economic & Planning Systems

Net Comparison

H:\123080-Boulder UHGID Feasibility Study\M odels\ [123080-Boulder UHGID 
Financial Analysis 093013.xlsx]Net Value Summary  

Attachment E:  UHGID 14th Street Parking Lot Development Proposal Evaluation by EPS

Agenda Item 3D     Page 61Packet Page     163



UHGID 14th Street Parking Lot Development Proposal Evaluation  
October 10, 2013 

 
 

Economic & Planning Systems, Inc. 26 Draft Report 

Deve loper  Eva lua t ion  

Developer Proposal 

In order to quantify the financial gain or loss to the Developer, EPS applied a similar 
methodology as the previous analysis, comparing the estimated value the potential assets to be 
exchanged.  As a result of the proposal, the Developer must purchase the 13th Street site in 
order to construct the garage.  Assuming the same commercial land values, EPS estimates the 
cost to the Developer of acquiring the 13th Street site is to be $1.7 million, as shown in Table 
13.  In addition to the land, the Developer is paying for the construction of all 216 spaces.  At 
$20,795 per space, the parking structure has an estimated construction value of approximately 
$4.5 million.  Upon the expiration of the lease at the end of 2054, the Developer proposes to 
deed over the fee simple ownership of the 191 spaces to UHGID.  Based on the construction 
costs, EPS estimates the present value of these 191 spaces to be approximately $1.2 million.  
Summing the cost of the land acquisition, construction of the 216 parking spaces, and the value 
of the 191 spaces to be deeded over to UHGID at the end of the lease, EPS estimates the total 
cost to the Developer as a result of the proposal to be $7.5 million. 

In exchange for constructing the spaces, the Developer is gaining the use of the 1095 14th 
Street lot at no cost.  The value of 14th Street lot is estimated to be $2.6 million.  The Developer 
is also gaining the revenue stream generated by the private lease of the 25 spaces, as well as 
the lease with UHGID for the 191 spaces (90 percent of NOI).  The present value to the 
Developer of the combined revenue stream of the 216 spaces is estimated to total approximately 
$4.1 million. Upon the expiration of the lease, the Developer retains the value of the 25 
privately-leased spaces.  Assuming the sale of these spaces at the end of 2054, the present 
value of these spaces is estimated to total approximately $163,000.  Summing the value of the 
14th Street lot, the new parking revenue, and the terminal value of the 25 privately-leased 
spaces, EPS estimates the value of the potential revenue generated to the Developer as a result 
of the Developer Proposal to be $6.9 million, as shown in Table 13. 

Thus, netting the estimated value of the Developer costs against the value of the estimated 
Developer revenue, EPS estimates the net value to the Developer as a result of the Developer 
Proposal to be -$566,216.   

Attachment E:  UHGID 14th Street Parking Lot Development Proposal Evaluation by EPS

Agenda Item 3D     Page 62Packet Page     164



UHGID 14th Street Parking Lot Development Proposal Evaluation  
October 10, 2013 

 
 

Economic & Planning Systems, Inc. 27 Draft Report 

Table 13  
Developer Proposal Net Benefit 

Description Total

A

Developer Costs

13th Street 12,292 sq. ft. $140.00 per sq. ft.

Land Subtotal $1,720,880

Parking Spaces 216 spaces $20,795 per space

Parking Subtotal $4,491,823

UHGID Spaces 191 spaces $20,795 per space

UHGID Spaces Subtotal
2

$1,245,768

Total $7,458,471

Developer Revenue

1095 14th Street 18,750 sq. ft. $140.00 per sq. ft.

Land Subtotal $2,625,000

New Parking Revenue
1

$4,104,196

Parking Spaces 25 spaces $20,795 per space

Parking Subtotal
2

$163,059

Total $6,892,255

Net Value to Developer ($566,216)

2
Present value  of construction va lue  after 40 years , discounted at 5.0 percent

Source:  Economic & Planning Systems

H:\123080-Boulder UHGID Feasibility Study\M odels\[123080-Boulder UHGID Financial Analysis 093013.xlsx]Net Value Summary

1
Present value  of revenue  stream of privately‐leased spaces  and UHGID leased 

spaces  over 40 years , discounted at 5.0 percent

Developer Proposal

 

Attachment E:  UHGID 14th Street Parking Lot Development Proposal Evaluation by EPS

Agenda Item 3D     Page 63Packet Page     165



UHGID 14th Street Parking Lot Development Proposal Evaluation  
October 10, 2013 

 
 

Economic & Planning Systems, Inc. 28 Draft Report 

Additional Information 

In addition to the parking-related financial benefit, the Developer is acquiring land at no cost to 
support the construction of the proposed 35 residential units.  Because the value of the land to 
support the residential units and the parking spaces is intrinsically tied to one another, this value 
is difficult to estimate, but should be considered in the analysis.  EPS performed static analysis 
on the financial feasibility of the residential project with and without the Developer Proposal.  To 
simplify this analysis, EPS assumed that the Developer would build the same number of 
residential units (35) in either alternative.  If the Developer built the residential project on his 
own, he would have to acquire the 14th Street property at market price, but would only need to 
build the amount of spaces necessary to serve the units.  Under the Developer Proposal, he 
acquires the 1095 14th Street property at no cost, but must construct the full 216 spaces.  Based 
on EPS’ assumptions regarding potential rents and operating expenses of the residential units, as 
well as factoring in the annual income resulting from the parking, the Developer return improves 
between 0.5 percent and 1.0 percent.  Thus, it is EPS’ opinion that the Developer is not gaining 
any substantial profit as a result of the proposal. 

Attachment E:  UHGID 14th Street Parking Lot Development Proposal Evaluation by EPS

Agenda Item 3D     Page 64Packet Page     166



 

Economic & Planning Systems, Inc. 29 filename 

4. CONCLUSIONS AND NEXT STEPS 

Conc lus ions  

The Del Mar Interests unsolicited development proposal is a public private partnership whereby 
UHGID is investing its existing parking lot land and 90 percent of its future parking revenues in a 
privately developed mixed use project that includes additional commercial district parking as well 
as a student oriented apartment project. The proposed Development would provide UHGID with 
a substantial portion of its estimated future parking needs up to a total of 191 spaces.  It allows 
the District to lease only the amount of parking determined to be needed on an annual basis. 
UHGID would gain the use of up to 191 spaces (137 net new spaces) without coming out of 
pocket for any capital or annual operating expenses.  

The proposed mixed use project would require UHGID to invest in this parking earlier than it 
might otherwise need if it were building the parking separately. It will also lose most of the 
modest $63,000 in annual revenues it is collecting from the existing parking lot. The positive 
tradeoffs are the City and The Hill gain additional housing units, and potential retail and 
commercial customers. The UHGID parking would be transferred from a surface parking plot to a 
first level parking structure beneath the residential development.  

Assuming that UHGID and the City agree that the proposed Development meets its parking and 
development objectives, the proposed business and financial terms and conditions are, in EPS’ 
opinion, reasonable and provide benefits to both UHGID and the Developer as summarized 
below. 

 Annual net revenues from the 14th Street parking lot are estimated to be a modest $62,796 
in 2014. This revenue stream will be lost going forward as the parking lot would be replaced 
by the proposed mixed use project.  Under the phasing scenario tested, UHGID would lease 
122 spaces starting in 2015 increasing to 172 spaces in 2018 and 191 spaces in 2030.  The 
Developer would receive 90 percent of the parking revenues estimated at $105,041 in 2015, 
$157,082 in 2018, and$133,354 in 2030. UHGID would receive 10 percent of the net 
operating income from these parking spaces estimated at $11,671 in 2015, $17,454 in 2018, 
and $20,518 in 2030. 

 Separating the UHGID parking from the larger mixed use project, the Developer would 
achieve a very modest 3.0 percent internal rate of return (2.8 percent return on costs) for 
incorporating the public parking into his project. This is close to a break-even proposition 
within the margin of error of the planning level costs and revenue assumptions used for this 
financial analysis. Also, given a target hurdle rate of 10 to 12 percent IRR, a developer would 
not undertake this project alone. The Developer will therefore realize most of his profits from 
the residential development built above the parking structure. 

Attachment E:  UHGID 14th Street Parking Lot Development Proposal Evaluation by EPS

Agenda Item 3D     Page 65Packet Page     167



UHGID 14th Street Parking Lot Development Proposal Evaluation  
October 10, 2013 

 
 

Economic & Planning Systems, Inc. 30 Draft Report 

 The net benefit of the proposal to UHGID based on the net present value (NPV), tested at a 5 
percent discount rate over 40 years, of the cost and revenues of the proposed partnership 
results in a positive benefit of $177,076. This is compared to a negative benefit of 
$1,945,448 for the Developer as shown in Table 14. If the value of the land (given to the 
developer) and the value of transferred parking spaces (given to UHGID) are added in, the 
Developer’s net benefit improves to a negative $566,216 at a 5 percent discount rate as 
shown. This reflects the estimated 3.0 percent IRR previously shown. The project therefore 
represents a win – win for the District and the Developer in that the District gains the desired 
parking and the Developer provides the parking at a modest cost in return for the ability to 
make a greater profit on the residential development. 

Table 14  
Net Benefit of Developer Proposal 

Description UHGID Developer Developer

(w/out land value) (with land value)

Current

14th Street Lot 54 spaces 0 spaces 0 spaces

Net Revenue $1,532,594 $0 $0

Proposed

New Garage 191 spaces 25 spaces 25 spaces

Costs

Land Costs $0 ($1,720,880) ($1,720,880)

Construction Costs $0 ($4,491,823) ($4,491,823)

Parking Space Transfer ‐‐‐ ‐‐‐ ($1,245,768)

Total $0 ($6,212,703) ($7,458,471)

Revenue

Land Value ‐‐‐ ‐‐‐ $2,625,000

Property Tax $80,897 $0 $0

Net Revenue from Parking $383,005 $4,104,196 $4,104,196

Parking Space Residual Value $1,245,768 $163,059 $163,059

Total  $1,709,670 $4,267,255 $6,892,255

Total $1,709,670 ($1,945,448) ($566,216)

Net Benefit (NPV @ 5%) $177,076 ($1,945,448) ($566,216)

Source:  Economic & Planning Systems

H:\123080-Boulder UHGID Feasibility Study\M odels\ [123080-Boulder UHGID Financial Analysis 093013.xlsx]Comparison A

Developer Proposal ‐ NPV over 40 years

 

Attachment E:  UHGID 14th Street Parking Lot Development Proposal Evaluation by EPS

Agenda Item 3D     Page 66Packet Page     168



UHGID 14th Street Parking Lot Development Proposal Evaluation  
October 10, 2013 

 
 

Economic & Planning Systems, Inc. 31 Draft Report 

 The proposed development partnership has a higher economic return than would be achieved 
if UHGID built its own parking structure. If UHGID built an above ground parking structure on 
the 14th Street lot, it would have a negative $1.3 million compared to a positive $177,076 
under the proposed Development partnership as shown in Table 15.  In addition, the 
propose project allows UHGID to lease the parking on an as needed basis with six-month’s 
notice. The developer would presumably lease out any unused parking spaces to area 
residents for monthly parking. 

Table 15  
Net Benefit of Developer Proposal vs. UHGID Constructing Garage Itself 

Description UHGID UHGID Alternative

Current

14th Street Lot 54 spaces 54 spaces

Net Revenue $1,532,594 $1,532,594

Proposed

New Garage 191 spaces 191 spaces

Costs

Land Costs $0 ($1,843,800)

Construction Costs $0 ($3,056,000)

Total $0 ($4,899,800)

Revenue

Property Tax $80,897 $0

Net Revenue from Parking $383,005 $4,173,760

Parking Space Residual Value $1,245,768 $958,491

Total  $1,709,670 $5,132,251

Total $1,709,670 $232,451

Net Benefit (NPV @ 5%) $177,076 ($1,300,143)

Source:  Economic & Planning Systems

H:\123080-Boulder UHGID Feasibility Study\M odels\[123080-Boulder UHGID Financial Analysis 093013.xlsx]Comparison C

Developer Proposal vs. UHGID Alternative ‐ NPV over 40 years

 

Attachment E:  UHGID 14th Street Parking Lot Development Proposal Evaluation by EPS

Agenda Item 3D     Page 67Packet Page     169



UHGID 14th Street Parking Lot Development Proposal Evaluation  
October 10, 2013 

 
 

Economic & Planning Systems, Inc. 32 Draft Report 

Add i t i ona l  C ons ide ra t ions  

It is EPS’ opinion that the proposed P-3 project is worthy of consideration and further negotiation 
if UHGID ultimately determines 1) its impending parking needs are worthy of moving ahead with 
planning for additional parking at this time recognizing that there will be a modest loss in current 
income as a tradeoff for the investment in additional parking, and 2) the City determines that 
the proposed mixed use residential project is consistent with the Comprehensive Plan, area 
zoning and any applicable design guidelines.   

There are a number of outstanding business and legal terms and conditions that would need to 
be resolved before a development agreement could be signed by both parties including the 
following: 

 Land Ownership and Reversion – the Developer has requested the City transfer fee 
simple ownership of the parking lot to Del Mar Interests and that the property and parking 
would be transferred back at the end of the parking lease term in 40 years. It is not clear 
how this would be done or even if it is the best structure. In other P-3 projects we have 
worked on, the development is usually done on a long term unsubordinated land lease where 
the public entity continues to control the land and its assets over the long term. 

 Equitable Distribution of Parking Revenues – The Developer’s proposal to use 90 
percent of the parking revenues and rebate 10 percent to UHGID appears reasonable and fair 
- within the bounds of the planning level cost estimates used in this financial model and 
analysis. The City and UHGID would need to evaluate a more detailed project pro forma to 
fully determine whether the proposed revenue split is equitable or whether the City should 
receive a higher percentage. Further, it would be our recommendation that the City/UHGID 
require the Developer to submit a project pro forma on the entire mixed use project so that 
the Developer’s costs, revenues, and expected returns on the entire project be vetted to 
determine a fair and equitable return. 

 Estimated Parking Costs and Revenues – The assumptions used by EPS for structured 
parking cost and revenues are very rough and based on CAGID parking garage figures. 
UHGID should do additional planning to determine if the estimated annual parking revenues 
and operating costs are achievable.  Additionally, a cost allowance for capital maintenance in 
the garage and who pays for these costs has not been addressed.  The reversion value of 
parking at the end of the lease will also be affected by whether the structure has been 
updated and maintained or rather its useful life has been depleted. 

 Project Design – The analysis to date has been done on rough sketches of how the public 
parking would be configured and accessed. The proposed plan to acquire property on 13th to 
provide full service access to the lot has a lot of merit and could potentially improve UHGID’s 
parking utilization. But small parking garages under residential or hotel properties can be 
tight and hard to access, and therefore underutilized.  Should this be the case, the project 
would not achieve its objectives and the expected parking revenues would also not be 
reached.  While parking operations are beyond our expertise, UHGID, needs some additional 
level of conceptual planning to ensure that the project will be successful. 

Attachment E:  UHGID 14th Street Parking Lot Development Proposal Evaluation by EPS

Agenda Item 3D     Page 68Packet Page     170



UHGID 14th Street Parking Lot Development Proposal Evaluation  
October 10, 2013 

 
 

Economic & Planning Systems, Inc. 33 Draft Report 

Recommenda t ion  

If UHGID and the City agree the proposal has merit, EPS recommends that the City and the 
Developer enter into an Exclusive Negotiating Agreement to negotiate the proposed business 
terms as input to signing a Development Agreement. 

 

 

Attachment E:  UHGID 14th Street Parking Lot Development Proposal Evaluation by EPS

Agenda Item 3D     Page 69Packet Page     171



 

 

 

 

This Page Intentionally Left Blank 

Agenda Item 3D     Page 70Packet Page     172



 
 

CITY OF BOULDER 
CITY COUNCIL AGENDA ITEM 

MEETING DATE: December 17, 2013 
 

 
AGENDA TITLE  
 
Second reading and consideration of a motion to adopt Ordinance No. 7952, granting a 
one year extension to Comcast of Colorado IV, LLC, to use public rights of way to 
provide cable television services and to authorize the city manager to execute the cable 
television franchise agreement between the city of Boulder and Comcast of Colorado IV, 
LLC. 
 
 
 

 
PRESENTERS  
 
Jane S. Brautigam, City Manager  
Don Ingle, Director, Information Technologies  
Patrick von Keyserling, Communication Director 
Debra Kalish, Senior Assistant City Attorney 
Carl Castillo, Policy Advisor 
 
 
EXECUTIVE SUMMARY 
 
The city is party to a non-exclusive franchise agreement with Comcast of Colorado IV, LLC 
(“Comcast”) which allows Comcast to use the city’s public rights of way to provide cable 
television services (the “Existing Franchise,” Attachment A). This agreement, originally set to 
expire on December 31, 2011, was extended through and including December 31, 2013. The 
extension was approved by council on June 13, 2011, by Ordinance 7785 (the “Franchise 
Extension,” Attachment B). The primary purpose of that extension was to allow time for the 
city to benefit from the cable franchise agreements that were being negotiated between Comcast 
and Denver and Comcast and Aurora. Four months ago, those agreements were finalized and 
converted into model franchise agreement by the Colorado Communications and Utility Alliance 
(CCUA). CCUA is a coalition of cities and counties in Colorado who collaboratively protect the 
interests of their communities in all matters related to local telecommunications issues. Boulder 

Agenda Item 5A     Page 1Packet Page     173



has been a dues-paying member of CCUA since the spring of 2013 and is generally supportive of 
the model franchise agreement. 
 
The purpose of this item is to consider an ordinance (Attachment C) authorizing the city to enter 
into a second extension of the Existing Franchise until December 31, 2014. Boulder is unique in 
Colorado for having a detailed cable code that addresses most matters that in other cities would 
be addressed exclusively in a franchise agreement. A fundamental challenge during negotiations 
is to resolve the many differences between Boulder’s Cable Code, § 11-6-1, et seq., B.R.C. 1981, 
and the CCUA-endorsed model franchise agreement. City staff and Comcast are hopeful to 
resolve these differences soon and to be able to bring a proposed long-term agreement to council 
by the spring of 2014. Nonetheless, a one year extension is requested to allow for unanticipated 
difficulties that may be encountered in the process. 
 
Council approved the first reading of this ordinance on December 3, 2013, with no comments. 
 
FISCAL IMPACTS  
 
The city currently collects an annual franchise fee equal to five percent of Comcast’s “gross 
revenue,” as that term is defined in Section 11-6-2 of the Boulder Revised Code. In 2012, this 
amounted to $1,192,070.48. This revenue is directed to the city’s general fund. 
 
The city also collects $.50 per subscriber in public, educational and government (“PEG”) access 
channel fees. Since the discontinuation of Public Channel 54 in 2008, the city has allocated the 
PEG fees for Educational Channel 22 and for Government Channel 8. In 2012, the PEG revenue 
generated from these fees amounted to a combined $146,684.50 for both stations. This revenue is 
limited by federal law to capital costs associated with these access channels. 
  
BACKGROUND 
 
The city last renewed its franchise agreement with Comcast in February 2004. This agreement 
was set to expire on December 31, 2011. In the winter of 2009, the city requested that Comcast 
submit a renewal proposal for consideration. Late in the summer of 2010, Comcast instead 
proposed an extension of the franchise with the same terms for up to two years. The primary 
reason that Comcast proposed the two-year extension was that it was consistent with a proposal 
it had made to members of Denver's Greater Metro Telecommunication Consortium (GMTC, 
since renamed the CCUA). The GMTC had asked Comcast to support a regional model 
agreement and, failing that, for extensions to expiring member franchise agreements until 2013. 
Such extensions would allow GMTC members to benefit from the renewal of the City and 
County of Denver’s and Aurora’s franchise agreement, which were scheduled for the end of 
2012. Comcast refused to offer a model regional agreement but agreed to the two-year extension. 
The City of Boulder ultimately agreed that it shared similar interests with GMTC members and 
approved a two-year extension of the Existing Franchise (Attachment B). 
 
On behalf of Comcast, but with input from the city, Talmey-Drake Research & Strategy, Inc., a 
public opinion research firm in Boulder, conducted a resident survey in November 2009 and 
again in May 2013. Key findings from that most recent survey were: 

Agenda Item 5A     Page 2Packet Page     174



 
• Almost six of ten cable customers (57%) in the City of Boulder say they are either very 

(21%) or somewhat (36%) satisfied with the cable service they receive, a rating that’s 
down 11 points from 2009. They are most satisfied with the technical quality they receive 
(74%), followed by the quality of their channel line-up (68%). Like overall satisfaction 
with cable, the rating for satisfaction with customer service has also declined, going from 
70% in 2009 to 58% today. Additionally, rates have become an increasingly important 
issue with Boulder customers, as 49% now say the rate they pay for cable is “way too 
high,” compared to 38% back in 2009. 
 

• When asked to rate the importance of each of the three access channels available to cable 
customers in Boulder, only one, Channel 8, had a higher positive (59% for “very” or 
“somewhat”) than negative (40% for “not too” or “not at all”) importance rating. The 
other two access channels, 22 and 63, did not fare nearly so well. 

 
ANALYSIS 

 
Generally speaking, franchise operators are entitled to renewal unless they have not been 
meeting the terms of their existing franchise agreements or, for a variety of reasons, will not be 
able to provide adequate service to meet the cable-related needs of the community in the future.  
Federal law precludes franchising authorities from imposing requirements related to the 
provision or content of cable services except as specifically permitted by federal law.  
 
The issues that may be considered in deciding whether to renew the franchise agreement relate 
primarily to Comcast’s: 
 

• Substantial compliance with the terms of the Existing Franchise; 
• Customer service, including signal quality, response to consumer complaints and 

billing practices; 
• Technical ability to provide cable television service; 
• Financial ability to provide cable television service; and 
• Legal ability to provide cable television service. 

 
The primary foci of franchise negotiations will include: 
 

• The amount and calculation of franchise fees; 
• Customer service standards; and 
• The provision of Public, Education, and Government (PEG) access channels. 

 
Federal law specifically precludes the city from conditioning franchise renewal upon Comcast’s 
willingness to address other issues of interest to the community, such as cable service rates, 
channel programming and programming packages (including the ability to choose particular 
cable channels, also known as "a la carte service"), or telecommunication services (including 
Internet or voice over internet protocol (VOIP) services). 
 

Agenda Item 5A     Page 3Packet Page     175



Boulder’s Home Rule Charter, at Article VIII, § 108, requires a vote of the electorate to approve 
any franchises. However, this charter provision has been preempted by federal statutes. See 
Qwest v. Boulder, 151 F. Supp.2d 1236. This means that no election will be required for a 
renewal of the Comcast franchise agreement. 
 
Based on information received to date, both from the public and from within the city 
organization, it appears that there will not be major issues to address during the Comcast 
franchise renewal. As a result, significant substantive changes to the terms of the Existing 
Franchise agreement are unlikely to be required. 
 
NEXT STEPS 
 
Staff is hopeful that it will be able to negotiate language for a new franchise agreement which 
could be brought forth to council in the second quarter of 2014 for a public hearing. 
 
ATTACHMENTS:  
 
Attachment A: City of Boulder’s Current Franchise Agreement with Comcast 
Attachment B: Ordinance 7785, the Franchise Extension  
Attachment C: Ordinance 7952, the proposed Second Franchise Extension 

Agenda Item 5A     Page 4Packet Page     176



FRANCHISE AGREEMENT

City of Boulder Colorado

and

Comcast of Colorado IV LLC

Attachment A 
Current Franchise with Comcast 

Agenda Item 5A     Page 5Packet Page     177



TABLE OF CONTENTS

Definitions

..............................................................................1.1 Applicable Law or Laws............................................................................1

1.2Cable Ordinance ........................................................................................11.3

CableSystem or System ............................................................................2 1.4Channel

.......................................................................................................21.5 ConstructionOperation
orRepair ..........................................................2 1.6 Franchise Agreement .................................................................................2

1.7Franchisee ...................................................................................................2 1.SInstitutional

Networkor I-net ...................................................................2
1.9Standard Drop ............................................................................................2 1.10 SubscriberNetwork...................................................................................2

2.Scope ofFranchiseLimits

andReservations ..................................................................22.1

Scope ............................................................................................................2 2.2 Affiliates Must Comply ..............................................................................4 2.3

Conflictswith theCable
Ordinance.........................................................4 2.4 Relation toOther
Provisionsof Law ........................................................4 2.5 Validity ........................................................................................................52.6

Effectof Franchise Acceptance .................................................................5 2.7 Franchisee BearsIts

OwnCosts ...............................................................52.8
NoWaiver ...................................................................................................5 2.9NoMonetaryRecourse

..............................................................................62.10 Severability .................................................................................................6 2.11 Effect ofChange

inLaw ............................................................................6 2.12Grant

ofOther Franchises ........................................................................6 3.Transfers

........................................................................................7 3.1No
TransferWithout City Approval ........................................................7 3.2 Applicationfar
Transferto beConsidered inAccordanceWith

Cable Ordinance ...............................................................................7

3.3Mandatory Conditions ..............................................................................7 3.4 ChangeinControl

ofFranchisee ..............................................................H 3.5 Intra-Corporate Transactions ..................................................................84.Franchise Fee

....................................................................................................................... 94.1Payment

toCity ..........................................................................................9 4.2Cable

ModemFees .....................................................................................9 4.3 Not inLieuof

AnyOther AssessmentsTaxorFee

..............................10 4.4 Payments ...................................................................................................10

4.5No Accord or Satisfaction ......................................................................10
4.6Payment Records .....................................................................................10 4.7Holdover
Term.........................................................................................10 5. Construction Provisions ................................................................................................... 10

Attachment A 
Current Franchise with Comcast 

Agenda Item 5A     Page 6Packet Page     178



5.1Provision ofService Franchise Areaand Cl argesfor Plant Extensions

................................................................................................. 10

5.2Construction Standards .......................................................................... 12

5.3Continuity of Service ............................................................................... 13

5.4Rights Upon Franchise Terminationor Revocation ............................. 14

5.5Notice ofUse ............................................................................................. 15

5.6Contractors and Subcontractors ............................................................ 15

6. System Facilities Equipment and Services ...................................................................

156.1 System Capabilities ...............................................................................15
6.2Transmission Technologies ..................................................................176.3

EmergencyAlert System ......................................................................18 6.4Parental
Controls..................................................................................18 6.5SupportEquipment

andFacilities .......................................................18 6.6Technical Standards .............................................................................19
6.7Future Upgrades ...................................................................................196.8

TestingRequirements ...........................................................................19 6.9Inspection

...............................................................................................196.10 Interconnection .....................................................................................19611
FreeCable Serviceto
CertainFacilities .................................................206.12
Provision ofBroad Categories of Services .............................................216.13

Usesof System ..........................................................................................21 Channels and Facilities forPEG

Use.............................................................................. 217.1 PegUse
................................................................................................... 2t7.2 Return Lines for PEG

Use................................................................... 25 7.3 Support

forPEG Access ....................................................................... 26 7.4 Miscellaneous PEG

Requirements...................................................... 26 7.5 Costs Not Franchise

Fees...................................................................... ...278. Institutional Network........

.......................................................................27 8.1 Institutional Network ...............................................................................27 9.

Operation andReporting Provisions

..............................................................................27 9.1OpenBooks
and Records ........................................................................27 9.2Time for

Production................................................................................28 9.3 Reports Required .....................................................................................289.4
RecordsMaintained .................................................................................28 9.5 Relationto
PrivacyRights .......................................................................28 10.Customer
ServiceStandards .......................................................................................... 2810.1
Standards..................................................................................................28 10.2 Ascertainment ofProgrammingand

Customer Satisfaction ...............2811. Rate

Regulation............................................................................................................... 2912.
InsuranceSurety IndemniTication ..............................................................................2912.1 Insurance Required .................................................................................29

Attachment A 
Current Franchise with Comcast 

Agenda Item 5A     Page 7Packet Page     179



12.2Indemnification ........................................................................................2912.3
NoLimit of Liability ................................................................................30 13.Performance

Guarantees andRemedies .............................. 30 13.1

Letterof Credit .........................................................................................30 13.2Material
Term..........................................................................................31 13.3Remedies ...................................................................................................31
13.4Liquidated Damages ................................................................................31
13.5Procedures PriortoRevoking
theFranchise .......................................32 13.6 Revocation orTerminationofFranchise

..............................................3313.7 Remedies Cumulative ..............................................................................33 13.8 Relationto

Insuranceand Indemnity Requirements...........................34
14.No Evasion ....................................................................................................................... 3415. RightsofIndividuals

Protected ..................................................................................... 34 16.

Miscellaneous Provisions ................................................................................................3416.1 Compliance

With Laws...........................................................................34 16.2

GoverningLaw .........................................................................................34 16.3 ForceMajeure
..........................................................................................3416.4 Notices .......................................................................................................3516.5
Calculationof Time ..................................................................................3516.6
Timeof EssenceMaintenance
ofRecords ofEssence ..........................3516.7
Captions....................................................................................................35 16.8 Entire Franchise Agreement ...................................................................35 16.9 Counterparts ............................................................................................36m

Attachment A 
Current Franchise with Comcast 

Agenda Item 5A     Page 8Packet Page     180



FRANCffiSE AGREEMENT

BETWEEN THE CITY OF BOULDER COLORADO

AND COMCAST OF COLORADO IV LLC

WHEREAS the Boulder City Council accepted a draft ascertainment report dated June

19 2002 as a valid expression of customer concerns regarding currentcable service in the City of

Boulder "City" and as a valid expression of future cable-relatedcommunity needs and interests and
WHEREAS

theCity has determmed thatany franchise must besubject to the terms and conditions

set forth herem m order to serve the public mterest and WHEREAS

ComcastofColoradoIV LLC is willing to accept the terms and conditions of

this Franchise Agreement and WHEREAS

the City has determmed that subject to the terms and conditions set forth herem

and the provisionsofChapter 11-6 B.R.C1981 TheBoulderCable Code hereinafter referred toas the

"cable ordmance" and other applicable provisions of the Boulder Revised Code and theBoulder City

Charter granting Comcast of Colorado IVLLCa non-exclusive franchise pursuant to ihisFranchise Agreement

is consistent wrth the pubhc mterest andNOW THEREFORE in considerahon of

the Crty’s issuanceofa franchise Comcastof Colorado IV LLC’s promisetoprovide

cable service tores dents of the City under the termsand condrtions set forth herem the promises and

undertakmgs herem and other good and valuable consideration the receipt and the adequacy of

which is hereby acknowledged THE SIGNATORIES HEREBY AGREE AS FOLLOWS.1.

Definitions Exceptasotherwise provided herem

the definitions

and word usagesetforth mSection 11-6-1B.R C 1981 The Boulder CableCode

shall governthis Franchise Agreement. References toany City official or City office also refer to

any official or office that succeeds to any or allofthe responsibihties of the named official or office whether by

delegation successionor otherwise. The followmg defimtions shall apply11Applacable Law or

LawsAllduly enacted

and apphcable federal state aud city constitutions charters laws ordmance codes rules regulations and orders
asthe same maybe adoptedoramended from time totme 1

2Cable Ordanance Chapter ll-6 B R.C1981

as amended from time to hme.

Attachment A 
Current Franchise with Comcast 

Agenda Item 5A     Page 9Packet Page     181



1.3Cable SystemorSystem. De6ned as m the cable ordinanceas ofthe effective dateof this

Franchise Agreement except where the context mdtcates otherwisert specifically refersto Franchisee’s

cablesystem. 1.4 Channel

Aporiion of the electromagnehc frequency spectrumoradigrtally encoded streamof content

which isusedmacable system and capable of dehvermga television channel as television channel is

defined by the FCC by regulation. While achannel must beatleast capable of delivermga video

programming service achannel is not restricted to the transmission of video piogramming services1

5 Constructton

Operataon or Repaar Encompass among other thmgs mstallahon extension mamtenance replacement

of components relocahon undergroundmg gradmg site preparation ad ustmg

testmg make-readyexcavahon andtreetnmming. 1.6 Franchase Agreement This

FranchiseAgreement and any amendments or appendices hereto 17 Franchisee

Comcast of

Colorado IV LLCalimrted habihty company company andits lawful andpermitted successors

and assigns. 18 Instatutional Network or

I-net A commumcahon network whichisconstructed by Franchiseeandwhich isavailable only
toCrty authorized users19 Standard Drop Anaerial

connechon extend ngno more than 125feetfrom the potentral Subscriber’s demarcation point to the

pomt nearestthe property lme on the public right-of- wayorif closer tothe nearestpoint
on the Cable System from which Cable Service can beprovided to that Subscriber. 1.10 Subscraber Network. Fibers coaxial
cables and the

electronicdevices requiredto activate the same that are primarily usedm the

transmission of programmmg to residential subscribers. 2. Scope of Franchise Limits and Reservations 21

Scope.

2.1 1Acable system franchise is

hereby granted

toFranchisee This franchise grants thenght sub ect to conditions to construct operate

and repairacablesystem mover along and under Crty nghts of way wrthm the City of
Boulder for the purpose of providmg cable sernce and for providing an mstitutional network andother facilities ar

services for PEG useofthe cable 2

Attachment A 
Current Franchise with Comcast 

Agenda Item 5A     Page 10Packet Page     182



system commencmg on the effective date of this Franchise Agreement January 1 2004 through and

mcluding December 31 2011 unless termmated prior to that date m accordance with this Franchise

Agreement or apphcable law The franchise is subect to and Franchisee must exercise all rights
granted to rt m accordance wrth this Franchise Agreement and apphcable law mcludmg the cable

ordmance. This Franchise Agreement and all rights and pnvileges granted under the franchise are

subect to the City’spohce and other powers However once the franchise grant is effective this Franchise

Agreementisa contract and except as to those changes which are the result ofthe City’s exerciseof
its police and other powers nerther parry may take any umlateral action which materially changes

the explicrt mutual promises m this contract. Sub ect tothe foregoing Franchisee does
notwaive its right to challenge the lawfulness ofanyparticular amendmentto the cable ordinance

oranyother provision ofthe City code on the ground thataparticular actionism excess of

theCity’s power underColorado or federal law or violates the Colorado or the Umted SYates ConsYltuY on

21.2This

franchise doesnot confer rights upon Franchisee other than as expressly provided herein. No

privilegeorpower of eminent domams bestowed bythis grant. Allrights and powers
of the City now existing or hereafrer obtained are reserved except as expressly provided to the

contrary in this Franchise Agreement. Nothmg passes by implication under this Franchise Agreement
5ub ect tothe foregomgFranchisee shall provide thecable services required hereunder throughout

the franchise term and any holdover term and shall make any cable services it

provides over its cable system available to all personsmits franchise area sub ect toSection

5.312.1.3 The franchiseshall be

interpretedtoconvey limited rights and interests only as tothoseCrty rightsofway
m which the City has an actual interest and only to the extent and for the purposes set out mthis

Franchise Agreement The grant of the franchise isnot a warranty oftitle or interest many right
of way and it does not provide Franchisee any interest m any particular location within the right of way

The issuance ofthe franchise does not deprive the Ctty of anypowers rights or privileges

it now has or may later acquire m the fixture to use perform work on or to regulate the

useof and to control the Ciry’s rights ofway covered bythe franchiseincluding without limitation the right to perform

work on its roadways rights of way and dramage facilihes by constructing altering renewing pavmg

widening grading blasting orexcavaring and the righttobuild and install

systems and facilities with or without a franchise. 2.1.4 The grant of the franchise shall not

becomeeffectiveunless and until Franchisee hasa filed an uncondrtional acceptance of the franchise

grant and b made all payments posted all securities and guarantees and supphed all mformation

thatit is required tosupply priar to or uponthe effechve date of Franchise.

If Franchisee fails to satisfy these obligations withm thirty days of the ordmance authorizmg the City

to enter inCO this Franchtse Agreement the franchise grant shall be deemed rescmded five days

after the City notifies 3

Attachment A 
Current Franchise with Comcast 

Agenda Item 5A     Page 11Packet Page     183



Franchisee m writing the obligations have not been satisfied unless the obligations have been

satisfied before the five day period has expired.

2 2 Affiliates Must Comply. Any affiliate of or jomt venturer with or partner of

Franchisee mvolved in the management or operation of the cable system in the City that would

constitute a cable operator of the cable system is subect to the hmrtations of and shall comply
wrth the terms and conditions of this Franchise Agreement Franchisee shall be fully hable for an

act or omission of an affiliate that controls Franchisee or is responsible in any manner for the

management ofthe cable system that results m a breach ofthis Franchise Agreement or a violahon

of the cable ordmance as if the act or omission was Franchisee’sactor om ssion.2.3

Conflactswith the Cable Ordinance. In the event ofaconflict between the cable ordinance as

it existed on the effective date ofthis Franchise Agreement and this Franchise Agreement as

of its effective date the Franch se Agreementshall control except where expressly provided otherwise
m this Franchise Agreement However although the exercise of rights hereunder is
sub ect tothe cable ordinance the cable ordinance isnot a contract Nothing m this Section 2

3prevents Franchisee from challengingaparucular amendmenttothe cable ordinance asanimpairment

of this Franchise Agreement 2.4 Relation

toOther Provasions of Law.241

The franchise issued and the franchise fee paid hereunder are notin lieu of any other required

authorization fee chargeortax unless expressly stated herein. Franchisee among other things

must obtain all applicable permtts and comply with the condrtions thereof comply with zoning

laws and comply with other City codes ordmances and regulations governing the construction
of the cable system 242

Franchisee is free tochallenge any unilaterally imposed requirementoftheCityas unlawful

and ar mexcessof the City’s police power butnot on the grounds that it imposes police power requirements

over and abovethis Franchise Agreement 2.4.3 This franchiseis

onlyforthe provisionofcable services. It shall not act asa bar or many respect

prevent imposition of addrtional or different condrtions mcludmg additional fees or authorizations related to
the provision oforthe use or occupancy of the rights of waytoprovide non-cable services.
Nothmg in this Sectionisintended to expand or contract the Ciry’s rights if any to regulate

non-cable services.2 4.4 The provisions of this FranchiseAgreement shall

be construedm accordance with Colorado and federallaw regarding cable franchises 4

Attachment A 
Current Franchise with Comcast 

Agenda Item 5A     Page 12Packet Page     184



2 5 Ualadity Both parries waive as ofthe effective date of this Franchise Agreement

any claim or defense that any provision ofthts Franchise Agreement as rt existed on the effective

date of this Franchise Agreement is unenforceable or otherwise invalid or void Neither parry

waives the right to challenge the validrty of any applicable law.

2.6Effect of Franchase Acceptance. Byacceptmg the franchtse Franchisee 2.6

1Acknowledges and accepts the City’s legal rightto issue and enforce the franchise 2.6 2

Agrees

thatit will not oppose intervention by the Citymany proceeding afPectmg its cable system

subject to Section 12 2.226.3 Accepts andagrees

to complywith each and every provision of this Franchise Agreement 26 4. Agrees

thatit

will not claim that any difference between this Franchise Agreement and the franchtse granted by

the CiCy to Wide Open West effecYive October 17 2000 or between this Franchise Agreement

and the interim permit granted by the Crty toUS West effective January 4 2000 is

discriminatory anti-competitive orin any way violatesanyapplicable law provided however that Franchisee reserves

the right to challenge the USWest permit as discriminatory anti-comperitive or otherwise in

violation of apphcable lawifas ofDecember 312004 US West or its successor

isoperating under the mterim permit and therefore has no requirement to provide cable service

wtthm the entire boundaries of the City nor provide similar levelsofcapttal support as
Franchisee forPEG and any mstitutional network as defined mthe Cable Act providedby

U.S. West or rts successors 2.6.5 Agrees that thefranchisa was granted pursuant to

processesandprocedures consistent with applicable law and thatit will not raiseany
claim tothe contrary 27 Franchisee Bears Its Own Costs. Unless otherwise expressly provided

in this Franchise Agreement all acts that Franchisee isrequired to perform under

this Franchise Agreement or the cable ordinance must be performed at its own

expense provided that nothmg contained mthis Section 27 is intendedto restrict or
limit Franchisee’s rights under apphcable law to offset assess recover or pass throughcosts to subscribers2
8 No Waiver.28.1 The failure of the City or

Franchisee on one ar

more occasionsto exercise aright or to require compliance or performance under this Franchise Agreement the cable

ordinance or any other applicable law shall not be deemedto constitute a

waiver of such rights

Attachment A 
Current Franchise with Comcast 

Agenda Item 5A     Page 13Packet Page     185



or a waiver of compliance ar performance unless such right has been specifically warved in

wrrtmg provided that nothing in this Section is meant to alter any renewal protections afforded

by 47 U.S.C.Section546dor the operation ofany applicable statute of limitations 2.82

Waiverof a breach of this Franchise Agreement isnotawaiver of any other breach whether similar

or different from that waived. Neither the granting ofthe franchise nor any provision herein

shall constrtute a waiver bar or expansion to the exercise of any governmental right or

powerof theCity mcludmg without limitationthe rightof eminent domam. 29No

Monetary Recourse. Without limitmg such immumties as the City or other persons may have

under apphcable law Franchisee will havenomonetary recourse whatsoever agamst theCrty

orrts officials boards commissions agents oremployees for any loss costs expense or damage

arismg outof Franchisee’s construction operationorrepairofits cable system or the activrties of
the Cityar any enhty authorized by the Crtytouse pubhc nghts-of-way or other public property.210 Severability In

the event

that a court or agency ofcompetent jurisdiction makes a final udgment thatanyspecific provision

ofthis Franchise Agreement isunenforceable according toits terms or otherwise void
said provision shall be considered a separate distinct and independent part of this Franchise Agreement

and such holdmg shall not affect the validity and enforceability ofall other provisions hereof.

2.11 Effect of Change an Law.

Subect to Section 2.10 inthe eventthat state or federallaws rules or regulations preemptaprovision or

hmit the enforceabilityofa provision of this Franchise Agreement then the provision shall beread

tobe preempted tothe extent and for the time but only to the extent and for

the time required by law. Inthe event such state orfederal law rule or regulation is subsequently repealed rescmded

amended or otherwise changed so that the provision hereof that hadbeen preempted

isno longer preempted such provision shall thereupon return to full force and effect and

shall thereafter be binding on the parties hereto without the requirement of further action on the
part ofthe City 2.12 Grant of Other Franchises In the event

thatthe Crty enters intoa franchise agreement permit license or other authonzation with any other

person or entity other than Franchisee to enter into the Crty’s rights ofway

for the purpose of construchng oroperatmg a cable system to provide cable servicetoany part of

the franchise area m which Franchisee is actually providing cable service under the terms and condrtions of

thisFranchise Agreement or towhichitisrequired to extend cable service under the

provisions of this Franchise Agreement the material provisions thereof shallbe reasonably comparable tothose contained

herem for comparable situations in order that one operator not be granted

an unfair competitive advantage over another and toprovide all parues equal protection under
the law. The City shall not granta franchise for less than the entire City unless legally compelled

todo so. 6

Attachment A 
Current Franchise with Comcast 

Agenda Item 5A     Page 14Packet Page     186



3. Transfers

3.1No Transfer Without City Approval. Franchisee agrees that the rights granted to it by

the City are personal in nature and held m trust No transfer may occur without the prior consent
ofthe City. An application fora transFer containing all mformation andcomplying with the

requirements of applicable law and the applicarion fee of 5000 which amount shall be refunded

if not expendedin the review process must be filed beforea request fora transfer will be

considered by the City. 3.2

Applccationfor Transfertobe Considered tn Accordance With Cable Ordinance An application

fora transfer will beconsidered in accordance with the cable ordinance and the standards set

forth therein asof the effective dateofthis Franchise Agreement shall govern the City’s review

ofthe transfer apphcation sub ectto amendmentsthe City may adopt to comply with or reflect
changes in apphcable state and federallaw and the specific provisions m Sections3.3-3

5below. Requests for approval ofa transfer will not beunreasonably withheld 3.3 Mandatory Conditions

-Transfers Notransfer application shallbegranted unless the proposed transferee

331

Agrees in wrrting that rt will abide by and accept the terms of the cable ordmance this Franchise

Agreement and any addihonal terms and conditions that the City reasonably determmes are
neededtoensure compl ance by thetransferee with such Franchise Agreement 33.2

Agrees

m writmgto assume and be responsible forthe obligations and liabilities of Franchisee known

and unknown under this Franchise Agreement and applicable law333
Provides

reasonable performance guarantees tothe City that the City considers sufficient and adequate
toguarantee the full and faithful performance ofall franchise obligations by the proposed

transferee 3.3 4Agreesm

writingthat except as provided m Section 626 of the Cable Act concerning use of previous non-compliance

evidence in renewal proceedmgs followmga transfer approval bytheCity ofthe

transfer shall not constitute a waiver or release ofany rights of the City under this Franchise Agreement or

applicable law whether arising before or after the effective date of the transfer and

335 Posts all required

bonds securities m a manner to ensure that there isno gap mcoverage 7

Attachment A 
Current Franchise with Comcast 

Agenda Item 5A     Page 15Packet Page     187



3.4Change an Control of Franchesee.No apphcation fora change m the control ofFranchtsee

or its parents willbe granted unless 3.4.1

Franchiseeunconditionallyreaffirms thatitwill abide by and accept the terms and condihons of

the cable ordmance this Franchise Agreement and anyadditional terms and condrtions that the

Cityreasonably determines azeneededtoensure compliance by Franchisee with such Franchise Agreement

34.2 Franchisee

reaffirms thatit remazns responsible far allofits obhgatrons and liabihties known and unknown

under the Franchise Agreement and applicable lawforall purposes mcludmg but not hmited

to renewal under Section 626 3.43 Franchisee and the

entitythat will own and control Franchisee provide reasonable performance guarantees tothe
CitythattheCity considers sufficient and adequate to guarantee the full and faithful

performance of ali franchise obligations 3.4.4 Franchisee and theentity

thatwillown and control Franchisee agree that the approval ofthechange ofcontrol by

the City shall not consYituteawaiver or release of any rights of theCrty under this Franchise Agreement or

apphcable law wheflier arising beforeorafter thechangeofcontrol 3.4 5Required bonds secunties
and the

hkemust be mamtamed so thatthere is nogap in coverage if there will be any

change m the sameasaresult ofthe change of control 3.5 Intra-Corporate Transact ons 3.5.1 The parties find

itappropriate toexempt certamintra-corporate

transactionsfromthe transfer approval requirement as permitted by thecableordmance.NoCrty

approval shallbe requiredm connection wrth any addrtion deletionor consoltdation ofwholly-owned subsidiaries m
the ownership cham above Franchisee so longasthe conditionsinSection3

5.2 are met. 3.52To quahfy for exemption from transfer approval the followmg conditionsmust be met

35 2.1 Franchisee and the party bemg added to the chainof

control uncondihonally reaffirm

that Franchisee willabide by and accept the terms and conditions of the cable ordmance

and this Franchise Agreement 3 5.2.2 Franchisee and the party being added tothe chain

ofcontrol reaffirm that Franchisee shall

be responsibleforall ofFranchisee’s obligations and liabiliries known and 8

Attachment A 
Current Franchise with Comcast 

Agenda Item 5A     Page 16Packet Page     188



unlrnown under the Franchise Agreement and apphcable law for all purposes mcludmg but not

limrted to renewal under Sechon 626

3 5.23Required bonds secunties and the like must be mamtamed so that there

isno gap m coverageif there will be any change m the same as aresult ofthe transaction3

5.2.4 TheFranchiseeand party bemg added to the chain of control must agree mwnhng

that there shallbenowarver or release of any nght ofthe City whether such right arises befareor
after the transaction under this Franchtse Agreement or applicable law asaresult of the transaction and

352

5 The party bemg added tothecham of control must beawholly-owned subsidiary of ComcastCable
Holdmgs LLC and Comcast Cable Holdmgs LLC must agree to guarantee unconditionally the performance

ofthe Franchisee and party bemg added tothe cham of control 4.Franchise Fee

4.1

Payment toCaty.

Franchiseeshall pay the Cityafranchtse fee in an amount equal to five percentofgross revenues

as that term isdefinedm the cable ordinance asof the effective date of this Franchise Agreement sub ect

to amendments theCitymay adopttocomply with changes m applicable stateand federal law.

Fees or charges collected by Franchisee for PEG for sales taxes and for user fees assessed

by the FCC shall not be counted as part of gross revenues Gross revenues shall mclude revenue received

by any entity other than Franchisee where necessary toprevent evasionor avoidance of

the obhgation topayfranchise fees on all cable services. 42Cable Modem Fees

4 2.1 InaDeclaratory

Rulmg andNotice of Proposed Rulemakmg released March 152002theFCCstatedthat

cable modem service isnot acable service under the Commumcahons Act of1934as amendedand

imttated a rulemakmg to among other things examme States’ and local governments’ authority to regulate cable

modem service and the scope of the FCC’s urisdiction to regulate cable modem service.If

the FCC’s ruhng that cable modem service isnotacable service ismodified inafinal non-appealable

dec sion by the FCC or acourtof competenturisdiction to the extent Yhat cable modem serviceis

determmed to beacable service then the defimtion of gross revenues set forth mSection 11-6-2

BR.C 1981 shall mclude revenues Franchisee recaives fromprovidmgcable modem servicesm the franchise area m

accordance withthe FCC’s nxhngIfpayments are made pursuant to this Franchise Agreement

as providedform this Sechon thisFranchise Agreement wili bemterpretedto grant rights and authortzat ons

touse andoccupy the pubhc rights of way to provide thecable modem service on

which the feets paid.9

Attachment A 
Current Franchise with Comcast 

Agenda Item 5A     Page 17Packet Page     189



4 2.2Nothmg m the Franchise Agreement shall be construed asa waiver of any right

the City mayhave to assessa fee on Franchisee’s provisionofcable modem service consistent withapphcable

law43

Not in Lieu of Any Other Assessments Taxor Fee The franchise feeism addrtion toall

other fees assessments taxesor payments that Franchisee maybereqwred to pay under applicable law

sub ect toany limitations set forth in 47U.S.C. 542. 4.4Payments.Franchise fees

shallbe paid inaccordance with the schedule set forth inthe cable ordmance and late

payments shall be subject tothe addttional charges set farth in the cable ordinance. 4.5 No Accord

or Satlsfactton

Noacceptance ofany payment by the Ciry shall be construed as a release or an

accord and satisfacrion of any claim the City may have for further or additional sums payable asa franchise

fee under the cable ordinanceorfor the performance ofanyother obligahon ofFranchisee. 46

Payment Records. Subect

to Section 9of thisFranchise Agreement the City shall have the right from time to

time and upon reasonable advance written notice to mspect audit copyand review all books and

records of Franchisee reasonably necessary to the determinauonofwhether gross revenues and franchise fees

have been accurately computed and paid 4.7 Holdover Term. Durmg any holdmg

overafter the scheduled date for expiration or other terminationofthe franchise without the

consentofthe City Franchisee shall continue topay the franchise feeas set forth

above in addrtion to honoring all other provisions of this Franchise Agreement. 5. Construction Provisions 5 1

Provisionof

Servace Franchise Area

and Charges for Plant Extens ons.511Franchise Area Franchisee’sfranchise

area shall be thecorporate limrtsofthe CityofBoulder as theymay be

altered durmg the franchise term. 5.1.2 Except where Franchisee is unable toobtain

requiredeasementsor permits and sub ecttoSection 5.14 Franchisee shall extend
cable serviceto any residence withmthe City asofthe effective dateof this Franchise Agreement upon the
request ofapotential subscriber atrts then-preva hng mstallation charge for such service. There shall be

no chargeforextendmg plant to a point where service can be provided witha standard

drop or if closer toapoint on the property line ofthe potenrial subscnber from which service can be provided

to the potential io

Attachment A 
Current Franchise with Comcast 

Agenda Item 5A     Page 18Packet Page     190



subscriber. For areas where Franchisee has not extended its cable system as ofthe effectrve date

of this Franchise Agreement the foregoing will apply after January 1 2004.

5.1.3Fornon-residential locationsintheCity and for areas annexed to the City after the effective
date of thisFranchise Agreement except where Franchisee isunabletoobtam required easements or

permits and subject to Section 5.1.4 Franchisee shall provideserviceupon requestatits then-prevailing mstallation

charge but may chargeforanyrequired plant extension as provided m this paragraph. Franchisee

shall extend its plantatnocharge so thatit can provide service with astandard drop where
there is eithera mmimum density of twenty-five residennal units permile ar wherefifteen commercial

locations per mile agree tosubscribe toFranchisee’s cable service for one year at commercialrates.

Where these standards are not satisfied Franchisee may condrtion service extensions at the then-prevailing
charge upon the person or persons requestmg serviceagreemg to payapro rata

shareofthe cost of extending the plant toapoint where service canbe provided with a standard

drop Far purposes ofthis subsechon m areas where Franchisee has not constructed cable system lines as

ofthe effechve dateofthts Franchise Agreement each dwellmg unit withinamultiple dwellmg umt

"MDU" will countasa residential unitif and only if Franchisee can obtam access

to the MDU on reasonable terms and condrtions. Notwrthstandmg the foregomg Franchisee may charge any potential subscnber

locatedmamallor stnp mallforanylme extension greater than 100’

required tocross a parkmg lotto provide cable service. 51 4Franchisee is not requued to

provide

cable service to any51 4.1 occupant ofa mall orstrip mall

as setforth mSec6on 5.13 where such occupant is unwillmg topayits portion ofany apphcable line

extension costs 51 4.2 commercial occupant of commercial structures above the first floor

where msidewirmg necessaryto provide the cable service isnot already
present or where theowneroroccupant isunwilling to mstall orpay forYhe mside wirmg

necessaryto provide Yhe cable service 5.143 occupant of unlawful dwellmg unitsor 5.1.4 4potenhal subscriber

ma buildmg where Franchiseeisderued access 5.1

5Franchiseemust extend its plant so that service may beprovided tothe

subscriberat the lowest wst tothe subscriber that meets Franchisee’s techmcal standards unless a subscriber

directs otherwise If Franchisee contends that it cannot obtain the easementsnecessary toprovide service to

aparticular location Franchisee shallhave the burdenofprovmg thatitcannot

obtain those easements ii

Attachment A 
Current Franchise with Comcast 

Agenda Item 5A     Page 19Packet Page     191



5 1.6Nothmg m this Section51 shall be construed toprohibit experimentalor"test

bed" services being extended toa segment of the community durmg the period of the experiment

5.1.7

Exceptaslawful rate orders may otherwise provide the "then-prevaihng installation charge"isthe
lowest lawful charga that would apply at any given time toa particular class of users For
example if free mstallationisthen bemg provided for installations mvolvmg aerial dropsof125
feet or less any person requestmg cable service that couldbe served by an aerial drop of 125

feet or less and anyone to whom Franchisee isrequired toextend services under Sections 5.l.l

and 5 1 2 could take advantage of that mstallation offer Similarly if Franchisee has established a lawful

fee far mstallations that recovers additional costsfor sidewalk and other pavement cutswhich is

charged to persons throughout the City that charge may be applied ona non-discrimmatory basis. If apphcable

lawpermits nothmg in this Franchise Agreement prohibits Franchisee from establishmg separate charges
forseparate classesofdrops such as for example underground and aerial drops so
longas drop costs are treated consistently. Notwithstanding the foregomg Franchisee maynotcharge

foradrop crossmga paved partion of the roadway notto exceed sixty feet toprovide

service except for good cause shown to the City 5.1.8 Where electric and telephone

serviceiscurrently above ground buta subscriber or potential subscriber requests to locate

its cable drop underground Franchisee shall locate the drop underground butmaddihon

tothe then-prevailing installation charge Franchisee may charge the subscriberforthe actual difference

in cost of installing the underground rather than an aerial drop including the costs if
any of any easement necessary for such underground cable drop 5.19Franchisee shall construct and
extend its

cablesystem to low mcome areas atleast as quickly as it is extended to higher

income areas. 5.2 Construction Standards Franchisee agrees that 5.2.1 The construction

operationand repairof the cable system

shallbegoverned by the cable ordinance and in all events shall be performed

m accordance with all applicable laws. In addition without limitittg the foregoing atammimum Franchisee

shall comply with its Manual of Construction Procedures in effect asofthe

date of the Franchise Agreement orsuch other manual as the City may accept m lieu

thereof IEEE standards the National Electric Code the National Electrical Safety Code and any other applicable

safety codes. The most strmgent applicable code or standard will applyinthe event

ofany conflict except insofar as that standard if followed would result m a system that
could not meet requirements of federal stateor local law 12

Attachment A 
Current Franchise with Comcast 

Agenda Item 5A     Page 20Packet Page     192



5 2.2Subjact to this Section 5.2.2 wheneverfeasble Franchisee shallinstalltscable system underground

in orderto avoid damage from the unique wmd storms to which the City issubject

Franchisee shall at nocost to the City or adjacent subscribers underground its cablesystem when

poles to which Franchisee’s facilities are attachedareno longer muse far electrical or telephone plant

provided however that Franchisee waives no right toreimbursement from any fitnds raised

for undergroundmg pursr ant toC.R.S. 29-8-101et seq. Franchiseedoesnot waivetheright to claim the City

is obligated to raise funds pursuant toC R.S. 29-8-101 et seq forany particular undergrounding project.Franchisee shallexerciseits best

efforts to protect rtscablesystem from flood hazards by undergrounding creek crossmgs and

burying them deeply enough and with sufficient protectiontoavoid damage ma100-year
flood event But allof Franchisee’s cable system as of theeffective date of this Franchise Agreement

isacceptable until portions are replaced when the criteria ofthis Section shall applyto the

replaced portions. 5.23Franchisee shall mstall locate relocate and remove its cable system in

accordancewith the cable ordinance and all other applicable laws mcluding without limitation all

lawful street cut fees Franchisee shall not placeormaintain its cable system
including any poles or other structures m public rights of way or on private property except

m strict accordance with the requirements of the cable ordinance andall otherapplicable laws. 5.24

Franchisee shall restore and replace public and prrvate property thatisdisturbed

ordamaged during the construction operation mamtenance orrepair of the cable system wrthin

the times and in the manner provided in the cable ordinance Franchisee shall

compensate any entrty only to the extent of any in ury or damage caused by

Franchisee whose person or property is damaged by Franchisee orany contractor subcontractor or agentofFranchisee

in the course of the construction operation maintenance or repairofthe cable system

where the property is not fully restoredbyFranchisee This Secrion is not meant to
alter the tort liability ifanyof Franchiseetothird parties or ofany contractor or subcontractor to

third parries or to Franchisee 525 In an emergency or where the cable system

creates or is contribuhng

to an imminent danger to public health safety or property theCity may remove relayor relocate

anyarall partsofthe cable system without prior notrce however the City will make

reasonable efforts to provide prior notice The City isnot responsible for any loss or expense

associated with its removal relaying or relocation of Franchisee’s cable system under this Section norisit

responsible for restoring the property to itsprior condition after the emergency. 5 3 Conttnuary of

Service. 5.31Sub ect to the provisions ofSection 51

concerning lme extensions its

theright of eachsubscriber in the Cityto receive all available cable services from Franchisee as long

as the subscriber’s financial and other obligations to Franchisee are satsfied. Nothingmthis Sechon 13

Attachment A 
Current Franchise with Comcast 

Agenda Item 5A     Page 21Packet Page     193



shall limrt the right of Franchisee to deny cable service for non-paymentof previously provided cable
services refusal topay any required deposrt theftof cable service damage to Franchisee’s equipmentor

abusive andorthreatenmgbehavior toward Franclusee’s employeesorrepresentatrvesAbusive behavior mcludes
but isnot limited to use offightmg words or behavior taken by the customer that creates

ariskor a reasonable expectation that Franchisee’s employee maybeharmed.Inthe eventa

customer complams totheCrtythat Franchisee has unreasonably demed cable serviceaFranchisee will inform

theCityofthe precise nature ofthe srtuationbthe Citywillprovide the customer anopportumty to
submrtaresponse to the allegations andc Franchisee wili allow foradetermmation by the Crty

asto whether ornot the customer shall contmue tobedemed service. The City’s consent to withhold

servicefrom anabusive customer will not be unreasonably withheld. 5.3.2 Franchisee shall ensure that

allsubscribersreceive continuous umnterrupted cable service At the City’s request Franchisee
shall operate its system fora temporary period the "transiuon period" following the terminationofits
franchise oranytransfer as necessary to mamtam service to subscribers and shall cooperate with

theCity to assure an orderly transition from it to another entity. The transition period

shall be no longer than the reasonable period requ red to select another enuty and to
buld a replacement system and shall not belonger than thirty-six months unless extended by the Crty for

goodcause. Durmg the transirion period Franchisee will continue to be obligated to comply with
theterms and conditions ofthis Franchise Agreement and applicable laws 5.3.3 TheCity shallbe

entitled toat its

optionoperatethe cable system or designate another entrty to operate the system or revoke the franchise

if.5.3.31 Franch see for any twenty-four hour period willfully and

withoutcauserefuses to providecable service in accordancewrth this Franchise Agreement over

asubstantial portion of theCity 5.3.3 2 Franchisee abandons rts system.53

4 Nothingm this Sectton 5

3shallbe read tolimit any rights

the City may have to purchase the cable system. 54R ghts Upon Franchase Termanauon or Revocataon. If
the City revokes the franchise or

the franchise otherwiseCerminates the City shall have the following rights in addition to

the rights specified mthis Franchise Agreement or under applicable law 5.4.1 The Crty

may requ re Franchisee to remove its facilities and equipment atFranchisee’s expense.

IfFranchiseefails to do so withinareasonable period of time the City may have

theremoval done at Franchisee’s expense subject to any right of abandonment that may be provided for

under applicable law. 14

Attachment A 
Current Franchise with Comcast 

Agenda Item 5A     Page 22Packet Page     194



5.42 In the event ofa lawful non-renewalofthe franch seifthe Crty acquires ownership of

the cable system or effects a transfer of ownership ofthe cable system to another person any

such acquisihon or transfer shall baatfair market value withno value assigned tothe franchise itself

Inthe event ofalawful revocation if the City acquires ownershtp ofthe cable system ar

effects atransfer of ownership oftha system to another person anysuch acquisrtion or transfer shall

baatan equitable pnce. The terms "equrtable price" and"fair market value" shallbemterpreted in

accordance with 47US.C 547. 55 Notice

of Use. At least annually Franchisee will notify the City of any agreements for third parties
to useof its poles and conduits. Copies of agreements for useof Franchisee’s conduits or polesm

pubhc rights of way will be made available for review uponthe City’s request subect toany confidentiality
restrictionsm such agreements.56Contractors and Subcontractors

Franchisee shall beresponsible for the acts and omissions of all of its

contractors and subcontractors as ifthework were performed by Franchisee itself and shall ensure that

all work isperformed m compliance wrth and shall correct such actsor omissions thatviolate this Franchise

Agreement oranyordmance lawand regulation oftheCity and shall be jointly and
severably liable forall damages and correcting all damages by themasif Franchisee performed that work itself

Franchisee shall ensure that each contractor and subcontractor complies with the requirements

ofthis Franchise Agreement and any ordinance and regulation of the City in

the course of constructing operating mamtaimng and repairingthecable sysYem This Section isnot

meant toalter the tort liability if any of Franchisee to third parties orofany contractoror
subcontractor to third parties ortoFranchisee. Franchisee shall ensu re thatanycontractor orsubcontractor used

for workon construction operanon or repair ofthecable system is proparly hcensed under

laws of theStateofColorado and all applicable City ordinances. Each contractororsubcontractor shall

have the same obligations with respect to rtswork as Franchisee would have under this

Franchise Agreement and applicable law if the work were performed by Franchisee. Franchisee shall

mstitute procedures adequate toensure thatthework performed by rts contractors and

subcontractors complies with therequirementsofthis Franchise Agreement and any applicable laws.

6. System Facilities Equipment and

Services 6.1System Capab litces.6

11 Franchisee shallmamtain

an activated two-way capable cable system so thatallactive components onthe subscriber network

have aratmg of no less than 860 MHZ and all passive components have a rating of no

less than1 GHz. is

Attachment A 
Current Franchise with Comcast 

Agenda Item 5A     Page 23Packet Page     195



6 1.2Franchisee will maintainafiber to the node architecture with an average node

size of no greater than1 500subscribers pernode Franchisee reserves the right to change node

size maccordance with industry standards. 6.1.3

Theentirecable system must be two-way achvated and mustinclude the facilities and equipment except

customer premises equipment requiredtoprovide broadband mteractive cable services. 6.1

4Franchisee shall

mamtama redundant fiber optic link or equivalent technology between the Denver headend

and the Boulder secondary hubsite m order toprevent catastrophic service outages to the

entire Boulder franchise area due tovandalism storm damage construction related breaks or other
mterruptions mone of the fiber trunk pathways. If equivalent technology isused the

lmk must have all the characteristics mcluding without limitation the reliability scalability upgradeability

ease of upgradeability andscalab lity capacityand sacurity thatwouldbe
afforded byadedicated fiber opuc link 6.15There must be

reliablecontinuous auto-start back-up power at theheadend. Back-uppowershallalsobe provided ateach

nodeas activated through the use of backup power supplies that are suitably sized and locatedsoas

to carry therindividual loads for a mmimum of three hours.Inaddirion tothe extent technically possible

cable system active components shall bedesignedto parallel the power companygrid such

thata loss of power ataparticular achve component would hkely be accompanied by a lossof

power to the majorityof homes served by that component of the cable system61.6 The

cable system must mclude the facilities

and equipmentrequired to provide full system status monitoring of power supplies at the

nodes as activated The status monitormg equipment must at a mmimum permit Franchisee to identify

whereandwhen power outages affechng the node have occurred and when and where

thecable system has swrtched to battery back-up power supplies. 6.1.7 Franchisee must mstall and maintain

facilities andequipment lncluding without

limttationmodulatorsantennae amplifiers and other electromcs that permit and are capable

ofpassing through the signals received atthe headend without substanrial alteration

or deterioration thus for example the system shall mclude components such thatasignal

received at the headend in color may bereceived bya subscriber incolor

and a stereo signal mstereo . Facilittes and equipment shall be installed and operated so that subscribers can

receive closed- captioning and secondary audio. Any program-related data encodedmvertical or horizontal

blankmg intervals secondary audio signals andclosed-capnoned signals must be available to all

customers who subscriba to the services associatedwithsuch signals. 16

Attachment A 
Current Franchise with Comcast 

Agenda Item 5A     Page 24Packet Page     196



6.1.8Franchiseeshall comply with all applicable laws concerning system compatibility with
subscribers’ consumer electronics equipment. Franchisee shall provide the facilities and

equipment necessarytomake its services mcluding its customer services reasonably accessibleto
persons with disabilities. For example Franchisee should employ TTY or similar technologies to

permit commumcation betweenthehearmg-impaired commumtyandcablesystem representatives 6.1.9The
system

facilitiesandequipment must be capable of contmuous twenty- four hour daily operation wrthout
severe material degradationof signal except during extremely inclement weather orimmediately followmg
extraordmary storms which adversely affectutility services or which damage ma
orcable system components 6.1.10The cable system must

utilizefacihtiesand equipment generally used mhigh-quality reliable systems of similar design except

wheremconsistent wtth the specific requirements of this Franchise Agreement. The cable
system must have the level of reliability required tosupport a high-quality broadband information
service 6.1 11 Franchisee shallprovide as-built mapsof

thecable system without notarionof electroniccomponents inapublicly available electronic formaY compatible

with City geographic mformation systems and other City data systems The City
shallassert protection of confidential commercial data from disclosure under the Colorado Public Records

ActSection 24- 72-204CR.S. 62Transmission Technologies. Franchisee mayuse

anytransmission technology asthat

term is definedm federal law provided thatthe cable system
is constructed and mamtamed so thatrtwillhave charactenstics thatmall relevant respecYs meetor

exceed the characteristics ofthecable system describedmSection 6.1. Franchisee affirms thaYithas constructed

acable system that meetsarexceeds all the requirements of Section 6.1 IfCity determmes that

Franchisee has not constructed the cable system asrequiredby Section 6.1orhas failed to maintam

thecable systemas required by Section 6.1andthe City determmes that the cable system does notor

isnot likely tosatisfy Sechon 6.1 the Citymay declare a breach of the franchise and m addition to

exercismg anyotherremedy available to it order Franchisee toupgrade the cable system byatime specified by

the Cityand require such securihesasare necessaty toensure the work is timely performed unless the

Crty determmes that the cable system as actually constructed meets or exceeds the followmg chaiactensticsathe

cable system must be highly rehable compared to the most modern cable systems bemg
constructed b the cable system must have adequate mrtial activated capacity and be designed so

thatitcan deliver additional bandwidth toand from each subscnber wrthout substantial delay or

construction cthe cable system mustbeable to respond tochangmg subscnber needsand

interests withthemmimum delay or disruptiondthe cable system must be designedsothat power

outages affect tothe extent possible only those subscribers whoare notreceivmg power at their home

ande the cable system must be designedsothat the amountofrequired mamtenance and

17

Attachment A 
Current Franchise with Comcast 

Agenda Item 5A     Page 25Packet Page     197



the mean lime to repair is mmimized.

6 3 Emergency Alert System. Withm six months of City’swritten request at City’s costFranchisee
must installand mamtain an emergency alert system that can override audio and video on

all channels to provide an emergency alert that reaches only the City of Boulder while continumg to

allow participation in regional and national emergency alert systems If such a system is

mstalled at Yhe iequest ofthe City tha CiYy agrees thatit shall assume ali risks associated with operatmg

its EAS and shall be solely responsible forall liabihty arising outof operatmg the Boulder-specific EAS

TheCitywill operate the Boulder specific EAS in accordance with all apphcable state and

federal law The system must be designed and maintained so that local officials designated by

the City can activate the system remotely without the assistance ofFranchisee using a

telephone and secure password or bysuch other techmcal means asthe City may approve. The

system must be designed and mamtained so that the designated officials fromatouch-tone telephone

can activateapre-recorded text message andatsuch officials’ option an accompanymg hveaudio voice message

forupto two mmutes. The Crty and Franchisee shall meet periodically to discuss operational

proceduresforuse oftheemergency alert system As partofthose discussions the parries
may agreeon alternarive capabilities and actrvation procedures forthe emergency alertsystem In

addirion Franchisee shall provide emergency capabilities requ red under other applicable laws6.4
Parental Controls. In addrt

onto satisfying any obligaCions thatit has under apphcable law to provide parental control

devices or otherwise block programming onthe cable system Franchisee shall ensure that any

system for ordering movies or other pay-per-view programmmg is designed through useofsystemssuch
asPIN number systems to prevent children from ordering programmmg without parental consent. Franchisee
shall avoid theuseofchannels3and4for analog preview channels

that advertise adult programming 65Support Equipment and Facalities. 6.51

Franchisee must have sufficient trucks tools

tesYmgequipment monrtormg devices and other equipment and facilities and the trained

and skilled personnel required so that Franchisee complies with each and every requirement of applicable

law including apphcable customer service requirements techrucal standards maintenance standards and requirements
for respondmgto system outages This indudes the facilities equtpment

and staff required to aproperly test the system and conduct an ongoing and

active program of preventive maintenance and quality control and bbeableto quickly

respond to customer complamts and resolve system problems 6.52Franchisee must install and mamtam equipment

necessary

tomeasure its performance with applicable customer services standards that the City may

adopt from timetotime except that Franchisee may obtam relief temporarily from this

requirement if it shows that 1s

Attachment A 
Current Franchise with Comcast 

Agenda Item 5A     Page 26Packet Page     198



a tt has ahigh level of subscriber satisfaction b there are alternative adequate ways to review

rts performance or c for other good cause shown.

6.5.3Franchiseemust ensure thatits headend has adequate space and isotherwise properly designed

morder to accommodate the equipment and facilities necessary tomeet its obhgations under

this Franchise Agreement. 6.6 Technccal

Standards.The cable system must meetorexceed the technical standards set forth in

47 C.F.R. 76.601 and anyotherapphcable standardsas amended from trmetotime provided that nothmg inthis provision

ismtended to permit the Cityto exercise any authority that it is prohibited from exercismg under

apphcable federal law67Future UpgradesItis

Franchisee’s responsibility tomake such improvementstoitscable system asare necessary so

that the cable system performs as promised as subscribers to services are added.68 Testtng Requarements.

6.8.1 Franchisee shall

perform acceptance testson

eachupgradedand newly constructed area prior to subscriber connection. The tests must
demonstrate that the system components are operatmg as expected and that there is

no signal degradation on PEG channels from origination pomts to subscribers. Franchisee shall have the

obligation without further notice from Citytotake correcttve actionifanysegment

isnot operatmg as expected6.82 Franchisee conducts the semi-annual performance testmg

required by the FCCinJanuary FebruaryandJulyAugustofeach year.If

the Crtygives norice toFranchisee by December 15 prior to the wmter test period or by

June 15 prior to the summer test period the Crty may observe Franchisee’s Proof-of-Performance test required by the FCC. Franchisee

shall provide theproofofperformancetestresults promptly to the City uponrequest.69
Inspection The Ctty shall have the right to mspect the cable system

during and after its construction to ensure compliance with the cable ordinance this Franchise Agreement

and apphcable law and may require Franchisee to perform addrtional tests basedon
the City’s mvesugation of cable system performance or on subscriber complamts. 6 10 Interconnectaon. 610
1 Franchisee shali m accordance wrth this subsectron mterconnect

the access channels

of the cable system with any other contiguous cable system uponthe directrve

ofthe City. Interconnection of channels may bedone by diract cable connechon mtcrowaue hnk satelhte or
otherappropnate methods. The Crty shall not direct interconnectton exceptunder circumstances where rtcan

19

Attachment A 
Current Franchise with Comcast 

Agenda Item 5A     Page 27Packet Page     199



be accomphshed without undue burden or excessive costs to the subscnbers. Franchisee shall not be

requirad to mterconnect with acable system unless the operator ofthat system iswillmg to do so and

pays for its own cost of constructmg and mamtammg the mterconnect up to the demarcahon pomt.
Franchisee shallcontmue the mterconnechons with systems servmg BoulderCounty as ofthe effective

date of this Franchise Agreement.

6.10.2Franchiseeshall onlybe required to mterconnect access channels withanother cableor

open video systemmtheCitym the event that theCrty determines nits sole discretion thatrtwould be

economically burdensometortssubscnbers to construct and mamtain return lmesdrectly fromthe

ongmahon pomtsofthe access channels versusmterconnectmg wrth Franchisae Inthe event Franchisee

receivesadirective from the City to mterconnect wthanothercable or open video system m

theCity Franchisee shall immediately mrtiate negotiations withtheother affected cable oropen video

system or systems and shall report tothe Crty the results ofsuch negotiahons nolater than sixty days

after such mrtiahon. The receivmg cable aropen video system shall be responsibie for Franclusee’s costs

mconstructmg and mamtammg the mterconnect.If the parties cannot reach agreement on the

terms of the mterconnect mcluding compensarion and timmg thedispute shall be submitted tothe

Crty for determmahon and resolution. Additionally Franchisee shall onlybe required to mterconnect with
areceivmg cable oropenvtdeo system if the receivmg cable or openvideo system isprovidmg similar

supportforaccessas requ red ofFranchisee pursuanttothisFranchise Agreement Thts obhgation shall

contmue unhl the Crty determines that itisno longer economically burdensame toits subscnbers for

other affected cable systemorsystems to construct and mamtam lmesdirectly from the ongmation hnk

oftheaccess channels 611 Free Cable

Servtce to Certatn Factlatees. Franchisee shallatnocost to the City cont nue to
provideone outlet of Basic Service and Expanded Basic Servicetoall Crty owned and occupied buildmgs and

pubhc hbraries where such service isprovided asof the effective date ofthis Franchise Agreement as

shownon Exhibrt AIn addition Franchisea shall provideatnocost to the Crty or other

entrty one oixtlet of Basic and Expanded Basic Servicetoownedor leased and occupied City buildings schools

and libranes not mcluded onExhibitA upon request if the drop hne from the feeder cable to

such buildmg does not exceed a standard drop orif the Crty or other entity agrees topay the mcremental

cost ofsuch drop hne m excess ofastandard drop For purposesof the previous sentence "school" means

all State-accredrted K-12 publtc andpnvate schoolsOutlets of Basic and Expanded Basic Service provided m

accordanca wrth this subsection maybeused to distnbute cable services throughout such buildmgs provided

such distribution canbe accomplished wrthout causing cable system disruphon and signal

leakage and general techmcal standards are mamtained. Such outlets may only be used

foilawful purposes. Except as shown onExhibrtAtlus obhgahon to provide free cable service shall not
extend topubhc areas ofCrty buildmgs where Franchisee would normally entermtoacommercial contract

toprovide such cable serviceeg golf courses airport restaurants and concoursesand recreahon center work-out

facilrties 20

Attachment A 
Current Franchise with Comcast 

Agenda Item 5A     Page 28Packet Page     200



6 12 Provasaon of Broad Categoraes of Servces. This paragraph shall be mterpreted
consistenY with the limitations set forth m 47 U.SC544b2B.ui addition to such other service

requirements as may be contamed in this agreement Franchisec agrees to provide at least twelve

locally-availableFMradio stations or if lower the number oflocally available FMradio stations from

which Franchisee can obtam retransmission consent atno cost the term costs refers toa payment

made to an FM stahon for the nght to carry the station’s signaland does not mclude copyright payments

thatmaybe required.The availabilrtyofFMradio service onthe cable system shall
be pubhcized and the channel lme-up ofsuch FM stations shall be included m all channel lineup publicahons.

613

Uses of System. Upon request Franchtsee shall advise the Crty ofall acttve uses ofthe system

for both entertainment and other purposes suchas data transmission local area networks and

voice transmission. Nothmgin this Section 6 shall be construed to convey any regulatory power

to the City. If Franchisee believes thatCity is exceeding its franchise autharity with such
arequest Franchisee may seekappropriate redress.7.Channels

and Facilities for PEG Use 71

PEG Use 711

Franchisee shall activate and make available public educational and governmental "PEG"

channels to each subscnber onthe subscriber network asspecified in this Section 7.

The channeis provided under this Sechon are subecttoFranchisee’s rightstousethe channels for the

provision of services when theyarenot bemg used for their mtended purposes 712

The management of the PEG channels isthe responsibilrty of theCity. The City may designate

an enhtyorentities to manage all or anypart of the PEG channels The entrtyor entihes so

designated are referredtoas a"designated access provider".TheCitymay designate designated access providers
itmay designate channels provided underthisFranchise Agreement for pubhq educational government

or combmed PEG use. Nothmg herem shall preventadesignated access provider from
allowmg PEG capacity designated forapanc ular PEGusetobeused for other PEG uses. 7

1.3 PEG

channels shallbe provided onthe basic service tier except as theCity and Franchisee may otherwise
agree orif there is no basic service tier as partof the service provided to any subscriber.

Ifchannel choices are selected bya menu PEG channels must be displayed equally as prominently

as commercial channel choices offered byFranchtsee Itisthe responsibility of the designated

access providers to provide thenecessary channei mformation to Franchisee or its designated

menu programmer ma timely manner If it is techmcally feasible at City’s cost Franchisee will

alsoallow PEG program information to be displayed onanymenu 21

Attachment A 
Current Franchise with Comcast 

Agenda Item 5A     Page 29Packet Page     201



hstings offered by Franchisee that include such detail of commercial channels provided that

Franchisee directly controls such menu hstmgs or can cause such hstmgs to be mcluded. In such

event rt wll be the responsibilrty of the designated access providers to provide the program

mformation to Franchisee or rts designated menu programmer m a hmely manner.

7 1 4 It is the responsibility of Franchisee to transmit PEG signals from points
designated by the City and to deliver them without alteration m content or material degradation in

quahty to each subscriber m a forrrt and manner so that the subscnber may receive the signals
wrthout addihonal eqmpment or cost beyond that required to receive the level of cable services to

which the subscriber has subscribed.

7 1.5Except as expressly permittedbyapphcable law Franchisee shall not exercise any

edrtorial control over the contentofcommunicationsonthe designated PEG channels except for such

commumcationsas Franchise may produce and cablecast onsuch channels.Subect to all

otherlmitations of this Franchise Agreement the PEG channels may be used for any

commumcation m any form the full signal provided must be carried

7 1.6PEG channels may not be used to cablecast anythmg prohibited by federal law.

PEG channels may not be used to cablecast commercialmatter. "Commercial matter"means time

sold or used to propose a commercial transaction or for the express purpose ofsellmga commercial

productorservice. Nothing m this Sechon preventsthe levy ofa fee to defray costs ofYhe

City oradesignated access entity associatad with the operation activatron or maintenanceofPEG

channels facilities and equipment By way of example and not hmitation the parties do not mtend

to limit sponsorship announcements comparableto those that might be carried onanon- commercial

broadcast stationorto prevent schools from chargmg course fees and then dehvermg the
course via the PEG channels orto sohcrt financial support for the provisionofPEG access by designated

access providers and for charitable educahonalor governmental purposes The City agrees
that rt will not use or authonze useof rts designated educational and governmental access channels

forany far-profit commercialpurposesbythe City or third parties Franchisee shall have the right

to audit the useof such facilities toensure compliance wrththis paragraph which shallbereasonably construed

m accordance wrth Franchisee’s practcesinotherDenver-area urisdichons UsebyCityenterprise
funds and agencesisnot "forprofiY’ or "commercial" solely because the enterprise oragency has

more revenues than expenses orbecause the achvrty inwhichrtisengaged isprovided ona
for-profit basis by private entitiesm other communities orthe City. Nothing prevents the Crty from authonzmg

charges to users or viewers to pay far such non-commercial services such as fees forinstructronal

programmmg or charges to recover thecost of special use equipment or as the Crty may

be required to charge under apphcable law717 Aceess Channels. 22

Attachment A 
Current Franchise with Comcast 

Agenda Item 5A     Page 30Packet Page     202



7 1 7.1Sub ect to the provisionsof Sections71.9.2 -7.19 9on and after the cffechve dateof

this Franchise Agreement Franchisee shall providefourdownstream6MHz PEGchannels one pubhc

access channel one educational access channel and two local government access channels. The
City may require Franchisee toactivateanaddrtional6MHz channel for PEGuseupto

atotal maximum of five channels under the procedures specified below.717

2 If a designated access provider beheves that additionalPEGchannels areneededthe

designated access provider may filea request with the Crty Manager The City Manager will determme
whether additional PEGchannels shouldbeactivated considermg among other factors the

ollowmg the communtty’s needs and mtereststheutilization of Yhe existrng channels the plans of

designated access providers for utihzingtheadditional channels themterestofthecommunrtymadditional

PEGuse of thecable system whether it isfeasiblefor designated access providers to achieve their

goals by clustermg PEG programmmg mto blocks oftime so that the channel space can be

compahbly shared between multiple designated access providers whether several des gnated access

providers shouldcombme therprogrammmg ontoasmgleaccess channel and the impactof
the activationof the additional channels on existmg programming 7.1.73 Should theCity

Managermhisor her sole discretion find that activation o addrtional channels is justified

thentheCityManager shall provide htsher decisionm writmg and Franchiseeshall activate the

channels wrthm mnety daysofreceiving the demsion. Fianchisee may appeal the decisionof

theCity Manager tothe City Council wrthin thiriy days ofthe dateofthe City Manager’s decision

and if it doessomaydelay activation of the channels The City Council after reviewmg the decision ofthe
City Manager and afterapublic hearing mayin its discrehon approve modifyorre ect the

decision ofthe City Managerm its solediscretion If theCity Council orders Franchisee to activate addittonal

channels the channels shall be activated withmsixty daysofthe date the Crty

Council makes its decision. The decision shall befinal and unappealable. 7 1.7.4 Franchisee and the City

agree

that itistheir mutual goal to effectively and efficiently use PEG channels. Franchisee shall be permrtted
touse underutrhzed hmeonPEGchannels as provided below. 7.17.5IfFranchisee believes

that any PEG channel

hasunderutilized timeit mayfilearequest with the CityManagerCouse that

tme In response to the request the City Manager will considera combinarion of factors includmg without hmitation the

commumty’s needs and mtereststheutilizahonoftheexistmg channeis the plansofthe

designated access provider forutilizmg the channels mcludmg whether the underutilized capacityis bemgused for

mtermittent programmmg that could otherwise notbeeastly provided on the same basis

ifthe channels are bemg underuhhzed the reasons for underutihzation whetherit is feasible for the

designated access providersto achievetheirgoals by clustering PEG programmmg mto blocks of

time so that the channel space canbecompahbly shared between multiple designated access providers whether

23

Attachment A 
Current Franchise with Comcast 

Agenda Item 5A     Page 31Packet Page     203



several designated access providers should combme therprogrammmg onto a smgle access channel
and whether Franchisee is in full comphance with rts PEG obligations.

7.17 6 The Crty Manager shall render a demsion regardmg the request for utihzation

withmsixty days of receivmgCherequest Should the Crty Manager ftndm his or her sole discrehon

that a PEG channel or aportion of a PEG channel may be used by Franchisee then Franchisee

may begin usmgsuch time ninety days after receiptof the decision. Franchisee’s requestshallnot
be unreasonably derued Anypermission granted pursuant to this subsection for useofa PEG channel

ora portion thereof shallbeconsidered temporary. 7.1.7.7At

suchttmeasadesignated access provider believes thatit wishesto utilize the PEG channel time

currently used by Franchisee pursuantto this subsectionadesignated access provider may request that
theCity Manager return such channel orportionofthe channel forPEG use In response to

the request the City Manager will consider a combmation of factors mcludmg wrthout hmitahon the commumty’s
needs and mterests the utihzatronof the existmg channels the plans of the designated

access provider for urihzmg the channels the impact of Franchisee use on PEG use of

the cable systern whether rt is feasible for the designated access providers toachieve their goals by

clustering PEG programmmg mto blocks of timesothat the channel space can be compattbly shared

between mulhple designated access providers and whether several designated access providers should combme

their programmmg ontoa smgle access channel7.1.78The City Manager shall

renderhisher decision regardmg the matter wrthm sixty daysofreceivmg the request. Should

the City Manager findmhisorher sole discrehon that the PEG channel or portion ofthe PEG

channel shouldbereturned for PEG use then Franchisee shall surrender the channel or portion ofthe

channel asdirected wrthin nmety days ofrecervmg the decision. The designated access provider’s request shall not

be unreasonably derued. 7.1.79The decisionof the Crty Manager shall

befinaland unappealable as toboth Franchisee and designated access providers. Franchisee maynot request a

returnofachannel orany portionofachannel withm twoyears of the
mrtial activationof the PEG channels required by Section 7Tha CityManager may deny Franchisee the right to
uhhze all oraportion ofaPEGchannel ar revoke onthirty days notice an authorization to utilize

all oraportion ofaPEG channelif Franchisee isnot m full comphance wrth its PEG obligations.

71.7.10 In addition to the maximum five channels required above

a ifFranchiseedoes not carry GSPAN as partof its commercial service and C-SPAN

isavailable for carriage Franchisee will provide an addrtional PEG channel for thecarriage of C-SPAN. If

techmcally feasible Franchisee will downlmk and mseri C-SPAN on the appropriate PEG channelb f

Franchisee doesnotcarry C-SPAN2 as partofits commercial service and C-SPAN2 is

available for carrtage Franch see will providean addthonal PEG channel far the carriage ofC-SPAN2 If

techmcally feasible Franchisee willdownhnk and msert C-SPAN2 onthe appropriate 24

Attachment A 
Current Franchise with Comcast 

Agenda Item 5A     Page 32Packet Page     204



PEG channel and c if Franchisee does not carry the Radio Readmg Service ofthe Rockies as part
of its commercial service and rt is available for carriage Franchisee will provide an FM band PEG

channel for carriage of the service. Any additional PEG channels provided under this

Section 7.17.10 aor b will be offered on the Basic or Expanded Basic Service tier. 7.1 7.11

Franchiseeand theCity will cooperate to heip promote theuse and viewership of the PEG

channels. Consistent with this cooperative approach except where requiredby federal law Franchisee
shall not change PEG channel locahons without advance notice tothe Ctty Franchisee will also

cooperate withother cable systems and open video systems in theCrtyto attempt to develop umform

channel locations forthe PEG channels If Franchisee detennmes that achangetoa PEG

channel assignment is necessary it shall provide the City withammmum of sixty daysnohceand use

its best efforts to provtde 120 days norice prior to the ttme that public educational and governmental access
channel designationsue changed Franchisee shall payall costs associated with replacmg

oradustmg equipment as necessaryforthe channel redesignahon In addrtion Franchisee shall
pay the reasonable cost of replacngmaterials and supplieschangmg signs and remarketmg the

channels uptoa maximum of fifty cents050 per subscnber per channel changed. Anysuch

amounts paid by Franchisee maybe addedatFranchisee’s discrehon and m accardancewrth the

apphcable FCC regulations tothe priceofcable services and collected from such subscnbers as "external

costs" assuch term isrequired by applicable law. Franchiseeat Franchisee’s expense shall place the

City’snohcesofthe channel change onits regular monthly billmgs upon the City’s request. 7.2Return

Lanes for PEG Use.7 2.1

Franchiseeshall mamtam the achvated upstream hnks

set forihm Exhibit B. Franchisee agrees thatit will provide and maintam activated capacity

toenable transmtssion of a second PEG channel from each of the PEG facilrties located

at1000 Canyon Blvd and 2590 Walnut 7.22The Crty orany designated access provider may

upgradethe connechons at its cost. TheCityshall provide Franchiseeof itsmtent to upgrade

rts connections m wnhng. Franchisee shall provide reasonable access to and space atrts factlities

toaccommodate thePEG return line upgrade. The City may use the PEGcapital funds

provided mthis Franchise Agreement far any such upgrade costs. Franchisee shall upgrade such requested connections
matmely manner72.3Ifthe headendismoved or replacedFranchisee shall

transfer thelmk s tothe new locahon mcludmg without hmrtahon movmg termmal equipment andsplicing fiber as

necessary 72.4The Crty may request that Franchisee construct new return

lmes

for PEGuse. Such return hnes shallbe constructedattheCity’scost however the City

may use the PEG caprtal25

Attachment A 
Current Franchise with Comcast 

Agenda Item 5A     Page 33Packet Page     205



fitnds provided m this Franchise Agreement for any such costs. Franchisee shall construct such

requested return lmes m a timely manner.

73 Support for PEG Access.

7 3 1 Franchisee shall contmue to collect and remrt the current 0.5050cents per month

per residential and commercial subscriber untrla new rate is made effectrve as set forth below.

Following City Council decision made by mohon Franchisee shall provide the Citywrth upto

0 75 75 cents per month per residenhal and commercial subscriber for PEG use capital facihties
and equipment support.Any change inthe amount ofthis support will become effective sixty

days after Franchisee receives written notice ofthe City’s Councildecision Additional mcreases may

berequired by ordinance mcludmgamandatory public hearmgno sooner than 42months after

tha effective dateofthis Franchise Agreement toan amount over075 75 cenis but mno

event will the amount exceedatotal of 100 one dollar per residential and commercial subscriber per

month and such amount must beapphcable toall franchised cable operatorsmthe City. Any

change m the amount of this support will become effective sixty days after Franchisee receives written

notice ofthe Crty Council’s decision.Nofeesshall be charged ongratis accounts. The City shall

be solely responsible for all liabihty to any third party arismg outof theCrty’s use ofPEGuse caprtal funds

that will be collected and paid to the City m accordance with this Sechon. Anypayment under this

Section shall be due ona quarterly basis payable concurrently wrth franchise fees forsuch

quarter 7.4 Mascellaneous PEG Requarements

7.41 Upon reasonable advance

noticebut no more oftenthanonce per calendar year Franchisee will provide the City

wrthaninsert space m subscribers’ cable bills topromote PEG programmmg. Franchisee shall providetheCrty

with the prmtmg specifications for the mserts. The Cityshall beresponsible far the

content and pnntmg costsof the msert and forthe costof shippmg the prmted mserts toPranchisee’s billing
agent. TheCrtyshall oniypaymcremental mailmg costs if the City’s msert resultsinan mcrease

to thestandard maihng costs normally mcurred by Franchisee msendmg its subscriber bilhng statements. In addrtion

Franchisee shall use reasonable effortstoaccommodate PEG promotional spots received from the City

ona reasonable basismFranchtsee’s cross-channel ad avails uptoamaximumof100

30-60spots per year. Any such ad availsprovided for PEGpromotional spots shall be atnocost tothe
City orits designated access providers. 742If Franchisee makes changes torts cablesystem

that necessitate modifications toPEGfacilities and equipment mcludmg without hmitahon the upstream paths

Franchisee shall provide any addihonal facihtiesorequipment necessarytoimplement suchmodifications

within thirty daysofthe date that the system changes aremade

so that PEG facilities and equipment may be used and operated as intended mcluding among other thmgs so

that lrve and taped commumcations can be produced and cablecast efficiently to subscnbers By way
ofexample and26

Attachment A 
Current Franchise with Comcast 

Agenda Item 5A     Page 34Packet Page     206



not limitation should Franchisee cease delivery of allsgnals in an analog format to subscribers it

will provide the facihties and equipment necessary so that PEG signals canbe delivered m a digrtal
format

7.4.3Anydownstream and upstream PEG Channels provided pursuant to this Section may

befurther subdivided compressedordecompressed atthesole discretion and sole expense of

adasignated access provider Asa condition of Franchisee’s allowmg suchusethe designated access provider

mustfullycooperate with Franchiseemordernot to cause any perceptible adverse effecton
the performance of Franchtsae’s cable system andshall take no action causmg Franchisee to beunable

tosatisfy the performance requirements spemfied by this Franchise Agreement. 7.4.4 Except as

otherw

seprovidedm this Franchise Agreementthe channels provided for PEGuse except as

expressly provided with respectto the I-netshalibeat Franchisee’s cost 7.5Costs Not Franchase Fees Theparties

agree

thatany cost toFranchisee associated wrth providmg anysupport for PEG use required under

this Franchtse Agreement mcludmg the provision of the I-Net and payments made ontside this

Franchise Agreement for PEGand I-Net support if any are nota franchise fee withm themeanmg

of 47 U.S.C. 542 and fall wrthm one or moreofthe exeeptions listedm47U S.C. 542g28.

Institutional Network 81 Instatutaonal Network Franchisee agrees thatit willconstructan

mstitutional network "I-neY’

in accardance wrth the Cable Act as requested by the City at

rts actualmcremental construction costs. Additionally the parties may reach an agreement as to Franchisee’s mamtenance of

theCity’s I-net. The parties agree that the City mayuse PEG caprtalfunds

provided pursuant toSection73.1topay Franchisee for I-net capital costs directly related toan I-net built

by Franchisee PEGcapital fundscollected and paidtothe Citypursuant to Section731 may beusedYo construct
Yha I-net only if Franchisee constructs the I-net. 9. Operation and Reporting Provisions 9.1 Open Books und Records. Without

hmiting its obhgations underSection 2 Franchisee agrees thatttwillcollect

and make available booksand

recordsor mspechon and copying by the City in accordance with the cable
ordmance as it existed asof the effective dateof this Franchise Agreement Pranchisee shall

be responsible for collectmg the mformation and producmg rt.z7

Attachment A 
Current Franchise with Comcast 

Agenda Item 5A     Page 35Packet Page     207



9.2Tame forProductton. Books and records shall beproduced to tha City at the Boulder Mumcipal

Buildmgor such other location as the parties may agree.If Franchisee objects to a request

for books and recordsit must nonetheless produce the books and records requested unless the

City agrees that they need not be producedara court ofcompetent urisdictionrules otherwise Notwithstandmg

any provisionofthe cable ordmanceif documents are too voluminous or for secunty

reasons cannot beproduced at the Boulder Mumcipal Buildmgor mutually agreeable location
withm the City then Franchisee may produce the material at another central location provided

italso agrees topay the addrt onalreasonable travelcosts incurredby the Crty to access the matenals.

The parties agree that any amounts paid are notafranchisefee wrthin the meanmgof47U.S

C542 and fall withm oneofthe excephons thereto 9.3Reports

Requared.Franchisee shallfile thereports that itis required to provide under the cable ordmance

as ofthe effective date of this Franchise Agreement. 94Records

Maantaaned. Franchisee shall mamtam the records required by the cable ordmance as of

the effective date of this Franchise Agreement Franchisee shall mamtain records. required bythe

cable ordmance required toprepareall reports required under thecable ordinance and sufficientto
demonstrate whether ornot Franchisee has complied wrth its obhgations under this Franchise Agreement or

applicable law. Records shallbe kept for at least three years. 9S Relateon to

Pravacy Raghts. Franchisee shall take all steps required if anyto ensure that itis

able to provide the City all mformation which mustbeprovided ormay be requested under this Franchise Agreement

mcludmg wrthouthmrtahon by providing appropnate subscnber pnvacynotices. Nothmgin

this Section 95shall be read torequire Franchisee to violate47U.S.C. 551. Franchisee shallberesponsible for

redactmg any data that federal law prevents rtfrom providing tothe City 10.Customer Service

Standards 10.1

Standards Franchisee shall meet

orexceed the customer service standards of the cable ordmance and applicable law. In

the eventofa conflict among standards the stncter standard shall apply.102 Ascertaanment ofProgrammang

and Customer

Sattsfactton Upon therequest ofthe Crtybut no more often than

every two years Franchisee shall at the sole expenseofFranchisee undertake a suroey ofcommunity views
ofcable operations mtheCity includmg wrthout limrtatton programming response to communrty needs sahsfaction

and dissahsfachon wrth cableservices offered by Franchisee and customer service

Franchisee shall consult and cooperate wrth theCrtymdevelopmg and implementmg an ascertamment methodology.

The final form and contentof the survey shall beas mutually agreed

upon by Franchisee and theCity Franchisee shall provide the results of suchsurvey to the

City withm two months after completmg the survey. Upon request 28

Attachment A 
Current Franchise with Comcast 

Agenda Item 5A     Page 36Packet Page     208



Franchisee shall also provide a copy of results from any other survey of subscribers m the Crty
conducted mdependently by Franchisee withm the previous year. Any survey results conducted

wthm the Crty which are mtended for external publication shall also be provtded to the City.
Nothmg herem shall be construed to hmrt the nght ofthe City to conduct its own surveys at its own

expense. Nothing m this Section shall be construed as requirmg the renegohation ofthis Franchise

Agreement. Any such survey conducted may include subscnbers from other commumties in

addition to the City provided that the City’sresults are displayed separately. 11.

Rate Regulation The

City may regulate Franchisee’s ratesand charges as provided by apphcable law. All rates that

are sub ect toregulation by theCity must be reasonable and except as applicable law provides otherwise

canonly be changed wrth thepnor approval ofthe City 12. Insurance

Surety Indemnification 12.1 Insurance

Reyuared.Franchisee agreesto mamtam adequate insurance throughout theentire length ofthe

franchise penodas requiredby the cable ordmance as ofthe effective date ofthis Franchise Agreement 12

2Indemnificat

on. 12 21

Franchisee shall at its sole cost and expense except for the City’s habihty as describedmSectton 6

3 mdemnify hold harmless and faithfully defend the City its officials boards commissions commissioners agents

and employees agamst any and all claims surts causes of action proceedmgs

and judgments for damages or equrtable relief arismg outof the construchon mamtenance or operahon

ofits cable system by Franchisee its employees affihatesoragents copyright mfrmgements or

afailureby Franchisee to secure consents from the owners authorized distributors or Franchisees

ofprograms tobedehveredby the cable system the conduct ofFranch see’s busmessm

theCrtyormany way ansmg out ofFranchisee’s en oyment or exerciseofthe franchisegranted hereunder regardless

of whether the actoromission complamed ofis authorized allowed or prohibrted by apphcable

lawor this Franchise Agreement except in cases where liability is.a solely caused

by thegross negligence ofthe person or persons covered by the mdemmty orbresults from programmmg

contributed or produced by the Cityand transmitted over the cable system. 122

2 Without limitmg the

faregomg Franchisee shall atiCs solecostand e3cpense fully mdemrufy defend and hold harmless

theCityand rtsofficers agents and employees from and agamst any andall claims suits

actions liabilrty and udgmenis for damages or otherwise subjecttoSechon638 ofthe Cable Act

47 U.S C. 558 ansing out of oralleged to anse out of the construction operahon mamtenance or repair of its

systembyFranchisee its employees affiliates 29

Attachment A 
Current Franchise with Comcast 

Agenda Item 5A     Page 37Packet Page     209



ar agents including wrthout hmrtation any claim agamst Franchisee far invasion of the right of

privacy defamation of any person firm or corporation or the violation or mfrmgement of any
copyright trade mark trade name service mark or patent or of any other nght ofany person firm
or carporahon. This mdemmty does notapply to mtervenhon by the Crty m regulatory proceedmgs
brought by Franchisee or to the programming camed on any channel set aside for public
educational or government use or channels leased pursuant to 47 U S C. 532 unless Franchisee

was m any respect engaged in determimng the editonal contentofthe program or adopts apohcy of

pre-screemngprogrammmgforthe purported purposeofbammgorregulatmg mdecentor obscene programmmg

andexcept for programmmg contributedar producedbyFranchisee 12.2

3The mdemnrty provision mcludesbutisnot hmrted tothe Crty’s reasonable attorneys’fees consented

to by Franchisee and payment for any labor and expenses of the crty attorncy’s office at
thegomg rate for legal services m Boulder County. Such consent shallnot beunreasonably wrthheld 123

No Lamct

ofLcabtlaty. The provisions ofthis Section12shall not beconstrued tolmit the liabihty ofFranchisee

for damages 13. Performance Guarantees and

Remedies 131Letterof

Credzt. 13 11In

sahsfaction of the security fund requirements of ihe cable ordinance Paragraph 11-6-13 a1

B.R.C. 1981asthesameexisted ontheeffective date of this Franchise Agreement Franchisee shall provide aletter ofcredit

m the amount of 100 000 prior to the effecYive date of YhisFranchise and shall mamtam

Yhat letter ofcredit throughout the franchise term The letter ofcredit shallbema

farm satisfactory tothe City Attorney mcludmg wrthout limitahon specification of venue m Boulder andwitha

financial mstitution satisfactory to theCity The City may requtre Franchisee to mcrease the amount of
the letterofcredrt once every three yearsto reflect mcreasesmtheUSCity Average of

theConsumer Price Index The letterof credit set forth mthe Greater Metro Telecommumcations Consortium franchise may be used

tosatisfythisreqwrementas long as the Consortium agrees toprocedures acceptable

to the Cityfordraws on such letter of credrt The Crty may draw upon the letterof

credrt for the reasons and after providmg the notice specified mthecable ordinanceasrtexisted as
ofthe effective daYeoftlus Franchise Agreement Franclusee’s recoursemthe event Franchisee believes any takingof

security funds is improper willbethrough legal action after the security hasbeen drawn upon
pursuant tothe provisions of Sechon 131313.1.2 Franchisee shall provide proof that the letter of

creditcomplieswrth this Franchtse Agreement and wrth all requirements of the cable ardmance 30

Attachment A 
Current Franchise with Comcast 

Agenda Item 5A     Page 38Packet Page     210



13 1.3Franchisee agrees thatit shall not attempt tbrough itigationorotherwiseto prevent

ormhibit the City from drawmg on the letter of credit Franchtsee shall have the right to appeal

to the Boulder CityCouncil for reimbursementmthe event that it believes that the letterofcredit

was drawn upon improperly. Franchisee shallalso have the right ofa de novo court appealif it

believes the letter of credit has not been properly drawn m accordance with this Franchise Agreement

Any funds that the City erroneouslyorwrongfully withdraws from the letter ofcredit shall

be returned toFranchisee with mterest from the date of withdrawalata rate equal to the prime rate

of mterest as quoted by the Bank of New York within thirty busmess days of a final determmation

thaYthe withdrawal wasm error orwrongful. 13

2 Materaal Term.The letter ofcreditisamaterial term ofthisFranchise Agreement. 133

Remedaes. Inadditton toany other remedies avatlableatlaw or equity theCity may apply

any one of the followmg remediesmthe event Franchisee violates this Franchise Agreementor
apphcable law.13

31 Revoke the franchise pursuantto the procedmes specified in Sechon 13.5. Providedthat

any amendments tothe cable ordinance or the quasi- udicial proceduresoftheCrty codified at
Chapter 1-3 B.R.C. 1981must providethesame level ofdue process as isprovided under the procedures provided for
under the cable ordmance and quasi udicial procedures asthe sameexisted on the effective

dateofthis Franchise Agreement 13.3.2 In addihon toor

msteadofany other remedy seek legal or equrtable relief from any court of competent urisdichon 13.33

Obtain liquidated damages asprovidedherem

13.4Laqu dated Damages Because Franchisee’s failureto

complywith provisionsofthis Franchise Agreementwill result inmuryto the City

andbecause iYwill be difficulttoesYimate the extent ofsuch mjury the City and Franchisee agree to

the following hquidated damages for the following violations which represent both parties’ best estimate of the

damagesto theCrty resulting from the specified mury.Tomamtain that esYimate the
parties agree that theliquidaCed damage amounts arem 2003 dollars asof the effective date
ofthis Franchise Agreement mflated by the US CityAverage of the ConsumerPrice Indexand shall be

mcreased each year by the fullamount of the increase mtheUS. City Average ofthe

Consumer Pnce Index once mflation from the effectrve date ofthisFranchise Agreement has exceeded twenty percent Thus

treatmg 2003as thebase year mdcxed as100 the hquidated damages shall bemcreased m

the first year when themdex reaches 120 and once avery year after that year aseach

annual increase becomes available. 134.1 For transfemng the franchise wrthout approval1000

day foreach violationforeach daythe violation contmues.31

Attachment A 
Current Franchise with Comcast 

Agenda Item 5A     Page 39Packet Page     211



13.4.2Forfailure to comply with requirements for pubhc educational and governmental use

of the System 250 day foreach violation foreach day the violahon continues 13.43

Forviolatron of customer service standards 150per violation except for violahons of apphcable

customer service standards for which Franchisee’s compliance isnotmeasured in terms of

rtsresponse tomdividual customers 250amonth forany penod dunng which it failstomeet

applicable performance standards 13.4.4 Forall other

materialviolationsof this Franchise Agreement forwhich actual damages maynotbe ascertainable 100

day for each violation for eachday the violation contmues 134.5 The City may impose

hquidated damagesas provided m this Section13.45Wrthm fifteen days of the dateofa

noticeofviolation issent toFranchisee Franchisee may requestmwritmg apubhc hearmgbefarethe City

Council pursuant to the procedures specified m the cable ordmance. The Crtymayimpose liquidated damages accrumg

from the date of noticeof the violation after the hearmg unlessit finds that

athere was no violation or bdamages should not be imposed. Any amendments to thequasi- udicial procedures

of the City codified at Chapter1-3B.R.C. 1981 must provide the same level ofdue
processasis provided under the procedures provided for under the quasi- udicial procedures as the same existed

on the effechve dateofthe Franchise Agreement. Nothmg herem prevents Franchisee from raismg adefense to

the mposrtiono liquidated damages from thedaYe of violation based upon laches

waiverstatuteof hmrtattons orany other similar defense. Franchisee mayappeal any imposihonof liquidated

damages toacourtofcompetent urisdiction 135ProceduresProrto Revokang theFranchase.

135.1

The City shall havethe rightto revoke the

franchise forthe reasons specified in the cable ordmance as of the effective date of this

Franchise Agreement and mSection 13 5 of this Franchise Agreement pursuant tothe revocation procedures

specified m the cable ordinance Provided thatany amendments to thecable ordinance must provide

the same levelof due process as is provided under the procedures provided for

under the cable ordmance as the sameexisted ontheeffective dateofthis Franchise Agreement. Pnor

to mrtiahnga revocation action theCity shall provide Franchisee with a detailed written noticeof

any franchise violation upon whichitproposes to take action and asixty dayperiod

within which Franchisee may a demonstrate that a violation does not existor cure analleged violation

orb if thenature of the violation prevents correctionof the violation withm sixty daystoininate a

reasonable planofactron to correct such violation mcludmg a pro ected date by which

itwill be completed and nohfy the Cityof such plan of action or c show that

the defect m performance should be excused. However in any case involving repeated violations thetme period

allowed for cure 32

Attachment A 
Current Franchise with Comcast 

Agenda Item 5A     Page 40Packet Page     212



may be reasonably reduced at the election ofthe City and revocation proceedings shall follow the

process set forth at Section 11-6-12dB.R.C.1981 asamended.13.5.2 If Franchisee fails

todisproveor correct the violation withm sixty daystothe City’s satisfaction orin the

case ofaviolation which cannot be corrected in sixty daysifFranchisee has failed to mitiate a reasonable

plan of correcrive acrion and to correct the violation withinatime satisfactory tothe City

then the Crty may declare Franch see in default which declaration mustbeinwriting In the

event that the City declares Franchisee m default the City shall have the right to exercise any
other rights and remedies afforded tothe City in laworequrty. 13 5.3 At any time after fifteen

clays ofsendmg the written declaration ofdefault to Franchisee the City may revoke the franchisF However

withm fifteen days of the date the declaration issent to Franchisee Franchisee may request

mwritmg apublic hearmg before the Ciry Council pursuant to the procedures specified in

the cable ordinance. If Franchisee requests the hearmg Franchise may not be revoked until
after the hearing is conducted. The Citymay revoke after hearing unless it finds that a
there was no default or bthe default has been fully cured or there isatimetable for cure

satisfactory to the Crty. Provided that any amendmentsto the cable ordinance or the quasi judicial procedures

of the City codified at Chapter1-3B.R.C. 1981 must provide the same level ofdue processasis

provided underthe procedures provided for under the cable ordinance and quasi judicial proceduresasthe same

existed on the effective date ofthis Franchise Agreement Franchisee shall have the right toappeal

the revocarion toa courtofcompetent jurisdiction 13 6 Revocation or Terminationof FY anchise In

addrtionto

all oCher rights of the Crtyunderthis Franchise Agreement the City shall have the right to

revoke the franchse For the reasons specified m the cable ordinance asofthe effective date

of this Franchise Agreement forafelony conviction for defrauding or attemptmg to defraud theCity or

subscribersif Franchisee abandons the cable system or for any 24 hour period willfully

refuses to provide service to the City or any substantial portion ofthe Cityinaccordance with

this Franchise Agreement andas otherwise provided herein. 137Remedies Cumulative. Allremedies under the

cable ordinance and

this Franchise Agreement are cumulative unless otherwise expressly stated. The exercise ofone

remedy shall not foreclose useof another nor shall the exercise ofa

remedy or the payment of hquidated damages or penalties relieve Franchisee of its obhgations to comply with

this Franchise Agreement Remedies may be used singly or in combmation in addition

the Citymay exercise any rights it hasat law or equrty at any time

Except that the City is not entitled to recover damages for the same in ury under two separate Sections where

doing so would resultmadouble recovery 33

Attachment A 
Current Franchise with Comcast 

Agenda Item 5A     Page 41Packet Page     213



13 8 Relatton to Insurance and Indemnity Requtrements. Recovery by the City of any

amounts under msurance the constructionperformance bond the letter of credit or otherwise

does not hmit Franchisee’sduty to mdemmfy the City m any way nor shall such recovery relieve Franchisee

ofits obhgations under this Franchise Agreement hmitthe amounts owed to the City or
in any respect prevent theCity from exercismg any other right or remedyit may have 14.

No Evasion Franchisee

shall not take any action toevade any provisionof this Franchise Agreementorthe

cable ordmance This provision shall be read to prohibit among other thmgs Franchisee requiring

any subscriber towaive any right mcludmg without limitation privacy rights as a condition

of obtaining service but this provision shall not be deemed to prohibit reasonable mandatory

arbitration clauses as a condition ofsubscription. 15.

Rights of Individnals Protected No

cable line wire amplifier converteror other piece of equipment ownedor controlled by

Franchisee shall be installed by Franchisee mside a dwelling or other occupied structure without

first securmg tha written permissionof the owner of the property involved except in those

cases where Franchisee ispermrtted byfederal or state law to mstall such facilities and equipment

mside the structure without permission.16.

Miscellaneous Provisions 16.1

CompkanceWith Laws. Franchisee and the City shall comply with all apphcable laws and
regulations as they become effective unless otherwise stated herem. 162

Govern ng Law.This Franchise Agreement shallbe governed inall respects by the laws of

the State of Colorado. 163

Force Ma eure. Franchiseeshall notbe deemed in default with provisions ofthis Franchise Agreement

where performance was rendered impossible bywaracts ofterrorism or riots civil

disturbances unforeseeable shortageofmaterials or qualified labor withholdmg of necessary permits

and authorizations strikes floods or other natural catastrophes beyond Franchisee’s control
andthe franchise shall not berevoked or Franchisee penalized for suchnon- compliance provided that

Franchisee takes immediate and diligent steps Co brmg rtself back into compliance and to

comply as soon as possible under the circumstances with this Franchise Agreement without unduly

endangering the health safety and mtegrity of Franchisee’s employees orpropertyor the
health safety and integrity of the public public rights of way public property or private property.

34

Attachment A 
Current Franchise with Comcast 

Agenda Item 5A     Page 42Packet Page     214



16 4 Notaces Unless otherwise expressly stated herein notices required under this

Franchise Agreement shall be faxed ar mailed first class postage prepaid to the addressees

below. Each party may change its designee by providmg written notice to the other party

16.41 Notices to Franchisee shallbe mailed toComcast

ofColorado IVLLC ATTN

Local Government Affairs8000

E. Ihff Ave. Denver

Colorado 80231 With

a copy to. Comcast

ofColorado IV LLC Attn.

Legal Department 1500
Market Street Philadelphia

PA 19102 16

4.2 Noticesto City shall be mailed to. City Manager

Post Office
Box 791 Boulder Colorado

80306 16.5 Calculation

ofTime. Unless otherwise indicated when the performance or doingof any act
duty matter or payment isrequired hereunder andaperiod of timeordurahon for the completion thereof is

prescribed and is fixed herein the time shall be computed so asto exclude the first and

mclude the last dayof the prescribed ar fixed period of duration time. 16.6 Timeof

EssenceMatntenance of Records of Essence. In determining whether Franchisee has substantially complied

with this Franchise Agreement the parhes agreethattmeisoftheessence to

this Franchise Agreement. The maintenanceofrecords and provision ofreparts maccordance with this
Franchise Agreement isalsoofthe essence to this Franchise Agreement 16 7Captions. The

captions and headings of this Franchise Agreement are for convemence and reference purposes

only and shall not affect m any way the meaning and mterpretation of any provisions

ofthis Franchise Agreement 16.8 Enttre Franchtse Agreement.

ThisFranchise Agreement represents the entire Franchise Agreement between the parties.

35

Attachment A 
Current Franchise with Comcast 

Agenda Item 5A     Page 43Packet Page     215



16 9 Counterparts. Thts Franchise Agreement may be executed in counterparts

16.10Effective Date. The effective dateof this Agreement shall be January1 2004. AGREED

TO THIS1 I DAY OF pp20.
City of Boulder

By2e6
’.

City

Manager ATTEST City Clerk on behalf

ofthe Director of Finance

and Record APPROVEDAS T-p

FORM

A __ A3T OF OL DO

IV LLC Mary Whrt Semor

VicePresident36

Attachment A 
Current Franchise with Comcast 

Agenda Item 5A     Page 44Packet Page     216



ACCEPTANCE

Comcast of Colorado IV LLC hereby accepts uncondrtionally and agrees to be bound by all the

terms and condrtions ofthis Franchise AQreement dated this ’day of -YNW r
20C as granted by the Boulder Crty

Council.

By STATE OFe
o

._ss. COUNTY
OFyThe foregomg mstrument wasack owledged befare meaNotary Pubhq this -l

dayofu e._20U byar

_-Tle .S’l’Witness my
hand

andofficial

sealn-’-" Notary

Pubhc
My commission expires l 3i200 sealudeutbbdbobbV

L"p’b’UUy fp-p-pyy-ry GLENN
E.WALKER

NOTARY PUBLIC STATE
OF COLORADO Y mm ss on

xpresan

Attachment A 
Current Franchise with Comcast 

Agenda Item 5A     Page 45Packet Page     217



EXHIBIT A

LIST OF LOCATIONS RECEIVING FREE CABLE SERVICE

Offices located at

Mumctpal Butldmg 1777 Broadway
Park Central Buldmg 1739 Broadway
New Brdam Buildmg 1101 Arapahoe
Ateium Buildmg 1300 Canyon
Mam Libraiy Baildmg 1000 Canyon Blvd

Boulder Mumcipal Courts 6th &
Canyon Public Woiks Admmishative Center 5050 East

Pearl Public Safety Buildmg 1805

33’ Spruce Pool andYouth Services Buildmg 2160
Spruce Parks&Recreation Admmishatrve Offices
3198 Bioadway Parks Mamtenance 5200

East PearlEast Boulder Commumty Centei

660 Sioux West Senior Center
909 Arapahoe Carnegie Brancl Library 1125

Pme Street Meadows Branch Library

4800Baselme ReynoldsBranch Lbrary 3595 Table

Mesa Drive Murucipal Channel8 1000

Canyon Blvd Dauy Center for theArts 2590

Walnut SCPue S ation #1 2441

13th StFire Statron #22225 Basel

neRdPue Stat on #3 1585

30th StFire SYation #4
4100 Dailey Fixe SCahon #5

436519thFre Stahon #6 5145

N63rd Fre Station #7

1380 SSth Noxth Soulder Recreation CenYer
3170 Bxoadway SouthBoulder Recreat on Centei

1360Gllespie

Attachment A 
Current Franchise with Comcast 

Agenda Item 5A     Page 46Packet Page     218



EXHIBIT B

RETURN LINES

1 1000 Canyon Blvd to Comcast Boulder headend 33rd &
Walnut technology fiber modulatoi provided andmamtamed by

Comcast use sole useisupstreamtransmiss onofPEG

signal 21777 Broadway to1000 Canyon

Blvd technology coaxmoddemod provided andmamtamed by

Comcast use ielayofprogrammngoiigmatmg mCtyCouncl

Chambeis 31805 33id toComcaet Bouldei headend 33rd
& Walnut technology coaxmodulator provdedand mamtamed

by Comcast use x5 year on test basis designed as back uptomam
PEG facility at1000 Canyon mevent of emergency that shuts down

mam studio42590 WalnuttoComcast Boulder headend

33rd &Walnut technology fiber modulator provided and

mamtamed by Comcast use upstream carnage

of PEG signal 5 CUstadiumtoComcasC Boulder
headend 33rd&Walnut technology coax modulator provided

and mamtamedby Comcast use upstream camage

of educational access programmmg 6 G500EArapahoe

to Comcast Boulder headendYechnology coax modulatox prov ded

and mamtamedby Comcast use upstreamcamageofschooldsu ctboard meetngs toComcast Bouldei

headend

formseitiononGovetnmantchannel

Attachment A 
Current Franchise with Comcast 

Agenda Item 5A     Page 47Packet Page     219



 

 

 

 

This Page Intentionally Left Blank 

Agenda Item 5A     Page 48Packet Page     220



Attachment B 
Franchise Extension, Ordinance 7785

Agenda Item 5A     Page 49Packet Page     221



Attachment B 
Franchise Extension, Ordinance 7785

Agenda Item 5A     Page 50Packet Page     222



Attachment B 
Franchise Extension, Ordinance 7785

Agenda Item 5A     Page 51Packet Page     223



Attachment B 
Franchise Extension, Ordinance 7785

Agenda Item 5A     Page 52Packet Page     224



ORDINANCE NO. 7952  
 

AN ORDINANCE AMENDING THE CABLE TELEVISION 
FRANCHISE AGREEMENT BETWEEN THE CITY OF 
BOULDER AND COMCAST OF COLORADO IV, LLC, TO 
EXTEND THE TERM OF THE FRANCHISE; AND SETTING 
FORTH RELATED DETAILS. 
 

 
The City Council finds that: 

 A.  On February 3, 2004, the Boulder City Council (“City”) adopted Ordinance No. 7324 
approving the grant of a nonexclusive franchise to Comcast of Colorado IV, LLC (“Comcast”) 
for its construction and operation of a cable television system within the City (the “Franchise”).  
 

B.  Comcast has preserved its right of renewal by timely filing a request with the City to 
activate the formal process for renewing the Franchise pursuant to the provisions of the Cable 
Communications Policy Act of 1984 (“Cable Act”).  
 
 C.  The existing Franchise was scheduled to expire on December 31, 2011. 
 
 D. On March 1, 2011, the City adopted Ordinance No. 7785 authorizing the city manager 
to enter into a two-year Franchise extension agreement with Comcast, since executed, to make 
the existing Franchise scheduled to expire on December 31, 2013.  
 
 D.  City staff and Comcast representatives have discussed the renewal of the Franchise.  
Each has agreed that its interests will be served by extending the existing Franchise for one 
additional year.  
 
 E.  The City Council, having been advised of the benefits of extending the existing 
Franchise, is agreeable to extending the term of the Franchise until December 31, 2014, and 
amending the Franchise Agreement accordingly.  
 
 NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY 

OF BOULDER, COLORADO: 

Section 1.  The City Council adopts, approves, and authorizes the city manager to enter 

into the Comcast franchise extension, entitled “Second Amendment to the Franchise Agreement 

Between the City of Boulder, Colorado and Comcast of Colorado IV, LLC Dated January 1, 

2004,” attached as Exhibit A and incorporated by this reference, extending the term of the 

Attachment C 
Proposed Franchise Extension, Ordinance 7952

Agenda Item 5A     Page 53Packet Page     225



Franchise until December 31, 2014.  The city manager is authorized to approve any minor 

changes as may be necessary prior to final execution by the parties. 

 
Section 2.  Except as specifically modified hereby, the Franchise shall remain in full 

force and effect. 

Section 3.  Neither party waives any right which it enjoys under law as a result of 

agreeing to this Franchise extension, and Comcast shall not be required to file any additional 

request or document in order to preserve its right of renewal under Section 626 of the Cable Act. 

Section 4.  This ordinance is necessary to protect the public health, safety, and welfare of 

the residents of the city, and covers matters of local concern. 

 Section 5.  The City Council deems it appropriate that this ordinance be published by title 

only and orders that copies of this ordinance be made available in the office of the city clerk for 

public inspection and acquisition. 

 

 INTRODUCED, READ ON FIRST READING, AND ORDERED PUBLISHED BY 

TITLE ONLY this 3rd day of December 2013. 

 
      
       Mayor 
Attest: 
 
 
City Clerk  
 

 

 

 

Attachment C 
Proposed Franchise Extension, Ordinance 7952

Agenda Item 5A     Page 54Packet Page     226



 

 READ ON SECOND READING, PASSED, ADOPTED, AND ORDERED 

PUBLISHED BY TITLE ONLY this 17th day of December, 2013. 

 
      
       Mayor 
Attest: 
 
 
City Clerk  
 

Attachment C 
Proposed Franchise Extension, Ordinance 7952

Agenda Item 5A     Page 55Packet Page     227



 

 

 

 

This Page Intentionally Left Blank 

Agenda Item 5A     Page 56Packet Page     228



 

 
 

CITY OF BOULDER 

CITY COUNCIL AGENDA ITEM 

 

MEETING DATE:  December 17, 2013 

 
 
AGENDA TITLE:  Update on Boulder’s Energy Future Municipalization Exploration 
Project.  
 

 
 

PRESENTERS  

Jane S. Brautigam, City Manager 
Tom Carr, City Attorney 
David Gehr, Deputy City Attorney 
Kathy Haddock, Senior Assistant City Attorney 
Debra Kalish, Senior Assistant City Attorney 
Bob Eichem, Chief Financial Officer 
Heather Bailey, Executive Director of Energy Strategy and Electric Utility Development 
David Driskell, Executive Director of Community Planning and Sustainability 
Maureen Rait, Executive Director of Public Works 
Jonathan Koehn, Regional Sustainability Coordinator 
Yael Gichon, Residential Sustainability Coordinator 
Kelly Crandall, Sustainability Specialist II 
Bob Harberg, Principal Engineer - Utilities 
Kara Mertz, Environmental Action Project Manager 
Carl Castillo, Policy Advisor 
Sarah Huntley, Media Relations/Communications Manager 
Andrew Barth, Communication Specialist III 

 

I. INTRODUCTION/PURPOSE  

 

The purpose of this agenda item is to:  
 Present information to council and receive council feedback on the next phase of the 

Municipalization Exploration Project work plan, including updates on:  
 The City of Boulder-Xcel Energy (Xcel) Partnership Task Force discussions, 

including:  
 Formation of subcommittees  
 Subcommittees’ work to date 

Agenda Item 6A     Page 1Packet Page     229



 

 Timeline for report on outcomes 
 Legal and regulatory actions 
 Transition Plan development 
 Energy Services Plan for 2014 
 Working Groups 

 Solar Working Group  
 Natural Gas Working Group 
 Governance Working Group 

 Public processes and input received related to this issue 
 Next steps  

 
II. EXECUTIVE SUMMARY AND BACKGROUND 

 
The City of Boulder has been through an extraordinary process with respect to the 
municipalization evaluation effort. Over the last year and a half, city staff, consultants and more 
than 75 community members have collected and evaluated data, built financial, resource, and 
probabilistic models, vetted assumptions and stressed the municipal model by adding varying 
levels of risk.  Throughout this process, staff was challenged by experts, supporters and 
detractors, and continued to improve the city’s analysis.  In addition, members of the public and 
staff increased their knowledge about what a local utility can do to further the community’s 
energy future goals.  By studying what other communities are doing with respect to increasing 
renewables, expanding distributed generation, and providing energy services targeted to their 
individual community needs, it has become clear that a city-owned utility has flexibility and 
capabilities a regulated utility may not have.  
 
Throughout this process, the city has, nonetheless, remained open to exploring other ways of 
achieving our community’s energy supply goals. These include the possibility of forming a new 
partnership or participating in new product and service offerings from Xcel Energy (Xcel). From 
April through July, a group of community leaders was formed to help the city and Xcel look at 
options related to alternatives to municipalization.   
 
In July, city staff presented the results of the quantitative modeling and the qualitative research to 
council, as well as an update about progress that had been made at that time in terms of 
partnership discussions with Xcel. In August, council authorized staff to move forward to: 1) 
continue discussions with Xcel in order to learn more about the potential products and services 
the company could provide; and, 2) proceed down a concurrent path toward acquiring the assets 
of Xcel and forming a locally owned utility. 
 
This is staff’s first formal update with council since that time, but there has been considerable 
activity.  Two ballot items related to the development of a local utility were presented to the 
community.  On Nov. 5, Boulder voters supported moving forward with the project but imposed 
an additional requirement that the cost of acquisition and any lump-sum payment for stranded 
costs cannot exceed $214 million. The approved measure also includes several significant 
provisions related to how out-of-city customers, if there are any, would be represented in future 
utility decisions. 
 

Agenda Item 6A     Page 2Packet Page     230



 

Some of the tasks completed between August and now include:   
 The city/Xcel partnership task force has continued to meet and has developed two 

subcommittees to further develop and vet Xcel’s proposed programs.  Xcel has stated it 
will have a recommendation ready to present to council the second quarter of 2014. Staff 
has worked with the task force to develop a schedule for completing this process.    

 Colorado Public Utilities Commission (PUC) filings by Xcel have required attention by 
both legal and energy future staff, and it has become apparent that the city will need to 
dedicate resources to working with the PUC as it moves forward. 

 The city filed for and received approval to become members of North American Electric 
Reliability Corporation (NERC) and Western Electricity Coordinating Council (WECC), 
which are the reliability oversight authorities with respect to the bulk power system of the 
country and region. This will allow city staff to obtain training and participate in these 
organizations, specifically related to reliability and planning for the bulk power system. 

 City staff has been working with consultants, engineers, and the legal team to identify 
and value the electric assets needed to support a locally owned utility in preparation for 
negotiation and potential condemnation actions and acquisition.      

 City staff has begun the process of developing transition plans to ensure that all aspects 
of operation are covered.   A Request for Proposal (RFP) has been issued for consulting 
help to develop a detailed work plan to encompass everything from substation 
maintenance to administrative processes such as customer accounting. Once a consultant 
is hired, the team anticipates it will take three to four months to develop the work plan 
and then 18 months to two years to implement it. 

 City staff has continued to explore opportunities for enhancing energy services and 
reducing emissions without owning poles and wires.  While the benefits that could be 
realized are limited in comparison to the possibilities of a full retail utility and wholesale 
power purchaser, several ideas are being vetted for new pilot initiatives that could 
advance Boulder’s Energy Future goals and demonstrate opportunities that could 
eventually be taken to scale.This process also provides a forum for integrating energy 
initiatives with other aspects of the city’s sustainability work, both in terms of synergies 
between different infrastructure systems and investments, and in terms of creating one-
stop customer service platforms.  Staff anticipates presenting pilot initiatives for council’s 
input early next year. 

 Various issues related to energy resources have developed at national and regional levels. 
Staff has formed two new working groups – solar and natural gas – to guide the city in 
these important policy areas and develop recommendations as the project moves forward. 

 Lastly, in July, the governance working group presented a set of recommendations that 
council adopted and which won overwhelming support in the ballot election.  As part of 
the next phase of municipalization evaluation, the governance working group had topics 
its members would like to further develop related to a utility advisory board appointment 
process, terms of service, delegation of powers, and advisory board/ staff relationship. If 
council so directs, staff will reconvene that working group to address these issues. 

 
There is significant work ahead, but this effort continues to represent a great opportunity for 
Boulder to make its goals a reality and truly move toward a sustainable low carbon future. This is 
no small task and the plan is likely to evolve as new information or agreements are developed.  
This will require both the discipline of having a well-developed plan and the flexibility to adjust 

Agenda Item 6A     Page 3Packet Page     231



 

as appropriate. The work plan for 2014 (Attachment A) presents some exciting opportunities for 
community collaboration and moves the city closer to achieving a low-carbon future.  
 
III. WORK PLAN UPDATE   

 

City of Boulder-Xcel Energy (Xcel) Partnership Discussions  

 
As mentioned previously, the City of Boulder and Xcel convened a task force of knowledgeable 
community members earlier this year to consider possible partnership options for achieving the 
city’s energy goals and develop new initiatives that Xcel might offer to the city and other 
communities throughout its utility system.   
 
During discussions with the task force, Xcel officials agreed to explore with Boulder an initial 
set of eight possible products and services to reduce energy demand; increase the use of 
renewable energy and distributed generation; reduce the use of coal for generating electricity; 
modify retail rates for customers; and reduce carbon emissions. Several of these concepts were 
first suggested by the city in its December 2012 white paper. With the exception of products or 
services tied to SmartGridCity infrastructure, these would be made available to other 
municipalities as well and, where applicable, to individual customers. Many of the products and 
services, if instituted in partnership with Xcel, would be subject to approval by the PUC.  
 
In July, Xcel presented a proposal to the task force that included a high-level analysis of the 
potential emission reductions, costs and overall impacts and benefits of a package of products 
and services. At its July 23 Study Session, City Council directed staff to continue to meet with 
Xcel as the company fleshed out the concepts presented to the task force and modeled the impact 
to Boulder ratepayers with regard to costs and benefits through increased renewable energy and 
emissions reductions. City Council affirmed this direction after a presentation by task force 
members at the Aug. 6 City Council meeting. At that time, Xcel indicated it could have a 
recommendation by the end of the year. 

 
Since Aug. 6, staff from the city, Xcel and the citizen members of the task force have continued 
to meet regularly. To streamline the work effort, the task force formed two sub-committees that 
are working in parallel. The first is working on the issues related to developing the details of the 
specific Xcel program offerings, while the second is focused on quantitative modeling tasks. The 
purpose of the ongoing meetings has been to identify the potential benefits of the company’s 
proposal for how it can support achieving the city’s Energy Future goals. The subcommittees 
include original task force members along with additional community experts approved by both 
the city and Xcel. 

 
Programs Subcommittee 
The scope of the Program Development subcommittee is to take the products and services 
proposed by Xcel in July and flesh them out from a concept to a more defined program that 
would meet the goals of the city.  This would include defining the goal of the program/service, 
description of the services to be offered, implementation (regulatory approval) and targeted 
customers, whether it will be a pilot program or included in Xcel’s tariff (i.e., open to all 
customers), and funding.  The programs will need to be developed in enough detail to allow the 

Agenda Item 6A     Page 4Packet Page     232

https://www-static.bouldercolorado.gov/docs/Dec_2012_Options_to_work_with_Xcel-1-201306061248.pdf
https://www-static.bouldercolorado.gov/docs/Boulder_Xcel_Energy_Taskforce_Reportfinal-1-201308061600.pdf


 

modelers to calculate the cost, benefits, and carbon reduction of the program, both in the city and 
in Xcel’s service territory. 
 
So far, the Programs Subcommittee has discussed current Xcel programs and services related to 
demand-side management (DSM), SmartGridCity and distributed generation. Task force 
members suggested a number of new opportunities, including re-evaluating the cost-
effectiveness metrics used to determine which energy efficiency programs Xcel operates; a one-
stop shop for Xcel, city and county incentives, allowing for a single point of contact to facilitate 
access to funding; on-bill financing to support access for low income residential customers to 
energy efficiency or demand side management improvements; energy performance contracts to 
finance upgrades;  looking at better data to segment customers for more effective marketing; and 
providing residential, commercial, and institutional customers with more real-time data. These 
are just a few examples of the many ideas submitted by the subcommittee. 
 
Modeling Subcommittee 
The scope of the Modeling Subcommittee is to review the inputs and assumptions used by Xcel 
and the city in their respective modeling.  The subcommittee will also provide feedback as to the 
process that provides outputs and compares them to the city models to ensure comparability in 
the modeling.  Xcel will be modeling using its Strategist tool, but incorporating updated and 
agreed upon resource assumptions for fossil fuel, wind, solar, carbon, etc. prices.  The city used 
different software for resources called HOMER.  The only assumptions that will be comparable 
will be in the resource modeling since this is where the impact of the programs and services will 
be reflected.  In other words, the modeling process will not incorporate costs related to 
acquisition, start-up or ongoing debt not associated with purchasing energy.  Xcel will model the 
programs assuming Boulder is part of the system and using the same process it would for its 
system.   
 
The Modeling Subcommittee has made significant progress in identifying a joint set of 
assumptions that can be modeled by the city and by Xcel. This is highly detailed and time-
consuming work because it requires identifying the different inputs and assumptions to be used 
in HOMER and Xcel’s Strategist1 model. City staff and Xcel staff have been discussing this 
separately with a goal of bringing forward a proposal to the task force in December. 
 
The modeling process takes a set of resource assumptions, such as wind prices, transmission 
costs and load forecasts that both Xcel and the city can agree to include in their independent 
models.  Once agreement is reached on reasonable assumptions for this process, Xcel will use 
them to model its proposed programs and services, which can be compared to a municipalization 
model using the same resource assumptions.  Both carbon reduction and cost of power will be 
compared under each scenario. 
 
Next Steps 
Originally, the task force intended to present the findings of the Xcel products and services 
analysis to City Council on Dec. 17. However, due to the time required for products and services 
                                                           
1
 Ventyx Strategist is the modeling software utilized by Xcel. 

 

Agenda Item 6A     Page 5Packet Page     233



 

ideas to go through Xcel’s internal vetting process, Xcel has indicated its representatives will not 
be ready to present a final package to council until June 2014.  
 
The task force met Dec. 9 to hear a presentation by Xcel on the outcome of its internal evaluation 
of new DSM programs (those suggested by the task force, as well as any new proposals by 
Xcel).  At that meeting, Xcel agreed to proceed with evaluating four of the 18 ideas suggested by 
the task force, and presented one new concept for piloting wifi thermostats2.  In addition, Xcel 
introduced eight product concepts it is evaluating such as LED midstream rebates, HID to CFL 
retrofits, LED parking garage fixtures, ECM for HVAC and small-building tune up.   
 
The modeling process will focus on finalizing a list of specific assumptions related to pricing of 
electric resources, which Xcel will then use to model the impact of any new products or services, 
as compared to their current base case.  The modeling done by Xcel will then be compared by 
the city to municipalization model with respect to benefits, costs and how it well the proposal 
achieves the community Energy Future goals. 
 
The task force members agreed the subcommittees had served their purpose and will begin 
meeting monthly as a whole to be briefed on the outcome of Xcel’s analysis.  They established a 
schedule through March to meet each month with the April meeting devoted to Xcel presenting a 
draft of their final recommendation.  At the June meeting, Xcel will present additional detail on 
the various products and services included in the Xcel proposal. The city expects this to include a 
more detailed description of what each offering could achieve, how the program might be rolled 
out to Boulder and Colorado customers and what type of regulatory approvals would be 
necessary moving forward. 
 
Lastly, Xcel has indicated company officials do not wish to sign a memorandum of 
understanding (MOU) for this part of the working group process.  Previously, the MOU was 
used to protect the discussions between the parties from being used in litigation, which supported 
an open sharing of information.   At the Dec. 9 meeting, the task force requested city staff to 
prepare an MOU for both parties to sign. 
 
Communications 
When appropriate, information related to outcomes of the partnership work will be 
communicated to the public through already available communication channels such as news 
releases and media pitches, the Energy Future website, Channel 8 programming, social media 
websites (Facebook and Twitter), the project email listserv and the project newsletter. Additional 
assistance is anticipated as the group approaches the second quarter of 2014 and makes its 
presentation to City Council.  
 

                                                           
2
 Xcel had previously agreed to work with Energy Efficiency Business Coalition and others on a stakeholder group 

to explore “smart” thermostats as part of its 2014 DSM Plan; it invited Boulder to participate as part of this 
process. 

Agenda Item 6A     Page 6Packet Page     234



 

Legal and Regulatory Actions 

 
Public Utilities Commission (PUC)  
 
Dockets Related to Municipalization   

Boulder is currently participating in two dockets related to municipalization: Xcel’s 2011 
Electric Resource Plan (ERP) and Xcel’s application for declaratory orders regarding service to 
electric utility customers outside the city.   

 

2011 ERP  
Regulated investor-owned utilities in Colorado must file their plans for the acquisition of 
additional electric generation with the PUC every four years.  Xcel filed its plan in October 2011.  
In its initial filing, Xcel recognized the possibility that Boulder could be leaving the Xcel system.  
Consequently, the company proposed that it acquire energy through short-term contracts with 
independent power producers.  Throughout 2012 and 2013, Boulder filed testimony and 
comments that proposed that it work with Xcel and the PUC to gradually transition away from 
Xcel’s system, thereby reducing the need to acquire additional generation. This would save other 
ratepayers the cost of that acquisition. On Sept.10, 2013, Xcel submitted its preferred resource 
acquisition plan, which included significant amounts of solar and wind power.  Boulder filed 
comments in support of the acquisition of renewable energy, but expressed concern regarding 
Xcel’s acquisition of more power than needed and much sooner than needed.  The city also noted 
Xcel’s failure to take into account the uncertainty of Boulder remaining a retail customer of 
Xcel. Staff from the Office of Consumer Counsel also suggested in its comments that Xcel 
should acquire fewer resources because of the likelihood of Boulder leaving the system.  The 
commission is scheduled to reach a decision in this proceeding on Dec. 9. Staff will update 
council on the outcome of this proceeding at the Dec. 17 meeting.   

 

Xcel’s Petition for Declaratory Orders   
On May 9, 2013, Xcel filed a petition for declaratory orders in which it sought rulings from the 
PUC that: (1) its right to serve customers located outside the city could only be taken away if a 
new utility could prove through a hearing before the PUC that Xcel was “unwilling or unable” to 
serve those customers; and, (2) having to build replacement facilities (presumably to replace 
facilities acquired by the city) did not constitute an inability to serve. The commission issued its 
decision in this proceeding on Oct. 29. The city filed an application for rehearing, reargument or 
reconsideration (RRR) of that decision on Nov.18. In its application for RRR, the city argued 
that, contrary to the PUC’s decision, it is council’s role to determine which assets should be 
acquired through condemnation and that the condemnation proceeding should be filed before the 
city seeks approval of a transfer of assets or the right to serve from the PUC. On Nov. 26, the 
PUC granted Xcel’s request to respond, on a limited basis, to some of the issues Boulder raised. 
This response was filed on Dec. 3, and the PUC is expected to issue a written ruling soon. Staff 
will update council on the outcome of this issue at the Dec. 17 meeting. 
 
The “Boulder Docket”   
Staff is also preparing for the likelihood that Xcel will re-file the “Boulder docket” (12A-155E). 
In this docket, Xcel sought to prevent Boulder residents and businesses from participating in 
energy efficiency and renewable energy programs. In 2012, Xcel’s application was dismissed 

Agenda Item 6A     Page 7Packet Page     235



 

and the docket was closed in 2013.  Before Xcel filed that petition, it suggested that the city 
agree to a proposal it made with regard to how to handle the city’s ongoing participation in these 
programs in light of the city’s exploration of municipalization, but refused to provide the 
information staff believed was important for council to have to make an informed decision 
regarding the proposal. The docket was closed “without prejudice,” meaning that Xcel could 
refile its request at a more appropriate time. Xcel has indicated to city staff that it believes this is 
the appropriate time to refile its request and has made another offer of settlement. Staff sent 
discovery requests in the original proceeding to obtain the information necessary to evaluate the 
proposal, but Xcel refused to answer the requests and the docket was closed before the city could 
file a motion to compel Xcel to answer.   
 
Dockets Unrelated to Municipalization 

Boulder is participating in four other dockets on issues unrelated to municipalization. Two are 
focused on Xcel’s demand-side management (DSM) programs, including the 2014 Plan for DSM 
programs and a “strategic issues” docket, which looks at overarching issues related to cost 
recovery and energy savings goals for 2015 through 2020.   

 
Boulder joined in the settlement for the 2014 Plan because it included provisions that could be 
helpful to local governments that are considering enhancing energy efficiency partnerships.   

 
Staff filed testimony in the strategic issues docket that supported the development of a new LED 
street lighting rebate program, but opposed cost recovery for unspecific distribution voltage 
optimization investments (investments on the utility side of the meter that reduce line losses) 
through DSM funding. Staff also promoted the idea of enhancing collaboration between utilities 
and local governments, based on governments’ ability to provide tailored services and leverage 
alternate funding sources. Part of Boulder’s involvement in DSM includes sending staff to 
quarterly “DSM Roundtable” meetings at which Xcel staff offer progress updates.   

 
Boulder is also a party in Xcel’s 2014 Renewable Energy Standard Compliance Plan, which has 
raised significant concerns about impacts to net metering and solar incentives. The city is still 
evaluating whether more active participation is warranted.   

 
Finally, PUC advisory staff recently opened an energy data access and privacy proceeding to 
discuss the current status of the energy data privacy rules, whether they should be expanded to 
data regarding customer natural gas usage, and whether the data privacy rules should be 
modified. This is a significant issue for Boulder because of the rules’ impacts on community-
wide greenhouse gas reporting and energy efficiency program operation. Boulder filed extensive 
comments and joined with a group of 10 communities, including two municipal utilities whose 
customers receive natural gas service from Xcel, to request that the rules include provisions that 
facilitate local government climate action and sustainability programs. The filings note that these 
programs have saved residents and businesses hundreds of thousands of dollars. Access to useful 
energy data to identify baselines and measure progress remains an important area of concern for 
numerous Front Range communities.   
 

Agenda Item 6A     Page 8Packet Page     236



 

Condemnation  
On Aug. 20, 2013, council authorized acquisition of Xcel’s facilities and property, including by 
condemnation, if necessary, in Ordinance 7918.  Under the law, the city must conduct good faith 
negotiations with Xcel prior to filing a petition in the district court. The first step is for the city to 
send a Notice of Intent to Acquire to Xcel. This notice will describe the property the city intends 
to acquire, advise Xcel that it is entitled to an appraisal at the city’s expense, and seek the names 
of the individuals with whom the city should negotiate. The notice of intent is not the same thing 
as initiating condemnation proceedings. Instead, it begins good faith negotiations, or a formal 
effort to start a dialogue with Xcel about the acquisition of the necessary assets to support a 
municipal utility.  If negotiations are successful, the city will proceed to work with its financial 
advisors to issue bonds to acquire the funds to acquire the electrical system.  If negotiations are 
not successful, the city would file a petition of condemnation with the Boulder District Court to 
pursue municipalization.  
 
Although the ordinance allows for condemnation to be filed Jan. 1, because negotiations will be 
starting later than originally anticipated, the city does not expect any condemnation action to be 
filed that soon.  On the other hand, Xcel has stated that it does not want to sell the assets, so it 
may shorten the time for good-faith negotiations so that it can make its legal challenges. 
 
At the Dec.17 council meeting, staff will present a graphic of how the main components of the 
municipalization project overlap.   
 

North American Electric Reliability Corporation (NERC) and Western Electricity Coordinating 
Council (WECC) Memberships 
 
The city recently submitted for membership in both NERC and WECC.  NERC is a self-
regulatory organization, subject to oversight by the U.S. FERC. NERC develops and enforces 
reliability standards; assesses adequacy; monitors the bulk power system; audits owners, 
operators, and users for preparedness; and educates, trains, and certifies industry personnel. 
NERC reliability standards define the requirements for planning and operating the North 
American bulk power system.  Members have the responsibility to promote, support and comply 
with the purposes of NERC.  Membership allows Boulder to participate in the development and 
enforcement of reliability standards. The motivation for becoming a member now is to raise 
industry awareness of Boulder’s efforts and to allow the city to gain access to education and 
training opportunities for its personnel.   
 
The WECC is the regional entity responsible for coordinating and promoting Bulk Electric 
System reliability in the Western Interconnection. In addition, WECC provides an environment 
for coordinating the operating and planning activities of its members.  As a member of WECC, 
the city will gain access to power and stability computer simulations, transmission data, and 
participate in standards development, and the transmission planning process.  
 
For NERC, Boulder has been approved as a member. Registration as an entity regulated by 
NERC will come with actual formation of the utility.   
 

Agenda Item 6A     Page 9Packet Page     237



 

For WECC, the city will become a voting member under the existing bylaws rather than 
amendments that are planned for the near future. The form of the application has been reviewed 
and approved by WECC staff.  The city will hear formally in December soon after the 
application is filed. 
 
Communications 
As expected, communications assistance for legal and regulatory actions is limited because 
information surrounding this aspect of the municipalization study needs to be confidential to 
protect the city’s position in current and future legal proceedings. Communications has and will 
continue to help when documents and outcomes enter the public domain either through a legal 
filing that makes them public or if the city decides that the information no longer needs to remain 
confidential.  It is likely that communications assistance will be critical as more previously 
confidential information becomes public through the filing of condemnation proceedings. 
Information provided to the public on costs, infrastructure acquisition, negotiations and other 
litigation will need to be communicated in a way that the general public can understand and 
follow along, should they choose to. Information will be released to the public through already 
available communication channels such as news releases and media pitches, the Energy Future 
website, Channel 8 programming, social media websites (Facebook and Twitter), the project 
email listserv and the project newsletter.  
 
It is also likely that communications assistance will be necessary to help with media requests as 
information is made public. Communications staff will help coordinate interviews and will also 
track the corresponding stories to ensure that the city’s messages are being conveyed accurately 
and understood by the public.  
 

Transition Plan 

On Nov. 27, the city issued an RFP to solicit proposals from qualified consultants to create a 
Transition Plan that builds upon the engineering, legal and financial work completed to-date and 
incorporates a work plan suitable for regulatory review. The anticipated outcome is a detailed 
Transition Plan work plan for use by the city that lays out the transition from current status to a 
full-retail utility operation. The plan would ensure that a city-owned electric utility can have the 
same or better reliability as Xcel and can keep rates at or below Xcel’s at the time of transition in 
accordance with Charter requirements. 
 
The transition plan will address both the initial start-up requirements and ongoing operations 
including: 
 

1. Administrative and Overhead Support Functions 
2. Distribution Operations and Maintenance 
3. Transmission Operations and Maintenance 
4. Resource Planning and Acquisition 
5. Reliability 
6. Asset Management 
7. Regulatory Requirements and Compliance Processes 
8. Customer Service 
9. Energy Resources (management and acquisition) 

Agenda Item 6A     Page 10Packet Page     238



 

10. Construction 
11. Rates and Fees 
12. Tasks related to legal process (acquisition, stranded costs, state regulatory, etc.) and 

internal process (utility formation, debt issuance, etc.) 
 
It is anticipated that a final transition plan will be completed early in the second quarter of 2014. 
 
Communications 
Communications assistance around the transition plan is expected to be a significant part of the 
2014 work plan. It will be important that members of our community understand what the 
process is for establishing this plan and what it means for the potential creation of a local electric 
utility. The plan is one of the first opportunities potential customers will have to see how a city 
utility would operate and provide them with service, both from a technical perspective and from 
a customer service perspective. Staff will be engaging the public during this process, similar to 
earlier phases, by creating a working group to review the detailed transition plan and ensure it 
incorporates any community desires or concerns. It is also likely that a webpage within the 
BoulderEnergyFuture.com website will be created and dedicated to explaining the plan. The 
communications team will create the website and announce the plan’s availability using already 
available communication channels such as news releases and media pitches, Channel 8 
programming, social media websites (Facebook and Twitter), the project email listserv, and the 
project newsletter. Other dissemination tactics will be evaluated as needed.  
 

Energy Services Plan for 2014 

The staff team associated with this project is working with other city departmental 
representatives to evaluate expanding existing and developing potential pilot projects that could 
be undertaken in 2014 to help advance Boulder’s Energy Future goals, achieve emission 
reductions, and exploit potential synergies between the city’s different infrastructure systems, 
investments and services.  
 
Most of the project ideas under consideration would piggy-back onto other areas of work already 
underway or contemplated as part of the 2014 work program, targeting specific opportunities for 
demonstrating local energy initiatives and piloting the concept of “energy as a service.” As 
specific ideas are further developed and vetted, the staff team will seek input from community 
experts as well as council. Implementation of pilot projects would also provide the opportunity to 
start building the organizational capacity for undertaking ongoing energy work, and to test 
alternative ideas of how an ongoing energy services entity could best be positioned in relation to 
other areas of “sustainability service.”  One possibility would be to create an energy services 
utility as an interim step toward creating a full retail utility, which could be funded by fees as an 
enterprise under TABOR or through a voter-approved tax. This would be a policy discussion for 
council at a later date. 
 
If Boulder municipalizes its electric system, these groundlaying energy services efforts could 
provide a framework for a city utility that provides electricity to Boulder customers. If Boulder 
does not municipalize, this would be a vehicle for continuing to further Boulder’s energy future 
goals, focusing on activities at the state level to enable quicker progress in decarbonizing the 
community’s energy supply.  

Agenda Item 6A     Page 11Packet Page     239



 

It is important to note that without owning and operating a retail utility there would be limits to 
what the city has the authority to do. It was the city’s previous analysis of energy options—
namely the potential for pursuing aggressive demand-side programs and on-site renewable 
generation—that led to the focus on changing the city’s energy supply and the exploration of 
municipalization. While demand side programs and on-site renewable can and will play an 
important role in the city’s overall efforts, there are significant limits on what can be achieved 
without having the full authority of the retail utility. 
 
Examples of services that could be provided, with appropriate funding, include: enhanced energy 
efficiency programs, increased local solar installations, the purchase and upgrade of street lights 
to increase energy efficiency, and testing of innovative technologies such as “behind-the meter” 
microgrids. Variations of these and other ideas are being explored as part of the pilot project 
discussions, and evaluated in terms of legal, technical, and financial barriers to implementation.   
 
Exploring Organizational Options 
Since council passed the acquisition ordinance, staff has been moving forward with the next 
steps towards acquiring the electric distribution system infrastructure. One of the major work 
efforts is a transition plan that will detail how the utility will provide reliable service, organize 
itself, and be prepared to operate on “Day 1.” In other words, how will this entity be organized 
before the infrastructure is acquired?  
 
A central focus of a new Boulder utility would be to design the “utility of the 21st century,” 
which would treat energy as a service, rather than a commodity. This utility would not be just 
about buying the poles and wires. There would need to be an appropriate organizational structure 
in order to implement the new utility model rather than replicate the utility model of the past. 
 
The time required for legal and regulatory processes provides a great opportunity to bring 
together energy activities that the city is currently providing or planning and look at them 
through the lens of a utility as well as integrating the city’s climate commitment and resiliency 
efforts, which are currently happening parallel to this process. For example, from the recent 
flood, a community conversation around neighborhood planning and resiliency has emerged with 
consideration of new models for neighborhood engagement. This effort could have significant 
applications with regard to energy goals as well. Staff intends to use this opportunity to integrate 
services within the city organization to address common goals. 
 
Examples of questions that need to be considered include: 
1) How might formation of a utility in the future inform the development of near-term pilot 
projects and new services?  
2) What current efforts are providing energy as a service?  
3) What processes and structuresneed to be in place to support our vision of ”the utility of the 
future,” and how do they relate to other parts of the city organization and its work?  
4) What is the business model for energy-as-a-service and alternative strategies for funding near-
term as well as long-term projects and services? 
 

Agenda Item 6A     Page 12Packet Page     240



 

Parallel Tracks 
The following graphic shows a high-level timeline for how the formation of a retail utility with 
ownership of poles and wires, the transition planning process development of near-term energy 
pilots that expand on the city’s existing energy efficiency services and related efforts. The 
transition planning commencing now could inform the development of a near-term services 
entity (beyond what currently exists) and lay the foundation for the overall structure for an 
integrated utility.   
 

Timeline

Transition Plan

TIMELINE & STEPS:
Where We Are Headed

2

Energy Services

Retail Municipal Utility

2014

Expand 
Efficiency & On-
Site Generation

Ramp Up Pilots
Integrate Pilots 

Into Services

2015 2016 2017

Develop Plan
Implement Plan, Linking Energy 

Services and Retail Utility

Commence Retail 
Utility Operations & 

Integrated 
Sustainability Services

Begin 
Acquisition & 

Transition

Continue Legal & Technical 
Processes

 
 
Next Steps 

There is a great deal of work ahead as we look to expand energy services. The list below 
highlights some of the work plan items but is by no means all inclusive of the work ahead. Some 
of the major milestones for 2014 and 2015 include: 

1. Identifying a core project team 
2. Developing a matrix and refine criteria for pilot projects with input from community 

working groups 
3. Analyzing funding/financing options and local generation potential – including what is 

possible to implement without ownership of the distribution system. 
4. Developing an organizational structure in coordination with the city management team 
5. Developing and implementing a public process and communications plan including: 

a. Engaging working groups on the proposed pilot projects 
b. Returning to council for input 
c. Engaging the community on the proposed services to pilot or pursue for full 

implementation 
6. Developing any necessary legal and financial structures and putting the necessary 

organizational resources into place 
7. Implementing initial offerings 

 
Staff intends to return to council in early 2014 for a study session on a proposed plan. 
Community input would be sought shortly thereafter with staff hoping to return to council for the 
ordinance process in late 2014. Selection of new pilot programs could be ready for 
implementation in early 2014 with additional service offerings available in 2015. 
 

Agenda Item 6A     Page 13Packet Page     241



 

Communications 
Announcing the desired expansion of energy services and educating the public about what this 
means for Boulder will be at least as important as sharing information about the transition plan. 
This step will underscore the city’s commitment to providing energy services to meet the goals 
of the community regardless of the outcome of acquisition proceedings. At the appropriate time, 
communications will assist with all messaging and potential branding, if any, around the creation 
of energy services. This will include the creation of a webpage within the 
BoulderEnergyFuture.com website and updating it regularly with new information that will help 
potential audiences learn about and get involved in the formation of a non-retail electric utility in 
Boulder. Communications will also assist in creating and updating talking points, fact sheets and 
other documents that will aid in the public’s understanding of the city’s work. Staff will use 
traditional communications tactics like news releases, listserv messages, Channel 8 programming 
and social media sites to provide new and timely information to the public.  
 
Because this project will require enhanced public involvement to help shape its vision and 
framework, it is also anticipated that there will be a need for communications efforts that invite 
the public to participate and provide feedback. This may include open-house style informational 
meetings and the creation of videos that focus on energy services. These videos will be shared 
via the project website and city social media platforms and also disseminated through existing 
external networks in order to further the reach of the information to people who may not already 
be involved in the Energy Future project.  
 

Working Groups 

 

Solar Working Group  

Because of the success of the Municipalization Exploration Project working groups in vetting 
complex information, staff formed a Solar Working Group to provide information and 
recommendations on several aspects related to local solar development. More specifically, this 
group originated because of concerns that have been expressed by both solar industry 
representatives and by residents and businesses who have or want solar about what would 
happen to incentives contracts with Xcel, both in the near and long term, if the city 
municipalizes. While the city has committed to work to make those who have signed solar 
contracts financially whole, staff needs more information about what customers expect, what 
existing contracts include and how the city can best develop local solar resources. 
 
The purpose of the group is to focus on two key questions: (1) how Solar*Rewards contracts 
should be treated by Boulder and Xcel to provide certainty in the marketplace; and (2) how 
Boulder can best foster local distributed solar development, whether or not it becomes a local 
electric utility—i.e., defining the role of local distributed solar in the electric utility of the 
future. The working group has approximately 26 members representing diverse perspectives, 
including industry representatives, financiers, large customers, engineers, renters, low-income 
representatives, and researchers. The list of members and scope and purpose of the Solar 
Working Group is provided in Attachment B.  
 
The Solar Working Group held its first meeting on Nov. 14, at which members provided 
feedback as to their goals for the working group process. In general, attendees at the first meeting 

Agenda Item 6A     Page 14Packet Page     242



 

expressed concerns about the discussion that is occurring in multiple states about the value of 
solar power in the regulated utility industry. This seems to be taking precedence over concerns 
about the process of transitioning existing and near-future solar contracts should Boulder form a 
local electric utility. Working group members suggested that the group explore opportunities 
related to solar, including developing new market-based, rather than incentive-based, business 
models; looking at the city’s ability to reduce “soft costs” related to taxes, fees, and permits; 
examining how new technologies and financing approaches could facilitate access to solar by 
customers who are beyond the early adopters; and looking at how to value solar more effectively. 
The working group seemed certain that solar will play a large role in the utility of the future. 
 
The Solar Working Group is expected to meet once per month through April or May 2014. The 
group is expected to make recommendations around the role of solar in the electric utility of the 
future and will be meeting in conjunction with the existing Resource, Financial, and Reliability 
working groups for further input. 
 

Natural Gas Working Group  
Given the tremendous growth in natural gas production in Colorado, the current and future use of 
natural gas as an energy source for Boulder customers has raised concerns over fracking -- a 
process that uses a pressurized water mixture to release oil or natural gas from deep 
underground. On Nov. 5, Boulder voters passed a ballot measure that would institute a five-year 
moratorium on fracking in Boulder and on Boulder-owned open space property. This allows the 
community time to provide input on resource options as the city evaluates sources of future 
electricity.   
 
In addition to concerns over fracking, there is a growing concern of methane leakage.  While it is 
widely accepted that burning natural gas emits significantly less carbon dioxide than burning 
coal, recent studies have found that using natural gas may actually release more greenhouse 
gases over its lifecycle. That’s because quantities of raw methane, a major component of natural 
gas, can escape into the atmosphere during natural gas extraction, production and distribution. 
Natural gas is likely to be a necessary transition energy source as Boulder makes what the city 
hopes will be a dramatic shift away from coal and other fossil fuels toward renewable sources.  
The feasibility modeling associated with municipalization identified a number of resource 
portfolio scenarios; each of these included some amount of generation coming from natural gas3 
for some period. If Boulder chooses to municipalize, before a commitment is made to a 
particular energy portfolio, it will be important to address concerns around the use of natural gas 
supplied from fracking and how any negative impacts could be mitigated through best practices 
or other means. 
 
The Natural Gas Working Group consists of industry specialists and local stakeholders and was 
formed to explore concerns and opportunities related to the use of natural gas to generate 
electricity for the City of Boulder, should it decide to form a local electric utility. This working 
group will provide valuable recommendations, as natural gas will likely play a significant role in 
Boulder’s energy portfolio, whether the community continues to be served by Xcel or by a 
municipal utility. While the focus of the group’s work will be to examine issues and concerns 
                                                           
3 

The city’s modeling evaluated five scenarios that included natural gas as a fuel source.  The modeled percentages 
ranged from 32 to 46 percent in 2017. 

Agenda Item 6A     Page 15Packet Page     243



 

related to fracking and methane releases, it will also be exploring current and possible industry 
best practices and potential alternatives for gas replacement. 
 
The working group will also provide input into future city comments on rules related to this 
issue. For example, the Colorado Air Quality Control Commission was recently presented with 
proposed regulations to streamline the state air quality program and address the growth in oil and 
gas development. The purpose of the rulemaking is to begin the process of developing and 
implementing programs necessary to meet federal air quality standards for ground-level ozone 
and protect public health. Oil and gas activity is now the largest contributor to harmful ozone 
levels and the only source expected to grow4. The city is part of a local Government Coalition 
intended to support regulatory changes that streamline air pollution controls for all sources, 
where appropriate, and address the rapid growth in emissions from the oil and gas industry. 
 
The working group members represent diverse perspectives and include representation from a 
number of stakeholders. The list of members and scope and purpose of the Natural Gas Working 
Group is provided in Attachment C.   The working group held its first meeting on Dec. 5, at 
which they discussed options for identifying specific topics for group discussion, and near-term 
analysis necessary to develop draft guiding principles related to the procurement and use of 
natural gas in the future. As it develops recommendations, the working group will meet in 
conjunction with the existing Resource, Financial and Reliability working groups to receive 
additional input. 
 

Governance Working Group  
In May of this year, a Governance Working Group was created to work with city staff to 
understand the flexibility and limitations of the Boulder City Charter electric utility advisory 
board language, specifically Article XIII “Light and Power Utility,” and to develop a 
recommendation for City Council on any necessary ordinance amendments or other suggestions 
about how the utility should be governed. It was important to convene this group for a variety of 
reasons, most notably to ensure the appropriate level of customer participation in the governance 
structure, including those who might be within the service territory but outside the city’s 
boundaries. 

The working group consisted of 15 members selected on the basis of their diverse backgrounds 
and perspectives. It met four times beginning on May 29 and ending on June 26. During this 
time, the members reviewed the system of governance already provided for by Boulder’s Charter 
and the types of decisions that the City Council and the utility advisory board could be expected 
to face. 

On July 15, the Governance Working Group made several recommendations to City Council, all 
of which are captured in a memo available by clicking here. Two of these recommendations, 
pertaining to requiring the utility advisory board to advise the council on rate making and for 
out-of-city customers to be represented on the utility advisory board, were incorporated into the 
city’s 2013 Ballot Question 2E, which passed Nov. 5.  

                                                           
4
Regional Air Quality Council, 2013 

Agenda Item 6A     Page 16Packet Page     244

https://www-static.bouldercolorado.gov/docs/Final_Memo_to_Council_on_Governance_Working_Group_Recommendations_wAttachments-1-201307151214.pdf


 

The working group was not able to consider recommendations on several other topics, including: 

 Advisory board appointment process 
 Advisory board term limits 
 Delegation of powers from council to the advisory board 
 Advisory board/staff relationship 

While these topics were of interest to one or more members, time limitations prevented them 
from being evaluated. Moreover, it was determined that it might be best to seek council direction 
on whether it wanted to receive recommendations on these or other topics of governance later 
this year or at a date closer to the creation of a local electric utility. If City Council is interested 
in receiving recommendations on these or other governance related topics, staff will reconvene 
the Working Group in 2014 for such purpose.  

Communications 
Communications assists with all community working groups by creating and maintaining group 
webpages and by attending meetings in order to take notes, provide guidance and answer 
questions. Communications also helps disseminate any report issued by a working group that 
should be seen and understood by City Council, members of the public and any other audience 
that may be relevant. Communications is also assisting with media coordination and story 
tracking.    
 

IV. FISCAL IMPACT  

 

The municipalization exploration work plan represents a significant undertaking. In particular, 
the legal and technical work necessary to determine the final costs for potential acquisition of the 
local distribution system and launch of a municipal utility is a considerable investment.  
 
Recognizing this, in 2011, city voters approved an increase to the Utility Occupation Tax in the 
amount of $1.9 million a year. The use of this tax revenue has been allocated to legal services, 
consulting services related to possible municipalization and separation of Xcel’s system 
(engineering and appraisal services), salary and benefits and purchased services and supplies. 
 
The 2013 total budget of $3,251,935 is funded from the Utility Occupation Tax as well as a one-
time General Fund request of $303,000 allocated to support staffing needs for this project and 
$1,048,935 prior year carryover from 2012. The carryover reflects savings from hiring the 
director mid-year in 2012 and a delay in spending for legal fees to negotiate the purchase of the 
system and engineering fees to assess and determine the technical capabilities of the system. To 
date, expenditures have been within budget. A more detailed description of 2013 budget is 
included in the Dec. 17 information packet. 
 
The approved budget for 2014 is $2,312,000; $1,957,000 is funded from the Utility Occupation 
Tax ($1.9 million, plus a three percent tax increase approved by council on Oct. 25, 2013, 
pursuant to the original ordinance) and $355,000 that is funded through one-time savings in the 
General Fund to support salaries and benefits for high priority staffing needs. It is anticipated 

Agenda Item 6A     Page 17Packet Page     245



 

that there will be additional funds carried over from legal and consulting purchase orders 
encumbered in 2013. 
 
The work anticipated in 2014 will involve significant expenditures. In addition to the work plan 
items that have been anticipated since the start of this project, additional tasks have emerged and 
are likely to emerge as the legal and regulatory processes unfold. City Council should anticipate 
the possibility that additional resources will be needed in 2014. Staff will bring these needs and 
proposals forward as they arise. 
 
V.  NEXT STEPS 

 

Next steps include:  
 
Fourth Quarter 2013 

1) Send a notice of intent to acquire to Xcel and initiate negotiations for the electric system 
(if Xcel comes forward with a new set of programs and services that meet the community 
needs, negotiations and condemnation can be discontinued) (December) 

2) Addressing outcomes from PUC decisions on who serves what customers as well as the 
impact of acquiring electric assets outside the city limits. City staff will work with PUC 
staff to address their concerns for a smooth transition. (October- ongoing) 

 
First Quarter 2014 

1) Continue negotiations with Xcel to acquire electric assets, if not successful file for 
condemnation.   

2) Bring all working groups together to kick off the next phase of the project (January) 
3) Select a consultant to develop transition work plan and begin the detailed tasks of 

preparing to own and operate an electric utility. If Xcel offers a better alternative, these 
plans can be adjusted to respond to the alternative. (January) 

4) City-Xcel Partnership Task Force monthly updates to City Council (January through 
March)  

5) Exploring and piloting energy services programs. 
6) Reconvene the Governance working group, if so directed by council, to flesh out 

remaining  issues should the city moves forward with municipalization and attempt to 
serve out-of-city customers 

7) Working with Solar and Gas working groups to address community concerns and create 
alternatives to support reduced emissions and increased local generation (January through 
ongoing) 

8) City Council Study Session 
 

Second Quarter 2014 
1) Presentation from Xcel on the recommended products and services that have been vetted 

by the task force and the Xcel organization that will achieve the city’s energy future goals 
(April) 

2) City Council Study Session 

Agenda Item 6A     Page 18Packet Page     246



 

3) Presentation from Xcel to City Council on the recommended products and services that 
have been vetted by the task force and the Xcel organization that will achieve the city’s 
energy future goals (June) 

 
Third Quarter 2014 

1) City Council Study Session 
 
Fourth Quarter 2014 

1) City Council Study Session 
 
Roundtable meetings may be scheduled as topics arise. 
   
VI. ATTACHMENTS 

  
Attachment A:  Draft Work Plan 
Attachment B:  Solar Working Group Membership, Purpose and Scope 
Attachment C:  Natural Gas Working Group Membership, Purpose and Scope 

 
 

Agenda Item 6A     Page 19Packet Page     247



 

 

 

 

This Page Intentionally Left Blank 

Agenda Item 6A     Page 20Packet Page     248



December 11, 2013

2014 DRAFT High Level Work Plan (dates shown where known or able to be estimated; subject to modification throughout the year)

Xcel Partnership Task Force

Ongoing Monthly meetings of task force

December 2013 Base modeling inputs completed

January - March 2014 Xcel Energy presents SmartGrid and distributed generation offerings to task force

February 2014 Evaluate Xcel's assumptions, make additional assignments if necessary

March 2014 Finalize modeling assumptions to model new products and services

March 2014 Gather data to perform comparative analyses between muni and status quo

April 2014 Presentation from Xcel to the task force on the full package of offered products and services 

May 2014 Follow up from task force to answer and refine products and services and form recommendation to 

City Council

June 2014 Xcel Presentation to City Council on the full package of offered products and services 

Regulatory Activity

Anticipated CPUC Boulder Docket

December 2013 - March 2014 2014 Renewable Energy Standard proceeding

January - March 2014 Energy Data Access and Privacy proceeding

December 2013 - June 2014 Demand-Side Management Strategic Issues proceeding

Ongoing Other energy related/municipalization related proceedings

January - March 2014 Manage membership applications with NERC and WECC

Condemnation Activities

Order and timing will vary Notice of Intent

Order and timing will vary File condemnation petition

Order and timing will vary Good faith negotiations with Xcel

Order and timing will vary Receive Xcel's appraisal

Order and timing will vary Condemnation case

Order and timing will vary Amend petition if necessary

Order and timing will vary Authority to condemn granted

Order and timing will vary Case management order issued

ATTACHMENT A

Agenda Item 6A     Page 21Packet Page     249



Condemnation Activities (continued)

Order and timing will vary Refine separation plan

Order and timing will vary Discovery process

Order and timing will vary Jury trial

Order and timing will vary FERC activities

Regional collaboration

Ongoing Meet with other municipal utilities and surrounding communities

Energy Services Plan

January 2014 Form project team

January 2014 Pecan Street pilot project set-up and recruitment period

January 2014 Develop list and criteria for prioritizing pilot projects

First Quarter 2014 Inventory existing energy services and enhancements

February 2014 Analyze funding options for pilots

February 2014 Communications planning 

February - March 2014 Pecan Street equipment installed and web portal activated 

April 2014 Pecan Street Mobile Application live

April 2014 Council check in on energy services

March - December 2014 Community outreach

June 2014 Council check in on proposed pilots and energy services

June - September 2014 Engage community to design services

August - November 2014 Refine initial offerings

Fourth Quarter 2014 Develop any enabling ordinance(s)

Ongoing Quarterly reports and project refinement

Local Generation Assessment

February 2014 Engage working groups in assessment priorities and process

March 2014 Complete Scope of Work, guiding principles and RFP for local generation assessment

April 2014 Select consultant 

May - August 2014 Analysis and assessment of generation potential

ATTACHMENT A

Agenda Item 6A     Page 22Packet Page     250



Local Generation Assessment (continued)

August 2014 Review preliminary findings with working groups

September 2014 Refine assessment and analysis

October 2014 Present preliminary key findings to council/community

Transition Plan

January 2014 Interview and select transition planning consultants

January 2014 Establish transition planning working group

February 2014 Collaborate with existing city admin and support functions for transition work plan

March - April 2014 Review draft transition work plan with other city departments

April 2014 Final transition work plan

June 2014 Review transition work plan with City Council

2015-20xx Execute transition work plan

Solar Working Group

December - April 2014 Meet monthly

April 2014 Evaluate Solar Working Group findings with other working groups

May 2014 Finalize recommendations for review by council or other governing entity

Natural Gas Working Group

January - February 2014 Participation in CDPHE Stakeholder Oil and Gas Rulemaking process 

December 2013 - April 2014 Gather data and research related to hydraulic fracturing, fugitive methane, industry best practices 

and natural gas alternatives

April 2014 Identify guiding principles related to natural gas issues; coordinate with other working groups

May 2014 Finalize guiding principles and proposed incentives programs to go to City Council or, if it exists at 

that time, a Utility Advisory Board

ATTACHMENT A

Agenda Item 6A     Page 23Packet Page     251



 

 

 

 

This Page Intentionally Left Blank 

Agenda Item 6A     Page 24Packet Page     252



Solar Working Group 
 

Purpose and Scope 

 
The solar working group is convening to focus on questions related to the development of solar 
power in Boulder, included but not limited to: current and future incentives, barriers to solar 
development, and the future development of innovative distributed generation (DG) pilot 
projects. The group will attempt to address the following issues: 
 

1. Develop guiding principles: what is the role of distributed generation such as solar in 
the utility of the future, either through the creation of a new municipal utility or 
through a continued partnership with Xcel Energy? 

2. What barriers currently exist to achieving the future role of distributed generation? 
3. Regarding the “Boulder docket”1: 

o Are there barriers in the current solar marketplace specifically related to the 
municipalization effort? 

o What is a fair way to address new solar contracts that occur prior to 
municipalizing that provides certainty in the marketplace without 
compromising Boulder’s ability to incentivize local solar in the future? 

4. Should the group determine an appropriate increase in solar installations, what is the 
place for roof-top versus utility scale solar? What are the benefits and risks of each? 

o How can a future vision of solar in Boulder be realized through a municipal 
utility? Through a partnership with Xcel? 

o What incentivizes solar development from both the developer and the 
customer perspective? 

o What type of analysis or evaluation is necessary to understand issues such as 
capacity, site suitability or incentive structures? 

o To the extent funding is required, where do we get the money and how do we 
direct it? 

 

Working Group Meetings 

 
The working group will meet once per month from November 2013 through May or June 2014. 
 

 Sept./Oct. 2013 – Recruit members 
 Nov. 2013 – Kickoff working group and discuss guiding principles (i.e., 

role of distributed solar in the utility of the future). 
 Dec. 2013 to Apr. 2014 – identify (1) approaches to handle new 

Solar*Rewards contracts in Boulder docket and (2) incentive programs for 

                                                           
1 The “Boulder docket” is a petition by Xcel to limit the future participation of Boulder customers in its Solar*Rewards, Solar*Rewards 
Community, and demand-side management (energy efficiency and demand response) programs.  The Commission decided the application, filed 
in early 2012, was premature, but Xcel has stated that it may seek to revisit this issues based on Council approving moving forward with 
condemnation in August. The docket can be found here: 
https://www.dora.state.co.us/pls/efi/EFI.Show_Docket?p_session_id=&p_docket_id=12A-155E 
 
 

ATTACHMENT B

Agenda Item 6A     Page 25Packet Page     253

https://www.dora.state.co.us/pls/efi/EFI.Show_Docket?p_session_id=&p_docket_id=12A-155E


the municipal utility or for a local energy service utility. Anticipate 4-5 
meetings depending on holiday scheduling. 

 Apr. 2014 – take guiding principles and proposals to other working groups 
for review (Resource, Financial, Reliability). 

 May 2014 – finalize guiding principles and proposed incentives programs 
to go to City Council or, if it exists at that time, a Utility Advisory Board. 

 

Working Group Members 

 
COMMUNITY MEMBERS  (Members CVs are provided here) 
Anne Guilfoile 
Annie C. Lappé 
Becky English 
Bill Ellard 
Cameron McGregor  
Chad Parsons 
Craig Jarvis 
Dan Kramer 
Dave Hatchimonji 
Jason Wiener 
Jim Hartman 
John E Johnson 
John Street 
Kai Abelkis 
Ken Gamauf 
Matt Lehrman 
Paul Melamed  
Phil Klam 
Phil Wardwell 
Puneet Pasrich 
R.T. Weber  
Scott E. Stevenson 
Scott Franklin 
Steve Hoge 
Todd Stewart 
Tom Christoffel 
Meghan Nutting 
Dietrich Hoefner 
 
STAFF 

Yael Gichon – Energy Sustainability Coordinator 
Kelly Crandall – Energy Sustainability Specialist 
Jonathan Koehn – Regional Sustainability Coordinator 
Andrew Barth – Communications Specialist 

ATTACHMENT B

Agenda Item 6A     Page 26Packet Page     254

https://bouldercolorado.gov/energy-future/energy-future-solar-community-working-group


 

Natural Gas Working Group 
 

Purpose and Scope 

 
The working group will focus on questions related to the use of natural gas to generate electricity 
for the City of Boulder. Natural gas will likely play a significant role in Boulder’s energy 
portfolio, whether the community continues to be served by Xcel Energy or by a municipal 
utility.  The focus of the group’s work will be to examine issues and concerns related to 
hydraulic fracturing (“fracking”) and methane releases and to explore current and possible 
industry best practices in order to inform any process moving forward. The group will also 
explore viable alternatives to natural gas that support the Boulder Energy Future goals.  The 
group’s recommendations will be discussed in a joint working group session with the Resource 
Working Group in 2014, and the final guiding principles and recommendations will be presented 
to City Council or, if it exists at that time, a Utility Advisory Board. 
 

 The group will attempt to address the following issues: 

 
1. Develop guiding principles: what is the role of natural gas, either through the creation of 

a new municipal utility or through a continued partnership with Xcel Energy? 
2. Understand how the use of natural gas for electricity differs from that which is used for 

heating (i.e., quantities, source, delivery methods, etc).   
3. As Boulder pursues a portfolio that addresses both environmental and economic drivers, 

what role should natural gas play in meeting Boulder’s short and long-term resource 
needs? What are the associated benefits and risks? 

4. What alternatives or industry best practices exist that eliminate or reduce the risks 
associated with fracking or fugitive methane release? What is the best way that Boulder 
can promote those best practices? 

5. If Boulder does not form a local retail electric utility, what are ways to minimize harmful 
impacts from natural gas associated with Xcel energy’s resource portfolio? 

6. What type of analysis or evaluation is necessary to understand issues above? 
 

Working Group Meetings 

 
The working group will meet once per month from December 2013 through May or June 2014. 
 

 Oct./Nov. 2013 – Recruit members 

 Dec. 2013 – Kickoff working group and discuss purpose and issues; discuss current 
issues related to natural gas; identify additional working group members 

 Dec. 2013 to Apr. 2014 – Gather data and research to support guiding principles; 
explore issues, risks and alternatives related to (1) fracking and methane release (2) 
industry best practices, responsible sourcing options and alternatives. Staff anticipates 4-
5 meetings depending on holiday scheduling. 

 Apr. 2014 – take guiding principles and proposals to other working groups for review.  

ATTACHMENT C

Agenda Item 6A     Page 27Packet Page     255



 

 May 2014 – finalize guiding principles and proposed incentives programs to go to City 
Council or, if it exists at that time, a Utility Advisory Board. 

 

Working Group Members 

 
COMMUNITY MEMBERS (Members CVs are provided here) 
Bill Ellard 
Alison Burchell 
David Scott 
Jim Look 
Lynn Segal 
Micah Parkin 
Neshama Abraham 
Pam Milmoe 
Pete Morton 
Puneet Pasrich 
Robyn Kube 
Sharon Klipping 
Tim Thomas 
Todd Bryan 
Tom Asprey 
Dickey Lee Hullinghorst 
 
STAFF 

Jonathan Koehn- Regional Sustainability Coordinator 
Yael Gichon – Residential Sustainability Coordinator 
Kelly Crandall – Sustainability Specialist 
Sarah Huntley – Media Relations/Communications Coordinator 
 
 

 
 

ATTACHMENT C

Agenda Item 6A     Page 28Packet Page     256

https://bouldercolorado.gov/energy-future/energy-future-natural-gas-working-group


 
 

CITY OF BOULDER 
CITY COUNCIL AGENDA ITEM 

 
MEETING DATE: December 17, 2013  

 
 
AGENDA TITLE: Request for direction on the 2014 Community Survey  
 
 
 
 
PRESENTER/S  
Jane S. Brautigam, City Manager  
Paul J. Fetherston, Deputy City Manager  
Patrick von Keyserling, Communications Director 
Jean Gatza, Sustainability Planner   
 
EXECUTIVE SUMMARY 
Staff seeks direction regarding the proposed questions for the 2014 Community Survey. 
The purpose of the survey is to learn from residents, to receive feedback about what is 
working or not working with local government services, to understand from residents 
what they value as community priorities for government services and programs and to 
monitor trend lines.  
 
The city staff team and the City Council Subcommittee (Council members Jones and 
Young) have developed draft questions for the 2014 questionnaire. These include 
revisions to the 2011 survey questions, as well as a few new questions. The survey 
consultant, National Research Center, will complete the final wording of the questions 
based on this draft and council direction.  
 
 
STAFF RECOMMENDATION 

Staff requests council direction regarding the proposed questions for the 2014 
Community Survey.  

 
 

Agenda Item 6B     Page 1Packet Page     257



COMMUNITY SUSTAINABILITY ASSESSMENTS AND IMPACTS 
• Economic: There are no direct economic impacts or benefits to the community 

from the community survey. The results of the survey may inform decision-
making regarding the city budget, including Boulder Economic vitality efforts.   

• Environmental: There are no direct environmental impacts or benefits from the 
information presented in the report. However, the results of survey include issues 
that may affect decision making as it relates to environmental sustainability. 

• Social: A primary purpose of the survey is to conduct a public outreach effort that 
will provide results of a representative sample of the views of Boulder residents. 
Residents will be asked to make judgments about what is working well and what 
is not working well in city service delivery, quality of life in Boulder, and 
community priorities.  

 
OTHER IMPACTS  
Fiscal: $45,000 is the budget for the project.   
 
Staff time: It is anticipated that staff support of the community survey process will be 
completed within existing resources.  
 
BACKGROUND 
Purpose of the Community Survey 
The purpose of the survey is to learn from Boulder residents how they feel about local 
government; to understand what they believe is working well and what is not in city 
service delivery; and to learn what issues residents believe will affect Boulder in the 
future. The City of Boulder has conducted a community survey about every two years 
from 1987 to 2001 and then again in 2007 and 2011.  
 
Proposed Schedule 
The schedule for the 2014 Community Survey has been developed in order to have the 
results back in April and May to inform the 2015 budget process. Depending on direction 
from City Council and recommendations by the selected survey consultant, the schedule 
may change from what is listed here.  

December 17 Present draft survey questions to City Council  
Early January   Deadline for final materials   
January-February  Consultant distributes and collects surveys 
March-April                 Consultant compiles results 
Early-April                    Receive Draft Results - city staff review & feedback   
May 1   Receive final report 
May   Public presentation of results to City Council & 

community 
 
ANALYSIS 
The draft questionnaire for the 2014 Community Survey is included in Attachment A.   
 
The City Council Subcommittee (Jones, Young) reviewed the draft survey and provided 
feedback. The subcommittee supported the goals and approach, recommended wording 

Agenda Item 6B     Page 2Packet Page     258



changes that are reflected in the attachment, and requested potential new questions 
related to the city’s flood response, funding priorities and arts and cultural priorities.  
 
Council members are asked to review the draft survey and focus their feedback on 
whether the topic areas or mix of topic areas covered in the survey reflect the type of 
information council wishes to obtain from the public. As the questionnaire is further 
reviewed by staff throughout the organization there may be additional wording changes 
and the order of the questions will likely be revised.  
 
Recommendations  
• Subtitles.  For questions with many topics, subtitles based on the sustainability 

framework categories will be added to help the respondents better understand what is 
meant by the question or service described.  

• New question about safety with geographic areas. Question #3 is new, asking the 
respondent about their perception of safety in various places in the city. One key 
purpose in asking this question is to get baseline data to see how these perceptions 
change in the future.  

• Frequency of use. Question #4 asks how often the respondent does certain activities 
or uses services. Many of these questions are asked in other outreach venues or the 
data may be interesting but it is not essential. Questions proposed for elimination are 
shown in strikethrough. Questions where this information is not collected in other 
ways will be retained. These include: climate action, recycling, composting, energy 
upgrades, parks and recreation, and OSMP use.  

• Combined importance and rating question. In past surveys importance of key 
services and rating of programs and services were asked in separate questions. This 
was revised to allow the respondent to consider these services in one place instead of 
two separate questions.  The new question #8 includes the categories from each of the 
two past questions with a few revisions.  

• Perception of flood response. “Responding to emergencies and natural disasters 
(wildfire, flood)” was added to question #6 to gauge perception of the city’s 
responsiveness.  

• New question about library services. Question #14 is new and was requested by 
Library staff and the Library Commission to include if space allows.   

• Open-ended questions. Open-ended questions allow the respondent to provide more 
information about their response and to raise issues that may not otherwise be 
identified through the standard questions. Opportunities for open-ended responses 
will be included for key questions about the city’s performance and importance of 
programs.   

• Survey length. Adjustments to language and questions may be made in order to keep 
the survey to six pages.  

 
National Research Center, Inc. (NRC), the Boulder-based survey consultant that has 
conducted the city’s community surveys in past years, has been selected to conduct the 
2014 survey. NRC will write the final questions to ensure non-biased wording and 
consistency with trends, as well as comparisons with other communities.  
 

Agenda Item 6B     Page 3Packet Page     259



Communications and Outreach 
Communications assistance around the 2014 Community Survey is expected to be a 
significant part of 2014’s first quarter work plan. It will be important that members of our 
community are aware that the city is conducting a statistically valid random sample 
survey and understand how the survey results will help inform budget decisions. It also 
will be important for members of the community not selected for the random sample to 
understand how they may share their input with staff.   
 
The outreach plan for the statistically valid random survey portion of the 2014 
Community Survey includes a postcard mailing to selected households followed by a 
mailed survey. Prior to the mailings, the Communications team will issue a news release 
and utilize Channel 8 to announce the upcoming survey and provide a high-level 
overview of its purpose. Immediately after the statistically valid random survey closes, 
the city will launch an open online community survey to all residents. Staff will engage 
the public during this process by using already available communication channels such as 
news releases and media pitches, Channel 8 programming, social media websites 
(Facebook and Twitter), city email listservs, and community partners. In addition to the 
online survey, staff also will promote survey opportunities to Spanish speakers, 
university students and Boulder youth through city programs and in partnership with 
community organizations. 
 
ATTACHMENTS 
 
A: Draft questionnaire for the 2014 Community Survey   

Agenda Item 6B     Page 4Packet Page     260



 

CCIITTYY  OOFF  BBOOUULLDDEERR  22001144  CCOOMMMMUUNNIITTYY  SSUURRVVEEYY  
1. Please read the following questions and circle the number which most closely reflects your opinion. 

 very  neither good  very N.A.* or 
How do you rate . . . good good nor bad bad bad don’t know 
Your overall quality of life in Boulder, taking all things into  

consideration ............................................................................ 1 2 3 4 5 6 
Overall quality of your neighborhood ............................................. 1 2 3 4 5 6 
The sense of community in Boulder............................................... 1 2 3 4 5 6 
Community acceptance of all people ............................................. 1 2 3 4 5 6  
Race and ethnic relations in Boulder .............................................. 1 2 3 4 5 6 
Boulder as a place to work  .......................................................... 1 2 3 4 5 6 
Overall Boulder city government operations ................................... 1 2 3 4 5 6 
Overall ease of getting to the places you usually visit ..................... 1 2 3 4 5 6 
Quality of the natural environment ................................................ 1 2 3 4 5 6 
Quality of indoor and outdoor recreation ....................................... 1 2 3 4 5 6 
Opportunities to attend arts/cultural events ................................... 1 2 3 4 5 6 
Quality or character of new development ...................................... 1 2 3 4 5 6 
Access to a variety of housing options ........................................... 1 2 3 4 5 6 
Employment opportunities ............................................................ 1 2 3 4 5 6 
Shopping opportunities ................................................................. 1 2 3 4 5 6 

2. Please rate how safe you feel from each of the following in Boulder: 
 very somewhat neither safe somewhat very 
 safe safe nor unsafe unsafe unsafe 
Violent crimes (e.g., rape, robbery, homicide)................................ 1 2 3 4 5 
Property crimes (e.g., burglary, theft, criminal mischief) ................. 1 2 3 4 5 
Structural/house fires ................................................................... 1 2 3 4 5 
Wildland fires ............................................................................... 1 2 3 4 5 
Floods ......................................................................................... 1 2 3 4 5 
Traffic-related incidents (road rage, bike-car conflicts, etc.) ............ 1 2 3 4 5 
Discrimination due to your background or  

personal characteristics ............................................................. 1 2 3 4 5 

3. Please tell us how safe you feel in each of the following areas in Boulder.  
 always usually sometimes safe usually always N.A*. or 
 safe safe sometimes unsafe unsafe unsafe don’t know 
Downtown Commercial Area during the day .......... 1 2 3 4 5 6 
Downtown Commercial Area at night..................... 1 2 3 4 5 6 
Municipal Campus / Main Library area  
during the day ..................................................... 1 2 3 4 5 6 
Municipal Campus / Main Library area  
at night  .............................................................. 1 2 3 4 5 6 
Your neighborhood during the day ........................ 1 2 3 4 5 6 
Your neighborhood at night .................................. 1 2 3 4 5 6 
City Parks ............................................................ 1 2 3 4 5 6 
Multi-use paths (e.g. Boulder Creek Path, )  .......... 1 2 3 4 5 6 
Open Space Trails ................................................ 1 2 3 4 5 6 
Libraries .............................................................. 1 2 3 4 5 6 

Attachment A - 2014 Community Survey

Agenda Item 6B     Page 5Packet Page     261



4. In the last 12 months, about how many times, if ever, have you done the following things?  
  1 to 2 3 to 12 13 to 26 more than 
 never times times times 26 times 
Accessibility and Connectedness  
Used the Boulder Creek or other greenways bike and pedestrian path ..... 1 2 3 4 5 
Rode a high-frequency community transit network bus  

(e.g., HOP, SKIP, JUMP, etc.) within the City of Boulder ...................... 1 2 3 4 5 
Rode another RTD bus within Boulder  .................................................. 1 2 3 4 5 
Rode a bus between Boulder and Denver .............................................. 1 2 3 4 5 
Commuted to work by bicycle ............................................................... 1 2 3 4 5 
Visited the City of Boulder Web site (www.bouldercolorado.gov) ............. 1 2 3 4 5 
Completed a service transaction using the city Web site  

(registered for an event or program, financial transaction, etc.)  .......... 1 2 3 4 5 
Visited one of the city’s social media Web sites (Facebook, Twitter,  

YouTube, Flickr)  .............................................................................. 1 2 3 4 5 

Healthy and Socially Thriving Community 
Volunteered for a city program (such as neighborhood clean-up,  

trail maintenance, library, etc.)  ......................................................... 1 2 3 4 5 
Used the North, South or East Boulder Recreation Centers ..................... 1 2 3 4 5 
Participated in City of Boulder recreation programs, activities or events ... 1 2 3 4 5 
Used the services or facilities of the East or West Senior Centers ............ 1 2 3 4 5 
Used any of the Boulder Public Libraries (Main and/or the Reynolds,  

Meadows, or Carnegie branches) or used library information  
services via their Web site(s) ............................................................. 1 2 3 4 5 

Used the public computers or free Internet access at one  
of the Boulder Public Library facilities ................................................. 1 2 3 4 5 

Community Livability   
Visited a neighborhood park or playground (including tennis courts,  

Flatirons Golf Course, outdoor pools, and Boulder Reservoir) ............... 1 2 3 4 5 

Economically Vitality 
Visited the Pearl Street Mall .................................................................. 1 2 3 4 5 
Visited Twenty Ninth Street retail center ................................................ 1 2 3 4 5 
Visited the University Hill business district.............................................. 1 2 3 4 5 

Safety 
Reported a complaint about a neighborhood problem............................. 1 2 3 4 5 
Dialed 9-1-1 ........................................................................................ 1 2 3 4 5 

Environmental Sustainability  
Visited Boulder open space or mountain parks ....................................... 1 2 3 4 5 
Recycled used paper, cans or bottles from your home ............................ 1 2 3 4 5 
Made energy improvements to your home or business ........................... 1 2 3 4 5 

Good Governance  
Attended a public meeting or event about city matters ........................... 1 2 3 4 5 
Attended a City Council meeting ........................................................... 1 2 3 4 5 
Watched a City Council meeting on cable TV Channel 8 .......................... 1 2 3 4 5 
Watched a news program on cable TV Channel 8 ................................... 1 2 3 4 5 

5. Please rate to what extent you agree or disagree with the following statements. 
 strongly  neither agree  strongly 
 agree agree nor disagree disagree disagree 
I am pleased with the overall direction the city is taking ............. 1 2 3 4 5 
I inform myself about major issues in the City of Boulder ........... 1 2 3 4 5 
I take the initiative to let elected officials or city  

staff know what I think ......................................................... 1 2 3 4 5 
I feel included in the Boulder community ................................... 1 2 3 4 5 

* N.A. = not applicable 

Attachment A - 2014 Community Survey

Agenda Item 6B     Page 6Packet Page     262



6. Please rate how well you think the City of Boulder does on each of the following: 
 very  neither well  very N.A.* or 
 well well nor poorly poorly poorly don’t know 
Being responsive to residents and businesses ............................. 1 2 3 4 5 6 
Effectively planning for the future .............................................. 1 2 3 4 5 6 
Working through critical issues facing the city ............................. 1 2 3 4 5 6 
Gathering feedback from residents on new policies or  

projects; conducting public processes ..................................... 1 2 3 4 5 6 
Providing access to information about issues, events  

and meetings......................................................................... 1 2 3 4 5 6 
Spending your tax dollars wisely  ............................................... 1 2 3 4 5 6 
Informing the public about how their tax dollars are used ........... 1 2 3 4 5 6 
Responding to emergencies and natural disasters (flood, wildfire).1 2 3 4 5 6  

7. Do you have any other comments about the job that the City of Boulder is doing? 

   

   

8. For each of the following services provided by the City of Boulder, first please rate the quality of the 
service and then how important each of these services is in Boulder.  

   neither 
 very  good  very don’t  very somewhat not at all don’t 
 good good nor bad bad bad know essential important important important know 

Good Governance  
Cable TV Channel 8 (council coverage, city  
news, local talk shows) ................................... 1 2 3 4 5 6 1 2 3 4 5 

City of Boulder Web site  
(www.bouldercolorado.gov)  ........................... 1 2 3 4 5 6 1 2 3 4 5 

City social media Web sites  
(e.g. Facebook, Twitter, YouTube)  ................. 1 2 3 4 5 6 1 2 3 4 5 

Livable Community  
Preserving the city’s historic features  
and attributes ................................................. 1 2 3 4 5 6 1 2 3 4 5 

Neighborhood parks (play areas &  
playgrounds)  ................................................. 1 2 3 4 5 6 1 2 3 4 5 

Housing affordable to low income people ......... 1 2 3 4 5 6 1 2 3 4 5 
Housing affordable to middle income people .... 1 2 3 4 5 6 1 2 3 4 5 
Parks ................................................................ 1 2 3 4 5 6 1 2 3 4 5 
Building and housing codes .............................. 1 2 3 4 5 6 1 2 3 4 5 
Enforcement of residential  
over-occupancy ordinances ............................. 1 2 3 4 5 6 1 2 3 4 5 

Noise control enforcement ................................ 1 2 3 4 5 6 1 2 3 4 5 
Enforcement of ice and snow removal,  
trash and weed control on private property ..... 1 2 3 4 5 6 1 2 3 4 5 

Median maintenance ........................................ 1 2 3 4 5 6 1 2 3 4 5 

Accessible and Connected Community  
Decreasing congestion and improving  
traffic flow  ..................................................... 1 2 3 4 5 6 1 2 3 4 5 

High frequency transit (bus or rail) routes ........ 1 2 3 4 5 6 1 2 3 4 5 
Bike and pedestrian facilities (such as bike  
lanes, sidewalks, paths, etc.) .......................... 1 2 3 4 5 6 1 2 3 4 5 

Snow and ice control on major streets .............. 1 2 3 4 5 6 1 2 3 4 5 
Street repair (potholes, crack repair, etc.)  ........ 1 2 3 4 5 6 1 2 3 4 5 
Street sweeping ............................................... 1 2 3 4 5 6 1 2 3 4 5 
Street lighting................................................... 1 2 3 4 5 6 1 2 3 4 5 

Attachment A - 2014 Community Survey

Agenda Item 6B     Page 7Packet Page     263



Sidewalk maintenance ...................................... 1 2 3 4 5 6 1 2 3 4 5 
 
9. For each of the following services provided by the City of Boulder, first please rate the quality of the 

service and then how important each of these services is in Boulder (continued).  
   neither 
 very  good  very don’t  very somewhat not at all don’t 
 good good nor bad bad bad know essential important important important know 

Economically Vital Community  
Assistance to businesses to keep them in  
Boulder ........................................................... 1 2 3 4 5 6 1 2 3 4 5 

Attracting/retaining “discount” or “affordable”  
shopping opportunities ................................... 1 2 3 4 5 6 1 2 3 4 5 

Retention and expansion of quality jobs  
in Boulder ....................................................... 1 2 3 4 5 6 1 2 3 4 5 

Healthy and Socially Thriving Community 
North, South and East Recreation Centers  
programs and classes ..................................... 1 2 3 4 5 6 1 2 3 4 5 

Parks and recreation fields and courts  
(baseball, softball, soccer, tennis)  .................. 1 2 3 4 5 6 1 2 3 4 5 

Parks and recreation specialized or single-use  
facilities (disc golf, pools, skate park)  ............. 1 2 3 4 5 6 1 2 3 4 5  

Boulder Public Libraries & library services ......... 1 2 3 4 5 6 1 2 3 4 5  
Services for children (age 12 and under)  ......... 1 2 3 4 5 6 1 2 3 4 5 
Services for youth (age 13 to 21)  .................... 1 2 3 4 5 6 1 2 3 4 5 
Services for seniors (age 65 and older)  ............ 1 2 3 4 5 6 1 2 3 4 5 
Services for low-income families ....................... 1 2 3 4 5 6 1 2 3 4 5 
Providing spaces for and access to a variety  
of arts/cultural events ..................................... 1 2 3 4 5 6 1 2 3 4 5 

Art in public places ........................................... 1 2 3 4 5 6 1 2 3 4 5 
Reducing homelessness ................................... 1 2 3 4 5 6 1 2 3 4 5 
Drinking water services .................................... 1 2 3 4 5 6 1 2 3 4 5 

Environmentally Sustainable Community  
Acquiring open space lands .............................. 1 2 3 4 5 6 1 2 3 4 5 
Energy conservation and efficiency programs ... 1 2 3 4 5 6 1 2 3 4 5 
Renewable energy programs ............................ 1 2 3 4 5 6 1 2 3 4 5 
Recycling and composting collection services .... 1 2 3 4 5 6 1 2 3 4 5 
Water conservation programs ........................... 1 2 3 4 5 6 1 2 3 4 5 
Mosquito or pest control programs ................... 1 2 3 4 5 6 1 2 3 4 5 

Safe Community 
Crime prevention .............................................. 1 2 3 4 5 6 1 2 3 4 5 
Police presence in your neighborhood .............. 1 2 3 4 5 6 1 2 3 4 5 
Police presence in business/shopping districts  
(such as Pearl Street, University Hill,  
Twenty Ninth Street, etc.)  .............................. 1 2 3 4 5 6 1 2 3 4 5 

Police traffic enforcement ................................. 1 2 3 4 5 6 1 2 3 4 5 
Police response to community problems  
or needs ......................................................... 1 2 3 4 5 6 1 2 3 4 5 

Flood or natural hazard education .................... 1 2 3 4 5 6 1 2 3 4 5 
Emergency Preparation .................................... 1 2 3 4 5 6 1 2 3 4 5 
Fire safety education ........................................ 1 2 3 4 5 6 1 2 3 4 5 
Fire response ................................................... 1 2 3 4 5 6 1 2 3 4 5 
Emergency medical services ............................. 1 2 3 4 5 6 1 2 3 4 5 
Boulder Municipal Court.................................... 1 2 3 4 5 6 1 2 3 4 5 

10. Do you have specific comments about your quality ratings for these programs and services?  
   

   

11. Do you have specific comments about your answers on the importance of these programs and services? 

Attachment A - 2014 Community Survey

Agenda Item 6B     Page 8Packet Page     264



   

   

12. If you have had phone, in-person or email contact with a Boulder city employee in the last 12 months, 
how would you rate your impression?  

 very  neither good  very N.A.* or 
 good good nor bad bad bad don’t know 
Courteous, respectful and professional ............................................... 1 2 3 4 5 6 
I received the assistance I needed ..................................................... 1 2 3 4 5 6 

13. Thinking of how you currently get information about events or issues in which you are interested, how 
likely, if at all, would you be to obtain information from the city about things like City Council meetings, 
community meetings, upcoming programs and events in the following formats? 

 very  slightly not at all  N.A.* or 
 likely likely likely likely don’t know 
Cable TV Channel 8 ............................................................................... 1 2 3 4 5 
City of Boulder Web site (www.bouldercolorado.gov) .............................. 1 2 3 4 5 
City social media Web sites (e.g. Facebook, Twitter, YouTube) ................ 1 2 3 4 5 
The Boulder Daily Camera ..................................................................... 1 2 3 4 5 
The Colorado Daily ................................................................................ 1 2 3 4 5 
Boulder County Business Report ............................................................ 1 2 3 4 5 
Inserts in the water utility bill ................................................................ 1 2 3 4 5 
Mailings to your home address............................................................... 1 2 3 4 5 
Listserves (where you sign up to be part of a group receiving  

e-mails from the city) ......................................................................... 1 2 3 4 5 
Are there any other ways  
you’d like to receive information?   

14. The library offers or is considering offering the following services with access from home. How likely are 
you to use each?  

 very  slightly not at all  N.A.* or 
 likely likely likely likely don’t know 
Streaming or downloadable movies ........................................................ 1 2 3 4 5 
Streaming or downloadable music .......................................................... 1 2 3 4 5 
Downloadable e-books and/or audiobooks .............................................. 1 2 3 4 5 
e-Magazines for tablet or phone ............................................................. 1 2 3 4 5 
Online classes/courses (e.g. Lynda.com)  ............................................... 1 2 3 4 5 
Research databases for school or business ............................................. 1 2 3 4 5 
Literary, film, concerts, dance, theater, history or science programming  .. 1 2 3 4 5 
Are there other services not currently offered you would  
like to see offered by the Boulder library?   
 

15. Are you eligible to have an Eco-Pass, an annual pass 
that allows you unlimited bus rides?  
(Please check all that apply.) 
 don’t know if I am eligible for an Eco-Pass → go to question #18 
 no, I am not eligible for an Eco-Pass → go to question #18 
 yes, through my employer  
 yes, through my neighborhood program 
 yes, a CU Boulder student Buff One pass 
 yes, a CU Boulder faculty/staff Buff One pass 
 yes, other pass: ___________________ 

16. Did you pick up your Eco-Pass? 
 yes 
 no → go to question #18 

17. About how often, on average, do you use 
your Eco-Pass? 
 more than once a week 
 about once a week 
 about once every two weeks 
 about once a month 
 less often than once a month 

Other Comments 
18. Do you have any other comments you would like to make? 

   

Attachment A - 2014 Community Survey

Agenda Item 6B     Page 9Packet Page     265



   

    
About you and your household  
Answers to these questions are used to group survey responses. Your responses w ill be completely anonymous.  

19. About how many years have you lived in  
Boulder? (Record 0 if less than 6 months.) ....... ______ years 

20. Are you employed? 
 No → go to question #23 
 Yes 

21. Where do you work? 
 Boulder  Lafayette 
 Louisville  Longmont 
 Broomfield/Interlocken  Jefferson County  
 Denver, excluding Tech Center 
 Tech Center/Southeast Denver 
 Other 

22. Do you work at your home? 
 No  
 Yes, my business is out of my home 
 Yes, I always work at home instead of my employer’s 

location 
 Yes, sometimes work at home instead of my employer’s 

location, sometimes at my employer’s location 
 Other 

23. Are you a full- or part-time University or college 
student? 
 No 
 Yes, at the University of Colorado Boulder campus 
 Yes, at Naropa 
 Yes, somewhere else 

24. Please check the one box that most closely 
describes the type of housing unit you live in. 
 A detached single family home 
 An apartment in an apartment complex 
 An apartment in a single family home 
 A condominium or town house 
 A mobile home 
 Group quarters (dorm, sorority/fraternity house, nursing 

home) → go to question #31 
 Other, please specify ____________________ 

25. Do you rent or own your residence? Please check 
the appropriate box. (If you own a mobile home, 
but pay a lot fee, you own your residence.) 
 Rent  Own 

 yes no 
26. Do any children age 12 or younger live in 

your household? ...............................................   
27. Do any teenagers age 13 to 18 live in your 

household? .......................................................   
28. Are you or any members of your household 

age 65 or older? ...............................................   
29. Does any member of your household have a 

long-term disability? .......................................   

30. About how much was the TOTAL 2013 INCOME 
BEFORE TAXES for your household as a whole? 
 Less than $15,000  $75,000 - $99,999 
 $15,000 - $24,999  $100,000 - $149,999 
 $25,000 - $34,999  $150,000 - $199,999 

 $35,000 - $49,999  $200,000 - $249,999 
 $50,000 - $74,999  $250,000 or more 

* N.A. = not applicable 

Attachment A - 2014 Community Survey

Agenda Item 6B     Page 10Packet Page     266



31. Do you have regular, convenient access to the 
internet? 
 No → go to question #32 
 Yes → Where? (check all that apply) 

  at home 
  at work 

 on a “smart” phone or PDA 
  a public facility (e.g. library or school) 

32. What is your age? 
 18-24 years old  55-64 years old 
 25-34 years old  65-74 years old 
 35-44 years old  75 or older 
 45-54 years old 

33. What is the highest level of education you have 
completed? 
 0-11 years, no diploma 
 High school graduate 
 Some college, no degree 
 Associate Degree 
 Bachelor’s Degree 
 Master’s Degree 
 Doctorate Degree 

34. Are you of Chicano/Mexican-American, 
Latino/Latina, or Hispanic origin? 
 Yes  No  

35. Which best describes your race?  
(Please check all that apply) 
 American Indian, Eskimo or Aleut 

 Asian or Pacific Islander 
 Black or African American 
 White 
 Other, please specify________________ 

36. What is your preferred first language? 
 English → go to question #38 
 Arabic  Korean 
 Chinese  Mia, Hmong 
 French  Portuguese  
 German  Russian  
 Hebrew  Spanish  
 Italian  Vietnamese 
 Japanese 
 Scandinavian languages 
 Other, please specify____________ 

37. Did you receive help completing this 
questionnaire in English? 
 Yes  No  

38. What is your gender? 
 Male  Female 

 
 

P lease return completed surveys to: 
National Research Center 

2955 Valmont Road, Suite 300 
Boulder, CO 80301  

 

Attachment A - 2014 Community Survey

Agenda Item 6B     Page 11Packet Page     267



 

 

 

 

This Page Intentionally Left Blank 

Agenda Item 6B     Page 12Packet Page     268



 
 

 
 
 

TO: Members of Council 
FROM: Dianne Marshall, City Clerk’s Office 
DATE: December 17, 2013 

SUBJECT: Information Packet 
 

1. Call Ups 
  A. Vacation of a 4,122 square foot water main easement located along the 

southern border of the property at 4474 Broadway (ADR2013-00209) 
 B. Vacation of a 1,230 square foot portion of an existing seven-foot utility 

easement that bisects the property at 1560 Cress Court (ADR2013-
00216) 
 

2. Information Item 
 A. Boulder’s Energy Future Budget Update 
 B. E-911 Fee Increase 
 C. Hydroelectric Program Update 

 
3. Boards and Commissions 

 A. Parks and Recreation Board – August 8, 2013 
 B. Parks and Recreation Board – September 23, 2013 
 C. Parks and Recreation Board – October 28, 2013 

 
4. Declarations 

 None 
 

 
 

Packet Page     269



 

Packet Page     270



 
 

INFORMATION PACKET 
MEMORANDUM 

  
To: Members of City Council 
 
From:  Jane S. Brautigam, City Manager 
 Paul J. Fetherston, Deputy City Manager 
 David Driskell, Executive Director of Community Planning & Sustainability 
 Charles Ferro, Development Review Manager 
 Sloane Walbert, Planner I 
 
Date:   December 10, 2013 
 
Subject: Call-Up Item: Vacation of a 4,122 square foot water main easement located along the 

southern border of the property at 4474 Broadway (ADR2013-00209). 
 
 
EXECUTIVE SUMMARY: 
The applicant requests vacation of an existing water main easement located along the southern 
border of the property at 4474 Broadway (refer to Attachment D for exact location). The 
easement was dedicated to the City of Boulder as a Grant of Easement, recorded May 22, 1986, for 
the “installation, construction, repair, maintenance and reconstruction of a water main and 
appurtenances thereto.” Since that time a multi-family residential development has been approved 
on the property and the water line previously located in the easement has been relocated to the 
public right-of-way on Violet Avenue.  
 
The proposed vacation was approved by staff on November 22, 2013. There is one scheduled City 
Council meeting on December 17 within the 30 day call-up period. 
 
CODE REQUIREMENTS:  
Pursuant to the procedures for easement vacations set forth in subsection 8-6-10(b), B.R.C. 1981, 
the city manager has approved the vacation of a 4,122 square foot water main easement. The date 
of final staff approval of the easement vacation was November 22, 2013 (refer to Attachment E, 
Notice of Disposition). This vacation does not require approval through ordinance based on the 
following criteria:  
 

 It has never been open to the public; and 
 It has never carried regular vehicular or pedestrian traffic.  

 
The vacation will be effective 30 days later on December 23, 2013 unless the approval is called up 
by City Council.  

Call Up 1A     Page 1Packet Page     271



 
FISCAL IMPACTS: 
None identified. 
 
COMMUNITY SUSTAINABILITY ASSESSMENTS AND IMPACTS:  
 Economic: None identified. 

 
 Environmental: None identified.  
 
 Social: None identified.  
 
BACKGROUND: 
The subject property is located at the northeast corner of Broadway and Violet Avenue, in a Mixed 
Use 2 (MU-2) zone district (refer to Attachment A, Vicinity Map). A multi-family residential 
development was approved in late 2010. The Violet Crossing development will consist of 98 
residential units in a total of 10 buildings. The property is encumbered by an approximately five-
foot water main easement that runs along the southern border of the property (please refer to 
Attachment B, Site Plan). The subject easement was dedicated to accommodate a water main in 
1986. However, four of the planned structures for Violet Crossing encroach into the easement. The 
water main previously located in the easement has been relocated into the public right-of-way on 
Violet Avenue. In addition, a new utility easement will be dedicated to accommodate dry utilities 
on the southern edge of the property. The housing development is under construction and there are 
currently no encroachments into the subject easement. Given that there is no public need for the 
easement for which it was intended, failure to vacate the requested portion of easement would 
cause hardship to the property owner by limiting the development potential of the property.  
 
ANALYSIS:  
Staff finds the proposed vacation of the 4,122 square foot water main easement consistent with the 
standard set forth in subsection (b) of section 8-6-10, “Vacation of Public Easements”, B.R.C. 
1981. All agencies having an interest in the easement have indicated that no need exists, at present 
or in the future, for that portion of the easement to be vacated. Staff has determined that no public 
need exists for the portion of easement to be vacated due to the fact that a separate easement has 
been dedicated for public utilities on the property. 
 
No vacation of a public easement shall be approved unless the approving agency finds that: 
 
    1. Change is not contrary to the public interest. 

    2. All agencies having a conceivable interest have indicated that no need exists, either 
in the present or conceivable future, for its original purpose or other public purpose. 

    3. Consistent with the Comprehensive Plan and Land Use Regulations. 

Call Up 1A     Page 2Packet Page     272



    a. Failure to vacate the easement would cause a substantial hardship to the use of the 
property consistent with the Comprehensive Plan and Land Use Regulations; or 

The easement was dedicated in 1986 to accommodate the extension of a water main 
on the subject property (Rec. no. 760982). Since this time a multi-family 
development has been approved for the property and the water main has been 
relocated into public right-of-way. There is no public need for the easement to be 
vacated. 

 N/A  b. Would provide a greater public benefit than retaining the property in its present 
status. 

 
PUBLIC COMMENT AND PROCESS:  
Notice of the vacation will be advertised in the Daily Camera within the 30 day call up period. 
Staff has received no written or verbal comments adverse to the vacation.  
 
NEXT STEPS:  
If the requested vacation is not called up by City Council then the Deed of Vacation (Attachment  
C) will be recorded. If the requested vacation is called up, and subsequently denied, the applicant 
will be limited to development on the property outside of the easement area. 
 
ATTACHMENTS: 
Attachment A:   Vicinity Map 
Attachment B:   Site Plan 
Attachment C:   Deed of Vacation 
Attachment D:  Exhibit A 
Attachment E:  Notice of Disposition 
 

 

Call Up 1A     Page 3Packet Page     273



 

Packet Page     274



 
 
  
 

  

M
O

O
R

H
EA

D
 A

VE
 

VIOLET AVE 

 
B

R
O

A
D

W
A

Y
 

Easement to be 
vacated 

4474 Broadway 

Attachment A 
Vicinity Map

Call Up 1A     Page 4Packet Page     275



 

Packet Page     276



 
 

Attachment B 
Site Plan

Call Up 1A     Page 5Packet Page     277



 

Packet Page     278



 
 

Attachment C 
Deed of Vacation

Call Up 1A     Page 6Packet Page     279



 

Packet Page     280



 
 

Attachment D 
Exhibit A

Call Up 1A     Page 7Packet Page     281



Attachment D 
Exhibit A

Call Up 1A     Page 8Packet Page     282



 
 
 

Attachment E 
Notice of Disposition

Call Up 1A     Page 9Packet Page     283



 

Packet Page     284



 
 

INFORMATION PACKET 
MEMORANDUM 

  
To: Members of City Council 
 
From:  Jane S. Brautigam, City Manager 
 Paul J. Fetherston, Deputy City Manager 
 David Driskell, Executive Director of Community Planning & Sustainability 
 Charles Ferro, Development Review Manager 
 Sloane Walbert, Planner I 
 
Date:   December 10, 2013 
 
Subject: Call-Up Item: Vacation of a 1,230 square foot portion of an existing seven-foot utility 

easement that bisects the property at 1560 Cress Court (ADR2013-00216). 
 
 
EXECUTIVE SUMMARY: 
The applicant requests vacation of a 1,230 square foot portion of an existing seven-foot utility 
easement at 1560 Cress Court (refer to Attachment D for exact location) to accommodate a future 
addition to the existing home located on the property. The easement was originally dedicated on 
the original Warne Subdivision plat, recorded May 20, 1964. It appears the easement was reserved 
for future utility connections along the boundaries of the subdivision. However, there is no public 
need for the portion of utility easement to be vacated because all public utilities have been placed 
in public right-of-way on Cress Court and in the remaining portion of easement. The vacation will 
maintain a fourteen-foot utility easement straddling the property’s north property line. 
 
The proposed vacation was approved by staff on December 2, 2013. There is one scheduled City 
Council meeting on December 17 within the 30 day call-up period. 
 
CODE REQUIREMENTS:  
Pursuant to the procedures for easement vacations set forth in subsection 8-6-10(b), B.R.C. 1981, 
the city manager has approved the vacation of a 1,230 square foot portion of an existing seven-foot 
utility easement. The date of final staff approval of the easement vacation was December 2, 2013 
(refer to Attachment E, Notice of Disposition). This vacation does not require approval through 
ordinance based on the following criteria:  
 

 It has never been open to the public; and 
 It has never carried regular vehicular or pedestrian traffic.  

 

Call Up 1B     Page 1Packet Page     285



The vacation will be effective 30 days later on January 2, 2014 unless the approval is called up by 
City Council.  
 
FISCAL IMPACTS: 
None identified. 
 
COMMUNITY SUSTAINABILITY ASSESSMENTS AND IMPACTS:  
 Economic: None identified.  

 
 Environmental: None identified.  
 
 Social: None identified.  
 
BACKGROUND: 
The subject property is a large 21,512 square foot lot located in the Residential - Estate (RE) zone 
district (refer to Attachment A, Vicinity Map). The property is encumbered by a seven-foot utility 
easement that bisects the property and runs along the northwest property line (please refer to 
Attachment B, Site Plan). The portion of utility easement to be vacated originally ran along the 
southern property line of Lot 8, at the boundary of the Warne Subdivision. However, the subject 
property was combined with unplatted land to the south since the initial subdivision and the 
easement currently bisects the property. 
 
It appears the portion of easement to be vacated was reserved in 1964 for future utility connections 
along the boundaries of the subdivision. Presently water and sewer services are located in the 
public right-of-way in Cress Court and surrounding streets. A water meter pit is located in the 
subject easement along the north property line. There are no plans to extend water or sewer 
services through the subject easement. There are no public or private utilities located in the portion 
of easement to be vacated. 
 
The subject easement currently limits the building envelope for the existing home and a portion of 
the driveway, a water feature, and a frame shed currently encroach into the easement. The property 
owner would like the option to expand the building footprint into the current easement area at 
some point in the future. Given that there is no public need for the easement for which it was 
intended, failure to vacate the requested portion of easement would cause hardship to the property 
owner by limiting the development potential of the property. 
 
ANALYSIS:  
Staff finds the proposed vacation of a 1,230 square foot portion of the existing seven-foot utility 
easement consistent with the standard set forth in subsection (b) of section 8-6-10, “Vacation of 
Public Easements”, B.R.C. 1981. Specifically, staff has determined that no public need exists for 
the portion of easement to be vacated due to the fact that all public utilities are located within the 
public-right-of way and existing private utilities will be located within the remaining portion of 
easement. 
 
No vacation of a public easement shall be approved unless the approving agency finds that: 
 
    1. Change is not contrary to the public interest. 

Call Up 1B     Page 2Packet Page     286



    2. All agencies having a conceivable interest have indicated that no need exists, either 
in the present or conceivable future, for its original purpose or other public purpose. 

    3. Consistent with the Comprehensive Plan and Land Use Regulations. 

    a. Failure to vacate the easement would cause a substantial hardship to the use of the 
property consistent with the Comprehensive Plan and Land Use Regulations; or 

  The applicant would like the option to expand the existing home at some point in the 
future. The utility easement reservation unnecessarily limits the building envelope 
to the west and south. The portion of easement to be vacated is not necessary 
because all utilities are accommodated in the remaining portion of easement. There 
is no public need for the easement.  

 N/A  b. Would provide a greater public benefit than retaining the property in its present 
status. 

 
PUBLIC COMMENT AND PROCESS:  
Notice of the vacation will be advertised in the Daily Camera within the 30 day call-up period. 
Staff has received no written or verbal comments adverse to the vacation.  
 
NEXT STEPS:  
If the requested vacation is not called-up by City Council then the Deed of Vacation (Attachment  
C) will be recorded. If the requested vacation is called-up, and subsequently denied, the applicant 
will be limited to development on the property outside of the easement area. 
 
ATTACHMENTS: 
Attachment A: Vicinity Map 
Attachment B: Site Plan 
Attachment C: Deed of Vacation 
Attachment D: Exhibit A 
Attachment E: Notice of Disposition 

 
 
 
 
 

Call Up 1B     Page 3Packet Page     287



 

Packet Page     288



 
 

1560 Cress Ct 

  CRESS C
T 

 
M

E
A

D
O

W
 A

V
E

 

  MOSS ROCK PL 

Attachment A 
Vicinity Map

Call Up 1B     Page 4Packet Page     289



 

Packet Page     290



 
 
 

ELDER AVE 

6TH ST 

Subject 
Easement 

Attachment B 
Site Plan

Call Up 1B     Page 5Packet Page     291



 

Packet Page     292



 
 
 
  
 

Attachment C 
Deed of Vacation

Call Up 1B     Page 6Packet Page     293



 

Packet Page     294



 

Attachment D 
Exhibit A

Call Up 1B     Page 7Packet Page     295



 

Attachment D 
Exhibit A

Call Up 1B     Page 8Packet Page     296



 
 

Attachment E 
Notice of Disposition

Call Up 1B     Page 9Packet Page     297

meltm1
Text Box



 

Attachment E 
Notice of Disposition

Call Up 1B     Page 10Packet Page     298

meltm1
Text Box



 
 

1 
 

 

 
 
 

INFORMATION PACKET 
MEMORANDUM 

  
To: Members of City Council 
 
From:  Jane S. Brautigam, City Manager 
 Paul J. Fetherston, Deputy City Manager 
 Heather Bailey, Executive Director of Energy Strategy and Electric Utility 

Development  
 
Date:   December 17, 2013 
 
Subject: Information Item: Boulder’s Energy Future Budget Update 

 
Budget Update  

 
The municipalization exploration work plan represents a significant undertaking. In 
particular, the legal and technical work necessary to determine the final costs for potential 
acquisition of the local distribution system and launch of a municipal utility will be a 
considerable investment. Recognizing this, in 2011, city voters approved an increase to 
the Utility Occupation Tax in the amount of $1.9 million a year. The use of this tax 
revenue has been allocated to the following categories: 
 

 Legal services (condemnation and FERC Counsel) 
 Consulting services related to possible municipalization and separation of Xcel 

Energy’s (Xcel’s) system (engineering and appraisal services) 
 Salary and benefits (Executive Director of Energy Strategy and Electric Utility 

Development) 
 Purchased services and supplies (office space and supplies) 

 
Following the voter approval in November 2011, the city has focused its “energy future” 
work efforts on exploring municipalization. Work plan items completed since the last 
budget update to council include:    
 

 In July, city staff presented to council the quantitative modeling and qualitative 
research results and an update on the partnership discussions with Xcel. 

 In August, council authorized staff to: 1) continue discussions with Xcel in order 
to learn more about the potential products and services the company could 

Information Item 2A     Page 1Packet Page     299



2 
 

provide; and, 2) proceed down a concurrent path toward acquiring the assets of 
Xcel and forming a locally owned utility. 

 In November, Boulder voters supported moving forward with the project, but 
imposed an additional requirement that the cost of acquisition and any lump-sum 
payment for stranded costs cannot exceed $214 million. 

 The city/Xcel partnership task force has developed two subcommittees to further 
develop and vet Xcel’s proposed programs.   

 Colorado Public Utilities Commission (PUC) filings by Xcel have required 
attention by both legal and energy future staff, and it has become apparent that the 
city will need to dedicate resources to working with the PUC as it moves forward. 

 City staff, consultants, engineers, and the legal team have been working together 
to identify and value the electric assets needed to support a locally owned utility 
in preparation for negotiation and potential condemnation actions and acquisition.      

 City staff has issued a Request for Proposal (RFP) for consulting services to 
develop a detailed transition work plan.  

 City staff has continued to explore opportunities for enhancing energy services 
and reducing emissions without owning the poles and wires.  

 Staff formed two new working groups – solar and natural gas – to guide the city 
in these important policy areas and develop recommendations as the project 
moves forward. 
 

2013 Budget 
The 2013 total budget of $3,251,935 is funded from the Utility Occupation Tax, a one-
time general fund request of $303,000 allocated to support high priority staffing needs for 
this project and $1,048,935 prior year carryover from 2012. The carryover reflects 
savings from hiring the director mid-year in 2012 and a delay in spending for legal fees to 
negotiate the purchase of the system and engineering fees to assess and determine the 
technical capabilities of the system. Expenditures have been within the limitations of this 
budget.  
 
The 2013 sources and uses for this effort are provided in the chart below.  In the uses 
section, payments for expenditures as well as contract commitments and agreements are 
reflected through November 2013.  

Information Item 2A     Page 2Packet Page     300



3 
 

 
 
2013 Energy Strategy and Electric Utility Development Department Budget 

2013 SOURCES:          
          
Utility Occupation Tax 1,900,000        
One-time General Fund 303,000        
2012 Encumbrance Carryover  
($1.9M Utility Occupation Tax)  

417,364  
     

2012 Carryover 
(Environmental Reserve GF) 10,000 

 
     

2012 Carryover 
($1.9M Utility Occupation Tax) 621,571 

 
     

Total 2013 Sources 3,251,935        
           

2013 USES: Budget 
Contingency 
Allocation Paid Encumbered Balance 

            
Personnel 663,000 581,387 81,613 0 
Legal Services 1,400,067 690,650 531,054 178,363 
Consulting Services 431,036 514,923 703,689 398,177 -155,907 
Purchased Services & Supplies 126,261 116,648 179,670 63,239 0 
2012 Carryover  631,571    
Total 2013 Uses 3,251,935  2,155,396 1,074,083  22,456 

 
 
Other staff resources assigned to this effort have been allocated within existing budgets 
and are separate from the $1.9 million Utility Occupation Tax revenue and $303,000 one-
time General Fund request.  This is in alignment with the overall priority of this effort 
and existing roles, responsibilities and funding, as well as the approach historically taken 
with other significant and cross-departmental city projects.  As a reminder, an 
organizational chart showing those assigned to this project and their areas of focus is 
included as Attachment A. A list of staff working on this effort, the percentage of time 
spent in 2013 on the project and associated budget allocation is provided in Attachment 
B. 
 
2014 Budget 
The approved budget for 2014 is $2,312,000; $1,957,000 is funded from the Utility 
Occupation Tax ($1.9 million, plus a three percent tax increase approved by council on 
Oct. 25, 2013, pursuant to the original ordinance) and $355,000 that is funded through 
one-time savings in the General Fund to support salaries and benefits for high priority 
staffing needs. It is anticipated that there will be additional funds carried over from legal 
and consulting purchase orders encumbered in 2013. 
 
The work anticipated in 2014 will involve significant expenditures. In addition to the 
work plan items that have been anticipated since the start of this project, additional tasks 
have emerged and are likely to emerge as the legal and regulatory processes unfold. City 

Information Item 2A     Page 3Packet Page     301



4 
 

Council should anticipate the possibility that additional resources will be needed in 2014. 
Staff will bring these needs and proposals forward as they arise. 
 
Attachments: 
Attachment A: Organizational Chart 
Attachment B: Staffing Resources 

Information Item 2A     Page 4Packet Page     302



ATTACHMENT A 
Organizational Chart 

4 
 

 

City Council 

City Manager 
Jane Brautigam 

City Attorney                
Tom Carr 

Municipalization
Heather Bailey 

Executive Team 
Jane Brautigam, Heather Bailey, Tom Carr, 
David Driskell, Bob Eichem, Maureen Rait 

Condemnation 
Kathy Haddock,          
Don Ostrander 

FERC
David Gehr, 

Duncan and Allen 

Project Coordination & Support 
Heidi Joyce   

Metrics 
Jonathan Koehn  

Financial 
Yael Gichon, 

Cheryl Pattelli, 
Kelly Crandall 

Resource Mix 
Jonathan Koehn,

Yael Gichon, 
David Gehr 

Decision 
Analysis  

David Gehr,   
Kelly Crandall 

Communications & Outreach 
Sarah Huntley, Andrew Barth  

Asset Valuation 
& Reliability 
Bob Harberg, 

Kathy Haddock 

Asset Valuation   
 
 

Reliability 
  
 

SmartGrid 
Kara Mertz 

 

Asset Inventory 
Kara Mertz 

 

Separation Plan 
Engineering 
Consultant 

PUC
Deb Kalish, Jonathan Koehn, 
Kelly Crandall, Duncan and 

Allen

Information Item 2A     Page 5Packet Page     303



 

Packet Page     304



 
 

5 
 

ATTACHMENT B 
 

Boulder’s Municipalization Exploration Project  
2013 Staffing Resources 

January - November, 2013 
 

 
          
 

Executive Director  Source of Funding  % of Time   
Heather Bailey  Utility Occupation Tax  100                                                         
    $303,407 Utility Occupation Tax      
 
 
Executive Team  Source of Funding  % of Time         
Jane Brautigam  CMO Budget  7      
Tom Carr  CAO Budget  12 
David Driskell  CP&S Budget  5     
Bob Eichem  Finance Budget  6    
Maureen Rait  PW Budget  7     
Patrick Von Keyserling  Communications Budget  2                                                                              
        $75,335 Estimated Cost 
 
Project Team   Source of Funding  % of Time      
Andrew Barth (Backfill)  General Fund (One‐time GF Request)  100   
Kelly Crandall  CP&S (CAP Budget)  91    
David Gehr (Backfill)  CAO Budget  100     
Yael Gichon  CP&S (CAP Budget)  99     
Kathy Haddock  CAO Budget  58  
Robert Harberg  PW Budget  19  
Sarah Huntley  Communications Budget  29      
Heidi Joyce  General Fund (One‐time GF Request)  100    
Deb Kalish  CAO Budget  30    
Jonathan Koehn  CP&S Budget  80     
Kara Mertz  CP&S (CAP Budget)  46 
Cheryl Pattelli  Finance Budget  6                                                    .                                                
    $689,189 Estimated Cost     

 
Support  Source of Funding  % of Time      
Wynne Adams     General Fund (One‐time GF Request)  100, part‐time hours  
Tanya Ariowitsch    CP&S Budget  5 
Brenda Dageforde    PW Budget  4    
Joanna Domaglska    CP&S Budget  3 
Brett Hill    CP&S Budget  2 
Don Jensen    General Fund (One‐time GF Request)  Temporary, hours vary 
Ruth McHeyser    General Fund (One‐time GF Request)  Temporary, hours vary 
Sean Metrick    CP&S Budget  33                                                         
      $106,681 Estimated Cost 
Total: 
$303,407 Utility Occupation Tax   

  $276,887 $303K One‐time GF Request  
  $584,318 Other Funding Sources   

 

Information Item 2A     Page 6Packet Page     305



 

Packet Page     306



 

 
 

 
 
 

INFORMATION PACKET 
MEMORANDUM 

  
To: Members of City Council 
 
From:  Jane S. Brautigam, City Manager 
 Paul J. Fetherston, Deputy City Manager 
       Mark R. Beckner, Boulder Police Chief, BRETSA Chairperson 

      Larry D. Donner, Boulder Fire Chief, BRETSA Vice Chair 
 
Date:   December 17, 2013 
 
Subject: Information Item: Update on E-911 Fee Increase 
  
 
EXECUTIVE SUMMARY 
The City is a member of the Boulder Regional Emergency Telephone Service Authority 
(BRETSA). BRETSA, which is authorized to set fees for E-911 service, currently levies a 
surcharge of .50 per telephone number. If approved by the Public Utilities Commission (PUC), 
that fee for service will increase to .75 per telephone number effective July 1, 2014 in order to 
continue to pay for current and future infrastructure and maintenance needs.  CRS 29-11-103 
(3)(a) requires cities, counties, towns and special districts to annually establish a 9-1-1 surcharge 
for each calendar year. Since this level of increase exceeds what is allowed, (PUC) approval is 
required.  The BRETSA board has applied for PUC approval and expects to receive approval in 
the coming weeks. 
 
FISCAL IMPACT 
If approved by the PUC, the rate increase would have no fiscal impact on the city.  If the rate 
increase is not approved by the PUC, the city may have to budget for expenses currently paid 
through the E-911 service fee. 
 
COMMUNITY SUSTAINABILITY ASSESSMENTS AND IMPACTS 
 Social: BRETSA, which is one of 58 Authorities in Colorado - covers 751 square miles and 

serves over 294,000 citizens. To provide countywide E9-1-1 services, BRETSA supports and 
works closely with four PSAPs commonly known as Communications or Dispatch Centers. 
These PSAPs are managed by the Longmont Department of Public Safety, the Boulder 

Information Item 2B    Page 1Packet Page     307



 

County Sheriff’s Office, the Boulder Police Department and the University of Colorado 
Police Department. On average, these PSAPs collectively process 655,000 calls annually. 
The value and importance of these PSAPs in providing public safety services was no more 
apparent than during the recent flood with all the emergency calls they handled, processed 
and dispatched. 

 
BACKGROUND 
The Boulder Regional Emergency Telephone Service Authority (BRETSA) was formed in 1987 
through a countywide Intergovernmental Agreement (IGA). Utilizing the money collected 
through the 9-1-1 surcharge, BRETSA provides significant assistance in bringing Enhanced 9-1-
1 (E9-1-1) telephone and dispatching services to Boulder County and the cities, towns and fire 
protection districts located in Boulder County. BRETSA is governed by Colorado Statutes, the 
IGA, and is managed through a Board.  The board consists of four permanent members and one 
rotating member having a one year term. (See Exhibit D, Organizational Chart.)  While 
BRETSA contracts out for needed services and support, as an emergency telephone service 
authority it has no employees. 
 
Council does not need to approve the fee increase because the authority to set a fee is delegated 
to BRETSA in Section 3-1-4(a) B.R.C. 1981, which allows BRETSA to charge a fee equal to the 
maximum charge permitted pursuant to Section 29-11-102, C.R.S.   
 
ANALYSIS   
 
While the cost of responding to 9-1-1 calls is covered by the various emergency response 
agencies within the county and their respective budgets, BRETSA funds and maintains network 
and Public Safety Answering Point (PSAP) specific E9-1-1 mission critical systems and 
enterprise infrastructure. This networked system routes the 9-1-1 caller to the appropriate PSAP 
and provides extensive computer and software support to manage and process the call so the 
appropriate resources can be quickly and efficiently dispatched to the emergency. Currently, 
funding from BRETSA is primarily used to cover support and operating expenses for E9-1-1 
telephone services,  emergency notification systems (e.g., reverse 9-1-1), computer aided 
dispatch (CAD), digital loggers (phone/radio recorders), other capital/non-capital equipment and 
maintenance needs, network infrastructure to include inter-connecting the PSAPs (fiber, 
redundancy, backup support), technical training needs, and the maintenance of massive databases 
which directly support CAD: Geographic Information System (GIS), Master Street Address 
Guide (MSAG), and Automatic Location Information (ALI). 
 
Since 1994, BRETSA's surcharge rate – currently the 3rd lowest in the state - has not been higher 
than .50 per month per telephone number.  The average rate in Colorado is .86 and 19 
Authorities have rates between $1.00 and $1.50. While BRETSA's level of funding has been 
adequate for 14 years and the request is to continue the current rate for the first half of 2014, 
increasing costs, additional critical needs, revenue vs. expense projections including the need to 
maintain a fund balance (reserves) to cover major purchases and unexpected expenses, and the 
need to offset inflation have resulted in BRETSA asking for a .25 per month increase in the rate.  
(See Exhibit A, .50 Revenue & Expense Graph, and Exhibit B, Value of .50 Graph.) 

Information Item 2B    Page 2Packet Page     308



 

 
This small increase will allow BRETSA to support the PSAPs as follows: 
 
• Continue to fund the standard annual operating expenses that BRETSA currently funds such 

as 9-1-1 telephone services, includingE9-1-1 routing, Language Line (interpreter services), 
emergency notification services, etc.; CAD system & software; maintenance of CAD 
supporting databases & network infrastructure; vendor support; contracted services; standard 
equipment purchases; and training. As with most things, the costs to provide this support are 
increasing and based on current growth patterns, the future revenue stream is only expected 
to increase slightly. Without a rate increase, and given the critical need to fund the additional 
needs noted below, revenues will no longer fully support these ongoing and essential 
operating expenses as illustrated in Exhibit A, .50 Revenue and Expense Graph. 

 
• Increase PSAP support by replacing obsolete radio consoles in 2014 at a cost of 

approximately $2,900,000.  For the Boulder PSAP, this means the replacement of its ten 
Motorola radio consoles used to maintain radio communications with field units. The current 
consoles are being discontinued in 2014 which will make support and finding replacement 
parts increasingly difficult and eventually impossible. The analog technology is out of date, 
can no longer support updates and needs to be replaced with IP based technology to ensure 
reliability and continued interoperability. Without the rate increase, this required cost would 
have to be covered by the City. 

 
• Provide much needed on site technical support by providing funding to each PSAP to hire a 

dedicated, full time, systems specialist. Due to the advanced level of technology required to 
provide E9-1-1 telephone and dispatching services (hardware, software, infrastructure, 
network, etc.), the necessity to maintain and update these services and technology, and the 
critical need to be able to troubleshoot and fix problems and issues quickly, it has become 
apparent that each PSAP must have their own in-house technical support. 

 
Without the additional funding, providing these specialists will not be possible, and the 

PSAPs would need to rely on what support their existing personnel can provide. This presents 
two problems. One, relying on current staff already strained supporting BRETSA technology 
solutions and their own existing internal operations (24/7/365). Two, it pulls staff away from 
other needed duties. This will also create a heavier reliance on outside vendors who rarely have 
immediate response times and may not have global knowledge of PSAP operations. 
 

In addition to meeting these needs, BRETSA's reserves need to be maintained.  Exhibit A, 
.50 Revenue and Expense Graph, shows BRETSA has been operating in the red for the most part 
since 2011. Reserves were used to not only make up differences when needed, but to purchase a 
much needed multi-million dollar CAD system in 2011 that came on line in 2012. Following the 
radio console purchase next year, BRETSA's reserves will be significantly reduced. Without a 
rate increase, the current reserves will become exhausted in early 2018. With a rate increase, the 
reserves will begin to rebuild. (See Exhibit C, .75 Revenue and Expense Graph.  This graph, 
which illustrates reserves being depleted by 2024, is based on a full CAD replacement in 2023 

Information Item 2B    Page 3Packet Page     309



 

and another radio console replacement in 2024.  However, with changing technology it is 
difficult to accurately predict the needs and costs that far into the future.) 
 

While sufficient reserves are needed to cover BRETSA asset replacement, they are also 
needed to deal with contingencies, e.g., emergency replacement of equipment unexpectedly 
failing, significant or catastrophic damage to a PSAP due to a natural or manmade disaster, 
preparing for the future of 9-1-1 services, etc. Another reason sufficient reserves are needed is 
that BRETSA cannot borrow money nor create debt service. 
 
The minimal rate increase being requested will still be below the statewide average, and will 
provide the following benefits: 
 

1. PSAPs will continue to keep up with technology needs to meet operational changes. 
o The level of E9-1-1 services to our communities can be sustained. 

 
2. BRETSA will continue to support and enhance existing PSAP operations. 

o E9-1-1 costs will not redirected to local agencies; 
o An immediate need for radio consoles costing $2.9 million can be met and can be 

met without impacting local budgets; and 
o Existing enterprise E9-1-1 support & maintenance needs can be met and enhanced 

with dedicated technical support.  
 

3. BRETSA will sustain a regionalized and collaborative approach 
o Economies of scale and efficiencies in procurements will continue; and 
o Existing system redundancies and backup of mission-critical applications will be 

maintained. 
 
Without the surcharge increase, BRETSA will not be able to purchase the radio consoles that 
must be replaced nor provide the much needed in-house technical support for each PSAP.  In 
addition, it will find itself in a position of negative revenue from 2014 forward with its reserves 
being reduced each year to cover the difference between revenue and operating expenses. 
BRETSA's ability to handle unforeseen contingencies would eventually become severely 
compromised. 
 
 
NEXT STEPS 
State law requires that surcharge rates exceeding .70 must be approved by the PUC.  The 
application process has already begun and the PUC's approval is anticipated shortly. 
 

Information Item 2B    Page 4Packet Page     310



 
 

INFORMATION PACKET 
MEMORANDUM 

  
To: Mayor Appelbaum and City Council 
 
From:  Jane S.  Brautigam, City Manager 
 Paul J.  Fetherston, Deputy City Manager 
 Maureen Rait, Executive Director of Public Works 
 Jeff Arthur, Director of Public Works for Utilities 
 Joe Taddeucci, Water Resources Manager 
 Kevin Clark, Utilities Engineering Project Manager  
 Jake Gesner, Hydroelectric Manager 
 
Date:   December 17, 2013 
 
Subject: Information Item:  Hydroelectric Program Update 
  
 
EXECUTIVE SUMMARY: 
Boulder began developing the hydroelectric power potential of its municipal water system in the 
1980s.  Between 1985 and 2004, the city built or acquired eight hydroelectric power plants with 
a current capacity of roughly 16 megawatts (MW).  Currently, the city has four hydroelectric 
facilities on its raw water delivery system and four facilities on the treated water system.  The 
city produces an average of approximately 45,000 megawatt hours (MWh) of hydroelectricity 
per year, which results in about $2 million of annual revenue for the water utility.  This revenue 
offsets capital and operating costs that would otherwise be borne by water utility customers 
through higher water rates.   
 
Since the 1980s, it has been city policy to develop hydroelectric potential within the municipal 
water supply system where environmentally and economically feasible.  Hydropower projects 
have been environmentally feasible since municipal water supply infrastructure is already in 
place.  Economic feasibility has been defined as a hydroelectric facility’s ability to pay for its 
construction, operation and maintenance costs over its lifetime.  Seven of the city’s facilities 
have met or are expected to meet this goal in less than 20 years, including Boulder Canyon 
Hydro (BCH), which underwent a major renovation in 2012 at a cost to the city of $4.75 million.   
  
While much of the municipal water system hydroelectric potential has been developed, staff 
continues to monitor potential hydroelectric development options within the system.  Future 
projects may rely upon additions to the water supply infrastructure, operational adjustments, 
future power sales markets and advancements in hydroelectric generation technology.  

Information Item 2C     Page 1Packet Page     311



  
This assessment of the hydro program’s overall status is being presented to provide City Council 
with background information in advance of projects that will be submitted to council in the next 
several years as part of the Capital Improvement Program.  An overview and update on the 
hydroelectric program was also presented to the Water Resources Advisory Board on July 15, 
2013. 
 
FISCAL IMPACT 
The hydroelectric program generates an average $2 million in annual revenue, which offsets 
water utility costs.  Customers water rates would be higher without this revenue. 
 
COMMUNITY SUSTAINABILITY ASSESSMENTS AND IMPACTS 
• Economic:  It has been city policy that hydroelectric installations should be able to pay for 

associated construction, operation and maintenance costs over the assumed 50-year lifetime.  
The infrastructure therefore has a zero net cost in the long-term and generates revenue in 
excess of facility costs.    

• Environmental:  Hydroelectricity is clean, renewable energy.  The city’s program has 
developed the hydroelectric potential of the municipal water supply system, which would 
exist with or without the hydro facilities.  Environmental disturbance associated with the 
hydro facilities themselves, usually limited to the power plant building and associated 
appurtenances, has been minimal.  Since 1985, when the first hydro plant went into service, 
the city has generated more than 645,000 MWh of electricity, which has produced more than 
$31 million in revenue and displaced the need to burn more than 300,000 tons of coal – the 
amount needed to produce an equivalent amount of electricity at a traditional coal-fired 
generation plant.     

• Social: Development of the hydroelectric potential of the city’s water supply system, where 
environmentally and economically feasible, is generally supported by the community as a 
means to increase renewable energy and reduce greenhouse gas emissions. The use of 
hydropower revenue to avoid or delay water rate increases benefits all water customers in the 
community.  Average annual hydroelectric generation is sufficient to meet the annual needs 
of approximately 8,000 households. 

 
BACKGROUND 
Although Boulder first recognized the hydroelectric power potential of its water system as far 
back as 1906, serious consideration of this potential began in the early 1980s, and Boulder’s first 
hydroelectric power plant was completed in 1985.  Today, the city’s water utility enterprise 
operates eight hydroelectric power plants within its raw and treated water supply systems.  Four 
facilities - Silver Lake, Lakewood, Betasso and Boulder Canyon – are located on the raw water 
transmission system.  The Orodell, Sunshine, Maxwell and Kohler hydro facilities are located on 
the treated water distribution system below the Betasso Water Treatment Facility.  The eight 
facilities have a combined rated capacity of approximately 16 MW.  The hydroelectric facility 
locations are shown on Attachment A and facility descriptions are given in Attachment B.   
 
Hydropower generation is subordinate to water supply within the city’s water utility.  The city 
does not deplete its water supply reservoirs solely for hydropower generation.  The one 
exception is BCH, which delivers water back to Boulder Creek using water from the city’s 

Information Item 2C     Page 2Packet Page     312



hydropower water rights.  Much of the system’s hydro generation results from high water 
demand and availability during the warmer summer months.   
 
The city sells all hydroelectricity produced to electric utilities under the terms and conditions of 
power purchase agreements (PPAs).  Seven of the eight existing PPAs are with the Public 
Service Company of Colorado (PSCo)1

 

 (a wholly owned subsidiary of Xcel Energy).  These 
PPAs expire after a set term based on the date they went into effect.   

The city operates all eight of its hydroelectric facilities under conduit exemptions from the 
Federal Energy Regulatory Commission (FERC)2

 

 licensing.  Advantages of this type of 
exemption include issuance in perpetuity (i.e., no periodic costly relicensing process), no annual 
charges by FERC, and limited federal jurisdiction over project facilities (usually just the power 
plant itself).   

ANALYSIS: 
 

The city completed its Boulder Canyon Hydroelectric Modernization Project (Attachment C) in 
2012 and resumed commercial operation on June 12, 2013.  This effort replaced the one operable 
10 MW turbine/generator with a state-of-the-art 5 MW unit.  The modernization project also 
separated previously comingled city and PSCo facilities at BCH.  In June 2013, the city and the 
Tri-State Generation and Transmission Association, Inc. entered into a new five-year PPA for 
BCH, with an estimated $500,000 in annual revenue.   

Recent Events  

 
The city also completed the Betasso Area Pipelines Replacement Project in 2011, which had 
numerous benefits to the hydro program, including:   
 
• reestablishing the Betasso Hydroelectric plant to its full 3.1 MW capacity;    
• converting the old Betasso penstock into a new Orodell pipeline that supplies Orodell 

Hydro); and  
• converting the original Orodell pipeline into a raw water discharge line to be used during 

hydroelectric operations tests.   
 
Though not a completed project, the September 2013 flood is an important event  relative to the 
city’s hydro program.  During the flood, seven of the eight3 hydro plants automatically tripped 
offline in response to disruptions in the electrical transmission and distribution system and 
temporarily ceased generation.  The BCH power plant office flooded, but none of the generation 
equipment was damaged at any of the facilities.  Generation at all of the city’s hydro plants, 
except Orodell Hydro, resumed within a few weeks of the flood.   
 

                                                           
1 In June 2013, the city entered into a new PPA for Boulder Canyon Hydro with Tri-State Generation and 
Transmission Association, Inc.  This PPA is discussed further under “Analysis.” 
2  The city has been issued a conduit exemption from licensing for BCH.  The exemption will go into effect once the 
U.S. Forest Service issues a Special Use Permit authorizing occupancy of federal land for portions of the Barker 
Gravity Pipeline. 
3 Orodell Hydro was already offline for maintenance prior to the flood. 

Information Item 2C     Page 3Packet Page     313



Upcoming Projects 
The hydropower maintenance plan provides for a thorough inspection of each facility every five 
years.  Every 10 years, the units are disassembled for a full internal inspection and maintenance 
overhaul.  Lakewood Hydro is the next facility scheduled for major maintenance in 2014.   
 
Five of the existing PPAs will expire between 2015 and 2017.  The city has the option to extend 
these agreements, most of which are for a 30-year term.  Staff will research potential hydropower 
sales options, including city use of the power under a municipilization scenario, to make sure the 
city obtains the most favorable PPA terms in the future. 
 

Much of the current environmentally and economically feasible hydro potential within the city’s 
water system has been developed.  However, potential opportunities remain for additional 
hydropower generation within the system, pending construction of other water supply 
infrastructure. 

Long-range Planning  

 
• Carter Lake Pipeline Hydro – This pipeline is considered the best long-term solution to 

increase the reliability of the city’s Colorado-Big Thompson and Windy Gap water supplies.  
The pipeline would provide an opportunity to develop a new hydroelectric facility, and 
funding for construction of this facility is allocated in 2019 as part of the proposed 2014-
2019 Capital Improvement Program (CIP).  During budget discussions in recent years, City 
Council has indicated that the hydroelectric potential of the Carter Lake Pipeline is a 
favorable component of the overall pipeline project.   
 

• Hannah Barker Hydro - The Barker Dam outlet gates and related facilities are more than 100 
years old and in need of significant rehabilitation or replacement.  Funding for final design 
and construction of these important outlet works modifications is currently proposed for 2017 
and 2018 in the projected 2014-2019 CIP.  The outlet facilities would provide an opportunity 
to develop a new, year-round hydroelectric facility, and funding for construction of this 
facility is also proposed for 2018.   
 

Prior to proceeding with design and construction, both the Carter Lake Pipeline Hydro and the 
Barker outlet works and hydro projects will be subject to review as part of the annual budget 
process and other applicable project approval processes.   
 
In addition to the Carter Lake Pipeline and Barker Hydro projects, other future potential power 
development projects include:  
 
• adding hydroelectric equipment at 101 Pearl St., which currently only has a pressure-

reducing valve; and   
• replacing one of two pressure-reducing valves at Sunshine Hydro with a micro 

turbine/generator for use during winter, when pipeline flows are too low for the existing 
hydroelectric equipment.   

 
While these potential projects are currently not economically feasible, they could be in the future 
depending on future power sales opportunities and/or technological advancements. 

Information Item 2C     Page 4Packet Page     314



 
Current federal permitting requirements for small hydro projects are time-consuming and costly. 
New, streamlined regulations could significantly reduce permitting costs for the future 
development of city hydroelectric projects.  The Hydropower Regulatory Efficiency Act (H.R.  
267),  signed by President Obama in August 2013,  promotes the development of small 
hydropower and conduit projects and aims to shorten regulatory timeframes of low-impact 
hydropower projects.  
 

The city’s policy is to develop hydropower within its water system where environmentally and 
economically feasible.  Economic feasibility means  the ability for a project to pay for itself 
within its lifespan (50 years is typically conservatively assumed for hydroelectric facilities), 
including construction, operation and maintenance

Program Economics  

3

 

.  Current midlife modeling (combining 
actual historical and estimated future information) of the city’s eight hydroelectric facilities over 
a 50-year lifecycle is provided in the following table. 

Table 1 – City of Boulder Hydroelectric Program Economics Analysis Summary 

Facility Size (MW) In Service Year 

Benefit-Cost 
Ratio over 50 
Year Project 

Life 

Present Value 
of Net 

Revenue over 
Project Life* 

Payback 
Period (Years) 

Betasso 3.100 1987 2.9 $19,785,000 7 
Orodell 0.225 1987     0.6** $  (425,800)**   NA** 

Sunshine 0.800 1987     1.8** $  3,696,000**    13** 
Kohler 0.150 1986 1.8 $    838,000 14 

Maxwell 0.950 1985 1.7 $     591,000 15 
Silver Lake 3.200 1998 1.7 $  9,318,000 14 
Lakewood 3.400 2004 2.7 $14,052,000 7 

Boulder Canyon 5.000 2013 1.3 $  4,186,000 17 
Total 15.970 - - $51,449,000 - 

 
*Present Value of Net Revenue = Net Present Value (NPV - economic term), which takes into account gross revenue and 
subtracts gross cost and brings the future value back to present day (2013 dollars used for analysis). 
**Orodell Hydro can be considered along with Sunshine Hydro as one integrated system due to present city water supply 
operation and water system flow connectivity. 
 
Six of eight hydro facilities have already paid for themselves.  A seventh (BCH) is expected to 
pay for itself by 2030.   The total net present value (NPV) for the city’s eight facilities is 
currently modeled at $51.4 million over 50 years.  The one exception within the system is 
Orodell Hydro, which does not have a positive NPV and has a benefit-cost ratio (BCR) less than 
1.0 when considered as an independent facility.  Due to water delivery operational changes, 

                                                           
3 Operations and maintenance costs include payroll expenses as well as materials, equipment and contractor costs 
for upkeep of the hydroelectric plants.  While there is not a lot of variation in the annual hydro operating budget, the 
distribution of those funds among the eight facilities varies significantly from year to year, depending on 
maintenance priorities.  From 2007 through 2012, operations and maintenance costs averaged about $400,000 per 
year. 
 
 

Information Item 2C     Page 5Packet Page     315



Orodell Hydro is not generating as much power as initially modeled.  The original Orodell Hydro 
economic analysis assumed year-round operation, but the city currently generates at Sunshine 
Hydro during winter (with Orodell Hydro offline) because of favorable power generation terms 
and operational constraints on the downstream Orodell Pipeline system.  Orodell Hydro and 
Sunshine Hydro, when viewed as a combined system, have a positive combined NPV of $3.27 
million over the 50 year expected equipment life.   
 

Staff will continue to operate and maintain the existing hydroelectric units, address PPA 
renewals, and look for new opportunities to develop hydroelectric potential within the city’s 
water supply system.  Additional information will be presented as projects associated with the 
city’s hydro system (new or enhancements to the existing system) come up for consideration 
during the capital improvement and budgeting process.   

NEXT STEPS:  

 

Attachment A: City of Boulder Source Water Facilities  
ATTACHMENTS:  

Attachment B: City of Boulder Hydroelectric Facility Summary  
Attachment C: Boulder Canyon Hydroelectric Modernization Project Summary  

Information Item 2C     Page 6Packet Page     316



 

 

Attachment A 
CITY OF BOULDER SOURCE WATER FACILITIES 

 

Attachment A: City Source Water

Information Item 2C     Page 7Packet Page     317



 

Packet Page     318



 

 

                Attachment B 
 

City of Boulder Hydroelectric Facility Summary 
 

Name Pressure Source 
Head on U/S Side 

Turbine (ft) Type of Turbine 
2013 Nameplate 

Capacity (kW) Generator Make 
Commercial Operation 

Date 2011 Generation (kWh) 2011 Revenue 
Construction 

Cost 

Maxwell Treated Water 
(Zone 3) (Pump/Generator) 200 Reaction (Francis) 95 General Electric March 1985 576,000 $25,400 $344,000 

Kohler Treated Water 
(Zone 3) (Pump/Generator) 140 -240 Reaction (2 Francis) 150 Marathon XRI November 1986 754,000 $32,700 $431,000 

Orodell Treated Water . (Orodell Pipeline) 413 Reaction (Francis) 225 Primeline September 1987 390,000 $13,000 $406,000 

Treated Water Sunshine (Sunshine Pipeline) 750 Reaction (Francis) 800 Unimega-Hitachi September 1986 3,845,000 $165,700 $1,790,000 

Raw water Betasso (Betasso Penstock) 1,094 Impulse (Pelton) 3,100 Kumming Elec December 1987 18,398,000 
(combined with Lakewood) 

$1,936,000 
(includes Lakewood and Silver Lake) $3,200,000 

Raw water 
Silver Lake (Silver Lake 

Pipeline) 
1,406 Impulse (Pelton) 3,200 Alconza March 1998 14,779,000 See Betasso $7,224,000 

Raw water Boulder Canyon (Kossler/Barker) 1,847 Impulse (Pelton) 5,000 Hydudai-Ideal 

Original August 1910 
(COB Purchased March 

2001)  
June 2013 after 5 MW 

replacement 

11,525,000 $290,000 $5,900,000 

Raw water 
Lakewood (Lakewood 

Pipeline) 
1,554 Impulse (Pelton) 3,400 Alconza June 2004 Included with Betasso See Betasso $3,431,000 

 Total  50,267,000 $2,463,000 

Since beginning operation through 2011 these hydros have displaced 305,000 tons of burning coal and generated 609,879,000 kilowatt hours. Total revenue through 2011 was approximately $ 29,054,000. 

$22,726,000 

Attachment B: Facility Summary

Information Item 2C     Page 8Packet Page     319



 

Packet Page     320



 

 

          ATTACHMENT C 
 

SUMMARY OF THE BOULDER CANYON HYDROELECTRIC PROJECT 
MODERNIZATION 

 
The Boulder Canyon Hydroelectric Project (BCH) was purchased by the City of Boulder, CO 
(the city) in 2001.  Project facilities were originally constructed in 1910 and upgraded in the 
1930s and 1940s.  By 2009, the two 10 MW turbine/generators had reached or were nearing the 
end of their useful lives.  One generator had grounded out and was beyond repair, reducing plant 
capacity to 10 MW.  The remaining 10 MW unit was expected to fail at any time.   
 
When the BCH power plant was originally constructed, a sizeable water supply was available for 
the sole purpose of hydroelectric power generation.  Between 1950 and 2001, that water supply 
had gradually been converted to municipal water supply by the city.  By 2001, the water 
available for hydroelectric power generation at BCH could not support even one 10 MW unit. 
Boulder lacked the financial resources to modernize the facilities, and Boulder anticipated that 
when the single, operational historical unit failed, the project would cease operation.   
 
In 2009, the City of Boulder applied for and received a U.S. Department of Energy (DOE) grant 
for $1.18 million toward a total estimated project cost of $5.155 million to modernize BCH.  The 
federal funding allowed Boulder to move forward with plant modifications that would ensure 
BCH would continue operation.  Federal funding was made available through the American 
Recovery and Reinvestment Act (ARRA) of 2009. 
 
Boulder determined that a single 5 MW turbine/generator would be the most appropriate 
capacity, given the reduced water supply to the plant.  Average annual BCH generation with the 
old 10 MW unit had been about 8,500 MW-hr, whereas annual generation with a new, efficient 
turbine could average 11,000 to 12,000 MW-hr.  The incremental change in annual generation 
represents a 30% increase in generation over pre-project conditions.   
 
The old turbine/generator was a single nozzle Pelton turbine with a 5-to-1 flow turndown and a 
maximum turbine/generator efficiency of 82%. The new unit is a double nozzle Pelton turbine 
with a 10-to-1 flow turndown and a maximum turbine/generator efficiency of 88%. This alone 
represents a 6% increase in overall efficiency. The old turbine operated at low efficiencies due to 
age and non-optimal sizing of the turbine for the water flow available to the unit. It was shut 
down whenever water flow dropped to less than 4-5 cfs, and at that flow, efficiency was 55 to 
60%. The new turbine will operate in the range of 70 to 88% efficiency through a large portion 
of the existing flow range and would only have to be shut down at flow rates less than 3.7 cfs. 
Efficiency is expected to increase by 15-30%, depending on flow. 
 
In addition to the installation of new equipment, other goals for the project included: 

• Increasing safety at Boulder Canyon Hydro 
• Increasing protection of the Boulder Creek environment 
• Modernizing and integrating control equipment into Boulder’s municipal water supply 

system, and 
• Preserving significant historical engineering information prior to power plant 

modernization.   

Attachment C: Project Summary

Information Item 2C     Page 9Packet Page     321



 

 

From January 1, 2010 through December 31, 2012, combined consultant and contractor 
personnel hours paid for by both the city and the federal government have totaled approximately 
40,000. This equates roughly to seven people working full time on the project from January 2010 
through December 2012.  

This project also involved considerable material expense (steel pipe, a variety of valves, 
electrical equipment, and the various components of the turbine and generator), which were not 
accounted for in terms of hours spent on the project. However, the material expense related to 
this project did help to create or preserve manufacturing/industrial jobs throughout the United 
States. As required by ARRA, the various components of the hydroelectric project were 
manufactured or substantially transformed in the U.S. 

BCH is eligible for nomination to the National Register of Historic Places due in part to its 
unique engineering features and innovative construction techniques.  Special efforts were 
directed toward documenting the (largely original) interior of the plant and installing new 
equipment without modifying the power plant exterior in order to preserve the historical 
significance of the facility.  In addition, a significant portion of the historical equipment within 
the power plant was preserved in place. 
 
The modernization project began with DOE grant award on January 1, 2010, and the project was 
completed on December 31, 2012.  In addition to city engineering and hydroelectric staff, major 
project participants included AECOM (design/engineering) Canyon Industries (turbine/generator 
manufacture), Gracon Corporation (general construction contractor), Exponential Engineering 
Company (electrical engineering) and URS Corporation (historical documentation), as well as 
numerous other subcontractors and consultants.   
 

Attachment C: Project Summary

Information Item 2C     Page 10Packet Page     322



    
 

 

 
 

CITY OF BOULDER 
Boards and Commissions Minutes 

 
NAME OF COMMISSION:  Parks and Recreation Advisory Board 

DATE OF MEETING: 8/26/13 

NAME/EXTENSION OF PERSON PREPARING SUMMARY:   Sally Dieterich 

NAMES OF MEMBERS AND STAFF:   
MEMBERS:  Rick Thayer, Mike Conroy, Myriah Conroy, Michelle Estrella, Kelly Wyatt, Mike Guzek, 
Marty Gorce  
STAFF: Kirk Kincannon, Jeff Dillon, Alice Guthrie, Sally Dieterich, Sarah DeSouza, Alison Rhodes, 
Jennifer Bray, Stacy Cole, Andrew MacLean 
TYPE OF MEETING: Regular monthly business meeting              

SUMMATION:  
Call to Order: 6:00 
APPROVAL OF AGENDA: Approved 
FUTURE BOARD ITEMS AND TOURS: 

 9/17/13 city council meeting – Public hearing on Parks and Recreation department master plan 
acceptance 

 9/23/13 PRAB meeting – E Bike policy pilot program 
 9/23/13 PRAB meeting – Smoking ban discussion 
 9/23/13 PRAB meeting – 2014 USA Cyclocross Nationals update 
 9/23/13 PRAB meeting – Valmont City Park south planning process update 

CONSENT AGENDA: 
  A. Minutes from July 22, 2013 were approved as written. 
 B. Informational Items: The park development, Pottery lab RFP and 2013 department master plan 
 updates were approved as written. 
ITEMS FOR ACTION: None 
ITEMS FOR DISCUSSION/INFORMATION: 
 A. North Boulder Park Art: – Timeline update: 

 Fund raising committee formed 
 Approval to move forward received 
 Staff redesigning North Boulder Park due to public utilities detected beneath public art site 
 Boulder Cycling Monument project will be within new public art policy guidelines 
 Establishment of art selection panel to review and provide recommendation 
 Arts Commission and PRAB will review 
 Decision to be provided by Boulder city manager 

MATTERS FROM THE DEPARTMENT: 
 A. No Smoking Ordinance – Parks/Civic Areas/Bike Paths/Bus Stops: Council has asked the 
 department to research drafting a no smoking ordinance to be presented to council by the 4th quarter 

 

Boards and Commissions Page 1Packet Page     323



 2013. This item will return to PRAB in September. 
 B. Boulder Reservoir July 4, 2013 Event Report:  

 Event successful with positive changes 
 Attendance significantly less than 2012 
 Numerous free programs provided 
 Live music and DJ provided 
 No impacts to Valhalla neighborhood 
 Alcohol consumption limited to on-site beer garden 
 Increased communication 
 Lower revenues due to decreased attendance 
 2014 – Staff to evaluate continuing limiting alcohol, increasing family activities, staffing 

levels and fee options 
 C. PLAY Boulder Foundation Update: Proposal: 

 Appoint five members 
 PRAB members to be on foundation 
 Form PRAB subcommittee 

MATTERS FROM BOARD MEMBERS: None 
ADJOURNMENT: 7:26 p.m. 
Public comments: There were no public comments. 

Next meeting: September 23, 2013 at Valmont Bike Park Platt farmhouse, Airport and Valmont Roads, 
Boulder, CO 80301 

 

Boards and Commissions Page 2Packet Page     324



    
 

 

 
 

CITY OF BOULDER 
Boards and Commissions Minutes 

 
NAME OF COMMISSION:  Parks and Recreation Advisory Board 

DATE OF MEETING: 9/23/13 

NAME/EXTENSION OF PERSON PREPARING SUMMARY:   Sally Dieterich 

NAMES OF MEMBERS AND STAFF:   
MEMBERS:  Rick Thayer, Mike Conroy, Myriah Conroy, Michelle Estrella, Kelly Wyatt, Mike Guzek, 
Marty Gorce  
STAFF: Kirk Kincannon, Jeff Dillon, Alice Guthrie, Sally Dieterich 

TYPE OF MEETING: Regular monthly business meeting              

SUMMATION:  
Call to order: 6:06 p.m. 
APPROVAL OF AGENDA: Approved 
FUTURE BOARD ITEMS AND TOURS: 

 10/28/13 PRAB meeting – Pottery Lab RFP update 
 10/28/13 PRAB meeting – Park development and recreation programs update 
 10/28/13 PRAB meeting – Flood update/department impact 

CONSENT AGENDA: 
  A. Due to the 2013 Boulder flood, approval of minutes from August 26, 2013 was deferred to the 
 October 28, 2013 PRAB meeting. 
 B. Due to the 2013 Boulder flood, Informational Items were deferred to the October 28, 2013 
 meeting. 
ITEMS FOR ACTION: None 
ITEMS FOR DISCUSSION/INFORMATION: 
 A. Flood update – Department Impact: Dillon and Guthrie provided a power point presentation of the 
 September 2013 Boulder flood, detailing damage to parks and recreation facilities. Updates will be 
 included during future monthly meetings. 
 B. E Bike Policy: At council’s request, Kincannon asked PRAB for input on the E Bike pilot 
 program, which would allow electric assisted bicycles to operate on roads and bike paths, but not on 
 multi-use paths and sidewalks. PRAB was generally in favor of the pilot program, having some 
 reluctance with regard to the speed of e-bikes on bike paths. 
MATTERS FROM THE DEPARTMENT: None 
MATTERS FROM BOARD MEMBERS: None 
ADJOURNMENT: 7:26 p.m. 
Public comments: There were no public comments. 

Next meeting: October 28, 2013 at Valmont Bike Park Platt farmhouse, Airport and Valmont Roads, 
Boulder, CO 80301 

 

Boards and Commissions Page 1Packet Page     325



 

Packet Page     326



 
 

 
 

CITY OF BOULDER 
Boards and Commissions Minutes 

 
NAME OF COMMISSION:  Parks and Recreation Advisory Board 

DATE OF MEETING: 10/28/13 

NAME/EXTENSION OF PERSON PREPARING SUMMARY:   Sally Dieterich 

NAMES OF MEMBERS AND STAFF:  MEMBERS:  Rick Thayer, Mike Conroy, Myriah Conroy, Kelly 
Wyatt, Mike Guzek, Marty Gorce  
STAFF: Jeff Dillon, Alice Guthrie, Sally Dieterich, Jeff Haley, Kady Doelling, Jennifer Bray, Mike Eubank 
INVITED GUESTS:  Matt Chasansky, Boulder Public Library Arts and Cultural Services Manager 
 
TYPE OF MEETING: Regular monthly business meeting              

SUMMATION:  
Call to Order: 6:03 p.m. 
APPROVAL OF AGENDA: Approved 
FUTURE BOARD ITEMS AND TOURS: 

 11/18/13 PRAB meeting – Pottery Lab RFP update and Chautauqua update 
 1st quarter 2014 – Council public hearing on department master plan acceptance 
 Next 2-3 months – Parks & Rrecration department fees discussion 
 PRAB study session will be scheduled to discuss CIP flood impacts and smoking ban follow up 

CONSENT AGENDA: 
A. Minutes from 8/26/13 and 9/23/13 were approved as written. 
B. Informational items: The park development update was approved as written. 

ITEMS FOR ACTION: None 
ITEMS FOR DISCUSSION/INFORMATION: 
 A. 2014 Cyclocross Nationals: Eubank provided an update on the upcoming 2014 Cyclocross 
 Nationals to be held in Boulder in Jan. 2014. 
 B. Flood Art Project: Chasansky spoke on the Flood Art Project as a response to the 2013 Boulder 
 flood. The project will collaborate with BMoCA and local businesses. Four artists were chosen to 
 design installations involving eco arts, sustainable and social practices and dealing with the 
 community in artwork installation creation. The project will continue for one year. 
 C. Flood Recovery Update: Haley and Doelling provided an update on Parks and Recreation 
 department flood recovery, detailing the FEMA process: 

 9/14/13 – Declaration date 
 12/6/13 – Damage identification (60 days) 
 3/14/14 – Debris removal (6 months) 
 3/14/14 – Emergency work (6 months) 
 3/14/15 – Permanent work (18 months) 

D. Valmont City Park – South Development: Haley gave an update on the south development of 
Valmont City Park including the timeline: 

 

Boards and Commissions Page 1Packet Page     327



 11/13-1/14 – Data gathering 
 11/13 – 2/14 – Opportunities/constraints (data analysis, summary report, athletic fields study 

results, community survey results, needs analysis report) 
 3/14-5/14 – Concept alternatives development 
 5/14-7/14 – Recommended concept plan 
 8/14-10/14 – Final concept plan completion 

E. Discussion on Smoking Ban in Urban Parks and Municipal Campus: Guthrie led a discussion on 
a smoking ban in urban parks and the municipal campus. Council asked PRAB for input on a 
potential ban. The general feeling from PRAB was not supportive. 

MATTERS FROM THE DEPARTMENT: None 
MATTERS FROM BOARD MEMBERS: None 
ADJOURNMENT: 8:28 p.m. 
PUBLIC COMMENTS:  Peter Richards, resident, questioned the City of Boulder’s participation in the 
Silver Sneakers program, as he views it to be a non-revenue producing program. 
Next meeting: November 18, 2013 at the Iris Center, 3198 Broadway, Boulder, CO 80304. 

 

Boards and Commissions Page 2Packet Page     328



Approved by Council 10/19/04  

Council Working Agreements 
 

Council Process: 
• The Council will work on general discipline in being prepared to ask questions and make 

comments. 
• The Council asks the Mayor to intervene if discussion on agenda items extends beyond a 

reasonable time frame. 
• The council will engage in the practice of colloquy to fully explore the different sides of a 

specific point. 
• The Mayor will ask the city clerk to set the timer lights for council members if 

discussions begin to exceed efficient debate.  Members should respect the lights as a time 
reminder, but will not be bound by them as absolute limits. 

• Rather than restating a point, council members should simply say “I agree.” 
• The council agenda committee may, with advance notice, adjust each public speaker's 

time to two rather than three minutes during public hearings for items on which many 
speakers want to address the council. 

• Council members will grant each other permission to mentor and support each other on 
how each person contributes to the goal of being accountable for demonstrating 
community leadership. 

• In order to hear each other respectfully and honor the public, council will avoid body 
language that could convey disrespect, side conversations, talking to staff, whispering to 
neighboring council members, passing notes, and leaving the council chambers. 

• Regarding not revisiting past discussions, the council should check-in with fellow 
members periodically to ensure that this is not an issue. 

 
Council Communication: 

• Council members agree to keep quasi-judicial roles scrupulously clean between members 
of boards and members of council, like expressing ideas to board members on things 
coming before the Board, and carefully disclose or recuse themselves when they're is 
involvement with board members on a topic.   

• Council agrees to e-mail the city manager about issues that they run into that staff or 
boards may be working on so that the manager can be actively involved in managing 
issues and keeping the full council informed well in advance of items coming before 
council for action.  

• Members will keep the full council informed on issues from committees, public groups or 
other agencies that they are following, the a hot line e-mails, brief verbal reports at the 
end of council meetings or other means. 

• The Council will find ways to support majority council decisions and adequately inform 
the public, through response letters that explain how divergent points of view were heard 
and honored in decisions, via standard e-mail responses for hot issues, by occasional 
council Letters to the Editor to clarify the facts, or by seeking out reporters after meetings 
to explain controversial decisions. 

 
Council Committees 

• Council goal committee meetings will be scheduled to accommodate the council 
members on the committee.   

• Notice of the times and places for each goal committee meeting will be noticed once per 
month in the Daily Camera.   

• The council agenda will include time for reports from committees under Matters from 
Members of Council, noting that written communications from the committees are 
appropriate as well. 

 
 

Packet Page     329



Date Status Topic Time
01/14/14 Hold for CMO - No Meeting
01/28/14
02/11/14
02/25/14 Need Approval TMP Update 6-9 PM
03/06/14 Approved Board and Commission Interviews 6-9 PM
03/11/14 Need Approval Dinner with Sister City Alliance and Members 5-6 PM
03/11/14 Approved Board and Commission Interviews 6-9 PM
03/11/14 Need New Date Boulder's Energy Future 6-7:30 PM
03/11/14 Need New Date Human Services Master Plan Update 6-8 PM
03/13/14 Approved Board and Commission Interviews 6-9 PM
03/25/14 Spring Break
03/25/14 Spring Break
04/08/14
04/22/14 Need Approval TMP Update 6-7:30 PM
04/29/14
05/13/14
05/27/14
06/10/14
06/24/14 Council Recess
07/08/14 Council Recess
07/22/14
07/29/14
08/12/14
08/26/14
09/09/14
09/23/14
09/30/14
10/14/14
10/28/14
11/11/14 Veteran's Day
11/25/14 Tuesday Before Thanksgiving
12/09/14
12/23/14 Week of Christmas
12/30/14 Tuesday before New Year's

Packet Page     330



Agenda Section Item Name Time
SPECIAL PRESENTATIONS:
OPEN COMMENT: 45 Minutes
CONSENT: October 15, 2013 Minutes 15 Minutes

October 29, 2013 Minutes
November 19, 2013 Minutes
December 3, 2013 Minutes

PUBLIC HEARINGS: Second reading designating the building and property at 2003 Pine St. as an individual 
landmark under the Historic Preservation Ordinance 15 Minutes
Second reading designating the building and property at 1922 20th St. as an individual 
landmark under the Historic Preservation Ordinance 15 Minutes

MATTERS FROM CITY MANAGER:
MATTERS FROM CITY ATTORNEY:
MATTERS FROM MAYOR AND MEMBERS:
CALL-UPS:

Total Estimated Meeting Time (Hours) 1.50

Agenda Section Item Name Time
SPECIAL PRESENTATIONS:
OPEN COMMENT: 45 Minutes
CONSENT: 2nd reading ordinance to relocate two historic residential structures to 905 Marine 15 Minutes

1st reading Landmark Designation of 1815 Mapleton Ave
December 17, 2013 Minutes

PUBLIC HEARINGS: 2nd Reading Boulder Jewish Commons Annexation 2 Hours

MATTERS FROM CITY MANAGER: Options for securing trash from Bears 45 Minutes
MATTERS FROM CITY ATTORNEY:
MATTERS FROM MAYOR AND MEMBERS:
CALL-UPS:

Total Estimated Meeting Time (Hours) 3.75

January 21, 2014
Start Time: 6:00 PM Business Meeting

Location: Library Auditorium, 1001 Arapahoe Ave.

January 7, 2014
Start Time: 6:00 PM Business Meeting

Location: Library Auditorium, 1001 Arapahoe Ave.

January 12-13, 2014
Start Time: 9:00 AM to 5:00 PM Retreat

Location: TBD

Packet Page     331



Agenda Section Item Name Time
SPECIAL PRESENTATIONS:
OPEN COMMENT: 45 Minutes
CONSENT: January 7, 2014 Minutes 15 Minutes

PUBLIC HEARINGS: Parks and Recreation Master Plan 90 Minutes

MATTERS FROM CITY MANAGER:
MATTERS FROM CITY ATTORNEY:
MATTERS FROM MAYOR AND MEMBERS:
CALL-UPS:

Total Estimated Meeting Time (Hours) 2.50

Agenda Section Item Name Time
SPECIAL PRESENTATIONS:
OPEN COMMENT: 45 Minutes
CONSENT: Recommendations on changes to panhandling ordinance 15 Minutes

January 21, 2014 Minutes

PUBLIC HEARINGS: 2nd reading Landmark Designation of 1815 Mapleton Ave 15 Min.

MATTERS FROM CITY MANAGER:
MATTERS FROM CITY ATTORNEY:
MATTERS FROM MAYOR AND MEMBERS:
CALL-UPS:

Total Estimated Meeting Time (Hours) 1.25

February 4, 2014
Start Time: 6:00 PM Business Meeting

Location: Library Auditorium, 1001 Arapahoe Ave.

February 18, 2014
Start Time: 6:00 PM Business Meeting

Location: Library Auditorium, 1001 Arapahoe Ave.

Packet Page     332



Agenda Section Item Name Time
SPECIAL PRESENTATIONS:
OPEN COMMENT: 45 Minutes
CONSENT: 15 Minutes

PUBLIC HEARINGS: Recommendations on changes to panhandling ordinance 1 Hour

MATTERS FROM CITY MANAGER:
MATTERS FROM CITY ATTORNEY:
MATTERS FROM MAYOR AND MEMBERS:
CALL-UPS:

Total Estimated Meeting Time (Hours) 2.00

Agenda Section Item Name Time
SPECIAL PRESENTATIONS:
OPEN COMMENT: 45 Minutes

CONSENT: Update report on mobile food vehicle pilot program and changes to MFV ordinance 15 Minutes

PUBLIC HEARINGS:

MATTERS FROM CITY MANAGER:
MATTERS FROM CITY ATTORNEY:
MATTERS FROM MAYOR AND MEMBERS: Board and Commission appointments 45 min.
CALL-UPS:

Total Estimated Meeting Time (Hours) 1.75

March 4, 2014
Start Time: 6:00 PM Business Meeting

Location: Council Chambers, 1777 Broadway

March 18, 2014
Start Time: 6:00 PM Business Meeting

Location: Council Chambers, 1777 Broadway

Packet Page     333



Agenda Section Item Name Time
SPECIAL PRESENTATIONS: Board and Commission Reception & Farewell @ 5:00 1 Hour
OPEN COMMENT: 45 Minutes
CONSENT: 15 Minutes

PUBLIC HEARINGS:

MATTERS FROM CITY MANAGER:
MATTERS FROM CITY ATTORNEY:
MATTERS FROM MAYOR AND MEMBERS:
CALL-UPS:

Total Estimated Meeting Time (Hours) 1.50

Agenda Section Item Name Time
SPECIAL PRESENTATIONS:
OPEN COMMENT: 45 Minutes
CONSENT: 15 Minutes

PUBLIC HEARINGS: Changes to Mobile Food Vehicle Pilot Ordinance 30 Minutes

MATTERS FROM CITY MANAGER:
MATTERS FROM CITY ATTORNEY:
MATTERS FROM MAYOR AND MEMBERS:
CALL-UPS:

Total Estimated Meeting Time (Hours) 1.00

April 1, 2014
Start Time: 6:00 PM Business Meeting

Location: Council Chambers, 1777 Broadway

April 15, 2014
Start Time: 6:00 PM Business Meeting

Location: Council Chambers, 1777 Broadway

Packet Page     334



 
 
 
 

City Council Goals – 2013  
 
Top Priorities:  
 
1. Boulder’s Energy Future  
The top priority for the City in 2013 is the development of a framework for planning the 
energy future for the city of Boulder. This framework will focus on the idea of localization, 
the overarching goal of which is:  
To ensure that Boulder residents, businesses and institutions have access to energy that 
is increasingly clean, reliable and competitively priced.  
 
2. Climate Action Plan  
  
Outline the next generation of climate action efforts in Boulder  
 
Consider extension of CAP tax  
 
3. Affordable Housing  
  
Receive report of the Task force created in 2010 to evaluate goals and the approach to 
affordable housing and Based on Council review and discussion of these recommendations, 
develop an action plan to improve the availability of affordable housing in the city  
 
Consider policies regarding inclusionary housing for rental units  
 
4. Civic Center Master Plan  
  
Study and develop a master plan for the area between 15th and 9th Streets, with a focus on 
Farmer’s Market and area between Broadway and 15th Street.  
 

Packet Page     335



Next Tier Priorities:  
1. University Hill Revitalization  
  
Continue work of Ownership Group to develop comprehensive revitalization strategy  
 
Investigate formation of a general improvement district, including the commercial area and 
part of the residential area to control trash and other problems  
 
Change boundaries of BMS land use to coincide with UHGID through BVCP process  
 
Support private development and investment in Hill area  
 
Partner with CU to consider opportunities for properties in the Hill area  
 
Provide an opportunity to explore big ideas  
 
2. Homelessness  
  
Participate in Ten Year Plan to Address Homelessness  
 
Balance long term and short term approaches to address needs  
 
Invest new resources in Housing First model  
 
Work with partners, such as BOHO, to address approaches to immediate needs  
 
3. Boulder Junction Implementation  
 
Work with RTD and selected developer of site to maximize mixed use urban center  
  
Invest in planned infrastructure  
 
Achieve goals of plan while ensuring flexibility in working with developers  
 
Prioritize city actions to facilitate private investment  
 
Focus additional planning work on reconsidering use for Pollard site  
 

Packet Page     336



 

H:\My Documents\CMO\2013WorkPlan.doc 1

 
City Council 

2013 Work Plan by Council Goal 
 

TOP PRIORITIES 
 

GGGOOOAAALLL:::      BBBooouuullldddeeerrr’’’sss   EEEnnneeerrrgggyyy   FFFuuutttuuurrreee   
1st Quarter 2nd Quarter 3rd Quarter  4th Quarter 

 Boulder’s Energy Future – ongoing 
analysis of municipalization and 
work on Energy Action Plan with 
updates to council at roundtables  

 Recommended strategies to achieve 
community’s energy goals - Study 
Session and Public Hearing 

 

 Boulder’s Energy Future – 
based on the strategies 
approved by Council in 1st 
Quarter, ongoing analysis of 
municipalization and work on 
Energy Action Plan with 
updates to council at 
roundtables  

 Municipalization Exploration 
Project Work Plan Phase 2 – 
Study Session 

 Boulder’s Energy Future – 
ongoing analysis of 
municipalization and work on 
Energy Action Plan with updates 
to council at roundtables  

 Study Session 

 Boulder’s Energy Future – ongoing 
analysis of municipalization and 
work on Energy Action Plan with 
updates to council at roundtables 

 Study Session  

 
GGGOOOAAALLL:::      CCCllliiimmmaaattteee   AAAccctttiiiooonnn   PPPlllaaannn   

1st Quarter 2nd Quarter 3rd Quarter  4th Quarter 
 Boulder Canyon Hydroelectric 

Project 
 Climate Commitment – RFQ for 

consulting assistance for targets and 
goal setting, development of new 
GHG inventory, and tracking and 
reporting tools 

 Energy Efficiency: 
o Launch of 2013 program priorities 
o Upgrades in City Buildings – 

employee education and outreach 
project (IP) 

 Disposable Bag Fee – 
implementation plan and revised 
budget (IP) 

 Transportation Master Plan (TMP) – 

 Commercial Energy Efficiency 
Strategy (CEES) - feedback on 
options (Study Session) 

 Climate Commitment – Study 
Session to review program 
annual targets, short/ long term 
goals, tracking and reporting 
systems 

 Electric/ Hybrid vehicles – 
project closeout 

 Energy Efficiency – finalize 
Market Innovations approach  
(Study Session) 

 Solar/ Wind Generation Facility 
Code Changes 

 SmartRegs – code changes 

 CEES – adopt Energy Rating and 
Reporting Ordinance 

 Climate Commitment – policy 
integration with TMP and ZWMP 

 Energy Efficiency – launch 
Market Innovations competition 

 Zero Waste Master Plan (ZWMP) 
– draft 

 Climate Commitment – policy 
integration with TMP and ZWMP 

 Energy Efficiency  
o Upgrades in City Buildings – 

results of employee education 
and outreach (IP) 

 SmartRegs – options for quality 
control of rental housing 
inspections 

 

Packet Page     337



 

H:\My Documents\CMO\2013WorkPlan.doc 2

initial results of Transportation 
Funding Task Force (Study Session) 

 
GGGOOOAAALLL:::      AAAffffffooorrrdddaaabbbllleee   HHHooouuusssiiinnnggg   

1st Quarter 2nd Quarter 3rd Quarter  4th Quarter 
 ADU/ OAU – study results (IP) 
 Comprehensive Housing Strategy 

issues  - stakeholder engagement 
process 

 Density and Distribution of 
affordable and special needs 
housing - report 

 Inclusionary Housing Rental Policy 
– consideration of ordinance 
changes following stakeholder 
engagement process 

 Mobile Homes Parks – legislative 
agenda 

 Comprehensive Housing 
Strategy 
o Stakeholder engagement 

process 
o Study Session 

 

 Comprehensive Housing Strategy 
issues  - stakeholder engagement 
process 

 

 Comprehensive Housing Strategy 
issues  - stakeholder engagement 
process 

 

 
 
GGGOOOAAALLL:::      CCCiiivvviiiccc   AAArrreeeaaa   PPPlllaaannn   

1st Quarter 2nd Quarter 3rd Quarter  4th Quarter 
 Board and community input 
 Council participation in Ideas 

Competition 
 

 Council direction on preferred 
option(s) and strategies  

 Draft plan  
o Development 
o Community input 
o Study Session 

 Municipal Space Study Final 
Report 

 Boulder Civic Area vision and 
plan  
o Study session 
o Public hearings on adoption 

 

 

Packet Page     338



 

H:\My Documents\CMO\2013WorkPlan.doc 3

 
NEXT TIER PRIORITIES 

 
GGGOOOAAALLL:::      UUUnnniiivvveeerrrsssiiitttyyy   HHHiiillllll    RRReeevvviiitttaaallliiizzzaaatttiiiooonnn   

1st Quarter 2nd Quarter 3rd Quarter  4th Quarter 
 2013 action priorities confirmed by 

Council at January retreat 
 Hill Residential Service District – 

update 
 Innovation District - update 

 Action on other priorities 
 Hill Residential Service District 

– 1st reading of petition 
 

 Capital infrastructure 
improvements for the residential 
and commercial areas – consider 
during CIP process 

 

 
GGGOOOAAALLL:::      AAAddddddrrreeessssssiiinnnggg   HHHooommmeeellleeessssssnnneeessssss      

1st Quarter 2nd Quarter 3rd Quarter  4th Quarter 
 City and Community Efforts – 

Denver sleeping ordinance (IP) 
 Housing First (1175 Lee Hill Road) 

– Statement of Operations (IP)  
 Work plan check in and priority – 

Council retreat 
 

 Analysis of funding for 
homeless services and 
alignment with the Ten Year 
Plan and unmet needs 

 Ten Year Plan to Address 
Homelessness – progress 
update (IP) 

 Analysis and recommendations 
regarding banning panhandling on 
street corners 

 Ten Year Plan to Address 
Homelessness – progress update 
(IP) 

 
GGGOOOAAALLL:::      BBBooouuullldddeeerrr   JJJuuunnnccctttiiiooonnn   IIImmmpppllleeemmmeeennntttaaatttiiiooonnn   

1st Quarter 2nd Quarter 3rd Quarter  4th Quarter 
 Depot Square implementation – 

update 
 MU-4 zone change - consideration 
 TDM District Implementation 

Update (IP) 
 Update on potential policy issues 

related to key public improvements 
and city owned site (as needed) 

 Update on potential policy 
issues related to key public 
improvements and city owned 
site (as needed) 

 Boulder Junction Access District 
Parking – update  

 TDM Access District 
implementation - IP  

 

 

 
 
 

Packet Page     339



 

H:\My Documents\CMO\2013WorkPlan.doc 4

 
OTHER 

 
GGGOOOAAALLL:::      OOOttthhheeerrr   CCCiiitttyyy   GGGoooaaalllsss   aaannnddd   WWWooorrrkkk   PPPlllaaannn   IIIttteeemmmsss   

1st Quarter 2nd Quarter 3rd Quarter  4th Quarter 
 13th Street Plaza - IP 
 28th Street Multi-use Path and 

Bikeable Shoulders Iris to Yarmouth 
CEAP – potential call up 

 Acquisition Plan Update - OSMP 
 Alcohol/ Land Use Code Changes – 

options and recommendations 
 Boating on Barker Reservoir 
 Burke Park/ Thunderbird Lake – 

recommendations on lake water 
levels and enhancing park facilities 

 BVCP Area III Planning Reserve 
Amendments (if approved by 
County) 

 Chautauqua Guiding Principles, 
Next Steps –update on progress 

 Civic Use Task Force – update from 
Council members 

 Cultural Master Plan 
 Design and Construction Standards 

Update – consideration of minor 
updates 

 Development Review Projects: 
o Hogan Pancost – annexation and 

site review 
o Wonderland Creek Townhouses – 

potential call up 
o 28th and Canyon (Eads/ Golden 

Buff) – potential call up 
o Landmark Lofts II (970 28th 

Street) – potential call up 
 East Arapahoe Study – potential 

action on limited zoning changes 
 Economic Sustainable Strategies – 

 Access and Parking 
Management Strategies – study 
session 

 Alcohol Land Use Code 
Changes - action 

 Baseline Underpass East of 
Broadway CEAP – Call up 

 Bike Parking Ordinance 
Updates 

 Capital Improvement Bond 
Projects status update - IP 

 Capital Projects – carry over 
and first supplemental 

 Critical Facilities Ordinance – 
public hearing and motion 

 Education Excise Tax – 
consideration of City Manager 
funding recommendations 

 Floodplain Management 
including Boulder Creek 
Mapping, South Boulder Creek 
Mitigation, and Critical 
Facilities 

 Human Rights Ordinance – 
proposed changes regarding age 
discrimination 

 Integrated Pest Management 
Program Changes - IP 

 International Building and 
Energy Codes – public hearing 

 North Boulder Subcommunity 
Plan - IP 

 Old Hire Fire and Police 
Pension Plans – Study Session 

 2014 Budget Process 
 Access and Parking Management 

strategies (update) 
 Boulder Reservoir Site 

Management Plan – status of 
planning efforts and outcomes of 
community engagement (IP) 

 Capital Improvement Program – 
study session 

 Carter Lake Pipeline – thru CIP 
process 

 Contractor Licensing – proposed 
changes (IP) 

 Development Review Projects: 
o Blue Spruce Auto (4403 

Broadway) – potential call up 
o Boulder Outlook Hotel 

Redevelopment (800 28th 
Street) –  potential call up 

o Colorado Building Parking Lot 
(1301 Walnut) - ordinances 

o 1000 Alpine – potential call up 
o 3085 Bluff – potential call up 
o 3390 Valmont (Former 

Sutherlands Site) – potential 
call up 

 Eco Pass- report on results of 
Joint Study with Boulder County 
on community-wide Eco Pass 
Feasibility 

 FAM Master Plan – study session 
 Harbeck-Bergheim House – 

Future Use Options (IP) 
 North Trail Study Area – study 

 Access and Parking Management 
Strategies – update 

 Agriculture Plan (OSMP) – public 
hearing 

 Capital Improvement Program – 
adoption of CIP; 2nd budget 
supplemental 

 Contractor Licensing – 
consideration of proposed changes 

 Design and Construction Standards 
Update – consideration of 
additional changes 

 Development Review Projects: 
o Village Shopping Center Hotel 

(26th and Canyon) – potential call 
up 

 East Arapahoe Study – check in on 
project scope and work plan (3/4Q) 

 Energy Efficiency Upgrades in City 
Buildings – results of employee 
education and outreach project (IP) 

 FAM Master Plan – consideration 
of acceptance 

 Fourmile Canyon Creek Violet 
Avenue to Broadway CEAP – 
potential call up 

 Human Relations Commission 
Work Plan update - IP 

 Human Services Fund allocations - 
IP 

 Light Response Vehicle Pilot 
Program - IP 

 OSMP Natural Resources 
Overarching Issues – Study session 

Packet Page     340



 

H:\My Documents\CMO\2013WorkPlan.doc 5

study session 
 Education Excise Tax Allocation of 

Funds – refine RFP criteria 
 Energy Efficiency Upgrades in City 

Buildings – employee education and 
outreach project (IP) 

 Floodplain Management including 
Boulder Creek Mapping, South 
Boulder Creek Mitigation, and 
Critical Facilities 

 Hazardous Materials Management 
IGA 

 Hydroelectric operations and 
opportunities - IP 

 Keep It Clean IGA 
 Mobile Food Vending – options for 

ordinance changes 
 Multi-hazard mitigation plan – 

possible consent item 
 Nuisance Mosquito Control Pilot 

Project Evaluation - IP 
 OSMP Overarching Issues – 

discussion and possible action on 
Voice and Sight Tag Program, 
Commercial Use Program, Pilot 
Parking Permit Program; IP on 
timeline and process for evaluation 
of remaining topics 

 Police Department Master Plan – 
Study Session 

 State of the Court Presentation 
 Sustainable Streets & Centers – 

update on proposed scope options, 
next steps and integration with 
TMP, East Arapahoe Area Plan and 
proposed Economic Sustainability 
Strategy 

 Transportation Funding (SS) 
 TMP Update – additional direction 

 OSMP natural resources – 
overarching policy issues 
o Temporal Regulations 
o Penalties for violations 
o Multi-modal access and 

parking opportunities 
o Analysis of trail network and 

distribution of activities 
 Parks and Recreation Master 

Plan 
 Pearl Street Mall Code Changes 
 Police Department Master Plan 
 Randolph Center Condominium 

Declaration 
 Recirculation of wastewater – 

CU Williams Village North (IP 
if necessary) 

 Skunk Creek, Bluebell Creek 
and King’s Gulch Flood 
Mapping Update – public 
hearing and motion 

 Smoking Ban on Pearl Street 
Mall - IP 

 Snow and Ice Control 
Evaluation – study session 

 Transportation Funding – study 
session 

 TMP Update – additional 
direction 

 Twomile and Upper Goose 
Creek Flood Mapping Update – 
public hearing and motion 

 Water budgets – commercial, 
industrial and institutional – 
Council direction 

 Water supply status – IP 

session or dinner discussion 
 Old Hire Fire and Police Pension 

Plans – possible discussion during 
budget process 

 Parks and Recreation Master Plan 
 Regional Trail Connections 

(OSMP) – IP 
 South Boulder Creek Flood 

Mitigation Study – public hearing 
and motion 

 Transportation Demand 
Management Toolkit - IP 

 Valmont Butte Future Use 
Discussions – study session 

 Water Conservation Futures Study 
 Youth Opportunities Funding 

allocations - IP 

on remaining topics 
 Urban Wildlife – Consideration of 

Wildlife Protection Ordinance  
 Water budgets – commercial, 

industrial and institutional – 
consideration of changes 

Packet Page     341



 

H:\My Documents\CMO\2013WorkPlan.doc 6

 US36 Bikeway Maintenance – 
Enhancements IGA (tentative based 
on if extra community investments 
are desired) 

 Urban Wildlife – Black Bear 
Education and Enforcement pilot 
program update 

 Woodland Creek Diagonal to 
Winding Trail CEAP – potential call 
up 

 Zero Waste Master Plan Update 
 

KEY 
ADU Accessory Dwelling Units 
BVCP Boulder Valley Comprehensive Plan 
CEAP Community and Environmental Assessment Process 
CIP Capital Improvement Program 
CU University of Colorado 
DUHMD/PS Downtown and University Hill Management District/ Parking Services (City 

Division) 
FAM Facility and Asset Management 
ICC International Code Council 
IGA Intergovernmental Agreement 
IP Information Packet 
OAU Owner Accessory Units 
OSMP Open Space/Mountain Parks Department 
RFQ Request for Qualifications 
RFP Request for Proposals 
TDM Transportation Demand Management 
TMP Transportation Master Plan 
ZWMP Zero Waste Master Plan 

 

Packet Page     342



 
 

CITY COUNCIL 
ACCOMPLISHMENTS – 1ST AND 2ND QUARTER 2012  

 
TOP PRIORITIES: 

 
GGGOOOAAALLL:::      BBBOOOUUULLLDDDEEERRR’’’SSS   EEENNNEEERRRGGGYYY   FFFUUUTTTUUURRREEE   

FIRST AND SECOND QUARTER 
2012 ACCOMPLISHMENTS 

 Hiring of Executive Director for Energy Strategy and Electric Utility Development 
 Retention of FERC and acquisition legal counsel 
 Initial work in developing appraisal of distribution system and preparing legal strategy 
 Initial work on Phase 1 of a new Energy Action Plan, including demand side programs and renewables modeling 
 Active participation at the PUC to advance Boulder’s energy goals and protect community interests 
 Boulder Canyon Hydroelectric Facility Agreement: City Council authorized the dedication of easements to Public Service 

Company of Colorado to facilitate upgrades to the city’s Boulder Canyon Hydroelectric Facility. 
 
GGGOOOAAALLL:::      CCCLLLIIIMMMAAATTTEEE   AAACCCTTTIIIOOONNN   PPPLLLAAANNN   

FIRST AND SECOND QUARTER 
2012 ACCOMPLISHMENTS 

 Third party review and evaluation of CAP tax funded programs to date 
 Preparation of November 2012 CAP tax ballot options for Council consideration 
 Initial steps to develop and refine a new Climate Action Framework consisting a renewed climate action commitment, five-year 

goals, annual targets, integration with appropriate master plans and city operations, and new reporting tools 
 Initial work to identify priorities for the next generation of energy efficiency programs (as part of Phase 1 of the Energy Action 

Plan) 
 Development of Commercial Energy Efficiency Strategy approach and stakeholder process (to be integrated as part of Phase 1 of 

the Energy Action Plan) 
 Continued delivery of CAP programs and services to achieve annual targets (EnergySmart, Ten for Change, SmartRegs 

compliance, etc.) 
 Energy Efficiency Upgrades in City Facilities - (a) Energy Performance Contract (EPC) – Phase III; (b) Lease purchase financing 

for energy conservation measures; and (c) Energy improvements, lease amendments, and payments. - Implemented the third phase 
of Energy Performance Contracts (EPC) for city facilities, including the installation of another 347 kilowatts of solar photovoltaic 

Packet Page     343



 
at the Municipal Service Center buildings, Fleet Services, OSMP Annex and The Dairy Center for the Arts. 
 Energy Efficiency Upgrades in City Facilities – Employee Education and Outreach Project (Information Packet) - A staff team 

participated in three workshops with McKinstry, the city’s Energy Performance Contractor, to help develop a new PowerED energy 
education and outreach program for employees. Program development will continue with other city staff focus groups through the 
end of December 2012. 

 
GGGOOOAAALLL:::      AAAFFFFFFOOORRRDDDAAABBBLLLEEE   HHHOOOUUUSSSIIINNNGGG   

FIRST AND SECOND QUARTER 
2012 ACCOMPLISHMENTS 

 Added 12 new permanently affordable homes to inventory  
 Affordable housing agreement for Gunbarrel Town Center 
 Affordable Housing Program Work plan - Council Consideration and Direction; new initiatives identified 
 Analysis completed of affordable housing distribution 
 Completed funding of major renovations to improve housing quality and economic sustainability of three BHP properties 
 Development of voluntary affordable housing agreement for Depot Square project 
 Inclusionary Housing Rental Policies – Council Consideration and Direction 
 Thistle Community Housing completing fire sprinklers in all of its properties 

 
GGGOOOAAALLL:::      CCCIIIVVVIIICCC   CCCEEENNNTTTEEERRR   MMMAAASSSTTTEEERRR   PPPLLLAAANNN   

FIRST AND SECOND QUARTER 
2012 ACCOMPLISHMENTS 

 Development of interdepartmental project team and approach; project goals and objectives; and public engagement strategy 
(reviewed at joint Planning Board / City Council study session in April) 
 Detailed design of community visioning process and articulation of key project assumptions (reviewed with Council at June 12 

study session) 
 Preparation of baseline materials and launch of public engagement in July. 
 The Municipal Space Study contract was awarded to StudioTerra on March 23.  FAM and the consultants are interviewing city 

departments and conducting research on industry trends and standards for office space.  Preliminary results of the space study, as it 
relates to the Civic Center Master Plan, will be presented at the July 31 study session. 

 

Packet Page     344

http://www.peoplepowerplanet.com/


 
 
 

NEXT TIER PRIORITIES: 
 
GGGOOOAAALLL:::      UUUNNNIIIVVVEEERRRSSSIIITTTYYY   HHHIIILLLLLL   RRREEEVVVIIITTTAAALLLIIIZZZAAATTTIIIOOONNN   

FIRST AND SECOND QUARTER 
2012 ACCOMPLISHMENTS 

 Zoning change: Business Main Street (BMS) boundary to coincide with the University Hill General Improvement District 
boundary; rezoning of UHGID lots to BMS zoning (approved by Planning Board; scheduled for Council consideration in August) 
 Continued work of the Hill Ownership Group to develop a comprehensive revitalization strategy. 
 In coordination with a volunteer, stakeholder committee completed a proposal for a Residential Service District which includes: 

boundaries, scope of services, proposed budget, proposed governance structure, agreements for financial participation by tax-
exempt sororities and fraternities, and a timeline for a 2013 Petition and Election process.   
 Landmarking of Flatirons Theater building (and associated building renovation) 
 955 Broadway (Acacia Fraternity site redevelopment) 

 
GGGOOOAAALLL:::      AAADDDDDDRRREEESSSSSSIIINNNGGG   HHHOOOMMMEEELLLEEESSSSSSNNNEEESSSSSS   

FIRST AND SECOND QUARTER 
2012 ACCOMPLISHMENTS 

 Council Consideration and Direction on:  1175 Lee Hill Project; added 31 permanent housing units for chronically homeless, 
disabled adults 
 Continued Homeless Service Provider Coordination Project to develop action plans for case management, outreach and service 

coordination 
 Continued implementation of Ten year Plan to Address Homelessness 

 
GGGOOOAAALLL:::      BBBOOOUUULLLDDDEEERRR   JJJUUUNNNCCCTTTIIIOOONNN   IIIMMMPPPLLLEEEMMMEEENNNTTTAAATTTIIIOOONNN   

FIRST AND SECOND QUARTER 
2012 ACCOMPLISHMENTS 

 Developed and implemented a funding strategy to finance the acquisition of 100 parking spaces by the Boulder Junction Access 
District – Parking (BJAD-P) in the Depot Square parking garage including a Lease/Purchase Agreement between BJAD-P and the 
developer, and a City of Boulder/BJAD-P Cooperation Agreement 
 Developed a strategy to manage parking in the parking structure through technology and a management agreement among the 

Packet Page     345



 
users.  The arrangement provides for parking spaces to be paid, unbundled, and shared in a manner to meet the needs of the various 
users of Depot Square (hotel, residential, RTD) and general parking in BJAD-P spaces.  Agreement was reached with RTD 
regarding short term and long term parking management strategies given their current legislative mandate. 
 Finalized the ownership structure for five different owners to coordinate management of their units and common areas through a 

Condominium Declaration for the Depot Square project 
 Finalized a renovation agreement and lease consistent with guiding principles with Pedersen Development Corporation for the 

Depot 
 Finalized legal agreements for joint public/private development of Depot Square (RTD facility, shared parking, affordable housing, 

hotel, public space and rehabilitation of historic depot  
 Approved changes to the Transportation Network Plan in support of the Transit Village Area Plan (TVAP) 
 Revised Street Design for Pearl Parkway and Connections Plan Revisions (adopted by Council January 17) 
 Consistent with the TVAP connections plan and along with private redevelopment, a number of capital improvements are 

underway, including the installation of underground power lines, preparations for installing a traffic signal at Junction Place and 
Pearl Parkway, and portions of the Pearl Parkway multi-way boulevard 
 Consistent with the TVAP connections plan, design work continues for the bridge over Goose Creek and the multi-use path on the 

north side of Pearl Parkway between 30th Street and Foothills Parkway 
 Received a Federal Hazard Elimination Program grant award through the Colorado Department of Transportation (CDOT) that will 

allow installation of a traffic signal at 29th Street and Valmont Road, improving safety and implementing improvements identified 
in the Transit Village Area Plan (TVAP) (project will begin in 2014)  
 Completion of engineering and building construction plan review for a 319 unit residential development at 3100 Pearl and the RTD 

Depot Square transit-oriented development  
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Packet Page     346



 
 
GGGOOOAAALLL:::      OOOTTTHHHEEERRR   CCCIIITTTYYY   GGGOOOAAALLLSSS   AAANNNDDD   WWWOOORRRKKK   PPPLLLAAANNN   IIITTTEEEMMMSSS   

FIRST AND SECOND QUARTER 
2012 ACCOMPLISHMENTS 

CCCAAAPPPIIITTTAAALLL   IIITTTEEEMMMSSS   
 Anemone Trails (new) – design work completed 
 Arapahoe Avenue (Folsom to 30th) - Multimodal Improvements Project Completed construction on the Arapahoe Avenue multi-

use path project. The remaining street resurfacing and landscaping work will be completed in 2012. 
 Boulder Creek and South Boulder Creek – restoration of grassland and riparian areas continued 
 Broadway (Euclid to 18th) - Transportation Improvements Project - Made progress on the Broadway (Euclid to 18th) 

Transportation Improvements Project. 16th Street opened the first week of May and the Broadway underpass and the four lanes on 
Broadway (two in each direction) are scheduled for completion by early July. 

 Broke ground in January for a new multi-use path on the south side of Baseline, connecting U.S. 36 and the Bear Creek 
Underpass, including a pedestrian crossing for Baseline Road at Canyon Creek.  Completion of the multi-use path on the west end 
is underway through a redevelopment project. 

 Completed a new sidewalk along Gillaspie Drive, connecting Greenbriar Boulevard and Juilliard Street connecting to Fairview 
High School 

 Completed the course bunker renovation/playability project at Flatirons Golf Course by installing 19 new sand bunkers  
 Continued work at Valmont City Park, including additional construction at Valmont Bike Park; outreach and design for Valmont 

Dog Park; and design and construction of the interim disc golf course 
 Facility ADA Compliance - An Americans with Disabilities Act (ADA) consultant completed comprehensive ADA assessments 

for the Park Central and Municipal buildings. Costs for the recommendations are being identified and prioritized, with other 
buildings planned for assessment. 

 Green Bear Trail Re-route – work in progress with one section completed and opened to public 
 Gregory Canyon Trailhead Site Plan – initial site plan design work began 
 Homestead Trail Re-route – work in progress with one section completed and opened to public 
 Library Facility Upgrades and Enhancements (New Children’s Library and New Teen Space): The selection of a design firm is 

underway 
 Linden Avenue Sidewalk Project (Safe Routes to School) - Completed a Safe Routes to School Project, providing a sidewalk on 

the north side of Linden Avenue between Fourth Street and Broadway. 
 New Wildland Fire Facilities - Responses to the request for qualifications (RFQ) for facility designs were received on May 11. 

Requests for proposals (RFP) to be sent in early June 
 Organic farming – agricultural contract written for 47 acres 

Packet Page     347



 
 Replaced traffic signal incandescent lamps with sustainable, energy-saving light-emitting diode (LED) lamps 
 Sanitas Stone Hut Repair – hut was reinforced and stonework repaired 
 South Boulder Creek West Trailhead – Parking areas for cars and horse trailers completed and open to public; working through 

permit process for outhouse and kiosk installations; interpretive signs in production 
 South Boulder Recreation Center - The contaminated sub floors from the gymnasium, racquetball court, and Pilates room have 

been removed and are expected to be replaced with new wood floors by early June 2012.  
 Street repair expanded efforts – began the first of three years 

 
OOOTTTHHHEEERRR   SSSIIIGGGNNNIIIFFFIIICCCAAANNNTTT   AAACCCTTTIIIOOONNNSSS 111    
 Boulder B-cycle station at the North Boulder Recreation Center sponsored 
 Boulder Community Hospital Expansion Rezoning 
 BVCP: Area II study results and potential next steps (IP to City Council in July) 
 BVCP Comprehensive Rezoning (scheduled for council consideration in August) 
 BVCP 2010 Major Update: planning reserve policy changes (study session discussion with Council on May 29; Council and 

County Commissioner dinner discussion on June 14) 
 Boulder Reservoir Master Plan completed 
 Boulder Valley School District Faculty and Staff Eco Pass Program Expansion - Continued partnership with the Boulder Valley 

School District (BVSD) to expand the BVSD faculty and staff Eco Pass program. 
 Chautauqua Stewardship Framework: Draft and Next Steps 
 City Website Redesign Kickoff - Kicked off redesign with Vision Internet and the City of Arvada. Gathered a list of key 

stakeholders and surveyed them regarding elements the new website should contain. 
 Code enforcement - reallocation of resources to the Boulder Police Department was fully implemented to ensure efficient and 

effective service delivery 
 Community and Environmental Assessment Process (CEAP) for flood mitigation and transportation improvements along Fourmile 

Canyon Creek, near Crest View Elementary School completed, including a City Council call-up opportunity. 
 Compatible Development implementation - annual report to Council 
 Congregate Care code changes (pending further consideration based on Council direction) 
 Constituent Relationship Management (CRM) procurement effort - Designed and implemented a staff engagement and 

procurement initiative to implement a new CRM application resulting in the unanimous selection of Government Outreach.  
Vendor contract negotiations are currently underway.  This initiative is designed to significantly improve our customers’ ability to 
request, track and ultimately receive more timely and effective services while providing staff with automated tools to better 

                                                 
 

Packet Page     348



 
manage these requests. 

 Disposable Bag Reduction Ordinance: research and options presented to Council on May 15; work on nexus study underway 
 Draft Fire-Rescue Master Plan completed and approved by Planning Board.   
 Economic Sustainability Strategy: phase one study of primary employer space needs underway; presentation of results to Council 

scheduled for August  
 Elks neighborhood park planning, outreach and design continued with construction and completion in 2013 
 Family Resource Center opened at Manhattan Middle School in partnership with Boulder County Housing and Human Services 
 FasTracks’ Northwest Rail Plan - Approved guiding principles for developing and designing a hybrid approach to FasTracks’ 

Northwest Rail Plan. 
 Fire Master Plan – Council feedback on strategies (April 3, 2012); Planning Board recommendation for acceptance (May 17, 

2012); Scheduled for Council consideration (June 19, 2012) 
 Heather wood Trail Intergovernmental Agreement (IGA) - City Council authorized the signing of an intergovernmental agreement 

(IGA) with Boulder County related to the maintenance of a trail that crosses the Wastewater Treatment Facility property. 
 Integrated Pest Management Policy Revision and Program Direction (Council provided direction on May 1) 
 Landmarking of First Christian Church building (950 28th Street) 
 Locomotive #30 narrow gauge historic cosmetic restoration completed  
 Mesa Memorial Park design and development initiated 
 Mosquito control annual report (Completed report on the IPM web site – link will be provided to council with first weekly 

mosquito report in June) 
 Named number 3 on list of best cities for bicycling by Bicycling Magazine, in part due to the Valmont Bike Park and new path 

connections made possible by the capital improvement bond 
 New Transportation Safety Ordinances - Approved ordinance changes to improve transportation safety in the city and initiated 

education and enforcement efforts to support the ordinance changes 
 Organic turf and landscape bed program at six park locations launched 
 Received a Safe Routes to School Grant to install a traffic signal at South Boulder Road and Manhattan Drive to create a safe 

crossing for middle school students taking transit, riding, or walking to and from school. 
 RH-2 Zone District Changes (scheduled for council consideration in August) 
 Safe Streets Boulder report published in February. 
 SmartRegs - Continued the successful implementation of SmartRegs and the pilot program for rental housing licensing 

enforcement. The backlog of rental license compliance cases is almost entirely eliminated. 
 Transportation Report on Progress, Transportation to Sustain a Community published in February. 
 Valmont Butte – VCUP implementation commenced; excavation work began on April 4 with both the tribe-designated native 

cultural monitor and the city’s archaeologist consultant present.   

Packet Page     349



 
 Veterans and active duty military personnel recreation pass program developed 

 
 
 
 
Key: 
 
ADA = Americans with Disabilities Act 
BHP = Boulder Housing Partners 
BVSD = Boulder Valley School District 
BMS = Business Main Street   
CAP = Climate Action Plan 
CDOT = Colorado Department of Transportation  
EPC = Energy Performance Contract 
EET = Education Excise Tax 
FAM = Facilities and Asset Management (City Division) 
FERC = Federal Energy Regulatory Commission 
IGA = Inter-governmental Agreement 
IP = Information Packet 
OSMP = Open Space/ Mountain Parks Department 
PUC = Colorado Public Utilities Commission 
RFP = Request for Proposals 
RFQ = Request for Qualifications 
RTD = Regional Transportation District 
TVAP = Transit Village Area Plan 
UHGID = University Hill General Improvement District 
VCUP = Colorado Voluntary Cleanup Program 
 
 

Packet Page     350



1/23/2013 
 

                                                             COUNCIL MEMBERS 
 

Matthew 
Appelbaum 

 Mayor 

Lisa Morzel  Mayor Pro Tem 
Macon Cowles  Council Member 
Suzanne Jones  Council Member 

George Karakehian  Council Member 
Tim Plass  Council Member 

Andrew Shoemaker  Council Member 
Sam Weaver  Council Member 
Mary Young 

 
 Council Member 

 
                                                               
 
                                                             COUNCIL EMPLOYEES 
 

Thomas A. Carr  City Attorney 
Jane S. Brautigam  City Manager 

Linda P. Cooke  Municipal Judge 
                                                                
 
                                                              KEY STAFF 
 

Bob Eichem  Chief Financial Officer 
Alisa D. Lewis  City Clerk 

Patrick von Keyserling  Communications Director 
David Driskell  Community Planning + Sustainability -  Executive Director 

Paul J. Fetherston  Deputy City Manager 
Molly Winter  Downtown, University Hill Management & Parking Services 

Director 
Heather Bailey  Energy Strategy and Electric Utility Development Executive Director 

Larry Donner  Fire Chief 
  Housing, Assistant City Manager for 

Mary Ann Weideman  Human Resources (Acting) Director 
Karen Rahn  Human Services Director 

Don Ingle  Information Technology Director 
Eileen Gomez  Labor Relations Director 

Valerie Maginnis  Library and Arts Director 
Lynne C. Reynolds  Municipal Court Administrator 

Michael Patton  Open Space and Mountain Parks Director 
Kirk Kincannon  Parks and Recreation Director 

Mark Beckner  Police Chief 
Maureen Rait  Public Works - Executive Director  

Tracy Winfree  Transportation Director 
Jeff Arthur  Utilities Director 

 

Packet Page     351



1/30/13     Approved   01-22-2013 

2013 City Council Committee Assignments 
 

INTERGOVERNMENTAL ORGANIZATIONS 
Beyond the Fences Coalition Morzel, Plass 
Boulder County Consortium of Cities Karakehian 
Colorado Municipal League (CML) – Policy Committee Jones, Appelbaum (Castillo – staff alternate) 
Denver Regional Council of Governments (DRCOG) Jones  
Housing Authority (Boulder Housing Partners)  
Metro Mayors Caucus Appelbaum 
National League of Cities (NLC) Appelbaum 
Resource Conservation Advisory Board Plass, Morzel (at large seat) 
Rocky Flats Stewardship Morzel, Plass (1st alternate), Castillo (2nd alternate) 
University of Colorado (CU) / City Oversight Jones, Karakehian 
US36 Mayors and Commission Coalition Appelbaum,  
US36 Commuting Solutions Karakehian  
Urban Drainage and Flood Control District Morzel 

 
LOCAL ORGANIZATIONS 
Boulder Museum of Contemporary Art (BMoCA) Cowles 
Boulder Convention and Visitors Bureau Plass  
Dairy Center for the Arts Karakehian 
Downtown Business Improvement District Board Plass, Jones 
 
INTERNAL CITY COMMITTEES 
Audit Committee Morzel, Cowles 
Boards and Commissions Committee Plass 
Boulder Urban Renewal Authority (BURA)  
Mayoral Appointment 

 

Charter Committee Morzel, Cowles, Karakehian 
Civic Use Pad/ 9th and Canyon Morzel, Jones 
Council Budget Action Plan Committee Plass 
Evaluation Committee Karakehian, Morzel 
Legislative Committee Karakehian, Jones 
 
SISTER CITY REPRESENTATIVES 
Jalapa, Nicaragua Jones 
Kisumu, Kenya Morzel 
Llasa, Tibet  
Dushanbe, Tajikistan Karakehian 
Yamagata, Japan  
Mante, Mexico Plass 
Yateras, Cuba Cowles 
Sister City Sub-Committee Morzel, Cowles 
 

Packet Page     352


	00_Agenda
	3A_Annexation Boulder Jewish Commons
	Executive Summary
	Background
	Previous Concept Plan Review
	Staff Recommendation and Impacts
	Feedback
	Proposed Annexations and Project Plans
	Figure 3: Existing and Proposed Zoning
	Figure 4: Proposed Building’s Educational Use
	Figure 5:Perspective Rendering of Proposed JCC Building looking Northeast from Cherryvale Road
	Figure 6:Perspective Rendering of Entrance Plaza into the Building
	Figure 7:Proposed Traffic Roundabout
	Analysis
	BVCP Policy 1.24 Annexation
	Terms of Annexation
	Attachment A - Location Map
	Attachment B - Resolution No. 1131
	Attachment C - Ordinance No. 7955
	Attachment D - Annexation Agreement

	3B_Ordinance Bungalow Relocation 905 Marine St.
	Executive Summary
	Recommendation and Impacts
	Public Comment, Background, Proposal and Analysis
	FIGURE 1 - AREA CONTEXT MAP
	FIGURE 2 - PROPOSED SUBDIVISION/SITE PLAN – 905 MARINE ST.
	Attachment A - Proposed Ordinance No. 7956 and Ordinance No. 7947
	Attachment B - Solar Access Drawings

	3C_GOCO Grant Application Approval
	Executive Summary
	Recommendation and Impacts
	Feedback and Background
	Analysis
	Attachment A - Proposed Resolution
	Attachment B - Site Map

	3D_MOU UHGID and Del Mar
	Executive Summary
	Recommendation, Impacts and Feedback
	Background
	Analysis
	Next Steps
	Attachment A: Letter of Intent between UHGID and DMI
	Attachment B: Concept Project Design
	Attachment C: Memorandum from RRC Associations
	Attachment D: Memorandum from Fox Tuttle RE: Parking Analysis
	Attachment E: UHGID 14th Street Parking Lot Development Proposal Evaluation by EPS

	5A_Comcast Franchise Extension
	Executive Summary
	Impacts and Background
	Analysis
	Next Steps
	Attachment A - Current Franchise with Comcast
	Attachment B - Franchise Extension, Ordinance 7785
	Attachment C - Proposed Franchise Extension, Ordinance 7952

	6A_Boulder's Energy Future
	Introduction and Executive Summary
	Work Plan Update
	Legal and Regulatory Actions
	Transition Plan
	Energy Services Plan for 2014
	Working Groups
	Fiscal Impact
	Next Steps
	Attachment A - Draft Work Plan
	Attachment B - Solar Working Group
	Attachment C - Natural Gas Working Group

	6B_2014 Community Survey
	Executive Summary and Recommendation
	Impacts and Background
	Analysis
	Attachment A - 2014 Community Survey

	88_Information Packet
	00  Cover Sheet
	1A  Call Up  4474 Broadway
	1B  Call Up 1560 Cress Court
	2A  Boulder's Energy Future Budget Update
	2B E-911 Increase
	2C  Hydroelectric Program Update
	city-council-hydroelectric-program-update FINAL 12-09-13
	Attachment A
	Attachment B
	Attachment C

	3A  PRAB 08262013
	3B  PRAB  09232013
	3C  PRAB  10282013

	99_Reference Materials
	1. Council Working Agreements
	2. SS Calendar
	2014 Study Session Calendar

	3. Master Calendar
	January '14
	February '14
	March '14
	April '14

	4. City Council Goals 2013
	5. Council Work Plan - 2013
	6. Workplan Update - 2012 Accomplishments
	7. Council and Key Staff
	8. Council Committee Assignments




